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OU-’

Honorable National Company LawTribunal (NCLT), Kolkata vide order dated SthApril, 2019 hasadmitted the commencement of

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Section9 ofthe Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) in respect

ofthe Company. By thesaid order, NCLT, Kolkata, has declared Moratorium and public announcement in accordance with Section

13& 15 ofthe Insolvency& Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and hasappointed Mrs. Vinita Agarwal having Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/

IP-P00914/2017-2018/11520 as an Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) and continued as Resolution Professional as appointed

by the Committee ofCreditors in its meeting held on May 3, 2019 under provisions of the Code. Consequent toa petition filed by

COC, theHon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on October 30,2019 and appointed

Mr.Anish Agarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of Mrs.

Vinita Agrawal.
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OPERATIONAL

Production#

Sales#

FINANCIAL

Turnover (Gross)

Depreciation

Profit Before Tax

Profit After Tax

Net Worth Per Share

Shareholder's Funds

Employee's Cost

HIGHLIGHTS

Rs.lakhs

Rs. lakhs

Rs. lakhs

Rs. lakhs

Rupees

Rs. lakhs

Rs. lakhs

Dividend Percent

2023 -24# 2022 -23# 2021 -22#

330

(330)

(330)

(475)

(48744)

344

(344)

(344)

(472)

(48413)

347

(347)

(347)

(468)

(48069)

# Operations have been suspended from September, 2016 onwards and remained suspended in current

year also.
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HIGHLIGHTS

# Operations have been suspended from September, 2016 onwards and remained suspended in current 
year also.

2023 -24# 2022 -23# 2021 -22#
OPERATIONAL

Production # - - -

Sales # - - -

FINANCIAL
Turnover (Gross) Rs. lakhs - - -

Depreciation Rs. lakhs 330 344 347

Profit Before Tax Rs. lakhs (330) (344) (347)

Profit After Tax Rs. lakhs (330) (344) (347)

Net Worth Per Share Rupees (475) (472) (468)

Shareholder's Funds Rs. lakhs (48744) (48413)   (48069)

Employee’s Cost Rs. lakhs - - -

Dividend Percent - - -
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NOTICE

NOTICE ISHEREBYGIVEN THATTHE 56thANNUALGENERALMEETING OF THE MEMBERSOFTAYO ROLLS LIMITED WILL

BE HELD ON FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 20TH, 2024 at12.30 NOONTHROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC”)/ OTHERAUDIO

VISUAL MEANS (“OAVM”), TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

BACKGROUND:

This is to apprise the members that Tayo Rolls Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process which was admitted vide

an order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions

of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code/ IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon'ble National

Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was

subsequently confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee ofCreditors (COC), constituted under IBC in their meeting

held on May 3, 2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody ofthe management and operations

of the company with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent toa petition filed by COC, theHon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on

October 30,2019 and appointed Mr.AnishAgarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256)as Resolution

Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited( JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and condition as specified in

Request forResolution Plan and FormG within the time limit to resolve this company andthesame was approved by Committee

ofCreditors( COC) in their 12th Committee ofCreditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 and declared as passed with 92.45%

ofvoting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 theApplication forApproval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person)

Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its

approval which is reserved fororder.

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statements ofthe Company fortheFinancial Year ended

March 31,2024 and thereports of the Board of Directors/ Resolution Professional and the Auditors thereon; and in this

regard, pass thefollowing Resolution(s) as an Ordinary Resolution(s):

“RESOLVED THAT theaudited standalone financial statement of the Company forthefinancial year ended on March 31,

2024 and thereports of the Board of Directors/ Resolution Professional and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be

and are hereby considered and adopted.”

2. To appoint Mr. V. S. N. Murty (DIN- 00092348), who retires by rotation as a Director and in this regard, pass the following

Resolution(s) as an Ordinary Resolution(s):

“RESOLVEDTHATpursuant tothe provisions of Section 152 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013, Mr.V.S. N. Murty (DIN- 00092348),

who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby re-appointed asa director of

the company, liable to retire by rotation.”

3. To appoint Statutory Auditors of the company forthefinancial year ending March 31,2025 and tofix their remuneration:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and therules made

there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof}, Mls. S.Sanghi& CO, Chartered Accountants,

(Firm Registration Number: FRN 330303E), be and are hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditors ofthe Companyfrom the

conclusion of this 56th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 57th Annual General Meeting ofthe Company, atthe

same remuneration as was fixed by the Committee ofCreditors (COC) under section 28(1)(m) of the IBC, 2016 during the

CIRP and noted by theAudit Committee."

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. ToConsider and approve Related Party Transactions and toconsider and if thought fit, to Pass with or without modification(s),

the following resolution as an ordinary resolution:-

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) read with the rules made

there under and theprovisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock

Exchange, approval be and is hereby given to the contracts/ arrangements/ transactions with the Related Parties (as

detailed in the explanatory statement to the Notice) which will be carried out in the ordinary course ofbusiness and also at

arm's length basis fora sum not exceeding Rs. 10.00 Lakhs( Rupees Ten Lakhs) during the financial year 2024-2025”.

Any related party transaction to be entered in the financial year 2024 - 2025 which is during the Corporate Insolvency

Resolution Process (CIRP) should be made only for the essential services in terms of Section 14(2) of the Insolvency&

Bankruptcy Code, 2016.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT theMembers oftheSuspended Board/ Resolution Professional of the Company beand is hereby

authorized to do all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary tosettle any question, difñculty, or doubt that may arise with regard

to giving effect to above Resolution.”

NOTES:

I) In view ofthe continuing COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (‘MCA’) vide its Circular Nos. 14/2020,17/2020

.VI)

dated April 8, 2020 and April 13, 2020 respectively, read with Circular Nos. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, 02/2021

dated January 13, 2021 and circular no. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 (collectively referred to as ‘MCA Circulars’), and

Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) vide its Circular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12,

2020, and SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15,2021 (collectively referred to as ‘SEBI Circulars’), have

permitted the holding ofAnnual General Meeting through Video Conferencing (‘VC’) or OtherAudio- Visual Means (‘OAVM’),

without the physical presence oftheMembers ata common venue. In accordance with the MCACirculars and SEBI Circulars,

the AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM.

u) Pursuant tothe provisions of the Act,a Member entitled to attend and vote attheAGM is entitled to appointa proxy toattend

and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy need notbea Member oftheCompany. Since this AGM is being held pursuant

to the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars through VC / OAVM, physical attendance of Members hasbeen dispensed with.

Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxies by the Members will not be available for the AGM and hence theProxy

Form andAttendance Slip are not annexed tothis Notice.

iii) The Members canjoin the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15minutes before and afterthe scheduled time ofthecommencement

oftheMeeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The Members will be able to view the proceedings on

the National Securities Depository Limited's (‘NSDL’) e-Voting website atwww.evoting.nsdI.com. The facility of participation

at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available to at least 1,000 Members ona first come first served basis as per

the MCA Circulars. This will not include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters,

Institutional Investors, Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/

AGM without restriction on account offirst come first served basis.

IV) The Register of Members andShare Transfer books oftheCompany will remain closed from Wednesday, September 18th,

2024 till Friday, September 20th, 2024 (both days inclusive)

V) As per Rule 20 oftheCompanies (Management andAdministration)Amendment Rules, 2015, the cutoff date fordetermining

the eligibility for remote e-voting or vote atthe Annual General Meeting is Friday, September 13,2024

During FY’12, FY’14, FY’15, FY’16, FY’17, FY’18& FY’19 your Company had issued Non-cumulative Redeemable

Preference Shares to its Promoters (Tata Steel Limited& Yodogawa Steel Works Limited). Your Company hasnotbeen

able to pay dividend on these shares from thefinancial year FY’13-FY’23. Therefore, according to the provision of Section

47 read with other relevant provisions of the CompaniesAct, 2013 and rules made there under, the preference shareholders

shall havea right to vote on all the resolutions placed before the meeting which would affect their rights or are in relation to

winding up or reduction of capital of the Company, in the same proportion as the paid up capital in respect of equity shares

bears tothe paid up capital in respect of preference shares. Therefore, one preference share vote is equivalent to 10 equity

shares vote. Accordingly, the Preference Shareholders are entitled to vote on all the resolutions as mentioned above.

VII) As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is available to the shareholders in respect

ofthe shares held by them. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Registered Office or the Registrar& TransferAgents

by theMembers holding shares in physical form. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain Nomination forms

from their respective depository participants.

VIII) Pursuant to the Order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’), Mumbai Bench, dated December

18,2023, TSR Consultants Private Limited has merged with Link Intime India Private Limited with effect from December 22,

2023. Accordingly, the name ofRTA oftheCompany is now Link Intime India Private Limited (‘Link Intime/RTA’). The email

address ofthe RTA is csg-unit@linkintime.co.in.

ix) Shareholders holding shares in the physical form are requested to notify/ send thefollowing to Link Intime India Private

Limited (formerly known asTSR Consultants Private Limited, the Registrar& Transfer Agents tofacilitate better services:

(i) Any change in their address/ mandate/ bank details and;

(ii) Particulars of the bank account in which theywish their dividend to be credited, in case they have notfurnished it earlier.

x) Members who still have their holdings in physical form are requested to convert them into dematerialized form (under ISIN

No. INE895C01011).

xi) Pursuant toSection 205AoftheCompanies Act, 1956, all unclaimed/unpaid dividends up to the financial year ended March

31, 1996 have been transferred to the General Revenue Account ofthe Central Government. Shareholders, who have

notyetencashed their dividend warrant(s) for the said period, are requested to forward their claims in prescribed Form

toThe Companies Unpaid Dividend (Transfer to General Revenue Account ofthe Central Government) Rules, 1978 to:

Office of the Registrar of Companies, Jharkhand, 4th Floor, Mangal Tower, Kantatoli, Lalpur, Ranchi, Jharkhand 834001

Consequent upon amendment toSection 205A oftheCompanies Act, 1956 and introduction of Section 205C by the
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winding up or reduction of capital of the Company, in the same proportion as the paid up capital in respect of equity shares 
bears to the paid up capital in respect of preference shares. Therefore, one preference share vote is equivalent to 10 equity 
shares vote. Accordingly, the Preference Shareholders are entitled to vote on all the resolutions as mentioned above.

VII)		  As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, facility for making nomination is available to the shareholders in respect 
of the shares held by them. Nomination forms can be obtained from the Registered Office or the Registrar & Transfer Agents 
by the Members holding shares in physical form. Members holding shares in electronic form may obtain Nomination forms 
from their respective depository participants.

VIII)		  Pursuant to the Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’), Mumbai Bench, dated December 
18, 2023, TSR Consultants Private Limited has merged with Link Intime India Private Limited with effect from December 22, 
2023. Accordingly, the name of RTA of the Company is now Link Intime India Private Limited (‘Link Intime/RTA’). The email 
address of the RTA is csg-unit@linkintime.co.in.

IX)		  Shareholders holding shares in the physical form are requested to notify/ send the following to Link Intime India Private 
Limited  (formerly known as TSR Consultants Private Limited , the Registrar & Transfer Agents to facilitate better services:

		  (i)	 Any change in their address/ mandate/ bank details and;

		  (ii)	 Particulars of the bank account in which they wish their dividend to be credited, in case they have not furnished it earlier.

X)		  Members who still have their holdings in physical form are requested to convert them into dematerialized form (under ISIN 
No. INE895C01011).

XI)		  Pursuant to Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956, all unclaimed/unpaid dividends up to the financial year ended March 
31, 1996 have been transferred to the General Revenue Account of the Central Government. Shareholders, who have 
not yet encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the said period, are requested to forward their claims in prescribed Form 
to The Companies Unpaid Dividend (Transfer to General Revenue Account of the Central Government) Rules, 1978 to: 
Office of the Registrar of Companies, Jharkhand, 4th Floor, Mangal Tower, Kantatoli, Lalpur, Ranchi, Jharkhand 834001	
Consequent upon amendment to Section 205A of the Companies Act, 1956 and introduction of Section 205C by the 
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Companies (Amendment) Act, 1999, and Section 124 and 125 ofthe Companies Act, 2013, the amount ofdividend forthe

subsequent years remaining unpaid or unclaimed fora period of seven years from the date oftransfer to Unpaid Dividend

Account oftheCompanyshall be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) setup by the Government

ofIndia.

Accordingly, the Company hastransferred to the IEPF all unclaimed/unpaid dividends in respect ofthe financial years 1995-

96 to2007-08 except unclaimed/unpaid dividend of Rupees 0.47 lakhs of few shareholders which has notbeen transferred

to IEPF accounts due todispute of title which is pending fordisposal.

xii) SEBI vide its circular ref no. MRD/DOP/ Cir-05/2009 dated 20.05.2009 has clarified that for securities market transactions

and off- market/ private transactions involving transfer of shares in physical form oflisted companies, it shall be mandatory

forthe transferee(s) to furnisha copy ofthe PAN Card tothe Company/ RTA forregistration of such transfer of shares

irrespective of the amount ofsuch transaction.

All intended transferee(s) are, therefore, requested tofurnisha self- certified copy oftheir PAN Card along with the relevant

transfer deed forregistration of transfer of shares. Please note that the shares lodged fortransfer without self- certified copy

ofPAN Card ofthetransferee(s) shall be returned under objection.

xiii) Survivor(s) of the deceased shareholders are advised toforward their request with full details and supporting documents to

theRegistrar& Transfer Agents oftheCompany, forearly transmission of Shares.

XIV) Members seeking any information with regard tothe accounts orany matter to be placed attheAGM, arerequested towrite

to the Companyonorbefore Tuesday, September 17,2024 through email on investors_heIpdesk@tayo.co.in. The same will

be replied by the Company suitably.

XV) In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12,2020, Notice of the AGM along with the

Annual Report 2023-2024 is being sent only through electronic mode tothose Members whose email addresses are

registered with the Company/ Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-2024 will also be

available on the Company's website www.tayo.co.in, website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on thewebsite of

NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

XVI) Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted forthe purpose ofreckoning the quorum under Section

103 ofthe Act

XVII) Process formembers opting for e-voting: The instructions and the procedure forthe e-voting are as follows:

I. Pursuant tothe provisions of Section 108 ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Rule 20 oftheCompanies (Management

and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations 2015 (asamended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated

April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020 and May 05,2022 theCompany is providing facility of remote e-Voting to

its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. Forthis purpose, the Company hasentered

into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) forfacilitating voting through electronic means,

as theauthorized agency. The facility of casting votes bya member using remote e- Voting system as well as venue

voting on the date ofthe EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM, butshall not be

entitled to cast their vote again.The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, September 17,2024 (9:00 am)

and ends on Thursday, September 19,2024 (5:00 pm). During this period members oftheCompany, holding shares

either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Friday, September 13,2024 may cast their

vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDLforvoting thereafter. Once thevote on

a resolution is cast by the member, themember shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

iii. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS

UNDER:-

How doI vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way tovote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step 1:Access toNSDL e-Voting system

A) Loginmethodfore-Votingandjoiningvirtual meetingforlndividualshareholdersholdingsecuritiesindemat

mode.

Interms ofSEBI circular dated December 9,2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual

shareholders holding securities in demat mode areallowed to vote through their demat account maintained with

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id

in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

Login method forIndividual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below
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Companies (Amendment) Act, 1999, and Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, the amount of dividend for the 
subsequent years remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to Unpaid Dividend 
Account of the Company shall be transferred to the Investors Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) set up by the Government 
of India.

		  Accordingly, the Company has transferred to the IEPF all unclaimed/unpaid dividends in respect of the financial years 1995- 
96 to 2007-08 except unclaimed/unpaid dividend of Rupees 0.47 lakhs of few shareholders which has not been transferred 
to IEPF accounts due to dispute of title which is pending for disposal.

XII)		  SEBI vide its circular ref no. MRD/DOP/ Cir-05/2009 dated 20.05.2009 has clarified that for securities market transactions 
and off- market/ private transactions involving transfer of shares in physical form of listed companies, it shall be mandatory 
for the transferee(s) to furnish a copy of the PAN Card to the Company/ RTA for registration of such transfer of shares 
irrespective of the amount of such transaction.

		  All intended transferee(s) are, therefore, requested to furnish a self- certified copy of their PAN Card along with the relevant 
transfer deed for registration of transfer of shares. Please note that the shares lodged for transfer without self- certified copy 
of PAN Card of the transferee(s) shall be returned under objection.

XIII)		  Survivor(s) of the deceased shareholders are advised to forward their request with full details and supporting documents to 
the Registrar & Transfer Agents of the Company, for early transmission of Shares.

XIV)		  Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write 
to the Company on or before Tuesday, September 17, 2024 through email on investors_helpdesk@tayo.co.in. The same will 
be replied by the Company suitably.

XV)		  In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM along with the 
Annual Report 2023-2024 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are 
registered with the Company / Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and Annual Report 2023-2024 will also be 
available on the Company’s website www.tayo.co.in, website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and on the website of 
NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

XVI)		  Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 
103 of the Act

XVII)		  Process for members opting for e-voting: The instructions and the procedure for the e-voting are as follows:

		  I.	 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management 
	 and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
	 Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 
	 April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020, May 05, 2020 and May 05, 2022 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to 
	 its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered 
	 into an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, 
	 as the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e- Voting system as well as venue 
	 voting on the date of the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL.

	 II.	 The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM, but shall not be 
entitled to cast their vote again.The remote e-voting period commences on Tuesday, September 17, 2024 (9:00 am) 
and ends on Thursday, September 19, 2024 (5:00 pm). During this period members of the Company, holding shares 
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of Friday, September 13, 2024 may cast their 
vote by remote e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on 
a resolution is cast by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

	 III.	 THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS 
UNDER:-

		  How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?
		  The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

		  Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system
		  A)	 Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 
			   mode.
			   In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
			   shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
			   Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 
			   in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility.

			   Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below
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Type ofshareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders

holding securities in

demat mode with NSDL

1.

2.

3.

Individual Shareholders

holding securities in 4.

demat mode with CDSL

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.

com either on a Personal Computer orona mobile. On the e- Services home page click on the

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS' section, this will prompt you

toenter your existing User IDand Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see

e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access toe-Voting” under e-Voting services

and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name ore-Voting service provider i.e.

NSDLandyouwill be re-directed to e-Voting website ofNSDLforcasting your vote during the remote

e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting& voting during the meeting.

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.

nsdI.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdI.com/

SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.

evoting.nsdI.com/ either ona Personal Computer orona mobile. Once thehome page ofe-Voting

system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/Member’

section.A new screen will open. You will have toenter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat

account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP anda Verification Code asshown on thescreen.

After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can

see e-Voting page. Click on company name ore-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL andyouwill be

redirected to e- Voting website of NSDLforcasting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or

joining virtual meeting& voting during the meeting.

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning

the QR code mentioned below forseamless voting experience.

JSDL Mobile App isavoilable on

App Store Google Ploy

Users who have opted forCDSL Easi/ Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and

password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication

The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website HYPERLINK “http://www

cdslindia.com”www.cdsIindia.com and click on login icon& New System Myeasi Tab and then use

your existing my easi username& password.

After successful login the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible

companies where theevoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking

the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page ofthee-Voting service provider fo

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting& voting during the

meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers' website directly.

If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website

HYPERLINK “http://www.cdslindia.com”www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System

Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing DematAccount Number and

PAN No.froma e-Voting link available on HYPERLINK “http://www.cdslindia.com”www.cdslindia

com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile8

Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see

the e-Voting option where theevoting is in progress and also able to directly access thesystemo

all e-Voting Service Providers.

8
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Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL

1.	 Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl. 
com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e- Services home page click on the 
“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you 
to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able to see 
e-Voting services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e- Voting services 
and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

2.	 If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices. 
nsdl.com. Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ 
SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.
evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting 
system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat 
account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can 
see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e- Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

4.	 Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning 
the QR code mentioned below for seamless voting experience.

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL

1.	 Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and 
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website HYPERLINK “http://www. 
cdslindia.com”www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user 
your existing my easi username & password.

2.	 After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking 
the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 
meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 
Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3.	 If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at CDSL website 
HYPERLINK “http://www.cdslindia.com”www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System 
Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4.	 Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and 
PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on HYPERLINK “http://www.cdslindia.com”www.cdslindia. 
com home page. The system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & 
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see 
the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers.
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Individual Shareholders

(holding securities in

demat mode) login

through their depository

participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository

Participant

registered with NSDL/CDSLfore-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e- Voting option.

Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name ore-Voting service

provider i.e. NSDLandyouwill be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDLforcasting your vote during

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting& voting during the meeting.

Important note: Members who areunable to retrieve User ID/Password areadvised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password

option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk forIndividual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode foranytechnical issues related to login through

Depository i.e. NSDLandCDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending

securities in demat mode with NSDL a request at HYPERLINK “maiIto:evoting@nsdI.co.in”evoting@nsdI.co.in or call at

022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending

Individual Shareholders holding a request at HYPERLINK “maiIto:helpdesk.evoting@cdsIindia.com”heIpdesk.

securities in demat mode with CDSL evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

B) Login Method fore-Voting and joining virtual meeting forshareholders other than Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode andshareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How toLog-in to NSDL e-Voting website†

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl com/

either ona Personal Computer orona mobile.

2. Once thehome page ofe-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login" which is available under ‘Shareholder

Member’ section.

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP anda Verification Code as

shown on thescreen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDLeservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdI.com/ with your

existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you

can proceed toStep2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below

Manner ofholding shares i.e.

Demat (NSDLor CDSL) or

Physical

a) For Members who hold shares

in demat account with NSDL.

b)ForMembers who hold shares

in demat account with CDSL.

c)ForMembers holding shares

in Physical Form.

Your User ID is:

8 Character DP ID followed by8 Digit Client ID

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is

IN300*”12*”*”.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12””””””“*" then your user ID is "**”””**"

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company

Forexample if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user

ID is 101456001***

99

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget Password 
option available at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

B)	 Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding 
	 securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.
	 How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?
	 1.	 Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl com/ 
		  either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

	 2.	 Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under ‘Shareholder 
		  Member’ section.

	 3.	 A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
		  shown on the screen.

		  Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your 
		  existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you 
		  can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

	 4.	 Your User ID details are given below :

Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in 
demat mode) login 
through their depository 
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e- Voting option.
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 
the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Login type Helpdesk details
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by sending 
a request at HYPERLINK “mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in”evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at 
022 - 4886 7000 and 022 - 2499 7000

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by sending 
a request at HYPERLINK “mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com”helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDLor CDSL) or 
Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******.

b) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then your user ID is *************

c) For Members holding shares 
in Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 101456 then user 
ID is 101456001***
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5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password tologin and cast your vote.

OU-’

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system forthe first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was

communicated toyou. Once youretrieve your ‘initial password’, you need toenter the ‘initial password’ and the system

will force you to change your password.

c) How to retrieve your ’initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account orwith the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated

toyou on your email ID.Trace theemail sent to you from NSDLfrom your mailbox. Open theemail and open the

attachment i.e.a .pdf file. Open the.pdf file. The password toopen the.pdf file is your8 digit client ID for NSDL

account, last8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number forshares held in physical form. The .pdf file

contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process forthose shareholders whose

email idsare not registered.

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have notreceived the“ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on ”Forgot User Details/Password?”(Ifyou are holding shares in your demat account with NSDLorCDSL) option

available on www.evoting.nsdI.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdI

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can senda request at evoting@nsdl.co.in

mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name andyour registered address etc.

d) Members canalso use the OTP(OneTime Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system ofNSDL.

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to“Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8. Now, you will have toclick on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page ofe-Voting will open.

Step 2:Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system†

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able tosee all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose

voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2. Select “EVEN” ofcompany forwhich you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote

during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need toclick on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General

Meeting”.

3. Now you are ready fore-Voting as the Voting page opens

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number ofshares forwhich you wish

tocast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7. Once youconfirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Process forthose shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user idand

password and registration ofe mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name ofshareholder, scanned copy ofthe share

certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy ofPAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy ofAadhar

Card) by email to investors_heIpdesk@tayo.co.in.

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16digit DPID+ CLID or16 digit beneficiary ID), Name,

client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy ofPAN card), AADHAR (self

attested scanned copy ofAadhar Card) to investors_heIpdesk@tayo.co.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding

securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step1 (A) i.e. Login method for

e-Voting and joining virtual meeting forIndividual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may senda request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password fore-

voting by providing above mentioned documents.
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5.	 Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

	 a)	 If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login and cast your vote.

	 b)	 If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was 
	 communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system 
	 will force you to change your password.

	 c)	 How to retrieve your ‘initial password’?

			  (i)	 If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated 
		  to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the 
		  attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL 
		  account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
		  contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.

			  (ii)	 If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those shareholders whose 
		  email ids are not registered.

6.	 If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

	 a)	 Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option 
	 available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

	 b)	 Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available on www.evoting.nsdl 
	 com.

	 c)	 If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in 
	 mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc.

	 d)	 Members can also use the OTP(One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.		 After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.		 Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9.		 After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2:Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system?
1.		 After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and whose 

voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status.

2.		 Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote 
during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join General 
Meeting”.

3.		 Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens

4.		 Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you wish 
to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted.

5.	 Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

6.	 You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

7.	 Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

	 	Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and 
password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1.		 In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar 
Card) by email to investors_helpdesk@tayo.co.in.

2.	 In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, 
client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self 
attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to investors_helpdesk@tayo.co.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for 
e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3.		 Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e- 
voting by providing above mentioned documents.
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4. In terms ofSEBI circular dated December 9,2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual

shareholders holding securities in demat mode areallowed tovote through their demat account maintained with

Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email

ID correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORe-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGMARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure fore-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same astheinstructions mentioned above forremote

e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have

notcasted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,

shall be eligible to vote through e- Voting system in the EGM/AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will

not be eligible to vote atthe EGM/AGM.

4. The details of the person who may be contacted forany grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on

the day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned forRemote e-voting.

IV. INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FORATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGHVC/OAVMARE AS UNDER:

(i) Member will be provided witha facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL

e-Voting system.

(iV)

(VÏ)

(VÏÏ)

Members may access by following the steps mentioned above forAccess toNSDL e-Voting system. After

successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company

name. You arerequested toclick on VC/OAVM link placed underJoin Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM

will be available in Shareholder/ Member login where theEVEN ofCompany will be displayed. Please note

that the members who do nothave the User ID and Password fore-Voting or have forgotten the User ID

and Password may retrieve the same byfollowing the remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice

to avoid last minute rush.

Members areencouraged tojoin the Meeting through Laptops forbetter experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet witha good speed to avoid any

disturbance during the meeting.

Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices orTablets or through Laptop connecting via

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is

therefore recommended touseStable Wi Fior LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

(v) Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register

themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat account number

folio number, email id, mobile number atinvestors helpdesk@tayo.co.in latest by 5 p.m. (IST) on Friday,

September 13,2024.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance

mentioning their name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile numberatinvestors_heIpdesk

tayo.co.in latest by 5p.m. (IST) on Tuesday, September 17,2024. The same will be replied by the company

suitably.

Those shareholders who have registered themselves asa speaker will only be allowed to express their

views ask questions during the meeting.

Whena pre-registered speaker is invited to speak atthemeeting but he/ she does notrespond, the next

speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected toa device with

a video/ camera along with good internet speed.

(ix) The Company reserves the right to restrict the numberofquestions and numberofspeakers, as appropriate,

for smooth conduct oftheAGM.

Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, cancontact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager,

NSDLatevoting@nsdl.co.in or call 1800 1020 990/ 1800 22 44 30.

v. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of the

Company asonthecut-off date of Friday, September 13,2024.

VI. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e-voting but shall

not be allowed to vote again attheAGM.

vii. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members orin the register of beneficial owners maintained

by the depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 13,2024 only, shall be entitled to avail the
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facility of remotee voting as well as voting at the AGM.
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VIII. CS Shikha Agarwal, Practicing Company Secretary, has been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and

remote e-voting process ina fair and transparent manner.

IX. General Guidelines forShareholders:

i. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF JPG

Format) ofthe relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly

authorized signatory (ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to acsshikhajain@gmail.com

witha copy marked toevoting@nsdl.co.in Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can

also upload their Board Resolution/ Power ofAttorney/ Authority Letter etc. by clicking on “Upload Board Resolution

/ Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their login.

ii. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares ofthe Company

and becomes member oftheCompany after the notice is send through e-mail and holding shares as ofthe cut-off

date i.e. Friday, September 13,2024, may obtain the login ID and password by sendinga request at evoting@nsdl.

co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL forremote e-voting, then you can use your

existing user ID and password forcasting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by

using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdI.com

or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30. In case ofIndividual Shareholders holding securities in

demat mode who acquires shares of the Company and becomesa Member oftheCompany after sending of the

Notice and holding shares as ofthe cut-off date i.e. Friday, September 13,2024 may follow steps mentioned in the

Notice of the AGM under Step1 :“Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above).

iii. It is strongly recommended nottoshare your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your

password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the

correct password. Insuch an event, you will need togo through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical

User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdI.com to reset the password.

iv. In case ofany queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) forShareholders and e-voting user

manual forShareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdI.com orcall on toll free no.:022 - 4886

7000 and 022 - 2499 7000 orsenda request to to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Senior Manager atevoting@nsdl.co.in

X. OTHER INSTRUCTIONS:

1. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during the

AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, notlater than 48 hours ofthe conclusion

of the AGM,a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report ofthe total votes cast in favor or against, if any, to the Chairman/

Resolution Professional ora person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same.

II. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the Company at

www tayo.co.in and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman ora person

authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately forwarded tothe BSE Limited, Mumbai.

May 23,2024

Registered O9ice:

3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur,

Jamshedpur- 831 001
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correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
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AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of the conclusion 
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www tayo.co.in and on the website of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person 
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May 23, 2024
Registered Office:
3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur,  
Jamshedpur- 831 001

For Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal  
Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
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As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013(“Act”) the following Explanatory Statements setout all material facts

relating to the special business mentioned in Item no. 4.

Item No. 4:

As per Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the Companies

(Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, all material related party transactions require approval of the shareholders.

Transaction(s) witha related party shall be considered as material if the transaction(s) to be entered into individually or taken

together with previous transaction(s) during the financial year exceeds 10 % oftheannual consolidated turnover of the Company

asperlast audited financial statements ofthe Company. Accordingly, turnover and Other Income fortheF.Y. 2023 - 2024 is Rs. Nil

and 10 % of the Annual Turnover is also equal to Rupees NIL

The expected transactions during FY’ 2024-2025with the following related parties are likely to be morethan 10% ofthe consolidated

turnover of the Company forFY’2023 - 2024. Hence, it is proposed to secure approval of the shareholders by way of ordinary

resolution.

As the company is under CIRP, The Resolution Professional communicated vide letter dated 22.11.2019 to the Key Managerial

Personnel to collect the information of the Fixed Assets ofthe company and directed to handover all the movable and immovable

assets in the possession of Resolution Professional. The Resolution Professional could not take the possession of the factory

premises as the factory of the company hasno separate access and thesame is surrounded by Tata Growth Shop (TGS) whose

security is managed byTATA Steel Limited. The RP has physical possession of only Guest House and Registered o9ice of the

company which is in Kolkata and Jamshedpur respectively.

The Resolution Professional wrotea letter to Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd. (TSUIS) (Formerly Jamshedpur

Utility& Services Company Limited) and mentioned that as per Regulation 32 of the Insolvency And Bankruptcy Board of India

(Insolvency Resolution Process forCorporate Persons) Regulations, 2016, as supply of Electricity comes under the definition of

essential goods and services and not to take any step todiscontinue the electricity connection from theworks office and Registered

office for which thecompany will pay the charges under essential items as CIRP cost as per the utility bills.

SI No. Description Details

Tata Steel Utilities and InfrastructureServices Ltd.

a. Nameofrelated party
ysuis) Formerly known asJUSCO Ltd

b. NameoftheDirector or Key Managerial None

Person who is related, if Any

c. Nature ofrelationship

Nature, material terms, monetary value

d. and particulars of the contract or

arrangement

TSUIS Ltdisa 100% subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited.

¥• Availing Power from TSUIS Ltd.

¥• Value — Rupees 10.00Lakh.

¥• Companyhasentered intoa poweragreement forsupply of electricity.

¥• TSUIS Ltd. chargesa rate as finalised by JSERC.

Any other information relevant or important TSUIS's quality of powersupply is better and cheaperthan the JBVNL,

e. forthemembers totake the other licensee in the area.

decision on the resolution

According tothe provisions of Section 188 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 23(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all entities falling under the definition of “Related Party" under Section 2(76) of the

Companies Act, 2013, irrespective of the fact whether theentity isa related party to the transaction or not, shall abstain from voting

on resolution mentioned at Item No.4 of the Notice.

The proposed resolution is in the interest of the Company andyour Directors/ the Resolution Professional commend resolution at

Item No.4 foryour approval. None oftheDirectors or Key Managerial Personnel or the Resolution Professional of the Company

including their relatives are concerned or interested in aforesaid resolution.

May 23, 2024

Registered O9ice:

3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur,

Jamshedpur- 831 001
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IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256

Sl No. Description Details

a. Name of related party
Tata Steel Utilities and Infrastructure Services Ltd. 

(TSUIS) Formerly known as JUSCO Ltd

b. Name of the Director or Key Managerial 
Person who is related, if Any

None

c. Nature of relationship TSUIS Ltd is a 100% subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited.

d.
Nature, material terms, monetary value 
and particulars of the contract or 
arrangement

►	 Availing Power from TSUIS Ltd.
►	 Value – Rupees 10.00 Lakh.
►	 Company has entered into a power agreement for supply of electricity.
►	 TSUIS Ltd. charges a rate as finalised by JSERC.

e.
Any other information relevant or important 
for the members to take
decision on the resolution

TSUIS’s quality of power supply is better and cheaper than the JBVNL, 
the other licensee in the area.

According to the provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 23(4) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, all entities falling under the definition of “Related Party” under Section 2(76) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, irrespective of the fact whether the entity is a related party to the transaction or not, shall abstain from voting 
on resolution mentioned at Item No. 4 of the Notice.
The proposed resolution is in the interest of the Company and your Directors / the Resolution Professional commend resolution at 
Item No. 4 for your approval. None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or the Resolution Professional of the Company 
including their relatives are concerned or interested in aforesaid resolution.
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Details of directors seeking appointment/re-appointment

inthe forthcoming Annual General Meeting

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) read with ScheduleV ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Name ofDirector

DIN

Date ofbirth

Date ofappointment

Expertise in specific functional areas

Qualifications

Directorship held in other Public Companies (excluding

Foreign Companies) as on March 31,2024

Chairmanship/Membership of committees of other Public

Companies (includes onlyAudit Committee and

Stakeholders Relationship Committee) as on March 31,2024

Shareholding in the Company ason March 31,2024

Relationship between Directors inter-se

Category

May 23, 2024

Registered O1fice:

3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur,

Jamshedpur- 831 001

Mr.V.S.N. Murty

00092348

15.04.1951

25.04.2013

Finance& Accounts

B.Com., Chartered Accountant

NIL

NIL

Nil

None

Promoter, Non- Independent, Non-Executive Director.
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Details of directors seeking appointment/re-appointment  
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 

(Pursuant to Regulation 36(3) read with Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and  
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

May 23, 2024
Registered Office:
3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Bistupur, 
Jamshedpur- 831 001
 

For Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal  
Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256

Name of Director Mr. V. S. N. Murty

DIN 00092348

Date of birth 15.04.1951

Date of appointment 25.04.2013

Expertise in specific functional areas Finance & Accounts

Qualifications B.Com., Chartered Accountant

Directorship held in other Public Companies (excluding 
Foreign Companies) as on March 31, 2024

NIL

Chairmanship/Membership of committees of other Public 
Companies (includes only Audit Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee) as on March 31, 2024

NIL

Shareholding in the Company as on March 31, 2024 Nil

Relationship between Directors inter-se None

Category Promoter, Non- Independent, Non-Executive Director.
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This is to apprise the members that Tayo Rolls Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process which was admitted vide

an order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions

of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code/ IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon'ble National

Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was

subsequently confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee ofCreditors (COC), constituted under IBC in their meeting

held on May 3, 2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody ofthe management and operations

of the company with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent toa petition filed by COC, theHon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on

October 30,2019 and appointed Mr.AnishAgarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256)as Resolution

Professional in place of Mrs.Vinita Agrawal.

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited( JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and condition as specified in

Request forResolution Plan and FormG within the time limit to resolve this company and thesame was approved by Committee

ofCreditors( COC) in their 12th Committee ofCreditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 and declared as passed with 92.45%

ofvoting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 theApplication forApproval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person)

Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its

approval which is reserved fororder.

Accordingly Report forthe year ended March 31,2024 is as under:

1. FINANCIAL RESULTS:

ii

Particulars

Income

Revenue from Operations

Other income”

Total income

Expenses

Cost ofmaterials consumed

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and

work in progress

Excise duty on sale of goods

Employee benefits expenses“

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Consumption ofstores

Power and fuel”

Other expenses”

Total expenses

III Income/ Loss before finance cost, exceptional items and tax

IV Finance costs

V Income/ Loss before Exceptional items and tax

VI Exceptional items

VII Income/Loss before tax

VIII Tax expenses

IX Income/Loss fortheyear

Current Year*

Rupees Lakhs

330

330

(330)

(330)

(330)

(330)

X Other comprehensive income/(loss)

XI Total comprehensive income/ (loss) (330)

XII Paid up share capital 1026

XIII Other equity (49770)

XIV Basic and diluted EPS before extraordinary items forthe period (3.22)

XV Basic and diluted EPS after extraordinary items forthe period (3.22)

Previous Year”

Rupees Lakhs

* Operations have been suspended gradually from May 2016 onwards and remained suspended in current year also.

””Pis refer Note no.2.24 “Transactions relating to CIRP period”

15

344

344

(344)

(344)

(344)

(344)

(344)

1026

(49439)

(3.36)

(3.36)
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This is to apprise the members that Tayo Rolls Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process which was admitted vide 
an order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions 
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code / IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was 
subsequently confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee of Creditors (COC), constituted under IBC in their meeting 
held on May 3, 2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody of the management and operations 
of the company with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent to a petition filed by COC, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on 
October 30, 2019 and appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution 
Professional in place of Mrs.Vinita Agrawal.

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited ( JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and condition as specified in 
Request for Resolution Plan and Form G within the time limit to resolve this company and the same was approved by Committee 
of Creditors ( COC) in their 12th Committee of Creditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 and declared as passed with 92.45 % 
of voting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person) 
Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its 
approval which is reserved for order.

Accordingly Report for the year ended March 31, 2024 is as under:

1.	 FINANCIAL RESULTS:

Particulars Current Year*  
Rupees Lakhs

Previous Year*  
Rupees Lakhs

I Income
Revenue from Operations - -

Other income** -

Total income -

II Expenses
Cost of materials consumed - -

Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and
work in progress
Excise duty on sale of goods - -

Employee benefits expenses** -

Depreciation and amortization expenses 330 344
Consumption of stores - -

Power and fuel** -

Other expenses** -

Total expenses 330 344
III Income / Loss before finance cost, exceptional items and tax (330) (344)
IV Finance costs - -
V Income/ Loss before Exceptional items and tax (330) (344)
VI Exceptional items - -
VII Income/Loss before tax (330) (344)
VIII Tax expenses - -
IX Income/Loss for the year (330) (344)
X Other comprehensive income/(loss) - -
XI Total comprehensive income/ (loss) (330) (344)
XII Paid up share capital 1026 1026
XIII Other equity (49770) (49439)
XIV Basic and diluted EPS before extraordinary items for the period (3.22) (3.36)
XV Basic and diluted EPS after extraordinary items for the period (3.22) (3.36)

* Operations have been suspended gradually from May 2016 onwards and remained suspended in current year also.
**Pls refer Note no. 2.24 “Transactions relating to CIRP period”
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2. DIVIDEND:

There is no recommendation ofdividend.

3. PREFERENTIALALLOTMENT OF REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES:

During the year NIL Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees one hundred each only) each

have been allotted on preferential basis.

4. INSOLVENCYAND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016:

Based on theaudited accounts forthe period ended December 31,2015 thenetworth of the Company became negative.

Considering the negative net worth, The Board of Directors had referred the Company totheBoard forIndustrial and

Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) as required under the First proviso of section 15 (1) of The Sick Industrial Companies

(Special Provisions) Act, 1985 and theCompany was registered with BIFR on 23rd March, 2016. Meanwhile, the Ministry

of Finance issued Notifications S.O. 3568 (E)& S.O. 3569 (E) dated 25th November, 2016 totheeffect that SICA was

repealed with effect from 1stDecember, 2016 and all the references or inquiry pending before the BIFR and/ orAAIFR stood

abated. The Board ofDirectors at their meeting held on 3rd July, 2017 had decided to refer the Company totheHonorable

National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) for

initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). Subsequently, on 13th July, 2017, the Company filed relevant

application before the Honorable NCLT, Kolkata under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The

Workers oftheCompany, in the capacity of operational creditor had also filed an application before the Honorable Tribunal,

Kolkata under Section9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016 seeking commencement ofCIRP. Both the

appeals were rejected by the Honorable Tribunal. Subsequently, the Company and theworkers filed appeal separately

before the Honorable National Company Law Appellate Tribunal against the rejection order passed by the Honorable

Tribunal. The Appellate Tribunal allowed the appeal filed by the Company andtheWorkers, however, it directed the Tribunal

to admit the appeal filed by the Workers.

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) had commenced against the Company vide an order passed by

Honorable NCLT Kolkata dated SthApril 2019. Pursuant tothis order, the powers oftheBoard ofDirectors stood suspended

and was exercised by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the Honorable NCLTwho

was consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee ofCreditors (COC).

Consequent toa petition filed by COC, theHonorable NCLT, Kolkata, passed an order on 30th October, 2019 and appointed

Mr.Anish Agarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA- 001/IP- P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of

Mrs. Vinita Agrawal( theerstwhile Resolution Professional ).

During the CIRP, Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and

condition as specified in Request forResolution Plan and FormG within the time limit to resolve this company andthesame

was approved by Committee ofCreditors( COC) in their 12th Committee ofCreditors meeting held on February 21, 2020

and declared as passed with 92.45% ofvoting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 theApplication forApproval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1)

of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate

Person) Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)

Kolkata forits approval which is reserved fororder.

5. COMPANY'S PERFORMANCE:

Considering the future business prospects, the overcapacity situation in the roll industry, the challenges faced by the

Company, the resources required to meet these challenges, the likely time taken forturnaround of the business, and the

estimated low returns from the business on steady state basis, on May 26, 2016 theBoard decided tosuspend operations

ina phased manner. Thereafter, on September 5,2016, the Board decided forclosure of operations. Subsequently, the

Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) commenced against the Company vide an order passed by Honorable

NCLT Kolkata dated SthApril 2019.

Accordingly, the operations ofthe Company remained suspended during the year under review and the Company continued

to incur losses.

6. DEPOSITS:

During the year under review, the Company hasnotaccepted any deposit or renewed any Deposit within the meaning of

Section 73 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and therules made there under.

7. AUDIT REPORT:

TheStatutory Auditors Report on Audited AnnualAccountsforthefinancial year 2023-2024 contains qualifications for which

comments and statement on Impact ofsuch Audit qualification is mentioned in Page No.50.

The Secretarial Auditors Report forthe financial year 2023-2024 does notcontain any qualification, reservation or adverse

remark which warrants comments from the Board of Directors/ Resolution Professional. The Secretarial Audit Report as

16

Fifty sixth annual report 2023-24

16

2.	 DIVIDEND:
	 There is no recommendation of dividend.

3.	 PREFERENTIAL ALLOTMENT OF REDEEMABLE PREFERENCE SHARES:
	 During the year NIL Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 100/- (Rupees one hundred each only) each 
	 have been allotted on preferential basis.

4.	 INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016 :
Based on the audited accounts for the period ended December 31, 2015 the net worth of the Company became negative. 
Considering the negative net worth, The Board of Directors had referred the Company to the Board for Industrial and 
Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) as required under the First proviso of section 15 (1) of The Sick Industrial Companies 
(Special Provisions) Act, 1985 and the Company was registered with BIFR on 23rd March, 2016. Meanwhile, the Ministry 
of Finance issued Notifications S.O. 3568 (E ) & S.O. 3569 (E ) dated 25th November, 2016 to the effect that SICA was  
repealed with effect from 1st December, 2016 and all the references or inquiry pending before the BIFR and/ orAAIFR stood 
abated. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 3rd July, 2017 had decided to refer the Company to the Honorable 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) for 
initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). Subsequently, on 13th July, 2017, the Company filed relevant 
application before the Honorable NCLT, Kolkata under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The 
Workers of the Company, in the capacity of operational creditor had also filed an application before the Honorable Tribunal, 
Kolkata under Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 2016 seeking commencement of CIRP. Both the 
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before the Honorable National Company Law Appellate Tribunal against the rejection order passed by the Honorable 
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to admit the appeal filed by the Workers.

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) had commenced against the Company vide an order passed by 
Honorable NCLT Kolkata dated 5th April 2019. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended 
and was exercised by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the Honorable NCLT who 
was consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee of Creditors (COC).
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Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA- 001/IP- P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of 
Mrs. Vinita Agrawal ( the erstwhile Resolution Professional ).

During the CIRP, Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and 
condition as specified in Request for Resolution Plan and Form G within the time limit to resolve this company and the same 
was approved by Committee of Creditors ( COC) in their 12th Committee of Creditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 
and declared as passed with 92.45 % of voting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) 
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate 
Person) Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 
Kolkata for its approval which is reserved for order.

5.	 COMPANY’S PERFORMANCE:
Considering the future business prospects, the overcapacity situation in the roll industry, the challenges faced by the 
Company, the resources required to meet these challenges, the likely time taken for turnaround of the business, and the 
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required under section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule9 oftheCompanies (Appointment and Remuneration

ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is annexed tothis report

8. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEESAND INVESTMENTS:

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under theprovisions of Section 186 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 are

given in the Notes tothe Financial Statements.

9. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND MAJOR LITIGATIONS

Details of Contingent Liabilities and Major Litigations covered under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013

aregiven in the Notes tothefinancial statements.

10. DIRECTORS& KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (KMP):

Appointments

During the financial year under review, No directors were appointed in the company

Resignations

During the financial year under review, None ofthedirectors resigned from the company.

Directors Retiring by Rotation

Pursuant tothe provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr.V.S.N.Murty will retire by rotation at the ensuing

Annual General Meeting oftheCompany andbeing eligible, have offered himself forre-appointment. In accordance with the

provisions of the Act, none oftheIndependent Directors are liable to retire by rotation.

Key Managerial Personnel

The following are the Key Managerial Personnel ofthe Company during the financial year under review:

• Mr. Suresh Padmanabhan

• Ms.Harpreet Kaur Bhamra

11. DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING:

Theshareholding of Managing Director and Non-Executive Directors in the Company is NIL.

12. NUMBEROF MEETINGS OF BOARD/INTERNAL MANAGEMENT:

During the financial yearended March 31,2024, one Internal Management Meeting was held with membersofthesuspended

Board and Resolution Professional wherein members were present through video conferencing in which the suspended

Board noted about the affairs/financial conditions of the company. However, no approval were sought from the Directors.

The date on which the meeting was held is given below :-

• May 23, 2023

13. DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

Since there is no Independent Director in the suspended Board of the Company, declaration under Sec 149(6) of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16 (b)of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to the Company.

14. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) had commenced against the Company vide an order passed by

Honorable NCLT Kolkata dated SthApril 2019. Pursuant tothis order, the powers oftheBoard ofDirectors stood suspended

and was exercised by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the Honorable NCLT

who was consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee ofCreditors (COC).

Consequent toa petition filed by COC, theHonorable NCLT, Kolkata, passed an order on 30th October, 2019 and appointed

Mr.Anish Agarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of

Mrs. Vinita Agrawal( theerstwhile Resolution Professional ).

The Company hadalready suspended its operations gradually since May, 2016 and thesame continued during the current

year as well. On account of ongoing CIRP and suspended operations, no activities other than those relating to insolvency

resolution process were undertaken by theCompany during the year as perthe provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy

Code (IBC), 2016. Accordingly, the control policies relating to the normal operations of the company were notrequired and

therefore were notadopted and performed except forthose necessary under theprovisions of the IBC which commensurate

with the size, nature and complexity of the activities of the Company.
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Board and Resolution Professional wherein members were present through video conferencing in which the suspended 
Board noted about the affairs/financial conditions of the company . However, no approval were sought from the Directors. 
The date on which the meeting was held is given below :-

•	 May 23, 2023

13.	 DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
Since there is no Independent Director in the suspended Board of the Company, declaration under Sec 149(6) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 16 (b) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, is not applicable to the Company.
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Honorable NCLT Kolkata dated 5th April 2019. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended 
and was exercised by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the Honorable NCLT 
who was consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee of Creditors (COC). 
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Mrs. Vinita Agrawal ( the erstwhile Resolution Professional ).
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year as well. On account of ongoing CIRP and suspended operations, no activities other than those relating to insolvency 
resolution process were undertaken by the Company during the year as per the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
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15. DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENTI STATEMENT BY THE RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL:

Tothebest of knowledge and beliefs, the Resolution Professional makes thefollowing statement in terms ofSection 134(3)

(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and taken on record by the Resolution Professional:

(a) that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts fortheyear ended March 31,2024, the applicable accounting standards

have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any except non compliance with

certain clauses of Ind AS as reported by the Auditor in their report dated May 23, 2024 and Statement on Impact of

such qualification in page no.50 ofthis Report;

(b) they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and madejudgments and estimates that are

reasonable and prudent so as to givea true and fair view ofthe state of affairs of the Company asatMarch 31,2024

and oftheprofit/ loss of the Company fortheyear ended on that date;

(c) that they had taken proper and sufficient care forthe maintenance ofadequate accounting records in accordance with

the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 forsafeguarding the assets ofthe Company andforpreventing and detecting

fraud and other irregularities;

(d) that they had concluded that the going concern basis is not appropriate because of the financial condition of the

Company and, therefore the Financial Statements have been prepared on non - going concern basis;

(e) that they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company andthat such internal financial controls

are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f) that they had devised proper systems toensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such

systems were adequate and operating effectively.

16. BOARD MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA:

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board todetermine the appropriate characteristics, skills and

experience forthe Board asa whole and its individual members with the objective of havinga Board with diverse backgrounds

and experience in business, government, education, and public service. Characteristics expected of all Directors include

independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, ability to participate constructively

in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority ina collective manner.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers many

factors, including general understanding of marketing, finance, operations management, public policy, international

relations, legal, governance and other disciplines relevant to the success ofthe Company in today's business environment;

understanding of the Company's business; experience in dealing with strategic issues and long-term perspectives;

maintaining an independent familiarity with the external environment in which the Company operates and especially in the

Director's particular field of expertise; educational and professional background; personal accomplishment; and geographic,

gender, age, and ethnic diversity.

The Board evaluates each individual in the context of the Board asa whole, with the objective of havinga group that can

best perpetuate the success oftheCompany's business and represent stakeholder's interests through the exercise ofsound

judgment, using its diversity of experience.

In determining whether torecommenda director for re-election, the Committee, also considers the director's past attendance

at meetings, participation in meetings and contributions to the activities of the Board, and the results of the most recent

Board self-evaluation.

Board members areexpected to rigorously prepare for, attend and participate in all Board and applicable Committee

meetings. Each member is expected to ensure that their other current and planned future commitments do notmaterially

interfere with the responsibilities at the Company.

Pursuant to commencement oftheCIRP, the powers of the Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim

resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

17. BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY:

The Company recognizes the importance ofdiversity in its success. It is essential that the Company hasasdiversea Board

as possible.

A diverse Board will bring in different set of expertise and perspectives. The combination of Board having different skill set,

industry experience, varied cultural and geographical background and belonging to different race and gender will bringa

variety of experience and viewpoints which will add to the strength of the Company.

While all appointments to the Board are made on merit, the diversity of Board in aggregate will be of immense strength to

the Board in guiding the Company successfully through various geographies.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends appointments of new Directors to the Board. In
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15.	 DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT / STATEMENT BY THE RESOLUTION PROFESSIONAL:
To the best of knowledge and beliefs, the Resolution Professional makes the following statement in terms of Section 134(3)

(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 and taken on record by the Resolution Professional:

(a)	 that in the preparation of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable accounting standards 
	 have been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures, if any except non compliance with 
	 certain clauses of Ind AS as reported by the Auditor in their report dated May 23, 2024 and Statement on Impact of 
	 such qualification in page no. 50 of this Report;

(b)	 they had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that are 
	 reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 
	 and of the profit / loss of the Company for the year ended on that date;

(c)	 that they had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
	 the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
	 fraud and other irregularities;

(d)	 that they had concluded that the going concern basis is not appropriate because of the financial condition of the 
	 Company and, therefore the Financial Statements have been prepared on non - going concern basis;

(e)	 that they had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls 
	 are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f)	 that they had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 
	 systems were adequate and operating effectively.

16.	 BOARD MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA:
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board to determine the appropriate characteristics, skills and 
experience for the Board as a whole and its individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds 
and experience in business, government, education, and public service. Characteristics expected of all Directors include 
independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, ability to participate constructively 
in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers many 
factors, including general understanding of marketing, finance, operations management, public policy, international 
relations, legal, governance and other disciplines relevant to the success of the Company in today’s business environment; 
understanding of the Company’s business; experience in dealing with strategic issues and long-term perspectives; 
maintaining an independent familiarity with the external environment in which the Company operates and especially in the 
Director’s particular field of expertise; educational and professional background; personal accomplishment; and geographic, 
gender, age, and ethnic diversity.

The Board evaluates each individual in the context of the Board as a whole, with the objective of having a group that can 
best perpetuate the success of the Company’s business and represent stakeholder’s interests through the exercise of sound 
judgment, using its diversity of experience.

In determining whether to recommend a director for re-election, the Committee, also considers the director’s past attendance 
at meetings, participation in meetings and contributions to the activities of the Board, and the results of the most recent 
Board self-evaluation.

Board members are expected to rigorously prepare for, attend and participate in all Board and applicable Committee 
meetings. Each member is expected to ensure that their other current and planned future commitments do not materially 
interfere with the responsibilities at the Company.

Pursuant to commencement of the CIRP, the powers of the Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim 
resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

17.	  BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY:
The Company recognizes the importance of diversity in its success. It is essential that the Company has as diverse a Board 
as possible.

A diverse Board will bring in different set of expertise and perspectives. The combination of Board having different skill set, 
industry experience, varied cultural and geographical background and belonging to different race and gender will bring a 
variety of experience and viewpoints which will add to the strength of the Company.

While all appointments to the Board are made on merit, the diversity of Board in aggregate will be of immense strength to 
the Board in guiding the Company successfully through various geographies.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviews and recommends appointments of new Directors to the Board. In 
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reviewing and determining the Board composition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers the merit, skill,

experience, race, gender and other diversity of the Board.

Pursuant to commencement oftheCIRP, the powers of the Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim

resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

18. CRITERIA FOR DETERMINING INDEPENDENCE OF DIRECTORS:

Independence Guidelines:

A Director is considered independent if the Board makes an affirmative determination after review of all the relevant

information. The Board has established the categorical standards to assist it in making such determinations.A Director to

be considered independent:

• Shall not be Managing Director ora Whole time Director ora Nominee Director.

• Shall be, in the opinion of the Board,a person of integrity and shall possess relevant expertise and experience.

• Shall not bea Promoter oftheCompany orits holding, subsidiary or associate Company.

• Shall not be related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary, or associate Company.

• Apart from receiving Director's remuneration, shall not have any pecuniary relationships with the Company, its holding,

its subsidiaries, its associate companies, its Promoters, or Directors, during the current financial year or immediately

preceding two financial years.

• Relatives should not have orhad pecuniary relationships or transactions with the Company, its holding (s), subsidiary

or associate Company, ortheir promoters, or Directors, amounting to2% or more ofits gross turnover or total income

or Rupees 50 lakh (Rupees fifty lakh) or such amount as theCompany may prescribe, whichever is lower, during the

two immediately preceding financial years or during the current financial year.

• Neither himself/ herself nor any of his/ her relatives shall hold or has held the position ofa KMP or is or has been

employee oftheCompanyorits holding, subsidiary or associate Company in any of the three financial years immediately

preceding the financial year in which he/ she is proposed tobe appointed.

• Neither himself/ herself nor any of his/ her relatives shall or has been an employee orproprietor ora partner, in any of

the 3 financial years immediately preceding the financial year, of:

a) a firm of Auditors or Company Secretaries in practice or Cost Auditors of the Company orits holding, subsidiary

or associate Company;

b) any legal ora consulting firm that has or had any transaction with the Company, its holding, subsidiary or

associate Company amounting to 10%. ormore ofthegross turnover of such firm;

c) holds together with his relatives 2% or more ofthetotal voting poweroftheCompany (“Substantial Shareholder”);

d) a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that receives 25%, ormore

ofits receipts from the Company, any ofits Promoters, Directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company

orthat holds 2%, or more ofthetotal voting power oftheCompany;

• Has notheld office for more than two consecutive terms on the Board oftheCompany.

• Should notbea material supplier, service provider or customer ora lessor ora lessee ofthe Company.

• Shall not be less than 21 years ofage.

• Possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to commencement oftheCIRP, the powers ofthe Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution

professional or resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

19. REMUNERATION POLICY:

The philosophy of remuneration of Directors, KMP and all other employees atTayo Rolls Limited (’Company’) is based

on thecommitment demonstrated by the Directors, KMPs andother employees towards the Company. The key principles

governing the Remuneration Policy are as follows:

i) Remuneration forIndependent Directors and Non-Independent Non- Executive Directors:

• Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company's

operations and the company's capacity to pay the remuneration and should be consistent with recognized best

practices.

• Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NED”) may be paid sitting fees (for
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reviewing and determining the Board composition, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers the merit, skill, 
experience, race, gender and other diversity of the Board.

Pursuant to commencement of the CIRP, the powers of the Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim 
resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.
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A Director is considered independent if the Board makes an affirmative determination after review of all the relevant 
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be considered independent:

�	 Shall not be Managing Director or a Whole time Director or a Nominee Director.

�	 Shall be, in the opinion of the Board, a person of integrity and shall possess relevant expertise and experience.

�	 Shall not be a Promoter of the Company or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company.

�	 Shall not be related to Promoters or Directors in the Company, its holding, subsidiary, or associate Company.

�	 Apart from receiving Director’s remuneration, shall not have any pecuniary relationships with the Company, its holding, 
	 its subsidiaries, its associate companies, its Promoters, or Directors, during the current financial year or immediately 
	 preceding two financial years.
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	 or associate Company, or their promoters, or Directors, amounting to 2% or more of its gross turnover or total income 
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�	 Neither himself / herself nor any of his / her relatives shall hold or has held the position of a KMP or is or has been 
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		  associate Company amounting to 10%. or more of the gross turnover of such firm;

	 c)	 holds together with his relatives 2% or more of the total voting power of the Company (“Substantial Shareholder”);

	 d)	 a Chief Executive or Director, by whatever name called, of any non-profit organization that receives 25%, or more 
		  of its receipts from the Company, any of its Promoters, Directors or its holding, subsidiary or associate Company 
		  or that holds 2%, or more of the total voting power of the Company;

�	 Has not held office for more than two consecutive terms on the Board of the Company.

�	 Should not be a material supplier, service provider or customer or a lessor or a lessee of the Company.

�	 Shall not be less than 21 years of age.

�	 Possesses such other qualifications as may be prescribed by the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to commencement of the CIRP, the powers of the Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution 
professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

19.	 REMUNERATION POLICY:
The philosophy of remuneration of Directors, KMP and all other employees at Tayo Rolls Limited (‘Company’) is based 
on the commitment demonstrated by the Directors, KMPs and other employees towards the Company. The key principles 
governing the Remuneration Policy are as follows:

i)	 Remuneration for Independent Directors and Non-Independent Non- Executive Directors:

•	 Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s 
	 operations and the company’s capacity to pay the remuneration and should be consistent with recognized best 
	 practices.

•	 Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NED”) may be paid sitting fees (for 
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attending the meetings ofthe Board and Committees ofwhich they may be members). Quantum ofsitting fees and NED

Commission may be subject to review ona periodic basis, as required.

• Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment ofsitting fees and commission will be recommended by the

Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

• Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate

Directors aligned to the requirements of the company.

• The aggregate commission payable toall the NEDsandIDswill be recommended bytheNomination and Remuneration

Committee totheBoard, based on company's performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation and

any other significant qualitative parameters, as may be decided by the Board.

• The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will recommend totheBoard, the quantum ofcommission foreach

Director based upon theoutcome ofthe evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance

and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made

byDirectors other than in meetings.

• In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such fair and reasonabIe\

expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/ her role asa Director of the company. This

could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/and its committee meetings, general

meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ management, site visits, induction and

training (organized by the companyforDirectors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the

furtherance of his/ her duties asa Director.

ii) Remuneration forManaging Director (“MD")/ Executive Directors (“EDs”)/KMP/ rest of the employees: The extent of

overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for every role.

Hence remuneration should be:

• Market competitiveness driven by the role played by the individual

• Reflective of size of the company, complexity ofthe sector/ industry/ company's operations and the company's capacity

to pay.

• Consistent with recognized best practices and aligned to any regulatory requirements.

• The remuneration mix forthe MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by theshareholders. In case ofany change, the

same would again require the approval of the shareholders.

• Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there isa steady income in line with their skills and

experience.

In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and

benefits to enablea certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope forsavings and tax optimization, where ever possible.

The company may also provide all employees witha social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses

and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through

personal accident insurance.

The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances, the company may provide MD/ EDs such

remuneration by way of bonus/performance linked incentive and/or commission calculated with reference to the net

profits of the company ina particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings

stipulated in Section 197 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with ScheduleV oftheAct. The specific amount payable to

the MD/ EDs would be based on performance as evaluated by the Board or the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee and approved by the Board.

The company may provide the rest of the employeesa performance linked bonus and/or performance linked incentive.

The performance linked bonus/performance linked incentive would be driven by the outcome ofthe performance

appraisal process and the performance ofthe Company.

iii) Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity:

The remuneration payable tothe Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable forservices rendered by such

Director in any other capacity unless:

• The services rendered are ofa professional nature; and

• The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the

practice of the profession.
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	 attending the meetings of the Board and Committees of which they may be members). Quantum of sitting fees and NED 
	 Commission may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

•	 Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be recommended by the 
	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board.

•	 Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate 
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	 any other significant qualitative parameters, as may be decided by the Board.
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	 Director based upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance 
	 and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made 
	 by Directors other than in meetings.

•	 In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such fair and reasonable\ 
	 expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/ her role as a Director of the company. This 
	 could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/and its committee meetings, general 
	 meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ management, site visits, induction and 
	 training (organized by the company for Directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the 
	 furtherance of his/ her duties as a Director.

ii)	 Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”)/ Executive Directors (“EDs”)/KMP/ rest of the employees: The extent of 
	 overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for every role. 
	 Hence remuneration should be:

•	 Market competitiveness driven by the role played by the individual

•	 Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity 
	 to pay.

•	 Consistent with recognized best practices and aligned to any regulatory requirements.

•	 The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the shareholders. In case of any change, the 
	 same would again require the approval of the shareholders.

•	 Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with their skills and 
	 experience.

	 In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and 
	 benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings and tax optimization, where ever possible. 
	 The company may also provide all employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses 
	 and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through 
	 personal accident insurance.

	 The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

	 In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances, the company may provide MD/ EDs such 
	 remuneration by way of bonus/performance linked incentive and/or commission calculated with reference to the net 
	 profits of the company in a particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings 
	 stipulated in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule V of the Act. The specific amount payable to 
	 the MD/ EDs would be based on performance as evaluated by the Board or the Nomination and Remuneration 
	 Committee and approved by the Board.

	 The company may provide the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus and/or performance linked incentive. 
	 The performance linked bonus/performance linked incentive would be driven by the outcome of the performance 
	 appraisal process and the performance of the Company.

iii)	 Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity:

	 The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for services rendered by such 
	 Director in any other capacity unless:

•	 The services rendered are of a professional nature; and

•	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the 
	 practice of the profession.
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Pursuant tocommencement oftheCIR process, the powers oftheboard ofdirectors stand suspended and areexercised

by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case maybe, in accordance with the provisions

of the Code. The requirement of minimum number ofmembers in the nomination and remuneration committee in

accordance with the CompaniesAct, 2013and therules framed there under is not maintainable on account ofsuspension

of the powers of the Board. In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not

required to comply with Regulation 19(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the minimum number ofthe

members in the nomination and remuneration committee ofa listed company.

During the financial year ended on March 31,2024, No remuneration, sitting fees, commission orany other perquisites

and allowances, and expenditure is been paid to the Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non- Independent Non-Executive

Directors (“NED”) Managing Director (“MD”)/ Executive Directors (“EDs”)/ KMP / rest of the employees as thecompany

is under CIRP and powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution

professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

20. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD:

In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,a company

undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with the requirement of conducting evaluation of the independent

directors. Therefore, subsequent to commencement oftheCIR process the evaluation of the independent directors of the

Companywas notrequired to be carried out undertheprovisions of the Regulation 17(10) SEBI LODR Regulations. Further,

in accordance with Rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the board of directors ofa company arerequired to

evaluate its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors.

However pursuant to commencement oftheCIR process of the Company, the powers of the board of directors stand

suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be,in

accordance with the provisions of the Code. Therefore, Pursuant tothe provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Chapter

IV read with the provisions of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has not carried out the annual

performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working ofits Audit,

Nomination and Remuneration and other Committees.

21. LOAN TO DIRECTORS:

During the year, the Company hasnotadvanced any loan nor given any guarantee nor provided any security in connection

with any loan made toanyofits Director/s or to any other person in whomtheDirector is interested as mentioned in Section

185 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 10 ofthe Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

22. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):

As per section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company havinga net worth of Rupees five hundred crores or

more, or turnover of Rupees one thousand crores or more, or net profit of Rupees five crores or more, during any financial

year is required to constitutea Corporate Social Responsibility Committee oftheBoard consisting of three or more Directors,

out of which atleast one Director shall be Independent Director.

Your Company is suffering losses since FY 2008-09 and does notfulfill any of the criteria as specified under section 135

(1)of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore, Corporate Social Responsibility Committee oftheBoard is not required and asa

result, Company hasnotconstituteda Corporate Social Responsibility Committee. Your Company hastried to meet its social

obligations, wherever possible, with its limited resources.

23. RELATED PARTYTRANSACTIONS:

During the year under review, your Company hasnotentered into any contract/ arrangement which falls under the purview

of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, few related parties transactions are such which are covered under

Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has also

entered into material related party transactions for which approval of the shareholders has already been taken at 55th

Annual General Meeting and approval forshortfall, if any, will be taken atthe forthcoming meeting. Approval ofshareholders

is also being sought for likely related party transactions for FY’25, at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. All the

transactions with the related parties are for essential services during the CIRP period. All Related Party Transactions prior

to the commencement oftheCIR Process were authorized by the Audit Committee/ Board, as applicable for approval and

thereafter by the Resolution Professional who in turn, was authorized by the COC. Thepolicy on materiality of Related Party

Transaction is available on the website of the Company atwww.tayo.co.in. As required under section 134 (3) (h) of the

Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule8 ofthe Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, “Form AOC-2” is annexed with this report.

24. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance, Board/ Resolution Professional's statement and Auditor's

Certificates are made part of this Annual Report.
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obligations, wherever possible, with its limited resources.
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During the year under review, your Company has not entered into any contract/ arrangement which falls under the purview 
of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, few related parties transactions are such which are covered under 
Regulation 23 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The Company has also 
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Annual General Meeting and approval for shortfall, if any, will be taken at the forthcoming meeting. Approval of shareholders 
is also being sought for likely related party transactions for FY’25, at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. All the 
transactions with the related parties are for essential services during the CIRP period. All Related Party Transactions prior 
to the commencement of the CIR Process were authorized by the Audit Committee/ Board, as applicable for approval and 
thereafter by the Resolution Professional who in turn, was authorized by the COC. The policy on materiality of Related Party 
Transaction is available on the website of the Company at www.tayo.co.in. As required under section 134 (3) (h) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, “Form AOC-2” is annexed with this report.

24.	 CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Management Discussion and Analysis, Corporate Governance, Board / Resolution Professional’s statement and Auditor’s

Certificates are made part of this Annual Report.
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25. ExTwcTOFANNUAL RETURN:

OU-’

In compliance with Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act read with Companies (Management and Administration).

Amendment Rules, 2020, theAnnual Return forFY 2023-2024 in the prescribed format has been placed atthe Company's

website at https://www.tayo.co.in.

26. The Company hasin place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of

Women attheWorkplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been

setup toredress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees arecovered under this policy.

The following isa summary ofsexual harassment complaints received, disposed-off and pending during the period under

review:

• No. of complaints received

• No. of complaints disposed-off

• No. of complaints pending

27. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

NIL

NotApplicable

NIL

a) The Information required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is as under:

The Company is not able to pay wages toits employees since October 2016. During the year none oftheWhole Time

ctor (“WTD”) orKMPswere on therolls of the company asthey have been transferred to Tata Steel Limited and deputed

back toTayo Rolls Limited. Therefore, percentage increase in their remuneration by the company is not applicable.

Further, considering the financial position of the Company, Directors have foregone their rights to receive the sitting fee

and no remuneration was paid to them during the year.

Therefore, ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the

Company fortheFinancial Year 2023-2024 is also not applicable.

The percentage increase in the remuneration ofany director is not applicable due to the reasons mentioned above.

Due to inadequacy of profits during the financial year 2023-2024, commission will not be paid to the Non-Executive

Directors.

During the financial year ended on March 31,2024, No remuneration, sitting fees, commission orany other perquisites

and allowances, and expenditure is been paid to the Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non-Independent Non-Executive

Directors (“NED”) Managing Director (“MD”)/ Executive Directors (“EDs”)/ KMP/ rest of the employees as thecompany

is under CIRP and powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution

professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

b) During the financial year 2023-2024, none oftheemployees was in receipt of remuneration as specified under Rule

5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Therefore, the

particulars specified in Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration ofManagerial Personnel) Rules,

2014 arenotapplicable and hence notmentioned.

28. ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY& FOREIGN EXCHANGE:

In terms of the Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read Rule 8(3) with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

the particulars in respect of (a)Conservation of Energy (b)Technology Absorption and (c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and

Outgo arefurnished on page No.24.

29. AUDITORS:

The Resolution to appoint the StatutoryAuditor forthe financial year 2023-2024 and tofix their remuneration was not passed

with requisite majority of the shareholders in the 55th Annual General Meeting oftheCompany held on September 14,2023.

Since no auditor was appointed or re-appointed in the 55th Annual General Meeting, the existing Auditor Mls.R U B S &

CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 014560C) continued to be the Auditors of the Company for

theFinancial year 2023-2024 in terms ofSection 139(10) of the Companies Act2013.

The Auditors were reappointed as the resolution for appointment ofstatutory auditors M/S RUBS& CO forthefinancial year

2023-2024 and tofix their remuneration has been done by theResolution Professional is in continuation of the resolution

passed by theCoC in its 6th CoC meeting held on August 28,2019.

The existing Statutory Auditors, Mls.R U B S & CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 014560C)

are retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Resolution Professional have recommended theappointment

of M/s. S.Sanghi& CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 330303E)) {in place of Mls.R U B S &

CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 014560C) as thestatutory auditors of the Company. Your
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25.	 EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN:
In compliance with Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Act read with Companies (Management and Administration). 
Amendment Rules, 2020, the Annual Return for FY 2023-2024 in the prescribed format has been placed at the Company’s 
website at https://www.tayo.co.in.

26.	 The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of 
	 Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal Complaints Committee (ICC) has been 
	 set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All employees are covered under this policy.

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received, disposed-off and pending during the period under 
review:

•	 No. of complaints received		  :	 NIL

•	 No. of complaints disposed-off	 :	 Not Applicable

•	 No. of complaints pending		  :	 NIL

27.	 PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
a)	 The Information required under section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies 
	 (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is as under:

	 The Company is not able to pay wages to its employees since October 2016. During the year none of the Whole Time  
	 ctor (“WTD”) or KMPs were on the rolls of the company as they have been transferred to Tata Steel Limited and deputed 
	 back to Tayo Rolls Limited. Therefore, percentage increase in their remuneration by the company is not applicable.

	 Further, considering the financial position of the Company, Directors have foregone their rights to receive the sitting fee 
	 and no remuneration was paid to them during the year.

	 Therefore, ratio of the remuneration of each Director/KMP to the median remuneration of all the employees of the 
	 Company for the Financial Year 2023-2024 is also not applicable.

	 The percentage increase in the remuneration of any director is not applicable due to the reasons mentioned above.

	 Due to inadequacy of profits during the financial year 2023-2024, commission will not be paid to the Non-Executive 
	 Directors.

	 During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, No remuneration, sitting fees, commission or any other perquisites 
	 and allowances, and expenditure is been paid to the Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non-Independent Non-Executive 
	 Directors (“NED”) Managing Director (“MD”) / Executive Directors (“EDs”) / KMP / rest of the employees as the company 
	 is under CIRP and powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution 
	 professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

b)	 During the financial year 2023-2024, none of the employees was in receipt of remuneration as specified under Rule 
	 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. Therefore, the 
	 particulars specified in Rule 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
	 2014 are not applicable and hence not mentioned.

28.	 ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY & FOREIGN EXCHANGE:
In terms of the Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read Rule 8(3) with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
the particulars in respect of (a) Conservation of Energy (b) Technology Absorption and (c) Foreign Exchange Earnings and 
Outgo are furnished on page No.24.

29.	 AUDITORS:
The Resolution to appoint the Statutory Auditor for the financial year 2023-2024 and to fix their remuneration was not passed 
with requisite majority of the shareholders in the 55th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on September 14, 2023. 
Since no auditor was appointed or re-appointed in the 55th Annual General Meeting, the existing Auditor M/s. R U B S & 
CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 014560C) continued to be the Auditors of the Company for 
the Financial year 2023-2024 in terms of Section 139(10) of the Companies Act 2013.

The Auditors were reappointed as the resolution for appointment of statutory auditors M/S RUBS & CO for the financial year 
2023-2024 and to fix their remuneration has been done by the Resolution Professional is in continuation of the resolution 
passed by the CoC in its 6th CoC meeting held on August 28,2019.

The existing Statutory Auditors, M/s. R U B S & CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 014560C) 
are retiring at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The Resolution Professional have recommended the appointment 
of M/s. S.Sanghi & CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 330303E)) {in place of M/s. R U B S & 
CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 014560C) as the statutory auditors of the Company. Your 
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Company hasreceiveda certificate from Mls. S.Sanghi& CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN

330303E) totheeffect that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits of Section 141(3) (g)of the Companies Act,

2013. Members arerequested to appoint M/s. S.Sanghi& CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN

330303E) as theStatutory Auditors forthe financial year 2024-25 attheAnnual General Meeting atthe same remuneration

as approved by thecommittee ofcreditors in 6th COC meeting held on August 28,2019.

i. For the AGM 2023-2024, CS Shikha Agarwal has been appointed as the Scrutinizer.

ii. Since the Operations ofthe Company remain suspended, the Company is not required to appoint the CostAuditors

May 23, 2024
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For Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal  
Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256

Company has received a certificate from M/s. S.Sanghi & CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 
330303E) to the effect that their appointment, if made, would be within the limits of Section 141(3) (g) of the Companies Act, 
2013. Members are requested to appoint M/s. S.Sanghi & CO, Chartered Accountants, (Firm Registration Number: FRN 
330303E) as the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2024-25 at the Annual General Meeting at the same remuneration 
as approved by the committee of creditors in 6th COC meeting held on August 28, 2019.

i.	 For the AGM 2023-2024, CS Shikha Agarwal has been appointed as the Scrutinizer.

ii.	 Since the Operations of the Company remain suspended, the Company is not required to appoint the Cost Auditors
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT U/S134OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 — INFORMATION UNDER

SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS)

RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS REPORT.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY(2023-2024):

The Company hassuspended its operations progressively since May 2016. Operations have notbeen resumed in the current

financial year. Therefore, there is no consumption ofpowerformanufacturing activities. However, Care had been taken foreconomic

consumption ofenergy in workshops and offices of the Company. Company hadconsumed electricity and the cost of power fuel is

reasonable. The capital investment on energy consumption equipment is Rupees Nil during the current financial year.

TECHNOLOGYABSORPTION (2023-2024):

The Company hassuspended its operations progressively since May 2016. Operations have notbeen resumed in the current

financial year. Therefore, no initiatives were taken forproduct development. No technology had been imported during the current

financial year.

EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:

TheCompany hassuspended its operations progressively since May, 2016. Operations have notbeen resumed in the current

financial year. Therefore, expenditure on Research and Development is Rupees. NIL during the current financial year.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

S.NO.

1

2

Particulars

Foreign Exchange Earnings

Foreign Exchange Outgo

24

CurrentYear 2023-2024

NIL

NIL

PreviousYear2022 - 2023

NIL

NIL
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ANNEXURE TO THE REPORT U/S 134 OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2013 – INFORMATION UNDER 
SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) 
RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS REPORT.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY (2023-2024):
The Company has suspended its operations progressively since May 2016. Operations have not been resumed in the current 
financial year. Therefore, there is no consumption of power for manufacturing activities. However, Care had been taken for economic 
consumption of energy in workshops and offices of the Company. Company had consumed electricity and the cost of power fuel is 
reasonable. The capital investment on energy consumption equipment is Rupees Nil during the current financial year.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION (2023-2024):
The Company has suspended its operations progressively since May 2016. Operations have not been resumed in the current 
financial year. Therefore, no initiatives were taken for product development. No technology had been imported during the current 
financial year.

EXPENDITURE ON RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT:
The Company has suspended its operations progressively since May, 2016. Operations have not been resumed in the current

financial year. Therefore, expenditure on Research and Development is Rupees. NIL during the current financial year.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo :

S.No. Particulars Current Year 2023-2024 Previous Year 2022 - 2023

1 Foreign Exchange Earnings NIL NIL

2 Foreign Exchange Outgo NIL NIL
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION& ANALYSIS

Tayo Rolls Limited (TAYO),a subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited since December, 2008, was promoted in collaboration with Yodogawa

Steel Works, Japan and Nissho Iwai Corporation ofJapan forproduction ofCast Iron and Cast Steel Rolls formetallurgical industries.

Other products include Forged Rolls, Engineering Forgings and Ingots. Tayo Rolls Limited, formerly Tata Yodogawa Limited was

incorporated in 1968 and started its operations then.

The Company hassuspended its operations progressively since May 2016. Operations have notbeen resumed in the current

financial year. Although, during the Financial Year 2019-20, Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was commenced

against the company vide an order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5,

2019 under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code/ IBC”),

BUSINESS REVIEWAND OUTLOOK:

Several initiatives in the construction, infrastructure and automotive space have forward and backward linkages with the steel

industry. These links will catalyse the country's total steel demand in the next fiscal. The fortune of the steel industry is proportionate

to the swings in other sectors such as automobile, infrastructure, consumer durable, sectors that generate high steel demand.

Availability of raw materials and cheap labour makes this industry cost effective. The country produces its own iron ore as well. The

country's steel demand hasbeen ona rise.

However thecountry witnessed unprecedented growth rates witha slowing global economy and also to the effect of pandemic

COVID-19. Uncertainty over thetrade environment and volatility in the financial markets could pose downside risks to this forecast.

Domestic steel demand will remain thestrongest in Asia butresult in slow-to mid-single digit growth, as weakauto and manufacturing

demand offset demand growth in the affordable housing, infrastructure sectors and construction industries.

On the contrary, the domestic Roll industry outlook in India is not very encouraging since the industry is passing througha crisis

situation due to continuing closure of operations of two primary Roll Manufacturing Companies namelyTAYO Rolls Limited (TAYO)

and Gontermann Piepers India Limited (GPI). The present domestic roll industry is unable tomeet thedemand ofthegrowing Steel

Industry with respect to quality and delivery.

In view ofthis, Indian Roll Industry continues to be dominated by imports largely from China and Russia besides smaller imports

from Japan, Korea and theEuropean countries due to domestic roll industry's inability to produce required quality rolls at competitive

prices.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:

The company (“Tayo Rolls Limited”) has beena moderately profitable company since inception, manufacturing Cast Rolls for hot

rolling. Since 2000, the profits from the Cast Roll business have been under pressure. At the same time, the cold rolling operations

in India was gathering pace. Ina bid to diversify the product portfolio, Tayo embarked on theforged roll project. The project faced

time and cost overruns due tothe global economic crisis in 2008.

Since 2009, the Company hasbeen making losses mainly due to delay in the Forged Roll Project, subdued demand growth, pricing

challenges, and consequent liquidity crunch. Poor quality performance due to poor workmanship also hada severe adverse effect

on the financial performance.

The uncertainties in trade environment, over-capacity situation in the Roll and Forging industries, delayed technology absorption

for next generation rolls, severe cash constraints and continued cash loss etc have compelled the Company towrite down value

of its assets, which has eroded its net worth as on 31.12.2015. Based on thenegative net-worth, the Company hassuspended its

operations progressively since May 2016. The Operations have notbeen resumed in the current financial year. Although, during the

last financial year, Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was commenced against the company vide an order passed

by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions of the Insolvency

and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code/ IBC"), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon'ble National Company Law

Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was subsequently

confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee ofCreditors (COC), constituted under IBC in their meeting held on May 3,

2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody ofthe management and operations ofthe company

with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent toa petition filed by COC, theHon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on

October 30,2019 and appointed Mr.AnishAgarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256)as Resolution

Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited( JBVNL) hassubmitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and condition as specified in
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Tayo Rolls Limited (TAYO), a subsidiary of Tata Steel Limited since December, 2008, was promoted in collaboration with Yodogawa 
Steel Works, Japan and Nissho Iwai Corporation of Japan for production of Cast Iron and Cast Steel Rolls for metallurgical industries. 
Other products include Forged Rolls, Engineering Forgings and Ingots. Tayo Rolls Limited, formerly Tata Yodogawa Limited was 
incorporated in 1968 and started its operations then.

The Company has suspended its operations progressively since May 2016. Operations have not been resumed in the current 
financial year. Although, during the Financial Year 2019-20, Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was commenced 
against the company vide an order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 
2019 under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code / IBC”),

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK:
Several initiatives in the construction, infrastructure and automotive space have forward and backward linkages with the steel 
industry. These links will catalyse the country’s total steel demand in the next fiscal. The fortune of the steel industry is proportionate 
to the swings in other sectors such as automobile, infrastructure, consumer durable, sectors that generate high steel demand. 
Availability of raw materials and cheap labour makes this industry cost effective. The country produces its own iron ore as well. The 
country’s steel demand has been on a rise.

However the country witnessed unprecedented growth rates with a slowing global economy and also to the effect of pandemic 
COVID-19. Uncertainty over the trade environment and volatility in the financial markets could pose downside risks to this forecast.

Domestic steel demand will remain the strongest in Asia but result in slow-to mid-single digit growth, as weak auto and manufacturing

demand offset demand growth in the affordable housing, infrastructure sectors and construction industries.

On the contrary, the domestic Roll industry outlook in India is not very encouraging since the industry is passing through a crisis 
situation due to continuing closure of operations of two primary Roll Manufacturing Companies namely TAYO Rolls Limited (TAYO) 
and Gontermann Piepers India Limited (GPI). The present domestic roll industry is unable to meet the demand of the growing Steel 
Industry with respect to quality and delivery.

In view of this, Indian Roll Industry continues to be dominated by imports largely from China and Russia besides smaller imports 
from Japan, Korea and the European countries due to domestic roll industry’s inability to produce required quality rolls at competitive 
prices.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS:
The company (“Tayo Rolls Limited”) has been a moderately profitable company since inception, manufacturing Cast Rolls for hot 
rolling. Since 2000, the profits from the Cast Roll business have been under pressure. At the same time, the cold rolling operations 
in India was gathering pace. In a bid to diversify the product portfolio, Tayo embarked on the forged roll project. The project faced 
time and cost overruns due to the global economic crisis in 2008.

Since 2009, the Company has been making losses mainly due to delay in the Forged Roll Project, subdued demand growth, pricing 
challenges, and consequent liquidity crunch. Poor quality performance due to poor workmanship also had a severe adverse effect 
on the financial performance.

The uncertainties in trade environment, over-capacity situation in the Roll and Forging industries, delayed technology absorption 
for next generation rolls, severe cash constraints and continued cash loss etc have compelled the Company to write down value 
of its assets, which has eroded its net worth as on 31.12.2015. Based on the negative net-worth, the Company has suspended its 
operations progressively since May 2016. The Operations have not been resumed in the current financial year. Although, during the 
last financial year, Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) was commenced against the company vide an order passed 
by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions of the Insolvency 
and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code / IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon’ble National Company Law 
Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was subsequently 
confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee of Creditors (COC), constituted under IBC in their meeting held on May 3, 
2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody of the management and operations of the company 
with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent to a petition filed by COC, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on 
October 30, 2019 and appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution 
Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited ( JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and condition as specified in
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Request forResolution Plan and FormG within the time limit to resolve this company and thesame was approved by Committee

ofCreditors( COC) in their 12th Committee ofCreditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 and declared as passed with 92.45%

ofvoting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 theApplication forApproval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person)

Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its

approval which is reserved fororder.

SEGMENTWISE PERFORMANCE:

Thesegment wise result is not applicable as the operations have remained suspended.

RISK AND CONCERNS:

TheCompany hasnotadopted any Risk Management policy and framework pursuant tocommencement oftheCIR process as the

powers oftheboard ofdirectors stand suspended.

INTERNAL CONTROLAND ADEQUACY:

TheCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) had commenced against the Company vide an order passed by Honorable

NCLT Kolkata dated SthApril 2019. Pursuant tothis order, the powers oftheBoard ofDirectors stood suspended and was exercised

by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the Honorable NCLT who was consequently

confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee ofCreditors (COC). Consequent toa petition filed by

COC, theHonorable NCLT, Kolkata, passed an order on 30th October, 2019 and appointed Mr.Anish Agarwal (IPRegistration No.:

IBBI/IPA- 001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal( the erstwhile Resolution

Professional ).

The Company hadalready suspended its operations gradually since May, 2016 and thesame continued during the current year

as well. On account of ongoing CIRP and suspended operations, no activities other than those relating to insolvency resolution

process were undertaken by the Company during the year as per the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC),

2016. Accordingly, the control policies relating to the normal operations of the company were notrequired and therefore were not

adopted and performed except forthose necessary under the provisions of the IBC which commensurate with the size, nature and

complexity of the activities of the Company.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Company recordeda net loss of Rupees 330 lakhs (loss incurred during the previous year ended on March 31,

2023 was Rupees 344 lakhs).

The accumulated losses as on March 31,2024 amounted toRupees 55312 lakhs. The Net worth ofthe Company hasalready been

eroded and the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets.

The analysis of major items ofthe financial statements is given below:

(i) Employee Cost and benefits expense: The operations of the Company have remained suspended since September 2016

and thereafter CIRP commenced since Sth April 2019. The claim of employees and workers (who became themembers of

CoC) have already been admitted by the Resolution Professional. Since the inception of CIRP and because ofcontinued

suspension ofoperations, the services of workmen were notavailed. Therefore, no provision of employee cost and benefits

have been made fortheyear ended 31st March 2024 and such provisions cannot be included in the CIRP cost as per IBC

2016. Further, the financials have notbeen prepared on the basis of going concern.

(ii) Finance Cost: The Company hasanoutstanding unsecured borrowing ofRupees 6700 lakhs repayable/ due to related party

@ 7% per annum. However, theCIRP hascommenced since SthApril 2019 and theamount is due to related party, its priority

for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016 and is unlikely to be paid in view oftheinadequate availability

of the assets of the Company. Accordingly, no interest on the borrowing has been shown in the financial statement forthe

year ended 31st March, 2024

The income earned and expenses incurred during CIRP period forthe yearended 31st March, 2024 have notbeen considered

in the Financial Statement because these CIRP expenditures are payable by Resolution Applicant as per Section 30(2) or in

case ofliquidation the same will be paid from the liquidation proceeds as per Section 53 of the IBC, 2016.

Further, the corporate debtor has been informed by the Tata YodogawaLimited Provident Fund Trust that the Trust has

incurred accumulated losses of 792,32,723/-for the year ended 31st March 2019 to31st March 2023 due toshortfall in the

earnings of the trust. As per the byelaws ofthe Trust, such loss/shortfall has to be paid by the Company toTrust. However,

as the CIRP hascommenced since Sth April 2019 and thecorresponding expense and liability of the said amount has not
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Request for Resolution Plan and Form G within the time limit to resolve this company and the same was approved by Committee 
of Creditors ( COC) in their 12th Committee of Creditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 and declared as passed with 92.45 % 
of voting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person)

Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its 
approval which is reserved for order.

SEGMENTWISE PERFORMANCE:
The segment wise result is not applicable as the operations have remained suspended.

RISK AND CONCERNS:
The Company has not adopted any Risk Management policy and framework pursuant to commencement of the CIR process as the 
powers of the board of directors stand suspended.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND ADEQUACY:
The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) had commenced against the Company vide an order passed by Honorable 
NCLT Kolkata dated 5th April 2019. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended and was exercised 
by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the Honorable NCLT who was consequently 
confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee of Creditors (COC). Consequent to a petition filed by 
COC, the Honorable NCLT, Kolkata , passed an order on 30th October, 2019 and appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: 
IBBI/IPA- 001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal ( the erstwhile Resolution 
Professional ).

The Company had already suspended its operations gradually since May, 2016 and the same continued during the current year 
as well. On account of ongoing CIRP and suspended operations, no activities other than those relating to insolvency resolution 
process were undertaken by the Company during the year as per the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code (IBC), 
2016. Accordingly, the control policies relating to the normal operations of the company were not required and therefore were not 
adopted and performed except for those necessary under the provisions of the IBC which commensurate with the size, nature and 
complexity of the activities of the Company.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
During the year, the Company recorded a net loss of Rupees 330 lakhs (loss incurred during the previous year ended on March 31, 
2023 was Rupees 344 lakhs).

The accumulated losses as on March 31, 2024 amounted to Rupees 55312 lakhs. The Net worth of the Company has already been 
eroded and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets.

The analysis of major items of the financial statements is given below:

(i)	 Employee Cost and benefits expense: The operations of the Company have remained suspended since September 2016 
	 and thereafter CIRP commenced since 5th April 2019. The claim of employees and workers (who became the members of 
	 CoC) have already been admitted by the Resolution Professional. Since the inception of CIRP and because of continued 
	 suspension of operations, the services of workmen were not availed. Therefore, no provision of employee cost and benefits 
	 have been made for the year ended 31st March 2024 and such provisions cannot be included in the CIRP cost as per IBC 
	 2016. Further, the financials have not been prepared on the basis of going concern.

(ii)	 Finance Cost: The Company has an outstanding unsecured borrowing of Rupees 6700 lakhs repayable / due to related party 
	 @ 7% per annum. However, the CIRP has commenced since 5th April 2019 and the amount is due to related party, its priority 
	 for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016 and is unlikely to be paid in view of the inadequate availability 
	 of the assets of the Company. Accordingly, no interest on the borrowing has been shown in the financial statement for the 
	 year ended 31st March, 2024

	 The income earned and expenses incurred during CIRP period for the year ended 31st March, 2024 have not been considered 
	 in the Financial Statement because these CIRP expenditures are payable by Resolution Applicant as per Section 30(2) or in 
	 case of liquidation the same will be paid from the liquidation proceeds as per Section 53 of the IBC, 2016.

	 Further, the corporate debtor has been informed by the Tata YodogawaLimited Provident Fund Trust that the Trust has 
	 incurred accumulated losses of ₹92,32,723/-for the year ended 31st March 2019 to 31st March 2023 due to shortfall in the 
	 earnings of the trust. As per the byelaws of the Trust, such loss/shortfall has to be paid by the Company to Trust. However, 
	 as the CIRP has commenced since 5th April 2019 and the corresponding expense and liability of the said amount has not 
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been provided forin the books ofthecompany,the said shortfall amount will be paid by the Resolution Applicant on approval

of Resolution Plan by Honorable NCLT, Kolkata which is reserved fororder.

(iii) Financial Performance: The Company hasincurreda loss of Rupees 330 lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2024

(Rupees 344 lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2023) and accumulated losses as on reporting date amounting to

Rupees 55312 lakh.

(iv) The net worth ofthe Company hasalready been eroded and theCompany's current liabilities exceeded its current assets.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's estimates and expectations may be “forward-

looking statements" within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results/performance could differ

materially from those expressed or implied

May 23, 2024
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Anish Agarwal

Resolution Professional
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For Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal  
Resolution Professional
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	 been provided for in the books of the company,the said shortfall amount will be paid by the Resolution Applicant on approval 
	 of Resolution Plan by Honorable NCLT, Kolkata which is reserved for order.

(iii)	 Financial Performance: The Company has incurred a loss of Rupees 330 lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2024 
	 (Rupees 344 lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2023) and accumulated losses as on reporting date amounting to 
	 Rupees 55312 lakh.

(iv)	 The net worth of the Company has already been eroded and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s estimates and expectations may be “forward- 
looking statements” within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results/performance could differ 
materially from those expressed or implied
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Form No.AOC-2

Pursuant to clause (h)of sub-section (3)of section 134 of the Act and

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

OU-’

Form fordisclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred

to in sub-section (1)of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's length transactions under third

proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm's length basis:

Name(s) of Nature of Duration Salient Justification Date(s) of Amount

therelated contracts/ar of the terms ofthe forentering approval by paid as

party and rangements contracts/ contracts or into such theBoard advances,

nature of arrangemen arrangemen contracts or if any

relationship ts/ ts or arrangemen

transactions transactions ts or

including transactions

the value, if

NIL

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement ortransactions at arm's length basis:

Name(s) ofthe Nature ofcontracts/ Duration ofthe

related party arrange ments/ contracts

and nature of transactions /arrangements/

relationship transactions

Date on which the special

resolution was passed in

general meeting as required

under first proviso to Section

188

Salient terms of Date(s) ofapproval Amount paid as

the contracts or by the Board, if any advances, if any

arrangements

ortransactions

including the value,

if any

All related party transactions (“RPT”) entered into during FY 2023-24 were on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of

business. All Related Party Transactions prior to the commencement oftheCIR Process were authorized by the Audit Committee/

Board, as applicable for approval and thereafter by the Resolution Professional who in turn, was authorized by the COC. Thedetails of

transactions as per IndAS 24 aredisclosed in the Notes toAccounts forFY 2023-24.

Date: May 23,2024

Place: Jamshedpur

28

ForTayo Rolls Limited
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal

Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
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Form No. AOC-2
Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and  

Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014}
Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred 
to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third 
proviso thereto
1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name(s) of 
the related 
party and 
nature of 
relationship

Nature of 
contracts/ar 
rangements

Duration 
of the 
contracts / 
arrangemen 
ts/ 
transactions

Salient 
terms of the 
contracts or 
arrangemen 
ts or 
transactions 
including 
the value, if 
any

Justification 
for entering 
into such 
contracts or 
arrangemen 
ts or 
transactions

Date(s) of 
approval by 
the Board

Amount 
paid as 
advances, 
if any

Date on which the special 
resolution was passed in 
general meeting as required 
under first proviso to Section 
188

NIL

Name(s) of the 
related party 
and nature of 
relationship

Nature of contracts/
arrange ments/
transactions

Duration of the 
contracts
/arrangements / 
transactions

Salient terms of 
the contracts or 
arrangements 
or transactions 
including the value, 
if any

Date(s) of approval 
by the Board, if any

Amount paid as 
advances, if any

All related party transactions (“RPT”) entered into during FY 2023-24 were on arm’s length basis and in the ordinary course of 
business. All Related Party Transactions prior to the commencement of the CIR Process were authorized by the Audit Committee/ 
Board, as applicable for approval and thereafter by the Resolution Professional who in turn, was authorized by the COC. The details of 
transactions as per Ind AS 24 are disclosed in the Notes to Accounts for FY 2023-24.

Date : May 23, 2024  
Place : Jamshedpur

For Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal  
Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
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Form No.MR-3
Secretarial Audit Report For The Financial Year Ended 2023-24

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 oftheCompanies

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Tayo Rolls Limited,

3, Circuit House Area,

(North-East), Road No.11,

PO& PS -Bistupur,

Jamshedpur - 831001,

Jharkhand, India

OL\-

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances ofapplicable statutory provisions and the adherence togood corporate

practices by Tayo Rolls Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company"). Secretarial Audit was conducted ina manner that

provided me a reasonable basis forevaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on theverification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company

and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of

Secretarial Audit,I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended

on March 31,2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company hasfollowed proper Board

processes and have required compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made

hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company forthe

financial year ended on 31st March 2024, according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA') and the rules made there under;

3. The Depositories Act, 1996 and theRegulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

4. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under forcompliance in respect of

Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

(a) Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

(b) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and

mendments from time to time;

(c) Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

(d) Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Buyback ofSecurities) Regulations, 2018;

(e) Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(f} SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

(g) Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and amendments from time to

time.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following:

1. Secretarial Standards1 and2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

2. The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and Regulations made thereunder and as amended from time to time.

3. Other laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the management is as

below:
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Form No. MR-3 
Secretarial Audit Report For The Financial Year Ended 2023-24

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2024

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 
The Members, 
Tayo Rolls Limited, 
3, Circuit House Area, 
(North-East), Road No. 11, 
PO & PS -Bistupur, 
Jamshedpur - 831001, 
Jharkhand, India

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliances of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 
practices by Tayo Rolls Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on the verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
Secretarial Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2024 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has followed proper Board 
processes and have required compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter.

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 
financial year ended on 31st March 2024, according to the provisions of:

1.	 The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;

2.	 The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

3.	 The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws Framed there under;

4.	 Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under for compliance in respect of 
	 Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;

5.	 The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): -

	 (a)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; 

	 (b)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 and  
		  mendments from time to time;

	 (c)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 

	 (d)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

	 (e)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

	 (f)	 SEBI (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021;

	 (g)	 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and amendments from time to 
		  time.

		  I have also examined compliance with the applicable provisions of the following:

	 1.	 Secretarial Standards 1 and 2 issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

	 2.	 The Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and Regulations made thereunder and as amended from time to time.

	 3.	 Other laws specifically applicable to the industry to which the Company belongs, as identified by the management is as 
		  below:
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(a) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

(b) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

(c) Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991;

(d) Environment Protection Act, 1986;

(e) Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Water Cess Act, 1977;

(f) Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

(g) Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008;

(h) Factories Act, 1948;

(i) The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;

(j) The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;

(k) The Employees Compensation Act, 1923;

(i) Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1961;

(m) Apprenticeship Act, 1961;

(n) Batteries management& Handling Rules, 2001;

(o) Indian Stamp Act, 1999;

(p) Industrial Dispute Act, 1947;

(q) Maternity Benefits Act, 1961;

(r) Minimum WagesAct, 1948;

(s) Payment ofBonus Act, 1965;

(I) Payment ofGratuity Act, 1972;

(u) The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

(v) Payment ofWagesAct, 1936 and other applicable labour laws.

OU-’

I report that the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been commenced against the Company vide

an order passed by Hon'ble NCLT Kolkata dated 05.04.2019. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of

Directors stand suspended and was exercised by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP)

appointed by the Hon'ble NCLTwhowas consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by

the Committee ofCreditors (CoC).

Consequent toa petition filed by CoC the Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata, has passed an order on 30.10.2019 and has

appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/ 2256) as Resolution

Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Pursuant tocommencement oftheCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) ofthe Company, thePowers of

theBoard stand suspended and aretobe exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional,

as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

I further Report that:

a) I rely on Statutory Auditors' Report in relation to the financial statements, qualifications and accuracy of financial figures for

goods and service tax, Related Party Transactions, Provident Fund, ESIC, etc. as disclosed under financial statements;

b) In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,a Company

undergoing the corporate insolvency resolution process is not required to comply with relevant Regulations ofthe SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dealing with the requirements of, amongst others, composition

of Board of Directors including that of Independent Director, Constitution, Meetings and terms of reference of the Audit

Committee, Constitution, Meetings and terms of reference of the nomination and remuneration committee, constitution,

meetings and terms of reference of the stakeholders' relationship committee.
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		  (a)	 Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

		  (b)	 Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

		  (c)	 Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991;

		  (d)	 Environment Protection Act, 1986;

		  (e)	 Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 and Water Cess Act, 1977;

		  (f)	 Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981;

		  (g)	 Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008;

		  (h)	 Factories Act, 1948;

		  (i)	 The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970;

		  (j)	 The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946;

		  (k)	 The Employees Compensation Act, 1923;

		  (l)	 Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1961;

		  (m)	 Apprenticeship Act, 1961;

		  (n)	 Batteries management & Handling Rules, 2001;

		  (o)	 Indian Stamp Act, 1999;	

		  (p)	 Industrial Dispute Act, 1947;

		  (q)	 Maternity Benefits Act, 1961;

		  (r)	 Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

		  (s)	 Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

		  (t)	 Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

		  (u)	 The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976;

		  (v)	 Payment of Wages Act, 1936 and other applicable labour laws. 

			   I report that the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been commenced against the Company vide 
			   an order passed by Hon’ble NCLT Kolkata dated 05.04.2019. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of 
			   Directors stand suspended and was exercised by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) 
			   appointed by the Hon’ble NCLT who was consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by 
			   the Committee of Creditors (CoC). 

			   Consequent to a petition filed by CoC the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata, has passed an order on 30.10.2019 and has 
			   appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/ 2256) as Resolution 
			   Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

			   Pursuant to commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company, the Powers of 
			   the Board stand suspended and are to be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, 
			   as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.  

I further Report that:

a)	 I rely on Statutory Auditors’ Report in relation to the financial statements, qualifications and accuracy of financial figures for 
	 goods and service tax, Related Party Transactions, Provident Fund, ESIC, etc. as disclosed under financial statements;

b)	 In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, a Company 
	 undergoing the corporate insolvency resolution process is not required to comply with relevant Regulations of the SEBI (Listing 
	 Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 dealing with the requirements of, amongst others, composition 
	 of Board of Directors including that of Independent Director, Constitution, Meetings and terms of reference of the Audit 
	 Committee, Constitution, Meetings and terms of reference of the nomination and remuneration committee, constitution, 
	 meetings and terms of reference of the stakeholders’ relationship committee.
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During the period under review,I am of the opinion that the Company hasprima facie complied with the applicable provisions

of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except delay in submission offinancial results

for QE Dec 2023.

d) During the period under review, One Internal Management Meeting and One Audit Committee Meeting was held with the Board

and Audit Committee members and Resolution Professional, wherein members were present either physically or through video

conferencing. However, in such meeting the discussion was held and members only noted the proceedings.

e) Independent Directors and Woman Director have retired in the past years. Such vacancies have notbeen filled up as on March

31,2024. The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non

Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

All meetings ofthe Internal Management& Audit committee held during the year under review were chaired by the RP of the

Company andthemembers attending the meeting noted the proceedings. The decision at Committee Meetings are carried out

and recorded in the minutes ofthe meetings.

g) The management under the direction and recommendation of Resolution Professional, is responsible for compliances of

all applicable laws including business laws. This responsibility includes maintenance ofstatutory registers/records/ fillings and

statements required by the concerned authorities and internal control of the concerned department.

h) There are prima facie adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the

Companytomonitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines subject to observations and

qualifications, if any made byStatutory Auditors in their report.

i) The Company hasbeen suffering loss since 2008 - 2009 and doesn't fulfill any of the basic criteria as mentioned under section

135 (1)ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 therefore, CSR Committee oftheBoard is not required. Hence Companyhasnotconstituted

a CSR Committee oftheBoard.

j) During the audit period the Company hasno specific events like Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat

equity/ ESOPetc

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23.08.2024
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Signature:

FCS Shikha Agarwal

FCS No. 10449

CP No. 12354

Peer Review Cert. No. -4175/2023

UDIN: F010449F001027069
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Place: Ranchi	
Date: 23.08.2024	

 Signature:
 FCS Shikha Agarwal  

 FCS No. 10449
 CP No. 12354

 Peer Review Cert. No. -4175/2023
 UDIN: F010449F001027069

c)	 During the period under review, I am of the opinion that the Company has prima facie complied with the applicable provisions 
	 of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except delay in submission of financial results 
	 for QE Dec 2023.

d)	 During the period under review, One Internal Management Meeting and One Audit Committee Meeting was held with the Board 
	 and Audit Committee members and Resolution Professional, wherein members were present either physically or through video 
	 conferencing. However, in such meeting the discussion was held and members only noted the proceedings.  

e)	 Independent Directors and Woman Director have retired in the past years. Such vacancies have not been filled up as on March 
	 31, 2024. The Board of Directors of the Company is not duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non 
	 Executive Directors and Independent Directors. 

f)	 All meetings of the Internal Management & Audit committee held during the year under review were chaired by the RP of the 
	 Company and the members attending the meeting noted the proceedings. The decision at Committee Meetings are carried out 
	 and recorded in the minutes of the meetings.

g)	 The management under the direction and recommendation of Resolution Professional, is responsible for compliances of 
	 all applicable laws including business laws. This responsibility includes maintenance of statutory registers/records/ fillings and 
	 statements required by the concerned authorities and internal control of the concerned department. 

h)	 There are prima facie adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
	 Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines subject to observations and 
	 qualifications, if any made by Statutory Auditors in their report.

i)	 The Company has been suffering loss since 2008 - 2009 and doesn’t fulfill any of the basic criteria as mentioned under section 
	 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 therefore, CSR Committee of the Board is not required. Hence Company has not constituted 
	 a CSR Committee of the Board.

j)	 During the audit period the Company has no specific events like Public/Right/Preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat 
	 equity/ ESOP etc
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‘Annexure - A’

To,

The Members Tayo Rolls Limited

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

OU-’

1. Maintenance ofsecretarial record is the responsibility of the management ofthecompany. Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these secretarial records based on ouraudit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the

correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts

are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed providea reasonable basis for

our opinion.

3. We have notverified the correctness and appropriateness offinancial records and Books ofAccounts ofthecompany.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations

and happening ofevents etc.

5. The compliance ofthe provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are the responsibility of

management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as tothefuture viability of the company noroftheefficacy or effectiveness

with which the management hasconducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23.08.2024
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Signature:

FCS Shikha Agarwal

FCS No. 10449

CP No. 12354

Peer Review Cert. No. -4175/2023

UDIN: F010449F001027069
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‘Annexure - A’
To, 
The Members Tayo Rolls Limited 
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.	 Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility is to express an 
	 opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

2.	 We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
	 correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts 
	 are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for 
	 our opinion.

3.	 We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

4.   Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations 
	 and happening of events etc.

5.   The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards are the responsibility of 
	 management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6.	 The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness 
	 with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

Place: Ranchi	
Date: 23.08.2024	

 Signature:
 FCS Shikha Agarwal  

 FCS No. 10449
 CP No. 12354

 Peer Review Cert. No. -4175/2023
 UDIN: F010449F001027069
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Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II PartB of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, I, Anish Agarwal, Resolution

Professional hereby certify that:

1. I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement forthe year and that to the best of our knowledge and

belief:

(i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that

might be misleading;

(ii) these statements together presenta true and fair view ofthe company's affairs and are in compliance with existing

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations, except non compliance with certain clauses of Ind AS as

reported by the Auditor in their report dated May 23,2024 and Statement on Impact ofsuch qualification in page no.50

ofthis Report.

2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are

fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code ofconduct.

3. I have indicated to the auditors:

(i) significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes in accounting policies if any during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to

the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and theinvolvement therein, if any, of the management

oran employee havinga significant role in the company's internal control system over financial reporting.

Date: May 23,2024

Place: Ranchi
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ForTayo Rolls Limited
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal

Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
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Certification by Resolution Professional
Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, I, Anish Agarwal, Resolution 
Professional hereby certify that:

1.	 I have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year and that to the best of our knowledge and 
	 belief:

	 (i)	 these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that 
		  might be misleading;

	 (ii)	 these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing 
		  accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations, except non compliance with certain clauses of Ind AS as 
		  reported by the Auditor in their report dated May 23, 2024 and Statement on Impact of such qualification in page no. 50 
		  of this Report.

2.	 There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the company during the year which are 
	 fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s code of conduct.

3.	 I have indicated to the auditors :

	 (i)	 significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

	 (ii)	 significant changes in accounting policies if any during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to 
		  the financial statements; and

	 (iii)	 instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management 
		  or an employee having a significant role in the company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Date : May 23, 2024 
Place : Ranchi

For Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

Anish Agarwal  
Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TOTHEMEMBERS OFTAYO ROLLS LIMITED

1. We, Tiwari Singh& Co., Chartered Accountants, the Corporate Governance Auditor of TAYO ROLLS LIMITED (“the

Company”), have examined thecompliance ofconditions of Corporate Governance by theCompany, fortheyear ended on

March 31,2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b)to (i) of regulation 46(2) and parasC andD ofSchedule

V oftheSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations).

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

2. The compliance ofconditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes

the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures toensure compliance with the conditions of

the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations. However pursuant tocommencement oftheCIR process of

the Company, thepowers oftheboard ofdirectors stand suspended and areexercised by the interim resolution professional

or the resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

3. Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company forensuring

compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the

financial statements ofthe Company.

4. We have examined the books ofaccount and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company forthe

purposes of providing reasonable assurance on thecompliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

5. We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on

Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI), the Standards

on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this

certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the ICAI

which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code ofEthics issued by the ICAI.

OTHER MATTER

6. Pursuant tocommencement oftheCIR process oftheCompany, theHon'ble National Company LawTribunal, Kolkata bench,

vide its order dated April 5, 2019, had ordered the commencement ofthecorporate insolvency resolution (“CIR") process

in respect of the company under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Thereafter, in accordance

with Section 17 of the Code, thepowers oftheBoard stood suspended and areexercised by interim resolution professional

/ resolution professional as the case may be forthe management oftheaffairs of the Company. Further, in terms ofSEBI

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,a company undergoing CIR

process is not required to comply with relevant Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015 dealing with the requirements of, amongst others, composition of board of directors including that of

independent director, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the audit committee, constitution, meetings and

terms of reference of the nomination and remuneration committee, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the

stakeholders' relationship committee.

7. We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company northeefficiency or

effectiveness with which the Management hasconducted the affairs of the Company.
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FOR TIWARI SINGH& CO.

Chartered Accountants FRN 017608C

CAABHIMANU TIWARI

Partner

(M.No. 418228)

UDIN: 24418228BKAMTK9022

Ranchi

04th August, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TO THE MEMBERS OF TAYO ROLLS LIMITED

1. 	 We, Tiwari Singh & Co., Chartered Accountants, the Corporate Governance Auditor of TAYO ROLLS LIMITED (“the 
Company”), have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 
March 31, 2024, as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule 
V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations). 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY

2. 	 The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This responsibility includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure compliance with the conditions of 
the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations. However pursuant to commencement of the CIR process of 
the Company, the powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution professional 
or the resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

3. 	 Our responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring 
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the 
financial statements of the Company.

4. 	 We have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for the 
purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by the Company.

5. 	 We have carried out an examination of the relevant records of the Company in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Certification of Corporate Governance issued by the Institute of the Chartered Accountants of India (the ICAI), the Standards 
on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013, in so far as applicable for the purpose of this 
certificate and as per the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the ICAI 
which requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

OTHER MATTER

6. 	 Pursuant to commencement of the CIR process of the Company, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata bench, 
vide its order dated April 5, 2019, had ordered the commencement of the corporate insolvency resolution (“CIR”) process 
in respect of the company under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. Thereafter, in accordance 
with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and are exercised by interim resolution professional 
/ resolution professional as the case may be for the management of the affairs of the Company. Further, in terms of SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, a company undergoing CIR 
process is not required to comply with relevant Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 dealing with the requirements of, amongst others, composition of board of directors including that of 
independent director, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the audit committee, constitution, meetings and 
terms of reference of the nomination and remuneration committee, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the 
stakeholders’ relationship committee. 

7. 	 We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or 
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

FOR TIWARI SINGH & CO. 
Chartered Accountants FRN 017608C 

CA ABHIMANU TIWARI 
Partner 

(M.No. 418228) 
UDIN : 24418228BKAMTK9022 

Ranchi 
04th August, 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THEYEAR 2023-24

As required under Regulation 34 (3)read with ScheduleV oftheSEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Corporate governance isa modus operandi of governinga corporate entity which includesa set of systems, procedures and

practices which ensure that the Company is managed in the best interest of all corporate stakeholders i.e. shareholders, employees,

suppliers, customers and society in general. Fundamentals ofCorporate Governance include transparency, accountability, reporting

and independence. For accomplishment oftheobjectives of ensuing fair Corporate Governance, theGovernment ofIndia has put in

place of framework based on thestipulations contained under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Regulations, Accounting Standard,

Secretarial Standards etc. Corporate Governance has becomea buzzword in the corporate world. Globalization, widespread of

shareholders, changing ownership structure, greater expectations, etc. have madea good Corporate Governance sine qua non of

modern management.

COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OFGOVERNANCE

TheBoard of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and oversees how

the management serves and protects the long-term interests of all our stakeholders. We believe that an active, well-informed

and independent Board is necessary to ensure healthy standards of Corporate Governance. However,a company undergoing

insolvency resolution process is exempted from the requirement of, amongst others, composition of board ofdirectors, constitution,

meetings and terms of reference of the audit committee, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the nomination and

remuneration committee, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the stakeholders' relationship committee as required

under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODR Regulations”). Further, the role

and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under Regulation 17 of the SEBI LODR Regulations is required to be

fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be.

This is to apprise the members that Tayo Rolls Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process which was admitted vide

an order passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions

of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code/ IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon'ble National

Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was

subsequently confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee ofCreditors (COC), constituted under IBC in their meeting

held on May 3, 2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody ofthe management and operations

of the company with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent toa petition filed by COC, theHon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on

October 30,2019 and appointed Mr.AnishAgarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution

Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and condition as specified in

Request forResolution Plan and FormG within the time limit to resolve this company and thesame was approved by Committee

ofCreditors (COC) in their 12th Committee ofCreditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 and declared as passed with 92.45%

ofvoting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 theApplication forApproval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person)

Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its

approval which is reserved fororder.

A report on Compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board ofIndia

(SEBI) in Chapter VI ofthe SEBI LODR Regulations is given below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to commencement oftheCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process( CIRP) oftheCompany, thepowers ofthe Board

stood suspended and were exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the case may be, in

accordance with the provisions of the Code. Further, in terms ofthe SEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing Corporate
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As required under Regulation 34 (3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 

 and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

Corporate governance is a modus operandi of governing a corporate entity which includes a set of systems, procedures and 
practices which ensure that the Company is managed in the best interest of all corporate stakeholders i.e. shareholders, employees, 
suppliers, customers and society in general. Fundamentals of Corporate Governance include transparency, accountability, reporting 
and independence. For accomplishment of the objectives of ensuing fair Corporate Governance, the Government of India has put in 
place of framework based on the stipulations contained under the Companies Act, 2013, SEBI Regulations, Accounting Standard, 
Secretarial Standards etc. Corporate Governance has become a buzzword in the corporate world. Globalization, widespread of 
shareholders, changing ownership structure, greater expectations, etc. have made a good Corporate Governance sine qua non of 
modern management.

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) is at the core of our corporate governance practice and oversees how 
the management serves and protects the long-term interests of all our stakeholders. We believe that an active, well-informed 
and independent Board is necessary to ensure healthy standards of Corporate Governance. However, a company undergoing 
insolvency resolution process is exempted from the requirement of, amongst others, composition of board of directors, constitution, 
meetings and terms of reference of the audit committee, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the nomination and 
remuneration committee, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the stakeholders’ relationship committee as required 
under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the “SEBI LODR Regulations”). Further, the role 
and responsibilities of the Board of Directors as specified under Regulation 17 of the SEBI LODR Regulations is required to be 
fulfilled by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be.

This is to apprise the members that Tayo Rolls Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process which was admitted vide 
an order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions 
of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code / IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon’ble National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was 
subsequently confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee of Creditors (COC), constituted under IBC in their meeting 
held on May 3, 2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody of the management and operations 
of the company with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent to a petition filed by COC, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on 
October 30, 2019 and appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution 
Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL) has submitted the Resolution Plan as per the terms and condition as specified in 
Request for Resolution Plan and Form G within the time limit to resolve this company and the same was approved by Committee 
of Creditors (COC) in their 12th Committee of Creditors meeting held on February 21, 2020 and declared as passed with 92.45 % 
of voting shares.

Subsequently, on February 24, 2020 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person) 
Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its 
approval which is reserved for order.

A report on Compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India 
(SEBI) in Chapter VI of the SEBI LODR Regulations is given below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ( CIRP ) of the Company, the powers of the Board 
stood suspended and were exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the case may be, in 
accordance with the provisions of the Code. Further, in terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing Corporate 
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Insolvency Resolution Process( CIRP) is not required to comply with Regulation 17 of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with

the requirement ofcomposition ofthe board ofdirectors. As stated above thepowers oftheBoard stand suspended with effect from

April 5, 2019 i.e. the CIRP Commencement date. Normally, the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) is entrusted with the

ultimate responsibility of management, general affairs, direction and performance of the Company and hasbeen vested with the

requisite powers and authorities. The Board members arehaving varied skills, experience and knowledge forthe management of

theCompany. Inaccordance with the Articles of Association, the Board may have maximum 12Directors. As on March 31,2024 the

total strength of the Board was 3,comprising all Non-Executive Directors. The Company hada Non-Executive Non-Independent

Chairman as on March 31,2024. The Board does nothavea Woman Director or Independent Director as on March 31,2024. The

composition of the Board is not in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, hereinafter called as SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The following is the Composition ofthe Board as on March 31,2024:

SII. No. Name

1 Mr.Anand Sen Chairman

2 Mr.V.S.N. Murty

3 Mr. K. Shankar Marar

DIN Category

0237914 Promoter, Non Independent

0092348 Promoter, Non Independent

06656658 Non-Independent, Non Executive

None oftheDirectors on the Board isa memberofmore than 10 Committees and Chairman ofmorethan5 Committees as specified

in Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, across all the Public Limited companies in which he/she was a Director.

All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions.

The Non - Executive Directors are paid sitting fees as per the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Apart from sitting fees,

the Non—Executive Directors are eligible for commission notexceeding 1% ofthe netprofit of the Company computed in accordance

with Section 197 ofthe Companies Act, 2013. However, due toloss, commission has notbeen paid to the Non- Executive Directors

for the financial year 2023-24 and no Commission is proposed forthe financial year 2024-25 as the Company is under CIRP.

Further, all the Directors have also forgone their rights to receive the sitting fee.

SELECTION OF NEW DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA

Pursuant to commencement oftheCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process( CIRP) oftheCompany, thepowers ofthe Board

stood suspended and aretobe exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the case may be,

in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

Normally, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board todetermine the appropriate characteristics, skills,

experience and expertise for the Board asa whole and its individual members with the objective of havinga Board with diverse

background and experience in business, government, education, and public service. Characteristics expected of all directors

include independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound businessjudgment, ability to participate constructively

in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority ina collective manner.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers many factors,

including general understanding of marketing, finance, operations management, public policy, international relations, legal,

governance and other disciplines relevant to the success of the Company in today's business environment; understanding of

the Company's business; experience in dealing with strategic issues and long-term perspectives; maintaining an independent

familiarity with the external environment in which theCompany operates and especially in the Director's particular field of expertise;

educational and professional background; personal accomplishment; and geographic, gender, age, and ethnic diversity.

Directors, skills, expertise, competencies and attributes desirable in Company's business and sector in which it functions:
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Insolvency Resolution Process ( CIRP ) is not required to comply with Regulation 17 of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with 
the requirement of composition of the board of directors. As stated above the powers of the Board stand suspended with effect from 
April 5, 2019 i.e. the CIRP Commencement date. Normally, the Board of Directors of the Company (“Board”) is entrusted with the 
ultimate responsibility of management, general affairs, direction and performance of the Company and has been vested with the 
requisite powers and authorities. The Board members are having varied skills, experience and knowledge for the management of 
the Company. In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Board may have maximum 12 Directors. As on March 31, 2024 the 
total strength of the Board was 3, comprising all Non-Executive Directors. The Company had a Non-Executive Non-Independent 
Chairman as on March 31, 2024. The Board does not have a Woman Director or Independent Director as on March 31, 2024. The 
composition of the Board is not in compliance with the provisions of Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, hereinafter called as SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015.

The following is the Composition of the Board as on March 31, 2024:

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of more than 5 Committees as specified 
in Regulation 26 of the SEBI (LODR), Regulations, 2015, across all the Public Limited companies in which he/she was a Director. 
All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding Committee positions.

The Non - Executive Directors are paid sitting fees as per the relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013. Apart from sitting fees, 
the Non–Executive Directors are eligible for commission not exceeding 1% of the net profit of the Company computed in accordance 
with Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. However, due to loss, commission has not been paid to the Non- Executive Directors 
for the financial year 2023-24 and no Commission is proposed for the financial year 2024-25 as the Company is under CIRP. 
Further, all the Directors have also forgone their rights to receive the sitting fee.

SELECTION OF NEW DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEMBERSHIP CRITERIA

Pursuant to commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ( CIRP ) of the Company, the powers of the Board 
stood suspended and are to be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the case may be, 
in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

Normally, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board to determine the appropriate characteristics, skills, 
experience and expertise for the Board as a whole and its individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse 
background and experience in business, government, education, and public service. Characteristics expected of all directors 
include independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, ability to participate constructively 
in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner.

In evaluating the suitability of individual Board members, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee considers many factors, 
including general understanding of marketing, finance, operations management, public policy, international relations, legal, 
governance and other disciplines relevant to the success of the Company in today’s business environment; understanding of 
the Company’s business; experience in dealing with strategic issues and long-term perspectives; maintaining an independent 
familiarity with the external environment in which the Company operates and especially in the Director’s particular field of expertise; 
educational and professional background; personal accomplishment; and geographic, gender, age, and ethnic diversity.

Directors, skills, expertise, competencies and attributes desirable in Company’s business and sector in which it functions:

Sll. No. Name DIN Category

1 Mr. Anand Sen Chairman 0237914 Promoter, Non Independent

2 Mr. V.S.N. Murty 0092348 Promoter, Non Independent

3 Mr. K. Shankar Marar 06656658 Non-Independent, Non Executive
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During the financial year ended March 31,2024, one Internal Management Meeting was held with members ofthesuspended Board

and Resolution Professional wherein members were present through video conferencing in which the affairs/financial conditions of

the company were discussed. The date on which the meeting was held is given below :-

(I) May 23, 2023

s.

2

3

The company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process which was admitted vide an order passed by the Hon'ble

National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions of the Insolvency and

Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code/ IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon'ble National Company

Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was

subsequently confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee ofCreditors (CoC), constituted under IBC in their

meeting held on May 3, 2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody ofthe management

and operations of the company with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent toa petition filed by CoC, theHon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order

on October 30,2019 and appointed Mr.Anish Agarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as

Resolution Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Pursuant to commencement oftheCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company, the powers ofthe

Board stood suspended and aretobe exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the

case may be.Therefore no separate meeting ofthe Independent Directors was held during the financial year ended on March

31,2024.

There existsa familiarization policy for its Independent Directors to make them aware about the company and business

scenario in which it operates including the roles, rights, responsibilities etc. of the Independent Directors. The details of such

policy are available on the website ofthe company atwww.tayo.co.in.

The names andcategories of Directors on the Board, their attendance atthe Internal management meetings/ Board meetings

during the financial year and atthe last Annual General Meeting and their Directorships held and Committee Membership in

other public limited companies and Shareholdings are given below :-

”rrrm '
1

ONQI237PI4 '
NL

1

1

on 31.1

37

hB I'gI hB NI NI

NI NI NI NI NI -

37

INTERNAL MANAGEMENT MEETINGS / BOARD MEETINGS

During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, one Internal Management Meeting was held with members of the suspended Board 
and Resolution Professional wherein members were present through video conferencing in which the affairs/financial conditions of 
the company were discussed. The date on which the meeting was held is given below :-

(I)	 May 23, 2023

The company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process which was admitted vide an order passed by the Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench dated April 5, 2019 under the provisions of the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code 2016 (“Code / IBC”), pursuant thereto, on the same date i.e. April 5, 2019 Hon’ble National Company 
Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) who was 
subsequently confirmed as Resolution Professional (RP) by Committee of Creditors (CoC), constituted under IBC in their 
meeting held on May 3, 2019. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, in her capacity as RP, has taken control and custody of the management 
and operations of the company with effect from April 5, 2019.

Consequent to a petition filed by CoC, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order 
on October 30, 2019 and appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as 
Resolution Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Pursuant to commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company, the powers of the 
Board stood suspended and are to be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional or Resolution Professional, as the 
case may be. Therefore no separate meeting of the Independent Directors was held during the financial year ended on March 
31, 2024.

There exists a familiarization policy for its Independent Directors to make them aware about the company and business 
scenario in which it operates including the roles, rights, responsibilities etc. of the Independent Directors. The details of such 
policy are available on the website of the company at www.tayo.co.in.

The names and categories of Directors on the Board, their attendance at the Internal management meetings / Board meetings 
during the financial year and at the last Annual General Meeting and their Directorships held and Committee Membership in 
other public limited companies and Shareholdings are given below :-

Areas of Skills/Experience/Competence

Leadership Strategy Operations Technology Finance Governance
Government/ 
Regulatory 

Affairs

Mr. Anand Sen, Chairman * * * * * * *
Mr. V. S. N. Murty * * * * *
Mr. K. Shankar Marar * * * * * * *

Other Public Companies

Sl.
No. Name

Category in Tayo 
Rolls Limited

Number 
of Internal 
Management 
Meeting
/Board
Meetings

Last AGM 
held
on

September 
14, 2023 Directorship held as 

on 31.3.2024

Committees 
position held as on 

31.03.2024
Directorship in Other Listed 
Companies as on 31.3.2024

Attended Attended Member Chairman Member Chairman Name ofthe 
Company Category

1

Mr. Anand Sen, 
Chairman
DIN-00237914

Promoter,Non 
Independent, NIL No Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil

2 Mr. V. S. N. Murty DIN- 
00092348

Promoter,Non 
Independent, 1 No Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil -

3 Mr. K. Shankar Marar 
DIN-06656658

Non-Independent, 
Non-Executive 1 Yes Nil Nil Nil Nil Nil -
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

There is no Independent Directors in the Board oftheCompany ason 31.03.2024.
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Pursuant to commencement oftheCIRP, the powers ofthe Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution

professional or resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code. The requirement of

appointing independent and women director under theCompanies Act, 2013 and therules framed there under is not maintainable

on account ofsuspension ofthe powers oftheBoard oftheCompany. Further, in terms oftheSEBI LODR Regulations,a company

undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 17(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the

requirement of appointinga women director on the board ofa listed company.

DETAILS OF EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY HELD BY THE NON-ExEcuTiVE DIRECTORS AS ON MARCH 31,2024

ARE GIVEN BELOW:

Directors' shareholding in the Company: NIL

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

TheBoard has constituted Committee ofDirectors to monitor the activities and to deal with matters within the terms ofreference of

the Committees thereof:

a) Audit Committee

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

c) Stakeholder's Relationship Committee

d) Share Transfer Committee

The composition, terms ofreference, attendance and other details of these Committees arementioned later in this Report.

a) Audit Committee

In terms ofthe SEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 18

of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the requirement of constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the Audit

Committee.

The Committee is governed by theterms of references which are wide enough covering the matters specified under

Regulation 18 read with PartC of Schedule II to the SEBI LODR Regulations, and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The role and review of information by the Audit Committee is as prescribed under Regulation 18 (3) read with PartC of

Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

• Oversight ofthe company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information;

• Recommendation forappointment, remuneration and terms ofappointment ofauditors of the company;

• Evaluation of internal financial control and risk management systems;

• Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

• Discussionswiththestatutoryauditors beforetheauditcommences,aboutthenatureandscopeofauditaswellaspostaudit

discussion to ascertain any area ofconcern;

• Reviewingwiththemanagementtheannual/quarterlyfinancialstatementsandauditors reportthereon beforesubmissionto

the board forapproval;

• To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism and Insider Trading etc.

• Carrying out such other functions as mentioned in the terms ofreference of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements with the statutory auditors and the management with reference
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:

There is no Independent Directors in the Board of the Company as on 31.03.2024.

Pursuant to commencement of the CIRP, the powers of the Board stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution 
professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code. The requirement of 
appointing independent and women director under the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under is not maintainable 
on account of suspension of the powers of the Board of the Company. Further, in terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations, a company 
undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 17(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the 
requirement of appointing a women director on the board of a listed company.

DETAILS OF EQUITY SHARES OF THE COMPANY HELD BY THE NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AS ON MARCH 31, 2024 
ARE GIVEN BELOW:

Directors’ shareholding in the Company: NIL

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

The Board has constituted Committee of Directors to monitor the activities and to deal with matters within the terms of reference of 
the Committees thereof:

a)	 Audit Committee

b)	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

c)	 Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee

d)	 Share Transfer Committee

The composition, terms of reference, attendance and other details of these Committees are mentioned later in this Report.

a)	 Audit Committee

In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 18 
of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the requirement of constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the Audit 
Committee.

The Committee is governed by the terms of references which are wide enough covering the matters specified under

Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II to the SEBI LODR Regulations, and Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The role and review of information by the Audit Committee is as prescribed under Regulation 18 (3) read with Part C of 
Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 read with section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013.

	 The broad terms of reference of the Audit Committee includes:

	 •	 Oversight of the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information;

	 •	 Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors of the company;

	 •	 Evaluation of internal financial control and risk management systems;

	 •	 Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon;

	 •	 Discussions with the statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well as post audit 
		  discussion to ascertain any area of concern;

	 •	 Reviewing with the management the annual/quarterly financial statements and auditors report thereon before submission to 
		  the board for approval;

	 •	 To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower Mechanism and Insider Trading etc.

	 •	 Carrying out such other functions as mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.

		  The Audit Committee reviews the financial statements with the statutory auditors and the management with reference 	
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totheaccounting policies and practices, before recommending thesame totheBoard forapproval. The Audit Committee

also reviews and approves the statement of related party transactions and any subsequent modification of transactions of

the company with related parties, Internal Control weakness report issued by Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditors and also

the Management Discussion& Analysis.

However, with the commencement ofCIR Process, the above roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are being

fulfilled by the Resolution Professional.

During the financial year ended March 31,2024, one Audit Committee Meeting was held with erstwhile Audit Committee

Members and Resolution Professional wherein members were present through video conferencing in which the affairs

financial results of the company were discussed. The date on which the meeting was held is given below :-

May 23, 2023

Composition ofAudit Committee and details of the meeting attended during the financial year 2023-2024 areas follows

Name Category No. of meetings attended

Mr.V.S.N. Murty Promoter, Non-Independent, Non - Executive 1

The Chairman ofErstwhile Audit Committee was notpresent atthe last Annual General Meeting held on 14.09.2023

b) Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Tocomply with the provisions of section 178(1) ofthe CompaniesAct, 2013 read with Regulation19 ofthe SEBI (LODR) Regulations,

2015, the Board has constituteda Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises Non-Executive Directors, majority of them being Independent Directors.

The terms ofreference ofthe Nomination and Remuneration Committee areformulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,

positive attributes, independence ofdirectors and recommend totheBoarda policy relating to the remuneration ofthe directors, Key

Managerial Personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, Board

Diversity Policy and to identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management

in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend totheBoard their appointment and removal.

Pursuant to commencement oftheCIR process, the powers ofthe board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the

interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code. The

requirement of minimum number ofmembers in the nomination and remuneration committee in accordance with the Companies

Act, 2013 and therules framed there under is not maintainable on account ofsuspension ofthe powers oftheBoard. Interms ofthe

SEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 19(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR

Regulations dealing with the minimum numberofthemembers in the nomination and remuneration committee ofa listed company.

Further, in terms ofSEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 19 of

the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the requirements of constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the nomination and

remuneration committee.

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee during financial year 2023-2024 areas follows

Mr.Anand Sen

Name Category

Promoter, Non Independent, Non-Executive

The Chairman ofErstwhile Nomination and Remuneration Committee was notpresent atthe last Annual General Meeting held on

14.09.2023.

Remuneration Policy of Directors, KMPs andother Employees

The philosophy forremuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and all other employees ofthecompany is based on the

commitment offosteringa culture of “Leadership with Trust". The remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant tothe provisions

of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 (4) read with PartD of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR)
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	 to the accounting policies and practices, before recommending the same to the Board for approval. The Audit Committee 
	 also reviews and approves the statement of related party transactions and any subsequent modification of transactions of 
	 the company with related parties, Internal Control weakness report issued by Internal Auditor and Statutory Auditors and also 
	 the Management Discussion & Analysis.

	 However, with the commencement of CIR Process, the above roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are being 
	 fulfilled by the Resolution Professional.

	 During the financial year ended March 31, 2024, one Audit Committee Meeting was held with erstwhile Audit Committee 
	 Members and Resolution Professional wherein members were present through video conferencing in which the affairs 
	 financial results of the company were discussed. The date on which the meeting was held is given below :-

(i)  	 May 23, 2023

	 Composition of Audit Committee and details of the meeting attended during the financial year 2023-2024 are as follows

The Chairman of Erstwhile Audit Committee was not present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 14.09.2023

b)	 Nomination and Remuneration Committee

To comply with the provisions of section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation19 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
2015, the Board has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises Non-Executive Directors, majority of them being Independent Directors. 
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of directors and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration of the directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other employees, formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, Board 
Diversity Policy and to identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management 
in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

Pursuant to commencement of the CIR process, the powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the 
interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code. The 
requirement of minimum number of members in the nomination and remuneration committee in accordance with the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under is not maintainable on account of suspension of the powers of the Board. In terms of the 
SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 19(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR 
Regulations dealing with the minimum number of the members in the nomination and remuneration committee of a listed company.

Further, in terms of SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 19 of 
the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the requirements of constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the nomination and 
remuneration committee.

Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee during financial year 2023-2024 are as follows

Name Category

Mr. Anand Sen Promoter, Non Independent, Non-Executive

The Chairman of Erstwhile Nomination and Remuneration Committee was not present at the last Annual General Meeting held on 
14.09.2023.

Remuneration Policy of Directors, KMPs and other Employees

The philosophy for remuneration of directors, key managerial personnel and all other employees of the company is based on the 
commitment of fostering a culture of “Leadership with Trust”. The remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 19 (4) read with Part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR) 

Name Category No. of meetings attended
Mr. V. S. N. Murty Promoter, Non-Independent, Non - Executive 1
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Regulations, 2015. While formulating the policy, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the factors laid down

under section 178(4) ofthe Act., which are as under:

1. The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality

required to run the company successfully;

2. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

3. Remuneration todirectors, key managerial personnel and senior management involvesa balance between fixed and

incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working ofthe company and its

goals.

i. Remuneration forIndependent Directors (“lD")and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NED”)

Key principles governing the remuneration policy are as follows:

Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ Company's

operations and the Company's capacity to pay the remuneration and should be consistent with recognized best practices.

Independent directors (“ID”) and Non-IndependentNon-Executive Directors (“NED”) may be paid sitting fees (for attending

the meetings oftheBoard and Committees ofwhich they may be members). Quantum ofsitting fees and NED Commission

may be subject to review ona periodic basis, as required.

Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment ofsitting fees and commission will be recommended bytheNRC

and approved by the Board. Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and su9icient to

attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements ofthe Company.

The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs andIDswill be recommended by theNRC totheBoard, based on

company's performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative

parameters, as may be decided by the Board.

The NRC will recommend totheBoard, the quantum ofcommission foreach director based upon theoutcome ofthe

evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance and time spent in the Board and Committee

meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made bydirectors other than in meetings.

In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay toany director such fair and reasonable

expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/ her role asa director of the company. This

could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/and its committee meetings, general

meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ management, site visits, induction and

training (organized by the company fordirectors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the

furtherance of his/ her duties asa director.

ii. Remuneration forManaging Director (“MD”)/ Executive Directors (“EDs”)/ KMP/ rest of the employees

The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for

every role. Hence remuneration should be:

Market competitive (market forevery role is defined as companies from which the company attracts talent or companies

towhich the company loses talent) and driven by the role played by the individual, Reflective of size of the company,

complexity of the sector/ industry/ company's operations and the company's capacity to pay, Consistent with recognized

best practices and aligned to any regulatory requirements, The remuneration mix forthe MD/ EDs is as per the contract

approved by the shareholders. In case ofany change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders. Basic/

fixed salary is provided to all employees toensure that there isa steady income in line with their skills and experience.

In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and

benefits to enablea certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope forsavings and tax optimization, where possible.

The company may also provide all employees witha social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses

and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through

personal accident insurance.

The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.
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Regulations, 2015. While formulating the policy, Nomination and Remuneration Committee has considered the factors laid down 
under section 178(4) of the Act., which are as under:

1.	 The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate directors of the quality 
	 required to run the company successfully;

2.	 Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmarks; and

3.	 Remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves a balance between fixed and 
	 incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its 
	 goals.

	 i.	 Remuneration for Independent Directors (“ID”)and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NED”) 

		  Key principles governing the remuneration policy are as follows:

		  Overall remuneration should be reflective of the size of the Company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ Company’s 
		  operations and the Company’s capacity to pay the remuneration and should be consistent with recognized best practices. 
		  Independent directors (“ID”) and Non-Independent Non-Executive Directors (“NED”) may be paid sitting fees (for attending 
		  the meetings of the Board and Committees of which they may be members). Quantum of sitting fees and NED Commission 
		  may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

		  Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will be recommended by the NRC 
		  and approved by the Board. Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to 
		  attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the Company.

		  The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the NRC to the Board, based on 
		  company’s performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder value creation and any other significant qualitative 
		  parameters, as may be decided by the Board.

		  The NRC will recommend to the Board, the quantum of commission for each director based upon the outcome of the 
		  evaluation process which is driven by various factors including attendance and time spent in the Board and Committee 
		  meetings, individual contributions at the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in meetings.

		  In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the Company may pay to any director such fair and reasonable 
		  expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while performing his/ her role as a director of the company. This  
		  could include reasonable expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/and its committee meetings, general 
		  meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/ management, site visits, induction and 
		  training (organized by the company for directors) and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the 
		  furtherance of his/ her duties as a director.

	 ii.	 Remuneration for Managing Director (“MD”)/ Executive Directors (“EDs”)/ KMP/ rest of the employees 

		  The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and qualified individuals suitable for 
		  every role. Hence remuneration should be:

		  Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the company attracts talent or companies 
		  to which the company loses talent) and driven by the role played by the individual, Reflective of size of the company, 
		  complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay, Consistent with recognized 
		  best practices and aligned to any regulatory requirements, The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract 
		  approved by the shareholders. In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders. Basic/ 
		  fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income in line with their skills and experience.

		  In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company may provide employees with certain perquisites, allowances and 
		  benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. 		
		  The company may also provide all employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses 
		  and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death and dismemberment through 
		  personal accident insurance.

		  The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.
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In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided above, the Company may provide

MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of bonus/performance linked incentive and/or commission calculated with reference

to the net profits of the Company ina particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall

ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be

based on performance as evaluated by the Board orthe NRC and approved by the Board.

The Company may provide the rest of the employeesa performance linked bonus and/or performance linked incentive.

The performance linked bonus/performance linked incentive would be driven by the outcome oftheperformance appraisal

process and the performance ofthe company.

Considering the future business prospects, the overcapacity situation in the roll industry, the challenges faced by the

Company, the resources required to meet these challenges, the likely time taken for turnaround of the business, and

the estimated low returns from the business on steady state basis, on May 26, 2016 the Board decided to suspend

operations in a phased manner. The Company has also introduced Voluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) for its all

employees. Thereafter, on September 5,2016, the Board decided forclosure of operations. In order to retain the best talent

to oversee the necessary activities, a core team of varied functional professionals (including the MD and KMPs)

was constituted. These officers were transferred to Tata Steel Ltd. and deputed back tothe company. They areguided by

the Compensation policy of Tata Steel Ltd. as per deputation policy. However, the company is not able to pay the salary

of workers since October 16,2016.

Pursuant to commencement oftheCIR process, the powers ofthe board of directors stand suspended and are exercised

by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of

the Code. The requirement of minimum number ofmembers in the nomination and remuneration committee in accordance

with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under is not maintainable on account of suspension of the

powers of the Board. In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not required to

comply with Regulation 19(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the minimum number ofthemembers in the

nomination and remuneration committee ofa listed company.

iii. Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered inother capacity

The remuneration payable tothe Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable forservices rendered by such

director in any other capacity unless:

The services rendered are ofa professional nature; and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is of the opinion

that the director possesses requisite qualification for the practice of the profession.

The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees and commission. The Company pays sitting

fees of Rs. 15,000/- (Rupees fifteen thousand only) per meeting to its Non-Executive Directors, for attending Board

meeting, Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings and Rs. 10,000/- (Rupees ten

thousand only) per meeting forany other Committee meeting. However, considering financial position of the Company,

all the Directors have forgone their rights to receive the sitting fee. During financial year 2023-24 no sitting fee was paid

to the Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings ofthe Board and Committees thereof. Further, the company does

nothave Whole time Managing Director.

The Company hasnotgranted any stock options to its Non-Executive Directors.

Pursuant tocommencement oftheCIR process, the powers oftheboard ofdirectors stand suspended and areexercised

by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of

the Code. The requirement ofminimum numberofmembers in the nomination and remuneration committee in accordance

with the Companies Act, 2013 and therules framed there under is not maintainable on account of suspension of the

powers ofthe Board. In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not required to

comply with Regulation 19(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the minimum number ofthemembers in the

nomination and remuneration committee ofa listed company.

During the financial year ended on March 31,2024, No remuneration, sitting fees, commission orany other perquisites
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	 In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided above, the Company may provide 
	 MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of bonus/performance linked incentive and/or commission calculated with reference 
	 to the net profits of the Company in a particular financial year, as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall 
	 ceilings stipulated in Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be 
	 based on performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.

	 The Company may provide the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus and/or performance linked incentive. 
	 The performance linked bonus/performance linked incentive would be driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal 
	 process and the performance of the company.

	 Considering the future business prospects, the overcapacity situation in the roll industry, the challenges faced by the  
	 Company, the resources required to meet these challenges, the likely time taken for turnaround of the business, and 
	 the estimated low returns from the business on steady state basis, on May 26, 2016 the Board decided to suspend 
	 operations in a phased manner. The Company has also introduced Voluntary Separation Scheme (VSS) for its all 
	 employees. Thereafter, on September 5, 2016, the Board decided for closure of operations. In order to retain the best talent 
	 to oversee the necessary activities, a core team of varied functional professionals (including the MD and KMPs) 
	 was constituted. These officers were transferred to Tata Steel Ltd. and deputed back to the company. They are guided by 
	 the Compensation policy of Tata Steel Ltd. as per deputation policy. However, the company is not able to pay the salary 
	 of workers since October 16, 2016.

	 Pursuant to commencement of the CIR process, the powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised 
	 by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of 
	 the Code. The requirement of minimum number of members in the nomination and remuneration committee in accordance 
	 with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under is not maintainable on account of suspension of the 
	 powers of the Board. In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing CIR process is not required to 
	 comply with Regulation 19(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the minimum number of the members in the 
	 nomination and remuneration committee of a listed company.

	 iii.	 Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity

		  The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable for services rendered by such 
		  director in any other capacity unless:

		  The services rendered are of a professional nature; and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee is of the opinion 
		  that the director possesses requisite qualification for the practice of the profession.

		  The Non-Executive Directors are paid remuneration by way of sitting fees and commission. The Company pays sitting 
		  fees of Rs. 15,000/- (Rupees fifteen thousand only) per meeting to its Non-Executive Directors, for attending Board 
		  meeting, Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee meetings and Rs. 10,000/- (Rupees ten 
		  thousand only) per meeting for any other Committee meeting. However, considering financial position of the Company, 
		  all the Directors have forgone their rights to receive the sitting fee. During financial year 2023-24 no sitting fee was paid 
		  to the Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the Board and Committees thereof. Further, the company does 
		  not have Whole time Managing Director.

		  The Company has not granted any stock options to its Non-Executive Directors.

		  Pursuant to commencement of the CIR process, the powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised 
		  by the interim resolution professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of 
		  the Code. The requirement of minimum number of members in the nomination and remuneration committee in accordance 
		  with the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under is not maintainable on account of suspension of the 
		  powers of the Board. In terms of the SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing CIR process is not required to 
		  comply with Regulation 19(1)(a) of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the minimum number of the members in the 
		  nomination and remuneration committee of a listed company.

		  During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, No remuneration, sitting fees, commission or any other perquisites 
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andallowances, and expenditure is been paid to the Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non- Independent Non-Executive

Directors (“NED”) Managing Director (“MD”)/ Executive Directors (“EDs”)/ KMP / rest of the employees as thecompany

is under CIRP and powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution

professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

iv. Performance Evaluation Criteria for Board/Committee(s)/Director(s)

In terms ofSEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018,a company

undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with the requirement of conducting evaluation of the independent

directors. Therefore, subsequent tocommencement oftheCIR process the evaluation of the independent directors of

the Company was notrequired to be carried out under the provisions of the Regulation 17(10) SEBI LODR Regulations.

Further, in accordance with Rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the board of directors ofa company are

required to evaluate its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors.

However pursuant to commencement oftheCIR process of the Company, thepowers ofthe board of directors stand

suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be,

in accordance with the provisions of the Code. Therefore, Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and

Chapter IVread with the provisions of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has notcarried out the

annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working

of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration and other Committees.

c) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The role of Stakeholder's Relationship Committee is as follows:

• consider and resolve the grievances ofshareholders ofthe Company with respect to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual

reports, non-receipt of dividend, etc.;

• ensure expeditious share transfer process;

• evaluate performance and service standards ofthe Registrar and Share Transfer Agent oftheCompany;

• provide guidance and make recommendations toimprove investor service levels of the investors.

Pursuant tocommencement oftheCIR process, the powers oftheboard ofdirectors stand suspended and areexercised by

inn resolution professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be,in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

Further, in terms ofSEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 20

of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the requirements of constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the

stakeholders' relationship committee.

Composition ofStakeholders Relationship Committee during financial year 2023-24 areas follows:

Name

Mr.Anand Sen

Mr.K.Shankar Marar

Category

Promoter, Non-Independent, Non-Executive

Promoter, Non-Independent, Non-Executive

During the year under review the Company hasreceived few correspondences from its shareholders relating to non-receipt of

shares sent fortransfer, enquiry fordematerialization, split/transmission, change in address etc. No correspondences were

pending as on 31.03.2024.

d) Share Transfer Committee:

Share Transfer Committee was constituted for approving transfer, sub-division of shares and issue of fresh share certificates

with the following members, with the authority to act individually.
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		  and allowances, and expenditure is been paid to the Independent Directors (“ID”) and Non- Independent Non-Executive 
		  Directors (“NED”) Managing Director (“MD”) / Executive Directors (“EDs”) / KMP / rest of the employees as the company 
		  is under CIRP and powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution 
		  professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code.

	 iv.	 Performance Evaluation Criteria for Board/Committee(s)/Director(s)

		  In terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, a company 	
		  undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with the requirement of conducting evaluation of the independent 
		  directors. Therefore, subsequent to commencement of the CIR process the evaluation of the independent directors of 
		  the Company was not required to be carried out under the provisions of the Regulation 17(10) SEBI LODR Regulations. 
		  Further, in accordance with Rule 8(4) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the board of directors of a company are 
		  required to evaluate its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors.

		  However pursuant to commencement of the CIR process of the Company, the powers of the board of directors stand 
		  suspended and are exercised by the interim resolution professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be, 
		  in accordance with the provisions of the Code. Therefore, Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
		  Chapter IV read with the provisions of Schedule II of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, the Board has not carried out the 
		  annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working 
		  of its Audit, Nomination and Remuneration and other Committees.

c)	 Stakeholders Relationship Committee

	 The role of Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee is as follows:

•	 consider and resolve the grievances of shareholders of the Company with respect to transfer of shares, non-receipt of annual 
	 reports, non-receipt of dividend, etc.;

•	 ensure expeditious share transfer process;

•	 evaluate performance and service standards of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company;

•	 provide guidance and make recommendations to improve investor service levels of the investors.

	 Pursuant to commencement of the CIR process, the powers of the board of directors stand suspended and are exercised by  
	 im resolution professional or the resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code. 
	 Further, in terms of SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 20 
	 of the SEBI LODR Regulations dealing with the requirements of constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the 
	 stakeholders’ relationship committee.

	 Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee during financial year 2023-24 are as follows:

	 During the year under review the Company has received few correspondences from its shareholders relating to non-receipt of 
	 shares sent for transfer, enquiry for dematerialization, split/transmission, change in address etc. No correspondences were 
	 pending as on 31.03.2024.

d)	 Share Transfer Committee:

	 Share Transfer Committee was constituted for approving transfer, sub-division of shares and issue of fresh share certificates 
	 with the following members, with the authority to act individually.

Name Category
Mr. Anand Sen Promoter, Non-Independent, Non-Executive

Mr. K. Shankar Marar Promoter, Non-Independent, Non-Executive
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Name

Mr.Anand Sen

Mr.K.Shankar Marar

Ms. Harpreet Kaur Bhamra

Category

Promoter, Non-Independent, Non-Executive

Promoter, Non- Independent, Non-Executive

CompanySecretary& Compliance Officer

e) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

OL\-

As persection 135 (1)of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company havinga networth ofRupees five hundred crore or

more, orturnover of Rupees one thousand crore or more ora netprofit of Rupees five crore or more during any financial year

shall constitutea CSR Committee oftheBoard consisting of three or more Directors, out of which atleast one Director shall

be Independent Director.

The Company hasbeen suffering loss since 2008 - 2009 and doesn't fulfill any of the basic criteria as mentioned under section

135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 therefore CSR Committee of the Board is not required. Hence Company has not

constituteda CSR Committee oftheBoard.

Name, Designation& address ofCompliance Officer:

Ms. Harpreet Kaur Bhamra,

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Tayo Rolls Limited, 3, Circuit House Area, (NE), Road No.11,

Jamshedpur, Jharkhand, India Tel.No.0657/2423412

E-mail: tayoregd@tayo.co.in investors_heIpdesk@tayo.co.in

Year

2023’

2022“

2021“

Date

14.09.2023

30.09.2022

30.09.2021

Time

12:30 p.m.

4:00 p.m.

3:00 p.m.

Venue

Through video conferencing (“VC”)/ otherAudio Visual Means

(“OAVM”)

Through video conferencing (“VC”)/ otherAudio Visual Means

(“OAVM”)

Through video conferencing (“VC”)/ otherAudio Visual Means

(“OAVM”)

E-voting facility was provided to the shareholders in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI

(LODR) Regulations, 2015; and erstwhile Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange.

There was no Special Resolution passed during the previous three Annual General Meetings

During the aforesaid Annual General Meetings, e-voting facility was provided to the shareholders.

No Postal Ballot was done during the financial year 2023-24. No Extraordinary General Meeting was held during the financial

year 2023-24.

According to regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, particulars of

Directors seeking appointment/ reappointment are given in the Annexure totheNotice.

Disclosures

i) None oftheDirectors is related to each other.

ii) Disclosures on related party transactions are as per the approved policy on dealing with related party transactions and all

material related party transactions have been reported to the Stock Exchange on quarterly basis along with the compliance

report on corporate governance.

4343

e)	 Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee:

	 As per section 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, every Company having a net worth of Rupees five hundred crore or 	
	 more, or turnover of Rupees one thousand crore or more or a net profit of Rupees five crore or more during any financial year 
	 shall constitute a CSR Committee of the Board consisting of three or more Directors, out of which at least one Director shall 
	 be Independent Director.

	 The Company has been suffering loss since 2008 - 2009 and doesn’t fulfill any of the basic criteria as mentioned under section 
	 135 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 therefore CSR Committee of the Board is not required. Hence Company has not 
	 constituted a CSR Committee of the Board.

	 Name, Designation & address of Compliance Officer: 
	 Ms. Harpreet Kaur Bhamra, 
	 Company Secretary and Compliance Officer, Tayo Rolls Limited, 3, Circuit House Area, (NE), Road No. 11, 
	 Jamshedpur, Jharkhand, India Tel.No.0657/2423412 
	 E-mail : tayoregd@tayo.co.in investors_helpdesk@tayo.co.in

	 During the aforesaid Annual General Meetings, e-voting facility was provided to the shareholders.

	 No Postal Ballot was done during the financial year 2023-24. No Extraordinary General Meeting was held during the financial 
	 year 2023-24.

According to regulation 36(3) of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015, particulars of 
Directors seeking appointment / reappointment are given in the Annexure to the Notice.

Disclosures

i)	 None of the Directors is related to each other.

ii)	 Disclosures on related party transactions are as per the approved policy on dealing with related party transactions and all 
	 material related party transactions have been reported to the Stock Exchange on quarterly basis along with the compliance 
	 report on corporate governance.

	 E-voting facility was provided to the shareholders in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 read with SEBI 
	 (LODR) Regulations, 2015; and erstwhile Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange.

	 There was no Special Resolution passed during the previous three Annual General Meetings

Name Category
Mr. Anand Sen Promoter, Non-Independent, Non-Executive

Mr. K. Shankar Marar Promoter, Non- Independent, Non-Executive

Ms. Harpreet Kaur Bhamra Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

Year Date Time Venue

2023* 14.09.2023 12:30 p.m. Through video conferencing (“VC”)/ other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)

2022* 30.09.2022 4:00 p.m. Through video conferencing (“VC”)/ other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)

2021* 30.09.2021 3:00 p.m. Through video conferencing (“VC”)/ other Audio Visual Means 
(“OAVM”)
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iii)

iv)

)

Vi)

XÏÏÏ)

OU-’

Thedetails of related party transactions are given in the notes on the Balance Sheet and Statement ofProfit& Loss atPage

No.101.

The Company hasformulateda policy on materiality of related party transactions and also on dealing with Related Party

Transactions. All Related Party Transactions prior to the commencement oftheCIR Process were authorized by the Audit

Committee/ Board, as applicable for approval and thereafter by the Resolution Professional who in turn, was authorized by

the CoC.

There areno instances of non-compliance by theCompany orstrictures imposed by theStock Exchanges, SEBI orany other

regulatory authority on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three financial year except penalty on account of

delay in submission of Unaudited Financial Results forthe quarter ended December 31,2023 by1 day.

The Board has notadopted any Risk Management policy and framework pursuant to commencement oftheCIR process as

the powers oftheboard ofdirectors stand suspended

vii) The Company is not in operation since 2016.A resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of COC members) for

restructuring of the company and has been approved by COC and filed with with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval

which is reserved fororder. However, unless the same is approved, the position of the company will not undergoa drastic

favorable change. Considering, these factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate for preparing the IND AS

financial statements and applicable IND AS other than going concern basis have been followed forthe preparation of financial

statements.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report formsa part of the Report u/s 134 ofthe Companies Act2013.

The relevant disclosures on the remuneration of directors have been included under “Remuneration Policy” in this Report.

None oftheDirectors of the Company is holding any shares in the Company.

Senior managementteam hasnotentered into any material financial& commercial transaction, where they have any potential

interest that may havea potential conflict with the interest of the Company atlarge.

xii) The Statement on Investor Complaints (Regulation 13), Corporate Governance Report (Regulation 27), Shareholding Pattern

(Regulation 31), and Financial Results (Regulation 33) have also been uploaded on www.listing.bseindia.com as well as on

the Company Website.

The Company is complying with the requirements ofRegulation 34 read with ScheduleV Clause ofSEBI (LODR) Regulations,

2015, relating to Corporate Governance Report.

XIV) A certificate froma company secretary in practice that none ofthedirectors on the board ofthecompany hasbeen debarred

or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by SEBI/ MCA orany statutory authority — Refer

Page No.49.

xv) The total fees forall services paid by listed entity and its subsidiaries (i.e. on a consolidated basis) to the statutory auditor and

all entities in the network firm/ network entity of which the auditor isa member - Rupees1.75 Lakh plus applicable taxes and

actual out of pocket expenses.

XVI) The Details of adoption/ non-adoption ofthe Discretionary requirements as specified in Regulation 27 (1)read with Schedule

II PartE of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 areas under:

Details of Compliance/ Adoption ofthe Non-Mandatory requirements under theSEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

1. The Board

Non-executive Chairman may be entitled to maintaina Chairperson's office at the company's

expenses and also allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred for performance of his
NotAdopted

duties

2. Shareholder Rights

Ahalfyearly declaration of financial performance including summary ofthesignificant events

in the last6 (six) months should be sent toeach household ofshareholders.

3. Modified opinion(s) in audit report

NotAdopted

The company may move towardsa regime of financial statements with unmodified audit NotAdopted

opinion.
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iii)	 The details of related party transactions are given in the notes on the Balance Sheet and Statement of Profit & Loss at Page 
	 No.101.

iv)	 The Company has formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and also on dealing with Related Party 
	 Transactions. All Related Party Transactions prior to the commencement of the CIR Process were authorized by the Audit 
	 Committee / Board, as applicable for approval and thereafter by the Resolution Professional who in turn, was authorized by 
	 the CoC.

v)	 There are no instances of non-compliance by the Company or strictures imposed by the Stock Exchanges, SEBI or any other 
	 regulatory authority on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three financial year except penalty on account of 
	 delay in submission of Unaudited Financial Results for the quarter ended December 31, 2023 by 1 day.

vi)	 The Board has not adopted any Risk Management policy and framework pursuant to commencement of the CIR process as 
	 the powers of the board of directors stand suspended

vii)	 The Company is not in operation since 2016. A resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of COC members) for 
	 restructuring of the company and has been approved by COC and filed with with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval 
	 which is reserved for order. However, unless the same is approved, the position of the company will not undergo a drastic 
	 favorable change. Considering, these factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate for preparing the IND AS 
	 financial statements and applicable IND AS other than going concern basis have been followed for the preparation of financial 
	 statements.

viii)	 Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a part of the Report u/s 134 of the Companies Act 2013.

ix)	 The relevant disclosures on the remuneration of directors have been included under “Remuneration Policy” in this Report.

x)	 None of the Directors of the Company is holding any shares in the Company.

xi)	 Senior management team has not entered into any material financial & commercial transaction, where they have any potential 
	 interest that may have a potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large.

xii)	 The Statement on Investor Complaints (Regulation 13), Corporate Governance Report (Regulation 27), Shareholding Pattern 
	 (Regulation 31), and Financial Results (Regulation 33) have also been uploaded on www.listing.bseindia.com as well as on 
	 the Company Website.

xiii)	 The Company is complying with the requirements of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V Clause of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 
	 2015, relating to Corporate Governance Report.

xiv)	 A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the company has been debarred 
	 or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by SEBI/ MCA or any statutory authority – Refer 
	 Page No.49.

xv)	 The total fees for all services paid by listed entity and its subsidiaries (i.e. on a consolidated basis) to the statutory auditor and 
	 all entities in the network firm / network entity of which the auditor is a member - Rupees1.75 Lakh plus applicable taxes and 
	 actual out of pocket expenses.

xvi)	 The Details of adoption / non-adoption of the Discretionary requirements as specified in Regulation 27 (1) read with Schedule 
	 II Part E of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are as under:

	 Details of Compliance / Adoption of the Non-Mandatory requirements under the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015

1. The Board

Non-executive Chairman may be entitled to maintain a Chairperson’s office at the company’s

expenses and also allowed reimbursement of expenses incurred for performance of his 
duties

Not Adopted

2. Shareholder Rights

A half yearly declaration of financial performance including summary of the significant events 
in the last 6 (six) months should be sent to each household of shareholders. Not Adopted

3. Modified opinion(s) in audit report

The company may move towards a regime of financial statements with unmodified audit 
opinion.

Not Adopted
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4. Separate posts ofChairperson and Chief Executive Officer

The Company may appoint separate persons to the post of Chairperson and Managing

Director or Chief Executive Officer

5. Reporting of Internal Auditor

The InternalAuditor may report directly to theAudit Committee

”Chief Executive Officer resigned w.e.f. December 1, 2020

”Not applicable as there is no InternalAuditor in the current Financial Yearas theCompany is under CIRP

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITALAUDIT

Adopted“

Adopted”

OL\-

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out the Share Capital Reconciliation audit to reconcile the total issued and paid

up capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) with the total

issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid up capital is in agreement with the total number ofShares in

the physical form and the total number ofdematerialized shares held with NSDLandCDSL.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by Regulation 17 (8)ofthe SEBI LODR Regulations, the Managing Director/CEO and the Chief Financial Officer need to

submita Certificate to the Board in the prescribed format forthe financial year ended March 31,2024. Pursuant tocommencement

oftheCIR process ofthe Company, thepowers oftheBoard stands suspended and aretobe exercised by the interim resolution

professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code. Further, in terms of

the SEBI LODR Regulations,a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 17 of the SEBI LODR

Regulations dealing with the requirement of composition of the board of directors. The said Certificate is therefore signed by the

Resolution Professional.

MEANSOFCOMMUNICATION -

The quarterly and annual results are generally published in Financial Express and Business Standard (All Edition) (In English),

Hindustan (in Hindi) and also been posted on Company's website www.tayo.co.in after its submission tothe Stock Exchange.

GENERALSHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

i) AGM: Date, time and venue : Friday, September 20,2024 at12.30 Noon through Video Conferencing (“VC”)

/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) pursuant to the MCA Circular dated May

5,2020 and as such there is no requirement to havea venue fortheAGM. For

details please refer to the Notice of this AGM.

ii) Particulars of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointmentare annexed totheNotice ofthe Annual General Meeting to be

held on Friday, September 20,2024.

iii) Financial Calendar

Annual General Meeting

iv) Reviewed Financial Results

Quarter 1, 2024-25

Quarter 2,2024-25

Quarter 3,2024-25

Quarter 4, 2024-25

Remote e-voting period

Date ofbook closure

Cut off date fore-voting

Remote e-voting period

April to March

Friday, September 20,2024

second week ofAugust, 2024

second week ofOctober, 2024

second week ofJanuary, 2025

second week ofApril, 2025 Audited Financial Results

Tuesday, September 17,2024 (9.00 a.m.) till

Thursday, September 19,2024 (5.00 p.m.)

Wednesday, September 18th, 2024 till Friday, September 20th, 2024

(both days inclusive)

Friday, September 13,2024

Tuesday, September 17,2024 (9.00 a.m.) till

Thursday, September 19,2024 (5.00 p.m.)

4545

4. Separate posts of Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer

The Company may appoint separate persons to the post of Chairperson and Managing 
Director or Chief Executive Officer Adopted*

5. Reporting of Internal Auditor

The Internal Auditor may report directly to the Audit Committee Adopted**

*Chief Executive Officer resigned w.e.f. December 1, 2020
**Not applicable as there is no Internal Auditor in the current Financial Year as the Company is under CIRP

RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

A qualified Practicing Company Secretary carried out the Share Capital Reconciliation audit to reconcile the total issued and paid 
up capital with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) with the total 
issued and listed capital. The audit confirms that the total issued/ paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of Shares in 
the physical form and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION

As required by Regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI LODR Regulations, the Managing Director/CEO and the Chief Financial Officer need to 
submit a Certificate to the Board in the prescribed format for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. Pursuant to commencement 
of the CIR process of the Company, the powers of the Board stands suspended and are to be exercised by the interim resolution

professional or resolution professional, as the case may be, in accordance with the provisions of the Code. Further, in terms of 
the SEBI LODR Regulations, a company undergoing CIR process is not required to comply with Regulation 17 of the SEBI LODR 
Regulations dealing with the requirement of composition of the board of directors. The said Certificate is therefore signed by the 
Resolution Professional.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION -

The quarterly and annual results are generally published in Financial Express and Business Standard (All Edition) (In English), 
Hindustan (in Hindi) and also been posted on Company’s website www.tayo.co.in after its submission to the Stock Exchange.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION          

i)	 AGM: Date, time and venue   :               Friday, September 20, 2024 at 12.30 Noon through Video Conferencing (“VC”) 
				    / Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) pursuant to the MCA Circular dated May 
				    5, 2020 and as such there is no requirement to have a venue for the AGM. For 
				    details please refer to the Notice of this AGM.

ii)	 Particulars of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment are annexed to the Notice of the Annual General Meeting to be 
	 held on Friday, September 20, 2024.

iii)	 Financial Calendar	 :	 April to March

	 Annual General Meeting	 :	 Friday, September 20, 2024

iv)	 Reviewed Financial Results

	 Quarter 1, 2024-25	 :	 second week of August, 2024

	 Quarter 2, 2024-25	 :	 second week of October, 2024

	 Quarter 3, 2024-25	 :	 second week of January, 2025 

	 Quarter 4, 2024-25 	 :	 second week of April , 2025 Audited Financial Results 

	 Remote e-voting period	 :	 Tuesday, September 17, 2024 (9.00 a.m.) till 
				    Thursday, September 19, 2024 (5.00 p.m.)

	 Date of book closure 	 : 	 Wednesday, September 18th, 2024 till Friday, September 20th, 2024 
				    (both days inclusive)

	 Cut off date for e-voting 	 : 	 Friday, September 13, 2024

	 Remote e-voting period 	 : 	 Tuesday, September 17, 2024 (9.00 a.m.) till 
				    Thursday, September 19, 2024 (5.00 p.m.)
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Dividend Payment date

Listing on Stock Exchange

Stock Code

Market Information

Month

Apr’23

May '23

June ’23

July '23

Aug ’23

Sep ’23

Oct '23

Nov '23

Dec ’23

Jan ’24

Feb ’24

Mar '24

xi) Performance ofCompany's Share Price

OU-’

Nodividend has been recommended as thecompany is not in operation.

The Company's shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE)

The Company haspaid the annual listing fees to the Stock Exchange where its

shares are listed for the financial year 2023 - 24.

504961 (BSE)

Market Price Data: High, Low (based on the closing prices) and volume during

each month in last financial year, as under

High Low No. of shares

66.9 50.3 74704

76.95 60.55 129938

86.95 67 179950

98.8 71.01 139893

89.17 76.47 5921

92 69.02 291745

93.55 80.7 117107

118.49 82.02 255123

112.6 96.6 24881

105.99 83.05 363918

105.1 93 316348

103 86.85 145997

The performance ofthe Company's share prices in comparison tothe BSE Sensex during the financial year 2023-24, was as

under:

xii) Registrar& Transfer Agents

Link Intime India Private Limited

(erstwhile TSR Consultants Private Limited,

merged with Link Intime India Private Limited

effective December 22,2023)

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC307859 C-101,

Embassy 247, LalBahadur Shastri Marg,

Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 083Tel.: +91 8108118484;

Fax: +91 22 6656 8494;

Timings: Monday toFriday, 10:00 a.m. (IST) to 5:00 p.m. (IST)

E-mail: csg-unit@linkintime.co.in Website: www.linkintime.co.in
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	 Dividend Payment date	 :	 No dividend has been recommended as the company is not in operation. 	
	 Listing on Stock Exchange	 :	 The Company’s shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd. (BSE) 
				    The Company has paid the annual listing fees to the Stock Exchange where its 
				    shares are listed for the financial year 2023 - 24.

	 Stock Code			  504961 (BSE)

	 Market Information	 :	 Market Price Data: High, Low (based on the closing prices) and volume during 
				    each month in last financial year, as under

xi)	 Performance of Company’s Share Price

	 The performance of the Company’s share prices in comparison to the BSE Sensex during the financial year 2023-24, was as 
	 under:

xii)	 Registrar & Transfer Agents

Month High Low No. of Shares
Apr '23 66.9 50.3 74704

May '23 76.95 60.55 129938
June '23 86.95 67 179950
July '23 98.8 71.01 139893
Aug '23 89.17 76.47 5921
Sep '23 92 69.02 291745
Oct '23 93.55 80.7 117107
Nov '23 118.49 82.02 255123
Dec '23 112.6 96.6 24881
Jan '24 105.99 83.05 363918
Feb '24 105.1 93 316348
Mar '24 103 86.85 145997

CIN: U74999MH2018PTC307859 C-101,  
Embassy 247, Lal Bahadur Shastri Marg,  
Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400 083 Tel.: +91 8108118484;  
Fax: +91 22 6656 8494;  
Timings: Monday to Friday, 10:00 a.m. (IST) to 5:00 p.m. (IST)  
E-mail: csg-unit@linkintime.co.in Website: www.linkintime.co.in

Link Intime India Private Limited  
(erstwhile TSR Consultants Private Limited,  
merged with Link Intime India Private Limited  
effective December 22, 2023) 
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Branch Offices of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

Qtr. No. L-4/5,

Main Road, Bistupur (Beside Chappan - Bhog Sweet Shop)

Jamshedpur - 831 001

Tel.: +91-657-2426937

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C/o. Mr. D. Nagendra Rao ‘Yaghdevi”

543/A, 7th Main 3rdCross, Hanumanthnagar

Bengaluru - 560 019

Tel.: +91-80-26509004

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

Sth Floor, 506 to 508,

Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1) Beside Gala Business

Centre, Nr. St. Xavier's College Comer, Off. C.G. Road,

Ellisbridge Ahmedabad - 380 006

Tel.: +91 79 2646 5179

Investor Relation Assistance:

Ms. Harpreet Kaur Bhamra,

Company Secretary& Compliance Officer, Tayo Rolls

Limited 3, CHArea (NE), Road No.11, Circuit House Area,

P.O.& P.S. Bistupur, Jamshedpur — 831 001

Tel.No 0657-2423412

E-mails: tayoregd@tayo.co.in Investors helpdesk@tayo.

co.in

xiii) Share transfer system:

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

Vaishno Chamber,

SthFloor, Flat Nos. 502& 503,

6, Brabourne Road,

Kolkata - 700 001

Tel.: +91-33-40049728/ 33-40731698

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot No. NH-2,

C-1 Block, LSC, Near Savitri Market,

Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110 058

Tel.: +91-11-41410592/ 93/ 94

Resolution Professional: Mr. Anish Agarwal, Resolution

Professional, 605 A, RS Tower, Circular Road, Lalpur,

Ranchi - 8340001

TelNo.: 9431104473

E-mail ID: rp.tayoroIIs@gmaiI.com

Mr. DeepakTambe SeniorAssociate

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.

C-101,1St Floor, 247 Park, LalBahadur Shastri

Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai — 400 083.

Tel: 022 6656 8484,

8108118484 Fax 022-

66568494/96

E-mails deepak.tambe@Iinkintime.co.in

Website www.tsrdarashaw.com

a) Physical Form: The Board has authorizeda few Directors and the Company Secretary severally to approve the

transfer of share. Share transfer in physical form can be lodged either at the Registered Office of the Company orwith

Link Intime India Private Limited (erstwhile TSR Consultants Private Limited, merged with Link Intime India Private

Limited effective December 22,2023) the Registrar& Transfer Agents, at the above-mentioned address or any oftheir

branch offices, addresses of which are available on their website. Transfers are normally processed within 15 days

from the date of receipt, provided the documents arecomplete in all respect.

b) Demat Form:

The Company has made arrangements to dematalize its shares through National Securities Depository Limited

(NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Company's ISIN No. is INE895C01011.The shares

ofthe Company areactively traded in the Stock Exchange where they are listed. As on March 31,2024, 96.78% shares

ofthe Company were in Dematerialized form.
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xiii)	 Share transfer system:

	 a)	 Physical Form: The Board has authorized a few Directors and the Company Secretary severally to approve the 
		  transfer of share. Share transfer in physical form can be lodged either at the Registered Office of the Company or with 
		  Link Intime India Private Limited (erstwhile TSR Consultants Private Limited, merged with Link Intime India Private 
		  Limited effective December 22, 2023) the Registrar& Transfer Agents, at the above-mentioned address or any of their 
		  branch offices, addresses of which are available on their website. Transfers are normally processed within 15 days 
		  from the date of receipt, provided the documents are complete in all respect.

	 b)	 Demat Form:

		  The Company has made arrangements to dematalize its shares through National Securities Depository Limited 
		  (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL) and Company’s ISIN No. is INE895C01011.The shares 
		  of the Company are actively traded in the Stock Exchange where they are listed. As on March 31, 2024, 96.78% shares 
		  of the Company were in Dematerialized form.

	 Branch Offices of Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
Qtr. No. L-4/5, 
Main Road, Bistupur (Beside Chappan - Bhog Sweet Shop) 
Jamshedpur - 831 001 
Tel.: +91-657-2426937

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
Vaishno Chamber, 
5th Floor, Flat Nos. 502 & 503, 
6, Brabourne Road, 
Kolkata - 700 001 
Tel.: +91-33-40049728 / 33- 40731698

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
C/o. Mr. D. Nagendra Rao “Vaghdevi” 
543/A, 7th Main 3rd Cross, Hanumanthnagar 
Bengaluru - 560 019 
Tel.: +91-80-26509004

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
Noble Heights, 1st Floor, Plot No. NH-2, 
C-1 Block, LSC, Near Savitri Market, 
Janakpuri, New Delhi - 110 058 
Tel.: +91-11-41410592 / 93 / 94

Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
5th Floor, 506 to 508, 
Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1) Beside Gala Business 
Centre, Nr. St. Xavier’s College Corner, Off. C.G. Road, 
Ellisbridge Ahmedabad - 380 006 
Tel.: +91 79 2646 5179

Resolution Professional: Mr. Anish Agarwal, Resolution 
Professional, 605 A, RS Tower, Circular Road, Lalpur, 
Ranchi - 8340001
Tel No.  :  9431104473
E-mail ID :  rp.tayorolls@gmail.com

Investor Relation Assistance:
Ms. Harpreet Kaur Bhamra,
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer, Tayo Rolls 
Limited 3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Circuit House Area, 
P.O. & P.S. Bistupur, Jamshedpur – 831 001
Tel.No  : 0657-2423412

  E-mails : tayoregd@tayo.co.in Investors_helpdesk@tayo.
co.in

Mr. Deepak Tambe Senior Associate
Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd. 
C-101, 1st Floor, 247 Park , Lal Bahadur Shastri 
Marg, Vikhroli (West) Mumbai – 400 083.
Tel : 022 6656 8484, 
8108118484 Fax	 : 022- 
66568494/96

E-mails : deepak.tambe@linkintime.co.in
Website : www.tsrdarashaw.com
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a) Distribution of shareholdings as on 31.03.2024

No. ofEquity Shares

Held

1 - 500

501 - 1000

1001 - 2000

2001 - 3000

3001 - 4000

4001 - 5000

5001 - 10000

10001 and above

TOTAL

Shareholders

No. ofHolders No. of Shares

16917 1375863

481 378315

164 240470

48 121227

23 80574

23 106344

30 215002

18 7743140

17704 10260935

b) Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2024:

SI. No. Category

I. Promoters/Associate companies, etc.

II. Financial Institutions

III. Other Bodies Corporate/Trusts

IV. Directors& Relatives

V. General Public

TOTAL

% tototal

95.55

2.72

0.93

0.27

0.13

0.13

0.17

0.10

100.00

No. of Shares

7512367

600

133439

2614529

10260935

c) Top five Equity Shareholders as on 31.03.2024:

SI. No. Category No. ofShares

I. Tata Steel Limited 5587372

II. Yodogawa Steel Works Limited 1536704

III. Sojitz Corporation 307341

IV. Hasmukh Parekh 72200

V. Rujuvalika Investments Limited 47050

TOTAL 7550667

xv) The Company hasnooutstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants orany convertible instruments.

xvi) Plant location : TAYO Works, Gamharia,

Distt: Seraikella- Kharsawan, Jharkhand.

xvii) Registered Office Address

ShareAmount

Rupees

13758630

3783150

2404700

1212270

805740

1063440

2150020

77431400

102609350

OU-’

% tototal

13.41

3.69

2.34

1.18

0.79

1.03

2.1

75.46

100.00

%

73.21

0.01

1.30

25.48

100.00

°/a

54.45

14.98

3.00

0.70

0.46

73. 59

3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Circuit House Area,

P.O.& P.S. Bistupur, Jamshedpur — 831 001

Tel.: (0657) 2423412 E-mail: tayoregd@tayo.co.in website: www.tayo.co.in

xviii) The Company is under CIRP wefApril 5, 2019. Under these circumstances no credit ratings have been taken during the

financial year 2023-24.

A Certificate from the Corporate Governance Auditor of the Company, Mls. Tiwari Singh and Co., Chartered Accountants,

regarding due Compliance ofconditions stipulated in Regulation 34(3) read with ScheduleV ClauseE ofthe SEBI (LODR)

Regulations 2015 is annexed hereto.

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd May, 2024
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Forand behalf of Tayo Rolls Limited

Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

CAAnish Agarwal)

Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
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No. of Equity Shares 
Held Shareholders Share Amount

No. of Holders No. of Shares % to total Rupees % to total

1 - 500 16917 1375863 95.55 13758630 13.41
501 - 1000 481 378315 2.72 3783150 3.69
1001 - 2000 164 240470 0.93 2404700 2.34
2001 - 3000 48 121227 0.27 1212270 1.18
3001 - 4000 23 80574 0.13 805740 0.79
4001 - 5000 23 106344 0.13 1063440 1.03

5001 - 10000 30 215002 0.17 2150020 2.1
10001 and above 18 7743140 0.10 77431400 75.46

TOTAL 17704 10260935 100.00 102609350 100.00

	 b)	 Shareholding pattern as on 31.03.2024:

Sl. No. Category No. of Shares %
I. Promoters/Associate companies, etc. 7512367 73.21
II. Financial Institutions 600 0.01
III. Other Bodies Corporate/Trusts 133439 1.30
IV. Directors & Relatives --- ---
V. General Public 2614529 25.48

TOTAL 10260935 100.00

	 c)	 Top five Equity Shareholders as on 31.03.2024:

Sl. No. Category No. of Shares %
I. Tata Steel Limited 5587372 54.45
II. Yodogawa Steel Works Limited 1536704 14.98
III. Sojitz Corporation 307341 3.00
IV. Hasmukh Parekh 72200 0.70
V. Rujuvalika Investments Limited 47050 0.46

TOTAL 7550667 73. 59

xv)	 The Company has no outstanding GDR/ADR/Warrants or any convertible instruments.
xvi)	 Plant location	 :	 TAYO Works, Gamharia,
					     Distt: Seraikella- Kharsawan, Jharkhand.
xvii)	 Registered Office Address	 :	 3, CH Area (NE), Road No.11, Circuit House Area, 
					     P.O. & P.S. Bistupur, Jamshedpur – 831 001 
					     Tel.: (0657) 2423412 E-mail: tayoregd@tayo.co.in website: www.tayo.co.in
xviii)	 The Company is under CIRP wef April 5, 2019. Under these circumstances no credit ratings have been taken during the 
	 financial year 2023-24.
	 A Certificate from the Corporate Governance Auditor of the Company, M/s. Tiwari Singh and Co., Chartered Accountants, 
	 regarding due Compliance of conditions stipulated in Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Clause E of the SEBI (LODR) 
	 Regulations 2015 is annexed hereto.

xiv)	 a)  	 Distribution of shareholdings as on 31.03.2024

Place: Ranchi
Date: 23rd May, 2024

For and behalf of Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

CA Anish Agarwal)
Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
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TO WHOMSOEVER ITMAYCONCERNS

OL\-

To,

The Members,

Tayo Rolls Limited,

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN)

status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company& its officers,I

hereby certify that none ofthe Directors on the Board ofthe Company as stated below forthe Financial Year ending on March

31,2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by theSecurities and

Exchange Board ofIndia, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory Authority.

List of Directors as on March 31,2024:

SI. No. Name

1 Mr.Anand Sen

2 Mr.V.S.N. Murty

3 Mr. K. Shankar Marar

DIN

0237914

0092348

06656658

Date ofAppointment in Company*

18/01/2008

25/04/2013

07/08/2017

“the date ofappointment is as per the MCA Portal.

The Company has received annual disclosures as required under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 from the above

Directors of the Company.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management ofthe

Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on ourverification. This Certificate is neither an assurance as tothe

future viability of the Company noroftheefficiency or effectiveness with which the management hasconducted the affairs of the

Company.

Note: Honorable National Company LawTribunal (NCLT), Kolkata vide order dated SthApril, 2019 hasadmitted the commencement

ofCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Section9 ofthe Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) in respect

ofthe Company. By thesaid order, NCLT, Kolkata, has declared Moratorium and public announcement in accordance with Section

13& 15 of the Insolvency& Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and has appointed Mrs. Vinita Agarwal having Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/

IP- P00914/2017-2018/11520 as an Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) and continued as Resolution Professional as appointed

by the Committee ofCreditors in its meeting held on May 3, 2019 under provisions of the Code. Consequent toa petition filed by

COC, theHon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on October 30,2019 and appointed Mr.

Anish Agarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita

Agrawal.

Place: Ranchi

Date: August 26,2024
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FCS Shikha Agarwal

Membership No. 10449

COP - 12354

UDIN- F010449F001042801
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TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERNS

To, 
The Members, 
Tayo Rolls Limited,

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) 
status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I 
hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on March 
31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any other Statutory Authority.

List of Directors as on March 31, 2024:

*the date of appointment is as per the MCA Portal.

The Company has received annual disclosures as required under section 164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 from the above 
Directors of the Company.

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the 
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion based on our verification. This Certificate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 
Company.

Note: Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata vide order dated 5th April, 2019 has admitted the commencement 
of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) under Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) in respect 
of the Company. By the said order, NCLT, Kolkata, has declared Moratorium and public announcement in accordance with Section 
13 & 15 of the Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 and has appointed Mrs. Vinita Agarwal having Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/ 
IP- P00914/2017-2018/11520 as an Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) and continued as Resolution Professional as appointed 
by the Committee of Creditors in its meeting held on May 3, 2019 under provisions of the Code. Consequent to a petition filed by 
COC, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench passed an order on October 30, 2019 and appointed Mr. 
Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita 
Agrawal.

FCS Shikha Agarwal 
Membership No. 10449 

COP - 12354  
UDIN- F010449F001042801

Sl. No. Name DIN Date of Appointment in Company*

1 Mr. Anand Sen 0237914 18/01/2008

2 Mr. V.S.N. Murty 0092348 25/04/2013

3 Mr. K. Shankar Marar 06656658 07/08/2017

Place: Ranchi  
Date: August 26, 2024
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AnnexureI

Statement on Impact ofAudit Qualifications for (audit report with modified opinion) submitted along-with the

Standalone Audited Financial Results

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Statement on Impact ofAudit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31,2024

(See Regulations 33/52 ofthe SEBI (LDOR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016) (Standalone)

Sr.No. Particulars

Turnover/Total Income

Total Expenditure

Net ProfiV(Loss)

Earnings Per Share

Total Assets

Total Liabilities

Net Worth

Any other financial item(s) (as felt by the

management)

ii. Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

a. Details of Audit

Qualification

Audited figures(Rs in lakhs)

(As reported figure before After adjusting for

adjusting for qualifications) qualifications

330

(330)

(3)

4309

4309

(48744)

None

OU-’

Refer to Details of Audit

Qualification under point II.

1. As required by Standards on Auditing (SA's) we could not carry out physical

verification of inventories or fixed assets. Accordingly, we could not obtain

su9icient and appropriate audit evidence foradequacy and reasonableness of

management estimates forvalue of various assets as recorded in the books

as on 31st March, 2024. These matters can have material and pervasive

impact on the financial statement considering the fact that the company has

notbeen in operation since September 2016. Consequential impact, if any,

of matters described below, on recognition of certain components in financial

statement including its presentation/disclosure is currently not ascertainable.

Certain such matters pertaining to major elements offinancial statements are

mentioned below:

a. Pending CIRP, the company hasnotcarried out impairment testing of tangible

assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet date. Basis the information and

explanation provided to us, RP had carried out the physical verification of

assets and also got the valuation done once through Registered IBBI's valuer

as per IBC,2016 on 4th July, 2019.

However, no accounting impact was given based on the outcome of the

valuation and physical verification pending CIRP.

b. Pending CIRP, the company has notcarried out physical verification of its

assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet date.

2. As required by IND AS-21- The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates,

foreign currency monetary amounts should be reported using the closing rate.

As referred in Note 35 of the financial statements, the financial liabilities of

USD 3 lakh have notbeen reported using the closing rate.

3. As per IND AS -36- Impairment of Assets, at each reporting date the entity

should test whether there is any indication of any impairment of an asset.

The accounting effect is to be given in the financial statements due to the

impairment of the assets. The company has notdone theimpairment testing

during the period ended 31st March, 2024

50

Fifty sixth annual report 2023-24

50

Annexure I

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for (audit report with modified opinion) submitted along-with the  
Standalone Audited Financial Results

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024

(See Regulations 33/52 of the SEBI (LDOR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016) (Standalone)

i.

ii.	 Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately):

Sr. No. Particulars

Audited figures(Rs in lakhs)
(As reported figure before 
adjusting for qualifications)

After adjusting for 
qualifications

1. Turnover/Total Income -

Refer to Details of Audit 
Qualification under point II.

2. Total Expenditure 330
3. Net Profit/(Loss) (330)
4. Earnings Per Share (3)
5. Total Assets 4309
6. Total Liabilities 4309
7. Net Worth (48744)
8. Any other financial item(s) (as felt by the 

management)
None

a. Details of Audit 
Qualification

1.   As required by Standards on Auditing (SA’s) we could not carry out physical 
verification of inventories or fixed assets. Accordingly, we could not obtain 
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for adequacy and reasonableness of 
management estimates for value of various assets as recorded in the books 
as on 31st March, 2024. These matters can have material and pervasive 
impact on the financial statement considering the fact that the company has 
not been in operation since September 2016. Consequential impact, if any, 
of matters described below, on recognition of certain components in financial 
statement including its presentation/disclosure is currently not ascertainable. 
Certain such matters pertaining to major elements of financial statements are 
mentioned below:

a.   Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out impairment testing of tangible 
assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet date. Basis the information and 
explanation provided to us, RP had carried out the physical verification of 
assets and also got the valuation done once through Registered IBBI’s valuer 
as per IBC,2016 on 4th July, 2019.   
However, no accounting impact was given based on the outcome of the 
valuation and physical verification pending CIRP.

b.   Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out physical verification of its 
 assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet date.

2.    As required by IND AS-21- The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, 
foreign currency monetary amounts should be reported using the closing rate. 
As referred in Note 35 of the financial statements, the financial liabilities of 
USD 3 lakh have not been reported using the closing rate.

3.   As per IND AS -36- Impairment of Assets, at each reporting date the entity 
should test whether there is any indication of any impairment of an asset. 
The accounting effect is to be given in the financial statements due to the 
impairment of the assets. The company has not done the impairment testing 
during the period ended 31st March, 2024



TAYO ROLLS

OL\-

4. As perINDAS -19- Employee Benefits, the company is required to go through

the actuarial valuation of defined benefit obligation or fair value ofany related

plan assets and the accounting effect of actuarial gains and losses is required

to be given in the financial statements. Since inception of CIRP, thecompany

hasnotdone any actuarial valuation.

5. As per IND AS-107, 109, 32, 36, 16- Fair Value ofassets and liabilities is to

be determined ateach reporting date or the circumstances as mentioned in

those standards. For the fair valuation of assets and liabilities, the fair value

is to be calculated as per IND AS -113-Fair Value measurement. Since

inception of CIRP, the company hasnotdone thefair valuation of assets

and liabilities in the financial statements during the current financial year.

6. Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We refer to Note f} of SEBI Notes to Financial Statements; the Company is

not in operation since September 2016. The net worth of the Company has

already been eroded. A resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of

COC members) forrestructuring of the company and has been approved

by COC and filed with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval which is

reserved for order. However, unless the same is approved the position of

the company will not undergoa drastic favorable change. Considering, these

factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate for preparing the

IND AS financial statements and the IND AS financial statements have been

prepared otherthan going concern basis, however, no adjustments have been

made tothecarrying value ofassets and liabilities and their presentation and

classification in the Balance Sheet pending CIRP.

Type ofAudit Qualification: Qual-

b ified Opinion/Disclaimer of opin- Qualified Opinion

ion/ Adverse opinion

Frequency of qualification:

Whether appeared first /repeti- Repetitive. Since F.Y. 2020-21

tive/ since how long continuing

For Audit qualification(s) where

the impact is quantified by the NA.

auditor, Management views

e ForAudit Qualification(s) where theimpacts is not quantified by the auditor:

(i) Management's estimation on

the impact of audit qualification:
Not Determinable
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4.       As per IND AS -19- Employee Benefits, the company is required to go through 
the actuarial valuation of defined benefit obligation or fair value of any related 
plan assets and the accounting effect of actuarial gains and losses is required 
to be given in the financial statements. Since inception of CIRP, the company 
has not done any actuarial valuation. 

5.      As per IND AS-107, 109, 32, 36, 16- Fair Value of assets and liabilities is to 
be determined at each reporting date or the circumstances as mentioned in 
those standards. For the fair valuation of assets and liabilities, the fair value 
is to be calculated as per IND AS -113-Fair Value measurement. Since 
inception of CIRP, the company has not done the fair valuation of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements during the current financial year.

6.     Material uncertainty related to Going Concern
       We refer to Note f) of SEBI Notes to Financial Statements; the Company is 

not in operation since September 2016. The net worth of the Company has 
already been eroded.  A resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of 
COC members) for restructuring of the company and has been approved 
by COC and filed with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval which is 
reserved for order. However, unless the same is approved the position of 
the company will not undergo a drastic favorable change. Considering, these 
factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate for preparing the 
IND AS financial statements and the IND AS financial statements have been 
prepared other than going concern basis, however, no adjustments have been 
made to the carrying value of assets and liabilities and their presentation and 
classification in the Balance Sheet pending CIRP.

b
Type of Audit Qualification: Qual-
ified Opinion/Disclaimer of opin-
ion/ Adverse opinion

Qualified Opinion

c
Frequency of qualification: 
Whether appeared first /repeti-
tive/ since how long continuing

Repetitive. Since F.Y. 2020-21

c
For Audit qualification(s) where 
the impact is quantified by the 
auditor, Management views

NA.

e For Audit Qualification(s) where the impacts is not quantified by the auditor:
(i) Management’s estimation on 
the impact of audit qualification: Not Determinable
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(ii) If management if unable to 1.

estimate the impact, reasons for

the same

III. Signatories

ForR U B S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.014560C

Anushka Kriti Singh

Partner

M.No. 316808

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd May, 2024

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

OU-’

With reference to II(a)(1) the Resolution Professional's view is:

The Resolution Professional took efforts and carried out the physical verification

of assets and also got the valuation done once through Registered IBBI's

valuer as per IBC,2016 on 4th July, 2019. Since the CIRP is ongoing and the

matter relating to the approval of Resolution Plan is pending with Honorable

NCLT bench, Kolkata which is reserved fororder and due to suspension of

operations, pending outcome ofCIRP andsignificant uncertainty about future

economic outlook ofthe company, it is not feasible to determine the amount of

impairment, if any which would have been required to be done in the net book

value of the assets ofthe company.

With reference to II(a)(2) the Resolution Professional's view is:

As the currency liability is towards related party and CIRP is ongoing, the

liability has not been revaluated at the current rates.

With reference to II(a)(3) the Resolution Professional's view is:

Since theCIRP is ongoing and the matter relating to the approval of Resolution

Plan is pending with Honorable NCLT bench, Kolkata which is reserved for

order and due to suspension of operations, pending outcome ofCIRP and

significant uncertainty about future economic outlook of the company, it is not

feasible to determine the amount ofimpairment, if any which would have been

required to be done in the net book value

With reference to II(a)(4) the Resolution Professional's view is:

The operations of the Company have remained suspended since September

2016 and thereafter CIRP commenced on SthApril 2019. An appropriate

amount towards the claim of Employees and workers (who became the

members ofCoC) including the retiral benefits have already been admitted as

claim by the Resolution Professional. Since the commencement ofCIRP and

because ofcontinued suspension ofoperation, the services of workmen were

notavailed. Hence, no further provisioning has been done forretiral benefits

through actuarial valuations.

With reference to II(a)(5) the Resolution Professional's view is:

Refer to our reply in relation to point2 & 4

With reference to II(a)(6) the Resolution Professional's view is:

As already disclosed in Note f} of SEBI Notes to Financial Statements, the

Company is not in operation since September 2016 anda resolution plan

submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of COC members) forrestructuring of the

company that has been approved by COC and filed with Honorable NCLT

Kolkata forits approval which is reserved fororder. since the orderforapproval

of resolution plan is reserved and CIRP is ongoing, no adjustments in the

carrying values ofassets and liabilities or their presentation and classification,

have been made.
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Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

CAAnish Agarwal)

Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd May, 2024
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III. Signatories

For R U B S & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
Firm’s Registration No.014560C 

Anushka Kriti Singh
Partner
M.No. 316808
Place: Ranchi
Date: 23rd May, 2024

For and behalf of Tayo Rolls Limited 
Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP)

CA Anish Agarwal)
Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018 -2019/12256
Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd  May, 2024

(ii) If management if unable to 
estimate the impact, reasons for 
the same

1.    With reference to II(a)(1) the Resolution Professional’s view is:
          The Resolution Professional took efforts and carried out the physical verification 

of assets and also got the valuation done once through Registered IBBI’s 
valuer as per IBC,2016 on 4th July, 2019. Since the CIRP is ongoing and the 
matter relating to the approval of Resolution Plan is pending with Honorable 
NCLT bench, Kolkata which is reserved for order and due to suspension of 
operations, pending outcome of CIRP and significant uncertainty about future 
economic outlook of the company, it is not feasible to determine the amount of 
impairment, if any which would have been required to be done in the net book 
value of the assets of the company.

2.    With reference to II(a)(2) the Resolution Professional’s view is:
As the currency liability is towards related party and CIRP is ongoing, the 
liability has not been revaluated at the current rates.

3.	 With reference to II(a)(3) the Resolution Professional’s view is:
        Since the CIRP is ongoing and the matter relating to the approval of Resolution       

Plan is pending with Honorable NCLT bench, Kolkata which is reserved for 
order and due to suspension of operations, pending outcome of CIRP and 
significant uncertainty about future economic outlook of the company, it is not 
feasible to determine the amount of impairment, if any which would have been 
required to be done in the net book value

4.	 With reference to II(a)(4) the Resolution Professional’s view is:
       The operations of the Company have remained suspended since September 

2016 and thereafter CIRP commenced on 5th April 2019. An appropriate 
amount towards the claim of Employees and workers (who became the 
members of CoC) including the retiral benefits have already been admitted as 
claim by the Resolution Professional. Since the commencement of CIRP and 
because of continued suspension of operation, the services of workmen were 
not availed. Hence, no further provisioning has been done for retiral benefits 
through actuarial valuations.

5.	 With reference to II(a)(5) the Resolution Professional’s view is:
        Refer to our reply in relation to point 2 & 4
6.	 With reference to II(a)(6) the Resolution Professional’s view is:
      As already disclosed in Note f) of SEBI Notes to Financial Statements, the 

Company is not in operation since September 2016 and a resolution plan 
submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of COC members) for restructuring of the 
company that has been approved by COC and filed with Honorable NCLT 
Kolkata for its approval which is reserved for order. since the order for approval 
of resolution plan is reserved and CIRP is ongoing, no adjustments in the 
carrying values of assets and liabilities or their presentation and classification, 
have been made.
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Independent Auditor's Report

(pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, as amended.

To The Resolution Professional/ Board ofDirectors of TAYO Rolls Limited

Report on theAudit ofthe Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

OL\-

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial Results ofTayo Rolls Limited (“the Company”) forthequarter ended 31st

March, 2024 and fortheperiod from 1stApril, 2023 to31st March, 2024 (“the statement”) being submitted by the Company pursuant

to requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended

including relevant circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time. This statement is the

responsibility of the Company's management and hasbeen approved by Resolution Professional. Our responsibility is to express

a conclusion on these financial statements based on ourreview.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us except forthe matters described in

Basis forQualified Opinion, the said standalone IND AS financial results:

i. are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations in this regard; and

ii. givea true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable

accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other accounting

principles generally accepted in India, of the net loss and other comprehensive income and other financial information of

the Companyforthequarter ended 31st March, 2024 aswell as the year-to-date results for the period from 1stApril, 2023

to31st March, 2024.

Basis forQualified Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) ofthe CompaniesAct,

2013 (the ‘Act’). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Standalone Financial Results section of our report. We are independent ofthe Company in accordance with the Code ofEthics

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit

of the standalone financial results under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the CodeofEthics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained

is sufficient and appropriate to providea basis forour qualified opinion on the standalone IND AS financial results.

We draw attention to the matters described below, the effect of which, individually or in aggregate, are material and pervasive to

the Standalone IndAS financial results and matters where we areunable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence. The

effects of matters so described which could be reasonably determined and quantified are given therein. Our opinion is qualified in

respect of these matters:

1. As required by Standards on Auditing (SA's) we could not carry out physical verification of inventories or fixed assets.

Accordingly, we could not obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence foradequacy and reasonableness ofmanagement

estimates forvalue ofvarious assets as recorded in the books as on 31st March, 2024. These matters can have material and

pervasive impact on the financial statement considering the fact that the company hasnotbeen in operation since September

2016. Consequential impact, if any, of matters described below, on recognition of certain components in financial statement

including its presentation/disclosure is currently not ascertainable. Certain such matters pertaining to major elements of

financial statements are mentioned below:

a. Pending CIRP, the company has notcarried out impairment testing of tangible assets in its entirety as at the balance

sheet date. Basis the information and explanation provided to us, RP had carried out the physical verification of assets

and also got the valuation done once through registered valuer on 4th July, 2019.

However, no accounting impact was given based on the outcome ofthe valuation and physical verification pending

CIRP.

b. Pending CIRP, the company has notcarried out physical verification of its assets in its entirety as at the balance

sheet date.

2. As required by IND AS-21- The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, foreign currency monetary amounts should be

reported using the closing rate. However, the financial liabilities of USD 3 lakh have notbeen reported using the closing rate.

3. As per IND AS -36- Impairment ofAssets, at each reporting date the entity should test whether there is any indication of any
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(pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)  

Regulations, 2015, as amended. 

To The Resolution Professional/ Board of Directors of TAYO Rolls Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial Results of Tayo Rolls Limited (“the Company”) for the quarter ended 31st 
March, 2024 and for the period from 1st April, 2023 to 31st March, 2024 (“the statement”) being submitted by the Company pursuant 
to requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended 
including relevant circulars issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) from time to time.  This statement is the 
responsibility of the Company’s management and has been approved by Resolution Professional. Our responsibility is to express 
a conclusion on these financial statements based on our review.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us except for the matters described in 
Basis for Qualified Opinion, the said standalone IND AS financial results: 

	 i.	 are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations in this regard; and

	ii.	 give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in the applicable 
accounting standards prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the net loss and other comprehensive income and other financial information of 
the Company for the quarter ended 31st March, 2024 as well as the year-to-date results for the period from 1st April, 2023 
to 31st March, 2024.

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (the ‘Act’). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of 
the Standalone Financial Results section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit 
of the standalone financial results under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion on the standalone IND AS financial results. 

We draw attention to the matters described below, the effect of which, individually or in aggregate, are material and pervasive to 
the Standalone Ind AS financial results and matters where we are unable to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence. The 
effects of matters so described which could be reasonably determined and quantified are given therein. Our opinion is qualified in 
respect of these matters:

1.	 As required by Standards on Auditing (SA’s) we could not carry out physical verification of inventories or fixed assets. 
Accordingly, we could not obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for adequacy and reasonableness of management 
estimates for value of various assets as recorded in the books as on 31st March, 2024. These matters can have material and 
pervasive impact on the financial statement considering the fact that the company has not been in operation since September 
2016. Consequential impact, if any, of matters described below, on recognition of certain components in financial statement 
including its presentation/disclosure is currently not ascertainable. Certain such matters pertaining to major elements of 
financial statements are mentioned below:

	 a.	 Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out impairment testing of tangible assets in its entirety as at the balance 
		  sheet date. Basis the information and explanation provided to us, RP had carried out the physical verification of assets 
		  and also got the valuation done once through registered valuer on 4th July, 2019.  

		  However, no accounting impact was given based on the outcome of the valuation and physical verification pending 
		  CIRP.

	 b.	 Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out physical verification of its assets in its entirety as at the balance 
		  sheet date.

2.	 As required by IND AS-21- The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, foreign currency monetary amounts should be 
reported using the closing rate. However, the financial liabilities of USD 3 lakh have not been reported using the closing rate.

3.	 As per IND AS -36- Impairment of Assets, at each reporting date the entity should test whether there is any indication of any 
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impairment of an asset. The accounting effect is to be given in the financial statements due to the impairment of the assets.

The company hasnotdone theimpairment testing during the period ended 31st March, 2024.

4. As per IND AS -19- Employee Benefits, the company is required to go through the actuarial valuation of defined benefit

obligation or fair value ofany related plan assets and the accounting effect of actuarial gains and losses is required to be given

in the financial statements. Since inception of CIRP, the company hasnotdone any actuarial valuation.

5. As per IND AS-107, 109, 32, 36, 16- Fair Value of assets and liabilities is to be determined at each reporting date or the

circumstances as mentioned in those standards. For the fair valuation of assets and liabilities, the fair value is to be calculated

as per IND AS -113-Fair Value measurement. Since inception of CIRP, the company hasnotdone thefair valuation of assets

and liabilities in the financial statements during the current financial year.

6. Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

We refer to Note f) of SEBI Notes to Financial Statements; the Company is not in operation since September 2016. The

net worth of the Company hasalready been eroded. A resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of COC members)

forrestructuring of the company and has been approved by COC and filed with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval

which is reserved fororder. However, unless the same is approved the position of the company will not undergoa drastic

favorable change. Considering, these factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate for preparing the IND AS

financial statements and the IND AS financial statements have been prepared other than going concern basis, however, no

adjustments have been made tothecarrying value of assets and liabilities and their presentation and classification in the

Balance Sheet pending CIRP.

Management's Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

These quarterly financial results as well as the year-to-date standalone financial results have been prepared on the basis of the

financial statements. The Company's Board of Directors/ Resolution Professional are responsible for the preparation of these

standalone financial results that givea true and fair view ofthe financial statements and other financial information in accordance

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for

safeguarding the assets ofthe Company andforpreventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application

of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation

and maintenance ofadequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness

ofthe accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial results that givea true and fair

view and arefree from material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit ofthe Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether thestandalone financial results asa whole arefree from material

misstatement, whether due tofraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is

a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detecta material

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected toinfluence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis ofthese standalone

financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout

the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess therisks of material misstatement ofthe standalone financial results, whether due tofraud or error, design

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide

a basis forour opinion. The risk of not detectinga material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than forone resulting

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible forexpressing our opinion on whether thecompany

hasadequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such

controls;

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made bytheBoard ofDirectors;

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the

audit evidence obtained, whethera material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
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impairment of an asset. The accounting effect is to be given in the financial statements due to the impairment of the assets. 
The company has not done the impairment testing during the period ended 31st March, 2024.

4.	 As per IND AS -19- Employee Benefits, the company is required to go through the actuarial valuation of defined benefit 
obligation or fair value of any related plan assets and the accounting effect of actuarial gains and losses is required to be given 
in the financial statements. Since inception of CIRP, the company has not done any actuarial valuation. 

5.	 As per IND AS-107, 109, 32, 36, 16- Fair Value of assets and liabilities is to be determined at each reporting date or the 
circumstances as mentioned in those standards. For the fair valuation of assets and liabilities, the fair value is to be calculated 
as per IND AS -113-Fair Value measurement. Since inception of CIRP, the company has not done the fair valuation of assets 
and liabilities in the financial statements during the current financial year.

6.	 Material uncertainty related to Going Concern

	 We refer to Note f) of SEBI Notes to Financial Statements; the Company is not in operation since September 2016. The 
net worth of the Company has already been eroded.  A resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of COC members) 
for restructuring of the company and has been approved by COC and filed with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval 
which is reserved for order. However, unless the same is approved the position of the company will not undergo a drastic 
favorable change. Considering, these factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate for preparing the IND AS 
financial statements and the IND AS financial statements have been prepared other than going concern basis, however, no 
adjustments have been made to the carrying value of assets and liabilities and their presentation and classification in the 
Balance Sheet pending CIRP. 

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results 

These quarterly financial results as well as the year-to-date standalone financial results have been prepared on the basis of the 
financial statements. The Company’s Board of Directors / Resolution Professional are responsible for the preparation of these 
standalone financial results that give a true and fair view of the financial statements and other financial information in accordance 
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. 

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial results that give a true and fair 
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial results as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone 
financial results. 

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 

• 	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial results, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control; 

• 	 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls;

• 	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by the Board of Directors; 

• 	 Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt 
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ontheCompany's ability to continue asa going concern. If we conclude thata material uncertainty exists, we are required to

draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial results or, if such disclosures are

inadequate, to modify our opinion.

Our conclusions are based on theaudit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or

conditions may cause theCompany tocease tocontinue asa going concern; and

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial results, including the disclosures, and

whether the standalone financial results represent the underlying transactions and events ina manner that achieves fair

presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit

and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance witha statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and tocommunicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear

on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We also provide those charged with governance witha statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements

regarding independence, and tocommunicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear

on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From thematters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were ofmost significance

in the audit of the standalone financial statements ofthe current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these

matters in our auditor's report, where applicable and unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,

in extremely rare circumstances, we determine thata matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse

consequences ofdoing so would reasonably be expected tooutweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis ofMatter

1. We draw attention to the accompanying Note a)tothe audited standalone financial results wherein it has been informed that

the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench admitted the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process

(CIRP) against the Company vide an order dated SthApril, 2019. Pursuant to this order, the powers oftheBoard ofDirectors

were suspended and were exercisable by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the

NCLTwhowasconsequently confirmed tocontinue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by theCommittee ofCreditors (COC).

Subsequently, in the fifth meeting ofCommittee ofCreditors (COC) it was unanimously decided to replace Mrs. Vinita Agrawal

by Mr.Anish Agarwal as RP which was confirmed by Hon'ble NCLT vide order dated 30th October, 2019.

2. We draw attention to the Note ‘b’ of the statement wherein it has been informed that Resolution Plan as approved by the

Committee of Creditors (COC) on Twelfth meeting of COC held on 21st February, 2020 and on 24th February, 2020 the

Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,

2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person) Regulation, 2016 was filed by the

Resolution Professional with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval which is reserved fororder. We further draw attention

to the same note wherein it has been stated that against the certificate proceedings by JSEB/JBVNL forrecovery of its dues,

the company had challenged the Order dated 12th December, 2015 oftheCertificate o1ficer before the Division Bench ofthe

Honorable Jharkhand High Court. On 18th December, 2015, the Division Bench ofHonorable Jharkhand High Court passed

its Order that “No Coercive Action” shall be initiated against the Company during pendency and final hearing of these Appeals

The said appeal which was filed in the year 2013 challenging the applicability of Power Tariff was dismissed by the Honorable

Jharkhand High Court by way of LPA on 7th of September, 2022.

3. We draw attention to Note ‘e’ of the statement wherein it is indicated that the Company hasaccumulated losses and its net

worth has been fully eroded. The Company hasincurreda net loss during the current quarter and year ended on 31st March,

2024 and theprevious year ended 31st March, 2023. The Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets as on 31st

March, 2024. These conditions along with other matters set forth in Note ‘e’, indicate the existence of material uncertainty that

may cast significant doubt about theCompany's ability to continue asa going concern. Accordingly, the financial results of the

Company have notbeen prepared ona going concern basis forthe reasons stated in the said note.

4. We draw attention to the accompanying point ii of Notes e)wherein it has been stated that since the inception of CIRP, the

income earned and expenses incurred have been excluded from the Financial Statement as these CIRP expenditures are

payable by Resolution Applicant as per Section 30 (2) or in case of liquidation the same will be paid from the liquidation

proceeds as per Section 53 ofthe IBC, 2016.

Further, the corporate debtor has been informed by the Tata Yodogawa Limited Provident Fund Trust that the Trust has

5555

on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to 
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial results or, if such disclosures are 
inadequate, to modify our opinion.

	 Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

• 	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial results, including the disclosures, and 
whether the standalone financial results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear 
on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance 
in the audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these 
matters in our auditor’s report, where applicable and unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, 
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Emphasis of Matter

1.	 We draw attention to the accompanying Note a) to the audited standalone financial results wherein it has been informed that 
the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench admitted the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP) against the Company vide an order dated 5th April, 2019. Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of Directors 
were suspended and were exercisable by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by the 
NCLT who was consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee of Creditors (COC). 
Subsequently, in the fifth meeting of Committee of Creditors (COC) it was unanimously decided to replace Mrs. Vinita Agrawal 
by Mr. Anish Agarwal as RP which was confirmed by Hon’ble NCLT vide order dated 30th October, 2019. 

2.	 We draw attention to the Note ‘b’ of the statement wherein it has been informed that Resolution Plan as approved by the 
Committee of Creditors (COC) on Twelfth meeting of COC held on 21st February, 2020 and on 24th February, 2020 the 
Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 
2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process For Corporate Person) Regulation, 2016 was filed by the 
Resolution Professional with Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval which is reserved for order. We further draw attention 
to the same note wherein it has been stated that against the certificate proceedings by JSEB/JBVNL for recovery of its dues, 
the company had challenged the Order dated 12th December, 2015 of the Certificate officer before the Division Bench of the 
Honorable Jharkhand High Court. On 18th December, 2015, the Division Bench of Honorable Jharkhand High Court passed 
its Order that “No Coercive Action” shall be initiated against the Company during pendency and final hearing of these Appeals 
The said appeal which was filed in the year 2013 challenging the applicability of Power Tariff was dismissed by the Honorable 
Jharkhand High Court by way of LPA on 7th of September, 2022.

3.	 We draw attention to Note ‘e’ of the statement wherein it is indicated that the Company has accumulated losses and its net 
worth has been fully eroded.  The Company has incurred a net loss during the current quarter and year ended on 31st March, 
2024 and the previous year ended 31st March, 2023. The Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets as on 31st 
March, 2024.  These conditions along with other matters set forth in Note ‘e’, indicate the existence of material uncertainty that 
may cast significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.  Accordingly, the financial results of the 
Company have not been prepared on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said note.

4.	 We draw attention to the accompanying point ii of Notes e) wherein it has been stated that since the inception of CIRP, the 
income earned and expenses incurred have been excluded from the Financial Statement as these CIRP expenditures are 
payable by Resolution Applicant as per Section 30 (2) or in case of liquidation the same will be paid from the liquidation 
proceeds as per Section 53 of the IBC, 2016. 

	 Further, the corporate debtor has been informed by the Tata Yodogawa Limited Provident Fund Trust that the Trust has 
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incurred accumulated losses ofZ 92,32,723/- forthe year ended 31st March 2019 to31st March 2023 due toshortfall in the

earnings of the trust. As per the byelaws oftheTrust, such loss/shortfall has to be paid by the Company toTrust. However, as

the CIRP hascommenced since Sth April 2019 and thecorresponding expense and liability of the said amount has notbeen

provided for in the books ofthe company, the said shortfall amount will be paid by the Resolution Applicant on approval of

Resolution Plan by Honorable NCLT, Kolkata which is reserved fororder.

We did not audit the financial statements ofthe Tata Yodogawa Provident Fund Trust and have relied on the information and

documents provided in relation to the accumulated losses figures as provided above.

5. We draw attention to the accompanying Notes g)and h)wherein it has been stated that the Audited Financial Statements ofthe

Companyforthefinancial years ended 31st March 2020, 31st March 2021, 31st March,2022 and 31st March,2023, the reports

of the Board ofDirectors/ Resolution Professional and the reports of the Auditors thereon were notapproved and passed with

the requisite majority of the shareholders in 52nd Annual General Meeting ofthe Company held on 25th September 2020, the

53rd Annual General Meeting ofthe Company held on 30th September 2021, 54th Annual General Meeting of the company

held on 30th Septemebr,2022 and 55th Annual General Meeting ofthe company held on 14th Septemebr,2023 through Video

Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual means (“OAVM; also we continue to be the auditors in terms of section 139(9) and

139(10) of the Companies Act2013 as no auditor was appointed or re-appointed in the said AGM. Ourre-appointment for

the financial year 2020-2021, 2021- 2022, 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 and our remuneration has been fixed by the Resolution

Professional, is in continuation of the resolution passed fortheappointment ofthe Statutory Auditors by CoC in its 6th CoC

Meeting held on 28th August, 2019.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those that, in our professional judgement, were ofmost significance in our audit of the standalone financial

statements ofthe current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as

a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not providea separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below tobe thekey audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1. Employee Cost and benefits

We draw attention to Notes 2.4, 2.9, 17, 25 and 31 relating to Employee Cost and Benefits wherein it has been stated that

as the Company is under CIRP, the employees/workers have become members ofCoC from SthApril, 2019, and their claims

have been appropriately admitted by Resolution Professional. The operations of the company have remained suspended and

due tovarious reasons explained in Note 2.2thefinancial statements forthe year ended 31 March, 2024, 31 March, 2023, 31

March, 2022 31 March, 2021 and 31 March,2020 have notbeen prepared on the basis of going concern and hence there is

no possibility for providing forwages after Sth April, 2019 which also cannot be included in CIRP cost after the commencement

ofCIRP under IBC, 2016.

2. Borrowing Cost

We draw attention to Notes 2.8, 16 and 26 relating to Borrowing Cost wherein it has been stated that interest chargeable in

normal course of business is 7.00% p.a. on the outstanding unsecured borrowings which represents amounts received and

repayable/ due to related parties of the Company. However, as theCIRP process has been initiated as referred in Note 2.2and

this amount due is of related party, its priority for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016 and is unlikely to

be paid in view of non-availability of assets ofthe company. Accordingly, no interest on the borrowing has been shown in the

financial statement forthe year ended 31st March, 2024.

Our audit procedures did not reveal any observations of any material differences.

3. Contingent Liability

We further draw attention to Note 33 oftheNotes totheFinancial Statements wherein it has been disclosed that the Company's

contingent liabilities towards the tax authorities, JSEB/JBVNL and others ceased to be contingent in nature after filing and

admission oftheir respective claims by Resolution Professional. After the admission oftheir claims, they became themembers

ofCommittee ofCreditors (CoC). However, no effects of such admitted claims have been given to in the financial statements

forthe year ended 31st March, 2024. Under thestandard auditing procedures, we verified the documents relating to this, as

provided to us and found the disclosure appropriate. Our audit procedures did not reveal any observations of any material

differences.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Company's Board of Directors/Resolution Professional is responsible for the other information. The other information

comprises the information included in the annual report, but does notinclude the standalone financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon.
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incurred accumulated losses of ₹ 92,32,723/- for the year ended 31st March 2019 to 31st March 2023 due to shortfall in the 
earnings of the trust. As per the byelaws of the Trust, such loss/shortfall has to be paid by the Company to Trust. However, as 
the CIRP has commenced since 5th April 2019 and the corresponding expense and liability of the said amount has not been 
provided for in the books of the company, the said shortfall amount will be paid by the Resolution Applicant on approval of 
Resolution Plan by Honorable NCLT, Kolkata which is reserved for order.

	 We did not audit the financial statements of the Tata Yodogawa Provident Fund Trust and have relied on the information and 
documents provided in relation to the accumulated losses figures as provided above.

5.	 We draw attention to the accompanying Notes g) and h) wherein it has been stated that the Audited Financial Statements of the 
Company for the financial years ended 31st March 2020, 31st March 2021, 31st March,2022 and 31st March,2023, the reports 
of the Board of Directors / Resolution Professional and the reports of the Auditors thereon were not approved and passed with 
the requisite majority of the shareholders in 52nd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25th September 2020, the 
53rd Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September 2021, 54th Annual General Meeting of the company 
held on 30th Septemebr,2022 and 55th Annual General Meeting of the company held on 14th Septemebr,2023 through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual means (“OAVM; also we continue to be the auditors in terms of section 139(9) and 
139(10) of the Companies Act 2013 as no auditor was  appointed or re- appointed in the said AGM. Our re-appointment for 
the financial year 2020-2021, 2021- 2022, 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 and our remuneration has been fixed by the Resolution 
Professional, is in continuation of the resolution passed for the appointment of the Statutory Auditors by CoC in its 6th CoC 
Meeting held on 28th August, 2019.

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone financial 
statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as 
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

1.	 Employee Cost and benefits

	 We draw attention to Notes 2.4, 2.9, 17, 25 and 31 relating to Employee Cost and Benefits wherein it has been stated that 
as the Company is under CIRP, the employees/workers have become members of CoC from 5th April, 2019, and their claims 
have been appropriately admitted by Resolution Professional. The operations of the company have remained suspended and 
due to various reasons explained in Note 2.2 the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024, 31 March, 2023, 31 
March, 2022  31 March, 2021 and 31 March,2020 have not been prepared on the basis of going concern and hence there is 
no possibility for providing for wages after 5th April, 2019 which also cannot be included in CIRP cost after the commencement 
of CIRP under IBC, 2016.

2.	 Borrowing Cost

	 We draw attention to Notes 2.8, 16 and 26 relating to Borrowing Cost wherein it has been stated that interest chargeable in 
normal course of business is 7.00% p.a. on the outstanding unsecured borrowings which represents amounts received and 
repayable / due to related parties of the Company. However, as the CIRP process has been initiated as referred in Note 2.2 and 
this amount due is of related party, its priority for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016 and is unlikely to 
be paid in view of non-availability of assets of the company. Accordingly, no interest on the borrowing has been shown in the 
financial statement for the year ended 31st March, 2024.

	 Our audit procedures did not reveal any observations of any material differences.

3.	 Contingent Liability

	 We further draw attention to Note 33 of the Notes to the Financial Statements wherein it has been disclosed that the Company’s 
contingent liabilities towards the tax authorities, JSEB/JBVNL and others ceased to be contingent in nature after filing and 
admission of their respective claims by Resolution Professional. After the admission of their claims, they became the members 
of Committee of Creditors (CoC). However, no effects of such admitted claims have been given to in the financial statements 
for the year ended 31st March, 2024.  Under the standard auditing procedures, we verified the documents relating to this, as 
provided to us and found the disclosure appropriate. Our audit procedures did not reveal any observations of any material 
differences.

	 Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

	 The Company’s Board of Directors/Resolution Professional is responsible for the other information. The other information 
comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. 
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Ouropinion on the standalone financial statements does notcover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read

the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone

financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the

work we have performed, we conclude that there isa material misstatement ofthis other information, we are required to report

that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard except the fact that the company hasnotfollowed many ofit's accounting

policies as stated under Note2 oftheNotes tothe Financial Statements, on account ofongoing CIRP, which have also been,

although, appropriately disclosed by the management.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance fortheStandalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors/Resolution Professional are responsible forthe preparation of these standalone financial

results that givea true and fair viewofthefinancial statements and otherfinancial information in accordance with the accounting

principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act

for safeguarding the assets of the Company andforpreventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and

application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,

implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the

accuracy and completeness oftheaccounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial

results that givea true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due tofraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible forassessing the Company's ability to continue

asa going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis ofaccounting

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company ortocease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board ofDirectors/Resolution Professional are also responsible foroverseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (the ‘Order’) issued by the Central Government in terms of

Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’,a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs3 and4 ofthe

Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which tothe best of our knowledge and belief were

necessary forthe purposes ofour audit;

b) in our opinion, proper books ofaccount as required by law have been kept by the Company sofarasit appears from our

examination of those books;

c) the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash

Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books ofaccount;

d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed

under Section 133 of the Act except as stated in Note 2.1tothestandalone financial statements and as reported under

the basis of qualified opinion;

e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors/resolution professional as on 31st March, 2024

taken on record by the Board ofDirectors/Resolution Professional, none ofthedirectors is disqualified as on 31st March,

2024 from being appointed asa director in terms of Section 164 (2)of the Act. However, because oftheongoing CIRP,

the powers oftheBoard ofDirectors are suspended as informed in Note 2.2tothestandalone financial statements.

with respect to the adequacy oftheinternal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company andtheoperating

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure ’B’;

g) with respect tothe other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 oftheCompanies (Audit

and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according tothe explanations given to us:

i) the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial

statements (Refer Note 33 tothestandalone financial statements);

ii) the Company didnothave any long-term contracts including derivative contracts forwhich there were any material

foreseeable losses (Refer Note 34.2 to the standalone financial statements); and

iii) The company has unpaid and unclaimed dividends and matured fixed deposit as at 31st March, 2024 totalling

5757

	 Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read 
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the 
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report 
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard except the fact that the company has not followed many of it’s accounting 
policies as stated under Note 2 of the Notes to the Financial Statements, on account of ongoing CIRP, which have also been, 
although, appropriately disclosed by the management.

	 Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

	 The Company’s Board of Directors/Resolution Professional are responsible for the preparation of these standalone financial 
results that give a true and fair view of the financial statements and other financial information in accordance with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India including the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

	 This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial 
results that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

	 In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

	 The Board of Directors/Resolution Professional are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.	 As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (the ‘Order’) issued by the Central Government in terms of 
Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘A’, a Statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the 
Order, to the extent applicable. 

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	 we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
		 necessary for the purposes of our audit;

	 b)	 in our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
		 examination of those books;

	 c)	 the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash 
		 Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

	 d)	 in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed 
		 under Section 133 of the Act except as stated in Note 2.1 to the standalone financial statements and as reported under 
		 the basis of qualified opinion; 

	 e)	 on the basis of the written representations received from the directors/resolution professional as on 31st March, 2024 
		 taken on record by the Board of Directors/Resolution Professional, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 
		 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. However, because of the ongoing CIRP, 
		 the powers of the Board of Directors are suspended as informed in Note 2.2 to the standalone financial statements.

	 f)	 with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the operating 
		  effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in Annexure ‘B’; 

g)	 with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

		  i)	 the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its standalone financial 
			   statements (Refer Note 33 to the standalone financial statements); 

		  ii)	 the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
			   foreseeable losses (Refer Note 34.2 to the standalone financial statements); and 

		  iii)	 The company has unpaid and unclaimed dividends and matured fixed deposit as at 31st March, 2024 totalling 
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Other Matters

OU-’

toZ 0.58 lakhs as shown in the table below, which is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and

Protection Fund. As informed, the same hasnotbeen transferred by the company on account of some disputes.

(Refer Notes 12 and 34.3 tothe standalone financial statements).

Particulars

Unpaid dividends

Unclaimed dividends

Unpaid matured fixed deposits

Total

Amount in(')lakh

0.17

0.30

0.11

0.58

(a)iv. The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the

note 2.24 to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in the

aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium orany

other sources or kind of funds) by the Company toorin any other person or entity, including foreign entity

(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,

whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever

by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material

either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Companyfrom any person or entity, including

foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the

Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons orentities identified in any manner

whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security

or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on theaudit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances,

nothing has come toournotice that has caused us tobelieve that the representations under sub-clause (i) and

(ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)and (b)above, contain any material misstatement.

v. As the company is undergoing CIRP Process and noting losses in current year and previous years, hence no

dividend has been declared by the company.

VI. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 formaintaining books ofaccount using accounting

software which hasa feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from

April 1, 2023, and the same hasoperated during the year.

1. The annual standalone IND AS financial results include the results for the quarter ended 31st March, 2024 being the balancing

figure between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published unaudited figures up to the third quarter of

the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us.

2. The standalone quarterly and annual financial results dealt with by this report has been prepared forthe express purpose of

filing with stock exchanges.

ForR U B S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 014560C

Anushka Kriti Singh

Partner

Membership No. 316808

UDIN: 24316808BKHKGN6735

Ranchi, 23rd May, 2024
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			   to ₹ 0.58 lakhs as shown in the table below, which is required to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
			   Protection Fund. As informed, the same has not been transferred by the company on account of some disputes. 
			   (Refer Notes 12 and 34.3 to the standalone financial statements).

			 

Particulars Amount in (₹) lakh
Unpaid dividends 0.17
Unclaimed dividends 0.30
Unpaid matured fixed deposits 0.11
Total 0.58

		  iv. 	 (a) 	 The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
				    note 2.24 to the Standalone Financial Statements, no funds (which are material either individually or in the 
				    aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
				    other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity 
				    (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
				    whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
				    by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
				    behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (b) 	 The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds (which are material 
				    either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the Company from any person or entity, including 
				    foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the 
				    Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
				    whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security 
				    or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

			   (c) 	 Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
				    nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
				    (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material misstatement.

		  v. 	 As  the company is undergoing CIRP Process and noting losses in current year and previous years, hence no 
			   dividend has been declared by the company. 

		  vi. 	 Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account using accounting 
			   software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from 
			   April 1, 2023, and the same has operated during the year .

Other Matters 

1.	 The annual standalone IND AS financial results include the results for the quarter ended 31st March, 2024 being the balancing 
figure between audited figures in respect of the full financial year and the published unaudited figures up to the third quarter of 
the current financial year which were subject to limited review by us. 

2.	 The standalone quarterly and annual financial results dealt with by this report has been prepared for the express purpose of 
filing with stock exchanges.

For R U B S & CO.                                     
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 014560C

Anushka Kriti Singh		  
Partner 
Membership No. 316808 
UDIN: 24316808BKHKGN6735 
Ranchi, 23rd May, 2024
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Annexure ‘A’totheIndependent Auditor's Report

OL\-

(Annexure tothe Independent Auditor's Report tothe Members ofTayo Rolls Limited referred to in paragraph1 of Report on Other

Legal and Regulatory Requirements ofour report of even date)

(i) a) (A) The Company hasmaintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation

of Property, Plant& Equipments.

(B) The book value ofthe Intangible Assets as on the reporting date is NIL.

b) The Company hasnotdone physical verification of its Property, Plant& Equipment during the financial year. However,

the Resolution Professional had carried out the physical verification of assets and also got the valuation done once

through Registered IBBI's valuer as per IBC, 2016 on 4thJuly, 2019. However, no accounting impact was given in the

financial statements based on theoutcome ofthevaluation and physical verification of fixed assets. (Refer to the basis

of qualified opinion of our main report.).

c) According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds ofimmovable properties are in the name of

theCompany. However, as the company is under CIRP, the Resolution Professional communicated vide letter dated

22.11.2019 to the Key Managerial Personnel to collect the information of the Property, Plant& Equipments of the

company anddirected to handover all the movable and immovable assets in the possession ofResolution Professional.

The Resolution Professional could not take the possession ofthe factory premises as the factory of the company has

noseparate access and thesame is surrounded by Tata Growth Shop (TGS)whose security is managed byTATASteel

Limited. The RP has physical possession ofonly Guest House and Registered office of the company which is in Kolkata

and Jamshedpur respectively.

(d) The Company hasnotrevalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets

during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending

against the Company forholding benami property under theProhibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as

amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45of1988)) and Rules made thereunder,

and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company hasappropriately disclosed the details in its

standalone financial statements does notarise.

(ii) (a) The Company hasnotdone physical verification of its inventory during the financial year. However, the Resolution

Professional had carried out the physical verification of assets and also got the valuation done once through

Registered IBBI's valuer as per IBC, 2016 on 4thJuly, 2019. However, no accounting impact was given in the

financial statements based on theoutcome ofthevaluation and physical verification of fixed assets. (Refer to the

basis of qualified opinion of our main report.)

(b) The Company hasnotbeen sanctioned any working capital limits at any points of time during the year, from

banks orfinancial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b)

of the Order is not applicable.

(iii) The Company hasnotmade anyinvestments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and has not granted

unsecured loans toother parties, during the year. Accordingly, the Paragraph 3(iii) (a) to (f} of the Order is not applicable

to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company hasnotgranted any loan or given any

guarantees or provided any security to the parties covered under Section 185 ofthe Act. Further, the Company hasnot

made anyinvestment or given any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security within the meaning ofSection

186 ofthe Act. Accordingly, the Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company hasnotaccepted any deposits from the public during the year to which the directives issued by the

Reserve Bank ofIndia and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules

framed thereunder apply.

The company hasaccepted deposits in past of which7 0.11 lakh has matured butthe same hasnotbeen paid.
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Annexure ‘A’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Annexure to the Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Tayo Rolls Limited referred to in paragraph 1 of Report on Other 
Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date)

(i)    a) 	 (A) 	 The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
			   of Property, Plant & Equipments.

	          (B) 	 The book value of the Intangible Assets as on the reporting date is NIL.

	 b) 	 The Company has not done physical verification of its Property, Plant & Equipment during the financial year. However, 
the Resolution Professional had carried out the physical verification of assets and also got the valuation done once 
through Registered IBBI’s valuer as per IBC, 2016 on 4th July, 2019. However, no accounting impact was given in the 
financial statements based on the outcome of the valuation and physical verification of fixed assets. (Refer to the basis 
of qualified opinion of our main report.).

	 c) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the title deeds of immovable properties are in the name of 
the Company. However, as the company is under CIRP, the Resolution Professional communicated vide letter dated 
22.11.2019 to the Key Managerial Personnel to collect the information of the Property, Plant & Equipments of the 
company and directed to handover all the movable and immovable assets in the possession of Resolution Professional. 
The Resolution Professional could not take the possession of the factory premises as the factory of the company has 
no separate access and the same is surrounded by Tata Growth Shop (TGS) whose security is managed by TATA Steel 
Limited. The RP has physical possession of only Guest House and Registered office of the company which is in Kolkata 
and Jamshedpur respectively. 

	 (d) 	 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-use assets) or intangible assets 
during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (e) 	 Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated on or are pending 
against the Company for holding benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) (formerly the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988)) and Rules made thereunder, 
and therefore the question of our commenting on whether the Company has appropriately disclosed the details in its 
standalone financial statements does not arise.

	 (ii)   	 (a)	 The Company has not done physical verification of its inventory during the financial year. However, the Resolution 
		 Professional had carried out the physical verification of assets and also got the valuation done once through 
		 Registered IBBI’s valuer as per IBC, 2016 on 4th July, 2019. However, no accounting impact was given in the 
		 financial statements based on the outcome of the valuation and physical verification of fixed assets. (Refer to the 
		 basis of qualified opinion of our main report.)

		  (b) 	 The Company has not been sanctioned any working capital limits at any points of time during the year, from 
		 banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)(b) 
		 of the Order is not applicable.

	 (iii)   	 The Company has not made any investments in, companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships, and has not granted 
unsecured loans to other parties, during the year. Accordingly, the Paragraph 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable 
to the Company. 

	 (iv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan or given any 
guarantees or provided any security to the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act. Further, the Company has not 
made any investment or given any loan or given any guarantee or provided any security within the meaning of Section 
186 of the Act. Accordingly, the Paragraph 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (v) 	 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year to which the directives issued by the 
Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 and other relevant provisions of the Act and the rules 
framed thereunder apply. 

		  The company has accepted deposits in past of which ₹ 0.11 lakh has matured but the same has not been paid.
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(vi) The maintenance ofcost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act. As

informed to us, the Company is not required to maintain the cost records during the financial year ended 31st March,

2024. Although, the Company were required to do so in the earlier periods which being out of our scope and period,

have notbeen examined.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing

undisputed statutory dues including, income tax, duty of customs, goods and services tax except under RCM

payment method foradvocate fees, cess and any other statutory dues except provident fund, employees' state

insurance which have been suspended due tosuspension of operations and ongoing CIRP (Refer Note1 and

2.2tothestandalone financial statements and our observations under paragraph Key Matter ofour main report),

where applicable, to the appropriate authorities.

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees'

State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty ofCustom, duty of Excise, ValueAdded Tax, Cess and

other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31,2024 fora period of more than sixmonths from the date

they became payable.

b) As on Sth April 2019 (i.e. date of initiation of CIRP), the company had contingent liabilities towards Excise

& Service Tax, Sales Tax and Income Tax departments. After the date ofcommencement ofCorporate Insolvency

Resolution Process (CIRP), Excise& Service tax and Sales Tax department had filed their claims and on

admission oftheclaim amount they becamethemembers ofCOC. Such statutory dues which were notdeposited

on account ofdispute and the amount involved and the forum where dispute were pending (Refer Note 33 tothe

standalone financial statements) and their status thereof is as below:

Particulars Appealed at

Excise and Asst. Commissioner&

Service Tax Commissioner Appeals

Jharkhand Commercial

Sales Tax Taxes Tribunal& Jt.

Commissioner (Appeals)

Income Tax

Total

Commissioner (Appeals)

& High Court

Amount

357.18

Admitted

amount under

CIRP after

Claim

Remarks

281.38
These contingent liabilities existed

on the date ofcommencement of

CIRP. However, they became COC

members after filing and admitting

803.14 760.31 their claim. Hence, they ceased to

be contingent liability.

These contingent liabilities existed

on the date ofcommencement of

CIRP. However, it did not file any

180.61 - claim upon commencement of

CIRP. Hence, the liability became

untenable and hence ceased tobe

contingent liability.

1,340.93 1,041.69

There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as

income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

(ix) (a) Since the Company is under CIRP, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company hasnotbeen declared wilful defaulter by any bank orfinancial institution or government or any

government authority.

(c) The Company hasnottaken any term loan during the year, hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is

not applicable.
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	 (vi)	 The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under Section 148(1) of the Act. As 
informed to us, the Company is not required to maintain the cost records during the financial year ended 31st March, 
2024. Although, the Company were required to do so in the earlier periods which being out of our scope and period, 
have not been examined.

	 (vii) 	 a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is generally regular in depositing 
		 undisputed statutory dues including, income tax, duty of customs, goods and services tax except under RCM 
		 payment method for advocate fees, cess and any other statutory dues except provident fund, employees’ state 
		 insurance which have been suspended due to suspension of operations and ongoing CIRP (Refer Note 1 and 
		 2.2 to the standalone financial statements and our observations under paragraph Key Matter of our main report), 
		 where applicable, to the appropriate authorities. 

				   There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ 
		 State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and 
		 other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date 
		 they became payable.

		  b) 	 As on 5th April 2019 (i.e. date of initiation of CIRP), the company had contingent liabilities towards Excise 
		 & Service Tax, Sales Tax and Income Tax departments. After the date of commencement of Corporate Insolvency 
		 Resolution Process (CIRP), Excise & Service tax and Sales Tax department had filed their claims and on 
		 admission of the claim amount they became the members of COC. Such statutory dues which were not deposited 
		 on account of dispute and the amount involved and the forum where dispute were pending (Refer Note 33 to the 
		 standalone financial statements) and their status thereof is as below:

	 (viii) 	 There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or disclosed as 
		  income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

	 (ix)     (a) 	 Since the Company is under CIRP, the reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

		  (b) 	 The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any 
		 government authority.

		  (c) 	 The Company has not taken any term loan during the year, hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is 
		 not applicable.

Particulars Appealed at Amount

Admitted 
amount under 

CIRP after 
Claim 

Remarks

Excise and 
Service Tax

Asst. Commissioner & 
Commissioner Appeals   357.18 281.38

These contingent liabilities existed 
on the date of commencement of 
CIRP. However, they became COC 
members after filing and admitting 
their claim. Hence, they ceased to 
be contingent liability.

Sales Tax
Jharkhand Commercial 
Taxes Tribunal & Jt. 
Commissioner (Appeals)

803.14 760.31

Income Tax Commissioner (Appeals) 
& High Court 180.61 -

These contingent liabilities existed 
on the date of commencement of 
CIRP. However, it did not file any 
claim upon commencement of 
CIRP. Hence, the liability became 
untenable and hence ceased to be 
contingent liability.

Total   1,340.93 1,041.69  
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(d) On an overall examination ofthe financial statements ofthe Company, it is found that no funds were raised on

short-term basis and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(d) is not applicable.

(e) As the Company does nothave any subsidiaries, reporting on clause 3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

(f} The Company hasnotraised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f} of the Order is not

applicable.

a) The Companyhasnotraised moneys bywayofinitial public offerorfurther public offer (including debt instruments)

during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has notmade any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or

convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not

applicable..

(xi) (a) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance

with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations

given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company orontheCompany,

noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by theManagement.

(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as

prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government,

during the year and upto the date ofthis report.

(c) During the course ofour examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with

the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according tothe information and explanations given to us,

the Company has notreceived whistle-blower complaints during the year, hence clause 3(xi)(c) will not be

applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the

Paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According tothe information and explanations given to us, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance

with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The relevant details of such related party transactions have

been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. (Refer Note 32 to the standalone financial

statements)

(XIV) According to the information and explanations given to us, since the Company is under CIRP and theoperations of

the company have remained suspended it does nothave an Internal audit system. Hence clause 3(xiv) (a)& (b) is not

applicable

(XV) According tothe information and explanations given to us,the Company hasnotentered into any non-cash transactions

with directors or persons connected with him during the year. Accordingly, the Paragraph3 (xv) of the Order is not

applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under

Section 45-IA ofthe Reserve Bank ofIndia Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the

Order is not applicable.

(b) In our opinion and as per the information provided to us, there is no core investment company within the Group

(asdefined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting

under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

(c) The Company is nota Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made bytheReserve Bank

ofIndia. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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		  (d)	 On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, it is found that  no funds were raised on 
		 short-term basis and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(d) is not applicable.

		  (e) 	 As the Company does not have any subsidiaries, reporting on clause  3(ix)(e) is not applicable.

		  (f) 	 The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not 
		 applicable.

	 (x)     a) 	 The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments) 
		 during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

		  (b) 	 During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
		 convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not 
		 applicable.. 

	 (xi)  	 (a) 	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance 
		 with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations 
		 given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or on the Company, 
		 noticed or reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

			  (b) 	 No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 as 
		 prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
		 during the year and upto the date of this report.

			  (c)	 During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in accordance with 
		 the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, 
		 the Company has not received whistle-blower complaints during the year, hence clause 3(xi)(c) will not be 
		 applicable. 

	 (xii)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Accordingly, the 
Paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (xiii)  	According to the information and explanations given to us, all the transactions with the related parties are in compliance 
with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The relevant details of such related party transactions have 
been disclosed in the standalone financial statements, etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 
24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act. (Refer Note 32 to the standalone financial 
statements)

	 (xiv)	 According to the information and explanations given to us, since the Company is under CIRP and the operations of 
the company have remained suspended it does not have an Internal audit system. Hence clause 3(xiv) (a) & (b) is not 
applicable 

	  (xv)   According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 
with directors or persons connected with him during the year. Accordingly, the Paragraph 3 (xv) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company. 

	 (xvi)   (a) 	 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered under 
		 Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the 
		 Order is not applicable.

		  (b) 	 In our opinion and as per the information provided to us, there is no core investment company within the Group 
		 (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and accordingly reporting 
		 under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. 

		  (c) 	 The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank 
		 of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
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(d) Based on theinformation and explanations provided by the management oftheCompany, theGroup has six

CICs as part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the

management is accurate and complete.

(xvii) The Company has notincurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately

preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

(XIX) According to the information and explanations given to us,Application forApproval of Resolution Plan under relevant

provisions was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honourable NCLT Kolkata forits approval which is reserved for

order; which brings material uncertainty on the going concern ofthe Company. Since going concern assumption is not

appropriate forpreparing the IND AS financial statements and hence they have been prepared other than going concern

basis. Furthermore, the company had contingent liabilities towards Excise& Service Tax, Sales Tax and Income Tax

departments which after the date of commencement ofCIRP were no longer Contingent as their claims were admitted

after they became members ofCoC. However, their effects were notconsidered in the Financial Statements. Also, the

Company hasan outstanding unsecured borrowing of Z6700 lakhs repayable/ due to related party@ 7% per annum

which is unlikely to be paid in view ofthe inadequate availability of the assets of the Company. The networth of the

Company hasalready been eroded and the Company's current liabilities exceeded its current assets.

(xx) As the company is under CIRP andtheoperations are suspended, hence thereporting under Clause 3(xx)(a) and (b)

of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xxi) The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements.

Accordingly, no comment in respect ofthe said clause has been included in this report.

ForR U B S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 014560C

Anushka Kriti Singh

Partner

Membership No. 316808

UDIN: 24316808BKHKGN6735

Ranchi, 23rd May, 2024
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		  (d) 	 Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the Group has six 
		 CICs as part of the Group. We have not, however, separately evaluated whether the information provided by the 
		 management is accurate and complete.

	 (xvii) 	The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
	preceding financial year.

	 (xviii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

	 (xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us, Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under relevant 
provisions was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honourable NCLT Kolkata for its approval which is reserved for 
order; which brings material uncertainty on the going concern of the Company. Since going concern assumption is not 
appropriate for preparing the IND AS financial statements and hence they have been prepared other than going concern 
basis. Furthermore, the company had contingent liabilities towards Excise & Service Tax, Sales Tax and Income Tax 
departments which after the date of commencement of CIRP were no longer Contingent as their claims were admitted 
after they became members of CoC. However, their effects were not considered in the Financial Statements. Also, the 
Company has an outstanding unsecured borrowing of ₹6700 lakhs repayable / due to related party @ 7% per annum 
which is unlikely to be paid in view of the inadequate availability of the assets of the Company. The net worth of the 
Company has already been eroded and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its current assets.

	 (xx)  	 As the company is under CIRP and the operations are suspended, hence the reporting under Clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) 
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

	 (xxi) 	 The reporting under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial statements. 
Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For R U B S & CO. 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 014560C	

Anushka Kriti Singh		   
Partner 
Membership No. 316808 
UDIN: 24316808BKHKGN6735 
Ranchi, 23rd May, 2024
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Annexure ‘B’totheIndependent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2(f} under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements ofour report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tayo Rolls Limited (the ‘Company’) as of31st March, 2024

in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements ofthe Company fortheyear ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible forestablishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on theinternal control

over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components ofinternal control stated in the

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate

internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including

adherence tocompany's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy

and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the

Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’).

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on ouraudit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed tobe

prescribed under Section 143(10) ofthe Act, to the extent applicable, to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an

audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial

controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy ofthe internal financial controls system

over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included

obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk thata material weakness exists,

and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on theassessed risk. The procedures

selected depend on theauditor's judgement, including the assessment ofthe risks of material misstatement of the standalone

financial statements, whether due tofraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate

to providea basis forour audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning ofInternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting isa process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements forexternal purposes in accordance with

generally accepted accounting principles.A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and

procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance ofrecords that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions

and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts

and expenditures ofthe company arebeing made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors/Resolution

Professional of the company; and (3)provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could havea material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because ofthe inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or

improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,

projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the

internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because ofchanges in conditions, or that the degree of

compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, to the best ofour information and according to the explanations given to us, read together with the basis of qualified

report under our main report to the standalone financial statements and our observations under paragraph Emphasis ofMatter of

our main report, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting

and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31st March, 2024, based on theinternal
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Annexure ‘B’ to the Independent Auditor’s Report  
(Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements of our report of even date)  

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Section 143(3) (i) of the Companies Act, 2013 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tayo Rolls Limited (the ‘Company’) as of 31st March, 2024 
in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control 
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the ‘Guidance Note’) issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’). 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be 
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable, to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, 
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that: (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to 
permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and Directors/Resolution 
Professional of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion 

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, read together with the basis of qualified 
report under our main report to the standalone financial statements and our observations under paragraph Emphasis of Matter of 
our main report, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting 
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as of 31st March, 2024, based on the internal 
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control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the ongoing CIRPandtheessential components of

internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI except on the following matters:

a. Pending CIRP, the company hasnotcarried out impairment testing of tangible assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet

date. Basis the information and explanation provided to us, RP had carried out the physical verification of assets and also

got the valuation done once through Registered IBBI's valuer as per IBC, 2016 on 4thJuly, 2019.

However, no accounting impact was given based on theoutcome ofthevaluation and physical verification pending CIRP.

b. Pending CIRP, the company hasnotcarried out physical verification of its assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet date.

c. As per IND AS-107, 109, 32, 36, 16- Fair Value of assets and liabilities is to be determined at each reporting date or the

circumstances as mentioned in those standards. For the fair valuation of assets and liabilities, the fair value is to be calculated

as per IND AS -113-Fair Value measurement. Since inception of CIRP, the company hasnotdone thefair valuation of assets

and liabilities in the financial statements during the current financial year.
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ForR U B S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 014560C

By thehands of

Anushka Kriti Singh

Partner

Membership No. 316808

UDIN: 24316808BKHKGN6735

Ranchi, 23rd May, 2024
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control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the ongoing CIRP and the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI except on the following matters:

a.	 Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out impairment testing of tangible assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet 
	 date. Basis the information and explanation provided to us, RP had carried out the physical verification of assets and also 
	 got the valuation done once through Registered IBBI’s valuer as per IBC, 2016 on 4th July, 2019.   

      	 However, no accounting impact was given based on the outcome of the valuation and physical verification pending CIRP.

b.	 Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out physical verification of its assets in its entirety as at the balance sheet date.

c.	 As per IND AS-107, 109, 32, 36, 16- Fair Value of assets and liabilities is to be determined at each reporting date or the 
	 circumstances as mentioned in those standards. For the fair valuation of assets and liabilities, the fair value is to be calculated 
	 as per IND AS -113-Fair Value measurement. Since inception of CIRP, the company has not done the fair valuation of assets 
	 and liabilities in the financial statements during the current financial year.

For R U B S & CO.                                     
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 014560C 
By the hands of

Anushka Kriti Singh 
Partner 

Membership No. 316808 
UDIN: 24316808BKHKGN6735 

Ranchi, 23rd May, 2024
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ASSETS

Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment

(b) Capital work-in-progress

(c) Other intangible assets

(d) Financial assets

(i) Investments:

Other investments

ii) Other financial assets

(e) Non-current tax assets

(f} Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

BALANCE SHEETAS AT 31MARCH, 2024

Current assets

(a) Inventories

(b) Financial assets

(i) Trade receivables

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

(iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents

(iv) Other financial assets

(c) Other current assets

Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITYAND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a) Equity share capital

(b) Other equity

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

Total non-current liabilities

Notes

65

3

3

4

5

6

8

7

9

10

11

12

6

7

13

14

15

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024

2,180.37

0.09

10.80

322.05

190.30

2,703.61

763.57

0.98

0.46

63.25

776.66

1,604.93

4,308.54

1,026.13

(49,769.71)

(48,743.58)

33,296.67

33,296.67

OL\-

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2023

2,510.79

0.09

10.80

321.54

190.35

3,033.57

763.57

1.06

0.46

62.46

777.90

1,605.45

4,639.02

1,026.13

(49,439.24)

(48,413.11)

33,296.67

33,296.67

65

 BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2024

 Rupees in lakhs  Rupees in lakhs 
 ASSETS  Notes  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

 Non-current assets 
 (a) Property, plant and equipment 3               2,180.37                    2,510.79 
 (b) Capital work-in-progress 3                         -                                -   
 (c) Other intangible assets 4                         -                                -   

 (d) Financial assets
(i) Investments:

 Other investments 5                     0.09                           0.09 
ii) Other financial assets 6                    10.80                         10.80 

 (e) Non-current tax assets 8                  322.05                       321.54 
 (f) Other non-current assets 7                  190.30                       190.35 
 Total non-current assets               2,703.61                    3,033.57 

 Current assets 
 (a) Inventories 9                  763.57                       763.57 
 (b) Financial assets

 (i) Trade receivables 10                         -                                -   
 (ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11                     0.98                           1.06 
 (iii) Bank balances other than cash and cash 

equivalents
12                     0.46                           0.46 

 (iv) Other financial assets 6                    63.25                         62.46 
 (c) Other current assets 7                  776.66                       777.90 
 Total current assets               1,604.93                    1,605.45 

 Total assets               4,308.54                    4,639.02 

 EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  

 Equity 
 (a)  Equity share capital 13               1,026.13                    1,026.13 
 (b)  Other equity 14            (49,769.71)                 (49,439.24)
 Total equity            (48,743.58)                 (48,413.11)

 Liabilities 

 Non-current liabilities 
 (a) Financial liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 15             33,296.67                   33,296.67 

 Total non-current liabilities             33,296.67                   33,296.67 
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Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities

(i) Borrowings

(ii) Trade payables

(A)Total outstanding dues ofmicro

enterprises and small enterprises

(B) Total outstanding dues ofcreditors other

than micro enterprises and small enterprises

(iii) Other financial liabilities

(b) Provisions

(c) Current tax liabilities (net)

(d) Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

See accompanying notes to the

financial statements

In terms ofour report attached

For R U B S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 014560C

By thehand of

CA ANUSHKA KRITI SINGH

Partner

(Membership No. 316808)

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd May, 2024

16

18

19

17

8

20

1-38

66

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024

6,700.00

3,272.01

4,967.40

1,733.52

123.08

2,959.45

19,755.46

53,052.13

4,308.55

OU-’

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2023

6,700.00

3,272.01

4,967.40

1,733.52

123.08

2,959.45

19,755.46

53,052.13

4,639.02

CA ANISH AGARWAL

Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256

SURESH PADMANABHAN

Deputy Chief Financial officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

HARPREET KAURBHAMRA

Company Secretary& Compliance Officer

(Signed as advised by RP)
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In terms of our report attached                                  

For  R  U  B  S  &  CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 014560C
By the hand of 

CA ANISH AGARWAL
Resolution Professional 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256

CA ANUSHKA KRITI SINGH	  
Partner
(Membership No. 316808)

Place : Ranchi
Date : 23rd May, 2024

SURESH PADMANABHAN
Deputy Chief Financial officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

HARPREET KAUR BHAMRA
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

 Rupees in lakhs  Rupees in lakhs
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

 Current liabilities 
 (a)  Financial liabilities

 (i) Borrowings 16               6,700.00                    6,700.00 
 (ii) Trade payables 18

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro 
enterprises and small enterprises

                        -                                -   

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other 
than micro enterprises and small enterprises

              3,272.01                    3,272.01 

 (iii) Other financial liabilities 19               4,967.40                    4,967.40 

 (b)  Provisions 17               1,733.52                    1,733.52 
 (c)  Current tax liabilities (net) 8                  123.08                       123.08 
 (d)  Other current liabilities 20               2,959.45                    2,959.45 
 Total current liabilities             19,755.46                   19,755.46 

 Total liabilities             53,052.13                   53,052.13 

 Total equity and liabilities               4,308.55                    4,639.02 
 See accompanying notes to the  1-38 
 financial statements
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V

VI

VII

VIII

IX

x

Xl

STATEMENT OF PROFITAND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

Revenue from operations

Other income

Total income (I+ II)

IV Expenses

(a) Cost ofmaterials consumed

(b)
Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in

trade and work in progress

(c) Employee benefits expense

(d) Finance costs

(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense

(f} Power and fuel

(g) Other expenses

Total expenses (IV)

Loss before exceptional items and tax (III - IV)

Exceptional items

Loss before tax (V - VI)

Tax expense:

Loss fortheyear (VII - VIII)

Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss

Total other comprehensive income forthequarter

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) forthe year (IX+ X)

Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each):

(1) Basic

(2) Diluted

See accompanying notes tothe financial statements

In terms ofour report attached

For R U B S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 014560C

By thehand of

CA ANUSHKA KRITI SINGH

Partner

(Membership No. 316808)

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd May, 2024

67

Notes

21

22

23 -

24 -

25

26

27

28

36

30

1-38
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Rupees in lakhs Rupees in lakhs

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

330.41

0.06

330.47

(330.47)

(330.47)

(330.47)

(330.47)

(3.22)

(3.22)

344.30

0.06

344.36

(344.36)

(344.36)

(344.36)

(344.36)

(3.36)

(3.36)

CA ANISH AGARWAL

Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256

SURESH PADMANABHAN

Deputy Chief Financial officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

HARPREET KAUR BHAMRA

Company Secretary& Compliance Officer

(Signed as advised by RP)
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In terms of our report attached                                  

For  R  U  B  S  &  CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 014560C
By the hand of 

CA ANISH AGARWAL
Resolution Professional 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256

CA ANUSHKA KRITI SINGH	  
Partner
(Membership No. 316808)

Place : Ranchi
Date : 23rd May, 2024

SURESH PADMANABHAN
Deputy Chief Financial officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

HARPREET KAUR BHAMRA
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2024

Rupees in lakhs  Rupees in lakhs 

Notes  Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 Year ended 
31.03.2023 

I Revenue from operations 21                -                    -   
II Other income 22                -                    -   
III Total income (I + II)                -                    -   

               -   
IV Expenses                -   

(a) Cost of materials consumed 23                -                    -   

(b) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in 
trade and work in progress 24                -                    -   

(c) Employee benefits expense 25                -                    -   
(d) Finance costs 26                -                    -   
(e) Depreciation and amortisation expense 27         330.41           344.30 
(f) Power and fuel                -                    -   

               -   
(g) Other expenses 28             0.06              0.06 
Total expenses (IV)         330.47           344.36 

V Loss before exceptional items and tax (III - IV)        (330.47)         (344.36)
VI Exceptional items 36                  -   
VII Loss before tax (V - VI)        (330.47)         (344.36)
VIII Tax expense:                  -   
IX Loss for the year (VII - VIII)        (330.47)         (344.36)
X Other comprehensive income

Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss                -                    -   
Total other comprehensive income for the quarter                -                    -   

XI Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the year (IX + X)        (330.47)         (344.36)
Earnings per equity share (face value of Rs. 10 each):
(1) Basic 30           (3.22)             (3.36)
(2) Diluted           (3.22)             (3.36)

 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements  1-38 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FORTHEYEAR ENDED 31MARCH, 2024

A. Cash flow from operating activities:

Loss fortheperiod

Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss on sale/write off of tangible assets

Finance costs recognised in profit or loss

Interest Income recognised in statement in profit and loss

Income recognised in profit and loss forwrite back ofliabilities no

longer required

Prior period adjustment

Expenses recognised in profit and loss for exceptional items

Movements inworking capital

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in inventories

Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit assets/obligations

Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables

Cash used inoperations

Income taxes (paid)/refund

Net cash used inoperating activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing activities:

Payments forproperty, plant and equipment

Interest received

Net cash flow used ininvesting activities

C. Cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds from issue of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

Proceeds from related parties

Proceeds/ (repayment) of current borrowings (net)

Repayment ofnon-current borrowings

Interest and other borrowing costs paid

Net cash flow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) incash orcash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents as atthe beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents as atthe end of the period

See accompanying notes tothe financial statements

In terms ofour report attached

For R U B S & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FRN: 014560C

By thehand of

CA ANUSHKA KRITI SINGH

Partner

(Membership No. 316808)

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd May, 2024
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Rupees in lakhs Rupees in lakhs

Year ended Year ended

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

(330.47)

330.41

(0.06)

(0.2)

(0.00)

(0.08)

(0.08)

(0.08)

1.06

0.98

(344.36)

344.30

(0.06)

(0.03)

(0.00)

(0.09)

(0.09)

(0.09)

1.15

1.06

CA ANISH AGARWAL

Resolution Professional

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256

SURESH PADMANABHAN

Deputy Chief Financial officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

HARPREET KAURBHAMRA

Company Secretary& Compliance Officer

(Signed as advised by RP)
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In terms of our report attached                               

For  R  U  B  S  &  CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 014560C
By the hand of 

CA ANISH AGARWAL
Resolution Professional 

IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256

CA ANUSHKA KRITI SINGH	  
Partner
(Membership No. 316808)

Place : Ranchi
Date : 23rd May, 2024

SURESH PADMANABHAN
Deputy Chief Financial officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

HARPREET KAUR BHAMRA
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer

(Signed as advised by RP)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024

Rupees in lakhs  Rupees in lakhs
 Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 Year ended 
31.03.2023 

A. Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss for the period              (330.47)            (344.36)
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation expense               330.41              344.30 
Loss on sale/write off of tangible assets                      -                       -   
Finance costs recognised in profit or loss                      -                       -   
Interest Income recognised in statement in profit and loss                      -                       -   
Income recognised in profit and loss for write back of liabilities no 
longer required                      -                       -   

Prior period adjustment                      -                       -   
Expenses recognised in profit and loss for exceptional items                      -                       -   

                (0.06)                (0.06)
Movements in working capital 

(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables        (0.2)       (0.03)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories                      -                       -   
Increase/(decrease) in retirement benefit assets/obligations                      -                       -   
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables        (0.00)       (0.00)

Cash used in operations                 (0.08)                (0.09)
Income taxes (paid)/refund                      -                       -   
Net cash used in operating activities                 (0.08)                (0.09)

B. Cash Flow from Investing activities:
Payments for property, plant and equipment                      -                       -   
Interest received                      -                       -   
Net cash flow used in investing activities                      -                       -   

C. Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of non-cumulative redeemable preference shares                      -    - 
Proceeds from related parties                      -                       -   
Proceeds/ (repayment) of current borrowings (net)                      -                       -   
Repayment of non-current borrowings                      -                       -   
Interest and other borrowing costs paid                      -                       -   
Net cash flow from financing activities                      -                       -   

Net increase/(decrease) in cash or cash equivalents                 (0.08)                (0.09)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year                   1.06                 1.15 
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period                   0.98                 1.06 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements  1-38 



TAYO ROLLS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES INEQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31MARCH, 2024

(A) Equity share capital

Balance as at01.04.2022

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at31.03.2023

Changes in equity share capital during the year

Balance as at31.03.2024

(B) Other equity

Balance as at01.04.2022

Loss fortheyear

Balance as at31.03.2023

Loss fortheyear

Balance as at31.03.2024

(Rounding effect 0.02 lakhs)

See accompanying notes tothe financial

statements

Amount

Rupees in

lakhs

1,026.13

1,026.13

1,026.13

Other items

Retained ofother Securities

earning comprehensive premium

income

(54,636.84)

(344.36)

(54,981.20)

(330.47)

(55,311.67)

69

- 5,541.96

- 5,541.96

- 5,541.96

OL\-

Rupees in lakhs

Total

(49,094.88)

(344.36)

(49439.24)

(49,439.24)

(330.47)

(49,769.71)

69

(A) Equity share capital Amount
 Rupees in 

lakhs 

Balance as at 01.04.2022        1,026.13 

Changes in equity share capital during the year                             
-   

Balance as at 31.03.2023 1,026.13 
Changes in equity share capital during the year                   -   
Balance as at 31.03.2024       1,026.13 

(B) Other equity
 Rupees in lakhs 

Retained 
earning

Other items 
of other 

comprehensive 
income 

Securities 
premium Total

Balance as at 01.04.2022 (54,636.84)                             -         5,541.96 (49,094.88)
Loss for the year          (344.36)                             -          -  (344.36)

(49439.24)
Balance as at 31.03.2023 (54,981.20)                             -    5,541.96 (49,439.24)
Loss for the year (330.47)                             -   -  (330.47)
Balance as at 31.03.2024 (55,311.67)                             -         5,541.96 (49,769.71)

(Rounding effect 0.02 lakhs)
See accompanying notes to the financial 
statements

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2024
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1. General information:

TAYO ROLLS LIMITED (“the Company”), formerly Tata- Yodogawa Limited was incorporated in 1968. The address of

its registered office is at Jamshedpur. Its parent and ultimate holding company is Tata Steel Limited. The Company was

promoted by Tata Steel Limited in collaboration with Yodogawa Steel Works, Japan and Nissho Iwai Corporation of

Japan forproduction of cast iron and cast steel rolls for metallurgical industries. As a part of its backward integration,

the Company hadsetupa mini blast furnace of 40,000 tpa forthe manufacture of Pig Iron. Other products included

Forged Rolls, Engineering Forging and Ingots. The principal activities of the Company aredescribed in Note 29.The

equity shares ofthe Company arelisted on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on Sth September, 2016 had decided to close the operations of the

Company. Accordingly, on 6th September, 2016 the Company filed closure application U/s 25-O ofthe Industrial

Disputes Act, 1947 with the State Government Authorities, which was rejected on 27th October, 2016. The Company

fileda Writ Petition before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court against the rejection order. Currently the Company has

withdrawn the petition in view oftheamendment made totheIndustrial Disputes Act, 1947 and also that the rejection

order is valid for one year and has lost its force by efflux of time framed by Statute itself.

The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the currency ofthe primary

economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been

rounded tothe nearest lakhs except share and per share data.

2. Significant accounting policies:

2.1 Statement ofcompliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)

notified undertheCompanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies

Act, 2013 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The standalone IndAS financial statements

have been prepared on accrual basis. The matter stated in Note 2.2indicates the inappropriateness ofthe use of

generally accepted accounting principles that are applicable toa going concern entity in preparation of standalone

IndAS financial statements ofthe Company fortheyear ended 31 March, 2024.

2.2 Going concern assumption

The Board ofDirectors had referred the CompanytotheBoard forIndustrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR)

as required under the First proviso of section 15 (1) of The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act,

1985 and theCompanywas registered with BIFRon 23rd March, 2016. Meanwhile, the Ministry of Finance issued

Notifications S.O. 3568 (E)& S.O. 3569 (E)dated 25th November, 2016 totheeffect that SICAwas repealed with

effect from 1stDecember, 2016 and all the references or inquiry pending before the BIFR and/ orAAIFR stood

abated. The Board ofDirectors at their meeting held on 3rd July, 2017 had decided to refer the Company tothe

Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy

Code, 2016 (IBC) for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). Subsequently, on 13th July,

2017, the Company filed relevant application before the Honorable NCLT, Kolkata under Section 10 of the

Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Workers oftheCompany, in the capacity of operational creditor had

also filed an application before the Honorable Tribunal, Kolkata under Section9 ofthe Insolvency and Bankruptcy

Code (IBC), 2016 seeking commencement ofCIRP. Both the appeals were rejected by the Honorable Tribunal.

Subsequently, the Company andtheworkers filed appeal separately before the Honorable National Company

Law Appellate Tribunal against the rejection order passed by the Honorable Tribunal. The Appellate Tribunal

allowed the appeal filed by the Company andtheWorkers; however, it directed the Tribunal to admit the appeal

filed by the Workers.

The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated against the Company vide an order

passed by NCLT Kolkata dated 05.04.2019.Pursuant to this order, the powers ofthe Board of Directors stand

suspended and areexercisable by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by

the NCLTwhowasconsequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by theCommittee of

Creditors (CoC).

Consequent toa petition filed by COC, theHonorable NCLT, Kolkata, passed an order on 30th October, 2019 and

appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution

Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal (the erstwhile RP)

Inthe ninth meeting ofCommittee ofCreditors (CoC) held on 19th December, 2019, CoC approved thepublication

of FORM G,minimum eligibility criteria for submission of Resolution Plan, Bid Evaluation Matrix, Request for

70
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equity shares of the Company are listed on Bombay Stock Exchange Limited (BSE).

		  The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5th September, 2016 had decided to close the operations of the 
Company. Accordingly, on 6th September, 2016 the Company filed closure application U/s 25-O of the Industrial 
Disputes Act, 1947 with the State Government Authorities, which was rejected on 27th October, 2016. The Company 
filed a Writ Petition before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court against the rejection order. Currently the Company has 
withdrawn the petition in view of the amendment made to the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 and also that  the rejection 
order is valid for one year  and has lost its force by efflux of time framed by Statute itself.

		  The functional and presentation currency of the Company is Indian Rupee (“INR”) which is the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company operates. All financial information presented in Indian rupees has been 
rounded to the nearest lakhs except share and per share data.

2.	 Significant accounting policies :

		  2.1	 Statement of compliance

				   The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 
	 notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with section 133 of the Companies 
	 Act, 2013 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The standalone Ind AS financial statements 
	 have been prepared on accrual basis. The matter stated in Note 2.2 indicates the inappropriateness of the use of 
	 generally accepted accounting principles that are applicable to a going concern entity in preparation of standalone 
	 Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March, 2024.

		  2.2	 Going concern assumption

		 The Board of Directors had referred the Company to the Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruction (BIFR) 
as required under the First proviso of section 15 (1) of The Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 
1985 and the Company was registered with BIFR on 23rd March, 2016. Meanwhile, the Ministry of Finance issued 
Notifications S.O. 3568 (E) & S.O. 3569 (E) dated 25th November, 2016 to the effect that SICA was repealed with 
effect from 1st December, 2016 and all the references or inquiry pending before the BIFR and/ or AAIFR stood 
abated. The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 3rd July, 2017 had decided to refer the Company to the 
Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata under Section 10 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 (IBC) for initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP). Subsequently, on 13th July, 
2017, the Company filed relevant application before the Honorable NCLT, Kolkata under Section 10 of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. The Workers of the Company, in the capacity of operational creditor had 
also filed an application before the Honorable Tribunal, Kolkata under Section 9 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code (IBC), 2016 seeking commencement of CIRP.  Both the appeals were rejected by the Honorable Tribunal. 
Subsequently, the Company and the workers filed appeal separately before the Honorable National Company 
Law Appellate Tribunal against the rejection order passed by the Honorable Tribunal.  The Appellate Tribunal 
allowed the appeal filed by the Company and the Workers; however, it directed the Tribunal to admit the appeal 
filed by the Workers.

	 The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) has been initiated against the Company vide an order 
passed by NCLT Kolkata dated 05.04.2019.Pursuant to this order, the powers of the Board of Directors stand 
suspended and are exercisable by Mrs. Vinita Agrawal, the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) appointed by 
the NCLT who was consequently confirmed to continue as the Resolution Professional (RP) by the Committee of 
Creditors (CoC). 

	 Consequent to a petition filed by COC, the Honorable NCLT, Kolkata, passed an order on 30th October, 2019 and 
appointed Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution 
Professional in place of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal (the erstwhile RP)

	 In the ninth meeting of Committee of Creditors (CoC) held on 19th December, 2019, CoC approved the publication 
of FORM G, minimum eligibility criteria for submission of Resolution Plan, Bid Evaluation Matrix, Request for 
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Resolution Plan (RFRP) and accordingly the RP published the FORMG on24th December, 2019 in Financial

Express (English Newspaper) All India Edition, Hindustan (Hindi Newspaper) Jharkhand Edition and Aajkal

Newspaper (Bengali Newspaper) Kolkata Edition.

The last date ofthe submission of the Resolution Plan was 19th February, 2020. However, only one Resolution

Applicant namely JSEB/ JBVNL (one ofthe COC members) had submitted the Resolution Plan within the time

period prescribed under Form G.

Accordingly on 21st February, 2020, Twelfth Meeting of the CoC was scheduled fordiscussion, approval and

voting of the Resolution Plan received from JSEB/ JBVNLandthesame was approved and declared as passed

with 92.45% ofvoting shares.

Subsequently, on 24th February, 2020 theApplication forApproval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and

section 31(1) ofthe Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution

Process For Corporate Person) Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable NCLT

Kolkata forits approval which is reserved fororder.

The Company incurreda loss of Rs. 330.47 lakh forthe year ended 31 March, 2024,(incurreda loss of Rs 344.36

lakh during the year ended 31 March, 2023) and accumulated losses as on date amounting to Rs. 55,311.67

lakh. The net worth ofthe Company hasalready been eroded and the Company's current liabilities exceeded its

current assets.

The Company is not in operation since 2016 because ofvarious factors and unavailability of future financing.A

resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one ofCOC members) forrestructuring of the company andhasbeen

approved by COC and filed Honorable NCLT Kolkata forits approval which is reserved fororder. However, unless

the same is approved, the position of the company will not undergoa drastic favorable change.

Considering, these factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate forpreparing the standalone IND AS

financial statements and therefore, these standalone IND AS financial statements have been prepared other than

on going concern basis.

2.3 Basis of preparation and presentation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except forcertain financial

instruments that are measured atfair values atthe end ofeach reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies below.

Historical cost is generally based on thefair value ofthe consideration given in exchange forgoods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfera liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or

estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset ora liability, the Company

takes into account thecharacteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics

into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value formeasurement and/or

disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such basis except for, leasing transactions

that are within the scope ofIndAS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not

fair value, such as netrealisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements arecategorised into Level 1, 2, or3 based

on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the

inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

• Level1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets foridentical assets or liabilities that the

entity can access atthemeasurement date;

• Level2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable forthe asset

or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

• Level3 inputs are unobservable inputs forthe asset or liability.

However, since the inception of CIRP, the Company has notdone any fair valuation of any financial

instruments.

2.4 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

Inpreparation of the financial statements, the Company makesjudgments, estimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the

associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Resolution Plan (RFRP) and accordingly the RP published the FORM G on 24th December, 2019 in Financial 
Express (English Newspaper) All India Edition, Hindustan (Hindi Newspaper) Jharkhand Edition and  Aajkal 
Newspaper (Bengali Newspaper) Kolkata Edition.

	 The last date of the submission of the Resolution Plan was 19th February, 2020. However, only one Resolution 
Applicant namely JSEB / JBVNL (one of the COC members) had submitted the Resolution Plan within the time 
period prescribed under Form G.

	 Accordingly on 21st February, 2020, Twelfth Meeting of the CoC was scheduled for discussion, approval and 
voting of the Resolution Plan received from JSEB / JBVNL and the same was approved and declared as passed 
with 92.45% of voting shares.

	 Subsequently, on 24th February, 2020 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and 
section 31(1) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution 
Process For Corporate Person) Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable NCLT 
Kolkata for its approval which is reserved for order. 

	 The Company incurred a loss of Rs. 330.47 lakh for the year ended 31 March, 2024,(incurred a loss of Rs 344.36 
lakh during the year ended 31 March, 2023) and accumulated losses as on date amounting to Rs. 55,311.67 
lakh. The net worth of the Company has already been eroded and the Company’s current liabilities exceeded its 
current assets. 

	 The Company is not in operation since 2016 because of various factors and unavailability of future financing. A 
resolution plan submitted by JSEB/JBVNL (one of COC members) for restructuring of the company and has been 
approved by COC and filed Honorable NCLT Kolkata for its approval which is reserved for order. However, unless 
the same is approved, the position of the company will not undergo a drastic favorable change. 

	 Considering, these factors the going concern assumption is not appropriate for preparing the standalone IND AS 
financial statements and therefore, these standalone IND AS financial statements have been prepared other than 
on going concern basis.

2.3	 Basis of preparation and presentation

	 The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial 
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting 
policies below.

		 Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

	 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or 
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company 
takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics 
into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or 
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such basis except for, leasing transactions 
that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not 
fair value, such as net realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36.

	 In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based 
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the 
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

	 •	 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the 
	 entity can access at the measurement date;

	 •	 Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset 
	 or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

	 •	 Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

			  However, since the inception of CIRP, the Company has not done any fair valuation of any financial 
	 instruments.

2.4	 Use of estimates and critical accounting judgements

	 In preparation of the financial statements, the Company makes judgments, estimates and assumptions about the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and the 
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
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Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future

periods affected.

Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities including carrying

amount ofproperty, plant and equipment, provision for employee benefits, other provisions and contingencies

are included in the following notes:

• Carrying amounts ofproperty, plant and equipment: Refer note3

• Provision foremployee benefits and other provisions: Refer note 17 and note 31

• Contingent liabilities: Refer note 33

2.5 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured atthefair value ofthe consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue

are netof returns, discounts, rebates, goods and service taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties,

as applicable.

The Company recognizes revenue when theamount ofrevenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that

future economic benefits will flow to the Company andspecific criteria have been met foreach oftheCompany's

activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration

the type of customer, the type oftransaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when thesignificant risks and rewards of ownership have been

transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery ofthe

amount due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

Sale of services

Income from services accounted over the period of rendering of services.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognized when theright to receive payment has been established.

Interest income froma financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company andtheamount ofincome can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued ona time basis, by

reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.6 Leases

Asa Lessee

Leases in whicha significant portion of the risks and rewards ofownership are nottransferred to the Company as

lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss

ona straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments arestructured to increase in line with

expected general inflation to compensate forthelessor's expected inflationary cost increases.

2.7 Foreign currency transactions and translation

In preparing the financial statements ofthe Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional

currency (foreign currencies) are recognized atthe rates of exchange prevailing at the dates ofthe transactions.

At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the

rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated

in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when thefair value was determined.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms ofhistorical cost ina foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign currency monetary items recognized in the

financial statements before the beginning ofthe first Ind AS 21 “The Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate”

financial reporting period are recognized directly in equity or added/deducted from the cost of assets as the case

may be.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are

included in the Statement ofProfit and Loss forthereporting period. Exchange differences arising on retranslation

on non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in Statement of Profit and Loss forthe period except

for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are

recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
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	 Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and future 
periods affected.

	 Significant judgments and estimates relating to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities including carrying 
amount of property, plant and equipment, provision for employee benefits, other provisions and contingencies 
are included in the following notes:

	 •	 Carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment: Refer note 3

	 •	 Provision for employee benefits and other provisions: Refer note 17 and note 31

	 •	 Contingent liabilities: Refer note 33

2.5	 Revenue recognition

	 Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue 
are net of returns, discounts, rebates, goods and service taxes and amounts collected on behalf of third parties, 
as applicable.

	 The Company recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that 
future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company’s 
activities as described below. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration 
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

	 Sale of goods

	 Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership have been 
transferred to the buyer. No revenue is recognized if there are significant uncertainties regarding recovery of the 
amount due, associated costs or the possible return of goods.

	 Sale of services

	 Income from services accounted over the period of rendering of services.

	 Dividend and interest income

	 Dividend income from investments is recognized when the right to receive payment has been established.

	 Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by 
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net 
carrying amount on initial recognition.

2.6	 Leases

	 As a Lessee

	 Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the Company as 
lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to profit or loss 
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with 
expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

2.7	 Foreign currency transactions and translation

	 In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional 
currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. 
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the 
rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated 
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. 
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.

	 Exchange differences arising on translation of long term foreign currency monetary items recognized in the 
financial statements before the beginning of the first Ind AS 21 “The Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rate” 
financial reporting period are recognized directly in equity or added/deducted from the cost of assets as the case 
may be.

	 Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on retranslation of monetary items are 
included in the Statement of Profit and Loss for the reporting period. Exchange differences arising on retranslation 
on non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in Statement of Profit and Loss for the period except 
for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are 
recognized directly in other comprehensive income.
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2.8 Borrowing costs
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are

assets that necessarily takea substantial period of time to get ready fortheir intended use or sale, are added to

thecost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready fortheir intended use or sale.

Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on

qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

The Company hasworking capital borrowings from related party on which interest is also payable at specified

rates. However, as the CIRP process has been initiated as referred to in Note 2.2 and this amount due is of

related party, its priority for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016 and is unlikely to be

paid in view ofnon-availability of assets ofthe company. Accordingly, no provisions of the interest cost have been

made during the financial year ended as at31.03.2024.

2.9 Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense atthe undiscounted amount in the Statement of

Profit and Loss oftheyear in which the related service is rendered.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments todefined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them tothecontributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected

unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period.

Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changestotheasset ceiling (if applicable)

and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet witha

charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement

recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified

to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period ofa plan amendment. Net interest is

calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning ofthe period to the net defined benefit liability or asset.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

• service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments

and settlements);

• net interest expense orincome; and

• remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components ofdefined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee

benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted foras past service costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised forbenefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and

sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount ofthebenefits expected to

be paid in exchange forthat service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured attheundiscounted amount of

thebenefits expected tobe paid in exchange fortherelated service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured atthepresent value of the

estimated future cash outflows expected tobe made bytheGroup in respect of services provided by employees

up tothereporting date.

As the Company is under CIRP, the employees/workers have become members ofCoC from SthApril, 2019,

and their claims for Rs. 2918.36 lakhs have been admitted by Resolution Professional. The operations of the

company have remain suspended and due tovarious reasons explained in para (2.2) the financials have not

been prepared on the basis of going concern and hence there is no possibility for providing for wages, which

also cannot be included in CIRP cost after the commencement ofCIRP under IBC, 2016.
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	 The foreign currency liability has not been revalued as at 31.03.2024 due to the ongoing CIRP.

2.8	 Borrowing costs

	 Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are 
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to 
the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

	 Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

	 All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

	 The Company has working capital borrowings from related party on which interest is also payable at specified 
rates. However, as the CIRP process has been initiated as referred to in Note 2.2 and this amount due is of 
related party, its  priority for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016  and is unlikely to be 
paid in view of non-availability of assets of the company. Accordingly, no provisions of the interest cost have been 
made during the financial year ended as at 31.03.2024.

2.9	 Employee benefits

	 Short-term employee benefits

	 Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss of the year in which the related service is rendered.

	 Retirement benefit costs

	 Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have 
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

	 For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected 
unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. 
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) 
and the return on plan assets (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a 
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement 
recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified 
to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is 
calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

	 •	 service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments 
	 and settlements);

	 •	 net interest expense or income; and 

	 •	 remeasurement

	 The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee 
benefits expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

	 Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

	 A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and 
sick leave in the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to 
be paid in exchange for that service.

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of 
the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

	 Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the 
estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Group in respect of services provided by employees 
up to the reporting date.

	 As the Company is under CIRP, the employees/workers have become members of CoC      from 5th April, 2019, 
and their claims for Rs. 2918.36 lakhs have been admitted by Resolution Professional. The operations of the 
company have remain suspended and due to various reasons explained in para (2.2 ) the  financials have not  
been prepared on  the basis of going concern and hence  there is no possibility for  providing  for  wages, which 
also cannot be included in CIRP cost after the commencement of CIRP under IBC, 2016.
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Further, the liability for post-retirement gratuity is provided foron an estimate basis till the initiation of CIRP post

which it was suspended (liability was provided on actual basis in the previous year) and hence disclosures as

required under IndAS 19 “Employee Benefits” related to defined benefit plans have notbeen made.

However, thecompany hasnotmade anyactuarial valuation forthe period ended FY 2023-24.

2.10 Taxation

Income taxexpense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The taxcurrently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as

reported in the Statement ofProfit and Loss because ofitems ofincome orexpense that are taxable or deductible

in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

The Company's current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end ofthe reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities in

the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred

tax liabilities are generally recognized forall taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally

recognized forall deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be

available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than ina business

combination) of assets and liabilities ina transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting

profit.

The carrying amount ofdeferred tax assets is reviewed atthe end of each reporting period and adjusted to the

extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to

be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured atthe tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in

which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on taxrates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end ofthe reporting period.

The measurement ofdeferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the

manner in which theCompany expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount

ofits assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which

is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability.

Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when theasset can be measured

reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

Current and deferred tax forthe year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in

other comprehensive income ordirectly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised

in other comprehensive income ordirectly in equity respectively.

The company has incurred losses in the current years and has accumulated losses in past as well resulting in

deferred tax asset which has not been recognised in the financial statements as it has not been prepared on

going concern basis.

2.11 Property plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits

associated with the item will flow tothe Companyandits cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle

is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs

incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including

regular servicing, are recognized in the statement ofprofit and loss as incurred. Whena replacement occurs, the

carrying amountofthereplaced part is de-recognized. Wherea tangible fixed asset comprises majorcomponents
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	 Further, the liability for post-retirement gratuity is provided for on an estimate basis till the initiation of CIRP post 
which it was suspended (liability was provided on actual basis in the previous year) and hence disclosures as 
required under Ind AS 19 “Employee Benefits” related to defined benefit plans have not been made.

	 However, the company has not made any actuarial valuation for the period ended FY 2023-24.

2.10	 Taxation

	 Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

	 Current tax

	 The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as 
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible 
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.

	 The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the 
end of the reporting period.

	 Deferred tax

	 Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in 
the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred 
tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally 
recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 
available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business 
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting 
profit.

	 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to the 
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to 
be recovered.

	 Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

	 The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the 
manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount 
of its assets and liabilities.

	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation 
authority and the relevant entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

	 Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, which 
is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availability of set off against future income tax liability. 
Accordingly, MAT is recognized as deferred tax asset in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realized.

	 Current and deferred tax for the year

	 Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in 
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

	 The company has incurred losses in the current years and has accumulated losses in past as well resulting in 
deferred tax asset which has not been recognised in the financial statements as it has not been prepared  on 
going concern basis.

2.11	 Property plant and equipment

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. This recognition principle 
is applied to the costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and equipment and also to costs 
incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance costs, including 
regular servicing, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. When a replacement occurs, the 
carrying amount of the replaced part is de-recognized. Where a tangible fixed asset comprises major components 
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Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes

all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended

use. Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalized. Borrowing costs during the period of construction is

added tothecost of eligible tangible assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits

are expected toarise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement

of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between thesales proceeds and the

carrying amount oftheasset and is recognized in profit or loss.

Pending CIRP, the company has notcarried out impairment testing of Property, Plant and Equipment in its

entirety as at the balance sheet date. Although, on 4th of July, 2019, the physical verification and valuation

of assets and inventories has been conducted by the registered IBBI valuer's as per IBC, 2016. However, no

accounting impact was given in the financial statement of the Corporate Debtor based on the outcome ofthe

valuation and physical verification of the assets.

2.12 Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Computer software and Technical knowhow feecosts are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets

where they are clearly linked to long term economic benefits for the Company. Inthis case they are measured

initially at purchase cost and then amortized ona straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. All other

costs on patents, trademarks and software are expensed in the Statement ofProfit and Loss as incurred.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when nofuture economic benefits are expected from use or

disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as thedifference between

thenetdisposal proceeds and thecarrying amount oftheasset are recognized in profit or loss when theasset is

derecognized.

2.13 Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Depreciation or amortization is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line basis, the cost of property, plant and

equipment and other intangible assets, including those held under finance leases to their residual value. These

charges arecommenced from the dates the assets are available fortheir intended use and are spread over their

estimated useful economic lives or, in the case ofleased assets, over the lease period if shorter. The estimated

useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge

is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down butarestill in use.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when theassets are ready fortheir intended use.

Depreciation is provided ona straight line method as pertheuseful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies

Act, 2013 except in respect of Plant and machinery where theuseful life of the assets was assessed as under

based on technical evaluation bya Chartered Engineer taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated

usage oftheasset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological

changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

Useful life of plant and machinery is considered to be 15-20 years.

Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life of five years on straight line method.

The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and amortization period are reviewed atthe end ofeach financial

year and the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

2.14 Impairment oftangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts ofits tangible and intangible

assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any

such indication exists, the recoverable amount oftheasset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the

impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount ofan individual asset, the

Company estimates the recoverable amount ofthecash generating unit to which the asset belongs. Whena

reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual

cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company ofcash-generating units for

whicha reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
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having different useful lives, these components are accounted for as separate items.

	 Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Cost includes 
all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the asset to its working condition and location for its intended 
use. Trial run expenses (net of revenue) are capitalized. Borrowing costs during the period of construction is 
added to the cost of eligible tangible assets.

	 An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement 
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss.

	 Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out impairment testing of Property, Plant and Equipment in its 
entirety as at the balance sheet date. Although, on 4th of July, 2019, the physical verification and valuation 
of assets and inventories has been conducted by the registered IBBI valuer’s as per IBC, 2016. However, no 
accounting impact was given in the financial statement of the Corporate Debtor based on the outcome of the 
valuation and physical verification of the assets.

2.12	 Intangible assets

	 Intangible assets acquired separately

	 Computer software and Technical knowhow fee costs are included in the balance sheet as intangible assets 
where they are clearly linked to long term economic benefits for the Company. In this case they are measured 
initially at purchase cost and then amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. All other 
costs on patents, trademarks and software are expensed in the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred.

	 An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected from use or 
disposal. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset are recognized in profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognized.

2.13	 Depreciation and amortization of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

	 Depreciation or amortization is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line basis, the cost of property, plant and 
equipment and other intangible assets, including those held under finance leases to their residual value. These 
charges are commenced from the dates the assets are available for their intended use and are spread over their 
estimated useful economic lives or, in the case of leased assets, over the lease period if shorter. The estimated 
useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge 
is provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are still in use. 

	 Depreciation on assets under construction commences only when the assets are ready for their intended use.

	 Depreciation is provided on a straight line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies 
Act, 2013 except in respect of Plant and machinery where the useful life of the assets was assessed as under 
based on technical evaluation by a Chartered Engineer taking into account the nature of asset, the estimated 
usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological 
changes, manufacturers warranties and maintenance support, etc.

	 Useful life of plant and machinery is considered to be 15-20 years.

	 Intangible assets are amortized over their estimated useful life of five years on straight line method.

	 The estimated useful life of the intangible assets and amortization period are reviewed at the end of each financial 
year and the amortization period is revised to reflect the changed pattern, if any.

2.14	 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

	 At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible 
assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any 
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the 
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a 
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual 
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Company of cash-generating units for 
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

	 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for 
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impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.
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Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,

the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value usinga pre-tax discount rate that reflects

current market assessments ofthetime value ofmoney andtherisks specific to the asset forwhich theestimates

of future cash flows have notbeen adjusted.

If the recoverable amount ofan asset (orcash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,

the carrying amount oftheasset (orcash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment

loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

When animpairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount oftheasset (ora cash-generating unit) is

increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, butso that the increased carrying amount does not

exceed thecarrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized forthe

asset (orcash-generating unit) in prior years.A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit

or loss.

The company, however, did not make anyimpairment in the current year. It had done valuation of it's tangible

assets in the previous financial year, however, the effects of the same were notgiven in the financial statements

because oftheongoing CIRP.

2.15 Inventories

Inventories, stores and spare parts have been carried forward at the same value as previous year. The effect of

realizable value in the financial statements is based on theprevious valuation in the financial year 2015-16. The

company didnotmake anyvaluation of inventories to recognize net realizable value in current financial year. It

had madea valuation of the same bytheregistered IBBI's valuer's as per IBC,2016 on 4th JuIy,2019 i.e in the

financial year 2019-20, however theeffects of the same were notgiven in the financial statements.

2.16 Provisions

Provisions are recognized in the balance sheetwhentheCompany hasa present obligation (legal or constructive)

asa result ofa past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on thebest estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle

the present obligation at the balance sheet date. When appropriate, provisions are measured ona discounted

basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity's actions where:

• by an established pattern of past practice, published policies ora sufficiently specific current statement, the

entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and

• As a result, the entity has createda valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge

those responsibilities.

When some orall of the economic benefits required to settlea provision are expected to be recovered froma

third party,a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and

the amount ofthereceivable can be measured reliably.

The company hasreceived some services from related party during the year against which thecompany hasnot

made anyprovisions for the period Oct 2019 toMarch 2024 due toongoing CIRP.

Warranties

Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are recognized at

the date ofsale of the relevant products, at the Company's best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle the

obligation.

2.17 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized whena Company becomesa party to the contractual

provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured atfair value. Transaction costs that are directly

attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added toordeducted from the fair value of the financial

assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the

acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately

in profit or loss.
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impairment at least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

	 Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates 
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

	 If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, 
the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment 
loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

	 When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the 
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit 
or loss.

	 The company, however, did not make any impairment in the current year. It had done valuation of it’s tangible 
assets in the previous financial year, however, the effects of the same were not given in the financial statements 
because of the ongoing CIRP.

2.15	 Inventories

	 Inventories, stores and spare parts have been carried forward at the same value as previous year. The effect of 
realizable value in the financial statements is based on the previous valuation in the financial year 2015-16. The 
company did not make any valuation of inventories to recognize net realizable value in current financial year. It 
had made a valuation of the same by the registered IBBI’s valuer’s as per IBC,2016 on 4th July,2019 i.e in the 
financial year 2019-20, however the effects of the same were not given in the financial statements.

2.16	 Provisions

	 Provisions are recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
which can be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle 
the present obligation at the balance sheet date. When appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted 
basis.

	 Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:

	 •	 by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the 
	 entity has indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities and

	 •	 As a result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge 
	 those responsibilities.

	 When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a 
third party, a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and 
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

	 The company has received some services from related party during the year against which the company has not 
made any provisions for the period Oct 2019 to March 2024 due to ongoing CIRP.

	 Warranties

	 Provisions for the expected cost of warranty obligations under local sale of goods legislation are recognized at 
the date of sale of the relevant products, at the Company’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 
obligation.

2.17	 Financial instruments

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a Company becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions of the instruments.

	 Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately 
in profit or loss.
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All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized ona trade date basis.

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within

the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method isa method ofcalculating the amortised cost ofa debt instrument and of allocating

interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective

interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums ordiscounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument,

or, where appropriate,a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognized on an effective interest basis fordebt instruments other than those financial assets classified

as at FVTPL. Interest income, if any, is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

Financial assets atfair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is subsequently measured atfair value through other comprehensive income if it is held withina

business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets

and the contractual terms ofthefinancial asset give rise on specified dates tocash flows that are solely payments

ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

The Company hasmade an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments

to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model.

Further, in cases where theCompany hasmade an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its

investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in

other comprehensive income.

Since inception of CIRP, the Company hasnotdone any fair valuation of its assets and hence there are no

adjustments to comprehensive income on thesaid ground.

Financial assets atfair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial

recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income forinvestments in equity

instruments which are notheld fortrading.

Debt instruments that do not meet theamortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured

at FVTPL. Inaddition, debt instruments that meet theamortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are

designated as at FVTPL aremeasured atFVTPL.

A financial asset that meets theamortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet theFVTOCI criteria may

be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reducesa

measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising

the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company hasnotdesignated any debt instrument as at

FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL aremeasured atfair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or

losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss

incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line

item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when theCompany's right to receive the dividends

is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the

dividend does notrepresenta recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount ofdividend can be

measured reliably.

Since inception of CIRP, the Company hasnotdone any fair valuation of its assets and hence there are no

adjustments to profit or loss accounts on the said ground.

Impairment offinancial assets

The Company applies the expected credit loss model forrecognising impairment loss on financial assets

measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, and other

contractual rights to receive cash orother financial asset, and financial guarantees notdesignated as at FVTPL.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average ofcredit losses with the respective risks of default occurring

as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in

accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls),
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	 Financial assets

	 All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a trade date basis. 
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

	 Effective interest method

	 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating 
interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, 
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 Income is recognized on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified 
as at FVTPL. Interest income, if any, is recognized in profit or loss and is included in the “Other income” line item.

	 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

	 A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a 
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets 
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments 
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

	 The Company has made an irrevocable election for its investments which are classified as equity instruments 
to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income based on its business model. 
Further, in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, for its 
investments which are classified as equity instruments, the subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in 
other comprehensive income.

	 Since inception of CIRP, the Company has not done any fair valuation of its assets and hence there are no 
adjustments to comprehensive income on the said ground.

	 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

	 Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Company irrevocably elects on initial 
recognition to present subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income for investments in equity 
instruments which are not held for trading.

	 Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCI criteria (see above) are measured 
at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria but are 
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL.

	 A financial asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCI criteria may 
be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a 
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising 
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any debt instrument as at 
FVTPL.

	 Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or 
losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss 
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘Other income’ line 
item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the dividends 
is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, the 
dividend does not represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be 
measured reliably.

	 Since inception of CIRP, the Company has not done any fair valuation of its assets and hence there are no 
adjustments to profit or loss accounts on the said ground.

	 Impairment of financial assets

	 The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets 
measured at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables, and other 
contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset, and financial guarantees not designated as at FVTPL.

	 Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring 
as the weights. Credit loss is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in 
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.e. all cash shortfalls), 
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discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit -adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or

originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual

terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the

expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures theloss allowance fora financial instrument atan amount equal tothe lifetime expected

credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If

the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company

measures theloss allowance forthat financial instrument atan amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses.

12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime

cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash

shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

If the Company measured loss allowance fora financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the

previous period, but determines atthe end ofa reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly

since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared totheprevious period, the Company

again measures theloss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

When making the assessment of whether there has beena significant increase in credit risk since initial

recognition, the Company uses thechange in the risk ofa default occurring overthe expected life of the financial

instrument instead ofthe change in the amountofexpected credit losses. To makethat assessment, theCompany

compares the risk ofa default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk ofa

default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and

supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in

credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash oranother financial asset that result from transactions

that are within the scope ofIndAS 11 and IndAS 18,theCompany always measures theloss allowance at an

amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose ofmeasuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance fortrade receivables, the Company

hasuseda practical expedient as permitted under IndAS 109 taking into account historical credit loss experience

and adjustment forforward-looking information.

The impairment requirements forthe recognition and measurement ofa loss allowance are equally applied to

debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is

not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

Since inception of CIRP, the Company hasnotdone any fair valuation of its assets and hence there are no

adjustments to profit or loss accounts on the said ground.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognisesa financial asset when thecontractual rights to the cash flows from theasset expire,

or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to

another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership

and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an

associated liability for amounts it may have topay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards

of ownership ofa transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also

recognisesa collateralised borrowing forthe proceeds received.

On derecognition ofa financial asset in its entirety, the difference between theasset's carrying amount and the

sum oftheconsideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in

other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would

have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

On derecognition ofa financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when theCompany retains an option to

repurchase part ofa transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amountofthefinancial asset

between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises

on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the

carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for

the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other

comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised

in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
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discounted at the original effective interest rate (or credit -adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or 
originated credit-impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual 
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the 
expected life of that financial instrument.

	 The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected 
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. If 
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company 
measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 
12-month expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime 
cash shortfalls that will result if default occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash 
shortfalls that are predicted over the next 12 months.

	 If the Company measured loss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit loss model in the 
previous period, but determines at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly 
since initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality as compared to the previous period, the Company 
again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses.

	 When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial 
recognition, the Company uses the change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial 
instrument instead of the change in the amount of expected credit losses. To make that assessment, the Company 
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a 
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and 
supportable information, that is available without undue cost or effort, that is indicative of significant increases in 
credit risk since initial recognition.

	 For trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from transactions 
that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an 
amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

	 Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company 
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109 taking into account historical credit loss experience 
and adjustment for forward-looking information.

	 The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to 
debt instruments at FVTOCI except that the loss allowance is recognised in other comprehensive income and is 
not reduced from the carrying amount in the balance sheet.

	 Since inception of CIRP, the Company has not done any fair valuation of its assets and hence there are no 
adjustments to profit or loss accounts on the said ground.

	 Derecognition of financial assets

	 The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, 
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to 
another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained interest in the asset and an 
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the financial asset and also 
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

	 On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the 
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in 
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would 
have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset.

	 On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety (e.g. when the Company retains an option to 
repurchase part of a transferred asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset 
between the part it continues to recognise under continuing involvement, and the part it no longer recognises 
on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts on the date of the transfer. The difference between the 
carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for 
the part no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been recognised in other 
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised 
in profit or loss on disposal of that financial asset. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other 
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comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no

longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values ofthose parts.

Since inception of CIRP, the Company hasnotdone any derecognition of its assets and hence there are no

adjustments on the said ground.

Foreign exchange gains or losses

The fair value of financial assets denominated ina foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and

translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange

differences are recognised in profit or loss except forthose which are designated as hedging instruments ina

hedging relationship.

Changes in the carrying amount ofinvestments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign

currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated

as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are

recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value ofFVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other

comprehensive income. (Also Refer Note 2.7above)

2.18 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued bya Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in

accordance with the substance ofthe contractual arrangements and the definitions ofa financial liability and an

equity instrument.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidencesa residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting

all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued bya Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net

of direct issue costs.

Repurchase ofthe Company's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain

or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company's own equity

instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured atamortised cost using the effective interest method or at

FVTPL.

Financial liabilities subsequently measured atamortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL aremeasured atamortised

costatthe end ofsubsequentaccounting periods. The carrying amountsoffinancial liabilities that are subsequently

measured atamortised cost are determined based on theeffective interest method. Interest expense that is not

capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method isa method ofcalculating the amortised cost ofa financial liability and of allocating

interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated

future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective

interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums ordiscounts) through the expected life of the financial liability

or (where appropriate)a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated ina foreign currency and are measured atamortised cost at the end

of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on theamortised cost of

the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated ina foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency

and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at

FVTPL, theforeign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit

or loss.
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comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is no 
longer recognised on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

	 Since inception of CIRP, the Company has not done any derecognition of its assets and hence there are no 
adjustments on the said ground.

	 Foreign exchange gains or losses

	 The fair value of financial assets denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency and 
translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period.

	 For foreign currency denominated financial assets measured at amortised cost and FVTPL, the exchange 
differences are recognised in profit or loss except for those which are designated as hedging instruments in a 
hedging relationship.

	 Changes in the carrying amount of investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI relating to changes in foreign 
currency rates are recognised in other comprehensive income.

	 For the purposes of recognising foreign exchange gains and losses, FVTOCI debt instruments are treated 
as financial assets measured at amortised cost. Thus, the exchange differences on the amortised cost are 
recognised in profit or loss and other changes in the fair value of FVTOCI financial assets are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. (Also Refer Note 2.7 above)

2.18	 Financial liabilities and equity instruments

	 Classification as debt or equity

	 Debt and equity instruments issued by a Company entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in 
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an 
equity instrument.

	 Equity Instruments

	 An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting 
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by a Company entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net 
of direct issue costs.

	 Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain 
or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity 
instruments.

	 Financial liabilities

	 All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at 
FVTPL.

	 Financial liabilities subsequently measured at amortised cost

	 Financial liabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FVTPL are measured at amortised 
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. The carrying amounts of financial liabilities that are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest method. Interest expense that is not 
capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the ‘Finance costs’ line item.

	 The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating 
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective 
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability 
or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount on initial recognition.

	 Foreign exchange gains and losses

	 For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end 
of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of 
the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

	 The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign currency 
and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at 
FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is recognised in profit 
or loss.
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The foreign currency liability has not been revalued as at 31.03.2024 due tothe ongoing CIRP.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

OU-’

TheCompany derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, theCompany's obligations are discharged,

cancelled or have expired. An exchange between witha lender of debt instruments with substantially different

terms is accounted foras an extinguishmentofthe original financial liability and the recognition ofa new financial

liability. Similarly,a substantial modification of the terms ofan existing financial liability (whether or notattributable

to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted foras an extinguishment ofthe original financial liability and

the recognition ofa new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount ofthefinancial liability

derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

Since the inception of CIRP, theCompany hasnotderecognized any financial liabilities in the financial statements

during the current financial year.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts

ofcash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months

orless from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with

banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

2.20 Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of

transactions ofa non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past orfuture operating cash receipts or payments

and item ofincome orexpenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating,

investing and financing activities of the Company aresegregated.

2.21 Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the

Company bytheweighted average number ofequity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings

per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company bythe

weighted average number ofequity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also

the weighted average number ofequity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive

potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the

equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.the average market value of the outstanding equity shares).

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as ofthe beginning ofthe period, unless issued ata later

date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently foreach period presented.

The number ofequity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods

presented forany share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval ofthe

financial statements by the Board ofDirectors.

2.22 Operating cycle

Based on thenature of activities of the Company andthenormal time between acquisition of assets and their

realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company hasdetermined its operating cycle as 12 months forthe

purpose ofclassification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.23 Segment Reporting

The Company identifies primary segments based on thedominant source, nature of risks and returns, internal

organization, management structure and the internal performance reporting systems. The accounting policies

adopted forthesegment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company.

2.24 Transactions relating to CIRP period

The income earned and expenses incurred during CIRP period for the year ended 31st March,2024 have not

been considered in the Financial Statement because these CIRP expenditures are payable by Resolution

Applicant as per Section 30(2) or in case ofliquidation the same will be paid from the liquidation proceeds as per

Section 53 of the IBC, 2016.
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	 The foreign currency liability has not been revalued as at 31.03.2024 due to the ongoing CIRP.

	 Derecognition of financial liabilities

	 The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or have expired. An exchange between with a lender of debt instruments with substantially different 
terms is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial 
liability. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability (whether or not attributable 
to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liability and 
the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability 
derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.

	 Since the inception of CIRP, the Company has not derecognized any financial liabilities in the financial statements 
during the current financial year.

2.19	 Cash and cash equivalents

	 The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts 
of cash that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months 
or less from the date of purchase, to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with 
banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

2.20	 Cash flow statement

	 Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where by profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments 
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, 
investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.21	 Earnings per equity share

	 Basic earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings 
per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company by the 
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share and also 
the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive 
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the 
equity shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e.the average market value of the outstanding equity shares). 
Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless issued at a later 
date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period presented.

	 The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods 
presented for any share splits and bonus shares issues including for changes effected prior to the approval of the 
financial statements by the Board of Directors.

2.22	 Operating cycle

	 Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and their 
realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.23	 Segment Reporting

	 The Company identifies primary segments based on the dominant source, nature of risks and returns, internal 
organization, management structure and the internal performance reporting systems. The accounting policies 
adopted for the segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of the Company.

2.24	 Transactions relating to CIRP period

	 The income earned and expenses incurred during CIRP period for the year ended 31st March,2024 have not 
been considered in the Financial Statement because these CIRP expenditures are payable by Resolution 
Applicant as per Section 30(2) or in case of liquidation the same will be paid from the liquidation proceeds as per 
Section 53 of the IBC, 2016.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress

Carrying amounts of:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Furniture and fixtures

Office equipment

Vehicles

Sub-total

Capital work-in-progress

Total

As at 31.03.2024

2,180.37

2,180.37

OL\-

Rupees inlakhs Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

172.50 182.23

2,002.48 2,317.25

3.00 7.14

2.39 4.16

Buildings Plant and Furniture Office Vehicles Total

machinery and equipment property,

fixtures plant and

equipment

Gross Block - 01.04.2023 265.65 6,840.81

Additions -

Disposals/Adjustments -

Balance as at31.03.2024 265.65 6,840.81

Accumulated

depreciation

Balance as at01.04.2023 83.42 4,523.56

Charge fortheperiod 9.73 314.77

Disposals/Adjustments -

Balance as at31.03.2024 93.15 4,838.33

Carrying amounts as at

31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2023

172.50 2,002.48

72.99

72.99

65.85

4.14

69.99

3.00

33.22 10.31 7,222.98 -

33.22 10.31 7,222.98 -

29.06 10.31 4,712.20 -

1.78 - 330.41 -

30.83 10.31 5,042.61 -

2.39 - 2,180.37 -

Buildings Plant and Furniture Office Total

machinery and equipment Vehicles property,

(Refer fixtures plant and

note2 equipment

below)

Gross Block-1.04.2022 265.65 6,840.81 72.99 33.22 10.31 7,222.98 -

Additions - -

Disposals/Adjustments - - - - - - -

Balance as at

31.03.2023

Accumulated

depreciation

Balance as at

01.04.2022

Charge fortheyear

Disposals/Adjustments

Balance as at

31.03.2023

Carrying amounts as

31.03.2023

265.65 6,840.81 72.99 33.22 10.31 7,222.98 -

73.56 4,195.21 61.66 27.16 10.31 4,367.90 -

9.87 328.35 4.18 1.90 - 344.30 -

83.42 4,523.56 65.85 29.06 10.31 4,712.20 -

at

182.23 2,317.25 7.14 4.16 - 2,510.78 -

2,510.78

2,510.78

Rupees in lakhs

Capital Total property,

work in plant and

progress equipment

including capital

work inprogress

7,222.98

7,222.98

4,712.20

330.41

5,042.61

2,180.37

Rupees inlakhs

Capital Total property,

work in plant and

progress equipment

including capital

work inprogress

7,222.98

7,222.98

4,367.90

344.30

4,712.20

2,510.78

Pending CIRP, the company hasnotcarried out impairment testing of Property, Plant and Equipment in its entirety as at the balance

sheet date. Although, on 4th of July, 2019, the physical verification and valuation of assets and inventories has been conducted by the

registered IBBI valuer's as per IBC, 2016. However, no accounting impact was given in the financial statement ofthe Corporate Debtor

based on theoutcome ofthevaluation and physical verification of the assets. Refer Note 2.11.

Pursuant to transitional provisions prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had fully depreciated the

carrying value ofassets, net of residual value, where theremaining useful life of the asset was determined to be Nil as on April 1,2014.

ii) Accordingly, the company carried the net depreciated value as opening gross value instead of value before depreciation. The Gross

value of Property, Plant& Equipment as at31.03.2024 before such adjustments in past and subsequent years is Rs 21740.61 lakhs

and the accumulated depreciation as at 31.03.2024 is Rs 19560.24 lakhs (as at 31.3.2023 is Rs 19229.83 lakhs) .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
3 Property, plant and equipment and capital work-in progress

Rupees in lakhs Rupees in lakhs
Carrying amounts of : As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Buildings      172.50 182.23 
Plant and machinery   2,002.48 2,317.25 
Furniture and fixtures           3.00            7.14 
Office equipment           2.39     4.16 
Vehicles        -    -   
Sub-total    2,180.37 2,510.78 
Capital work-in-progress    -    -   
Total 2,180.37 2,510.78 

Rupees in lakhs
 As at 31.03.2024 Buildings  Plant and 

machinery 
 Furniture

and 
fixtures 

 Office 
equipment 

 Vehicles  Total
property, 
plant and 

equipment 

 Capital 
work in 

progress 

 Total property, 
plant and 

equipment 
including capital 
work in progress 

Gross Block - 01.04.2023    265.65   6,840.81         72.99         33.22      10.31      7,222.98              -        7,222.98 
Additions   -                  -                -                   -               -                   -                -      -   
Disposals/Adjustments  -   -                 -                   -                -                   -                -                       -   
Balance as at 31.03.2024 265.65    6,840.81         72.99         33.22      10.31      7,222.98              -           7,222.98 
Accumulated 
depreciation
Balance as at 01.04.2023  83.42 4,523.56         65.85 29.06 10.31      4,712.20              -     4,712.20 
Charge for the period    9.73 314.77           4.14 1.78              -           330.41              -              330.41 
Disposals/Adjustments -      -                -                   -                -                   -                -       -   
Balance as at 31.03.2024 93.15    4,838.33         69.99 30.83      10.31      5,042.61              -   5,042.61 
Carrying amounts as at 
31.03.2024  172.50    2,002.48           3.00         2.39              -        2,180.37              -           2,180.37 

 Rupees in lakhs 
As at 31.03.2023 Buildings  Plant and 

machinery 
(Refer 
note 2 
below) 

 Furniture
and 

fixtures 

 Office 
equipment 

 
Vehicles 

 Total
property, 
plant and 

equipment 

 Capital 
work in 

progress 

 Total property, 
plant and 

equipment 
including capital 
work in progress 

Gross Block - 1.04.2022   265.65  6,840.81         72.99 33.22 10.31      7,222.98              -          7,222.98 
Additions     -      -                 -                   -                -                   -                -    -   
Disposals/Adjustments              -              -                -                 -                -                   -                -                         -   
Balance as at 
31.03.2023  265.65 6,840.81         72.99 33.22 10.31      7,222.98              -    7,222.98 

Accumulated 
depreciation 
Balance as at 
01.04.2022      73.56 4,195.21         61.66  27.16  10.31      4,367.90              -     4,367.90 

Charge for the year     9.87 328.35           4.18 1.90              -           344.30              -    344.30 
Disposals/Adjustments       -    -                 -   -                -                   -                -    -   
Balance as at 
31.03.2023   83.42  4,523.56 65.85     29.06  10.31      4,712.20              -         4,712.20 

Carrying amounts as at 
31.03.2023 182.23  2,317.25           7.14 4.16              -        2,510.78              -         2,510.78 

i)

Pending CIRP, the company has not carried out impairment testing of Property, Plant and Equipment in its entirety as at the balance 
sheet date. Although, on 4th of July, 2019, the physical verification and valuation of assets and inventories has been conducted by the 
registered IBBI valuer’s as per IBC, 2016. However, no accounting impact was given in the financial statement of the Corporate Debtor 
based on the outcome of the valuation and physical verification of the assets. Refer Note 2.11.

ii)

Pursuant to transitional provisions prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had fully depreciated the 
carrying value of assets, net of residual value, where the remaining useful life of the asset was determined to be Nil as on April 1,2014. 
Accordingly, the company carried the net depreciated value as opening gross value instead of value before depreciation. The Gross 
value of Property, Plant & Equipment as at 31.03.2024 before such adjustments in past and subsequent years is Rs 21740.61 lakhs 
and the accumulated depreciation  as at  31.03.2024 is Rs 19560.24 lakhs (as at 31.3.2023 is Rs 19229.83 lakhs ) .  
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4 Other Intangible Assets

Carrying amounts of:

Computer Software

Technical knowhow Fee

Total

As at 31.03.2024

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Balance as at01.04.2023

Additions

Disposals/Adjustments

Balance as at31.03.2024

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at01.04.2023

Charge fortheperiod

Disposals/Adjustments

Balance as at31.03.2024

Carrying amounts as at

31.03.2024 " ” ” ” ” ” "

As at31.03.2023

Balance as at01.04.2022

Additions

Disposals/Adjustments

Balance as at31.03.2023

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at01.04.2022

Charge fortheyear

Disposals/Adjustments

Balance as at31.03.2023

Carrying amounts as at31.03.2023

Computer Technical

Software knowhow

Fee

4.13 180.01

4.13 180.01

4.13 180.01

OU-’

Rupees inlakhs

As at31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Rupees inlakhs

Total Capital Total Intangible

Intangible work in Assets

Assets progress including

capital work in

progress

184.14 -

184.14 -

184.14 -

4.13 180.01 - - - 184.14 -

Computer Technical

Software knowhow Fee

4.13 180.01

184.14

184.14

184.14

184.14

Rupees in lakhs

Total Capital Total Intangible

Intangible work in Assets including

Assets progress capital work in

progress

4.13 180.01 - - - 184.14 -

4.13 180.01

184.14 -

184.14 -

4.13 180.01 - - - 184.14 -

184.14

184.14

184.14

184.14

Pursuant to transitional provisions prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had fully amortised the

carrying value of tangible assets, net of residual value, where theremaining useful life of the asset was determined to be Nil as on

i) April 1, 2014. Accordingly, the company carried the net amortised value as opening gross value instead of value before amortisation.

The Gross value of intangible Assets as at 31.03.2024 before such adjustments in past and subsequent years is Rs 960.85 lakhs and

the accumulated amortisation as at 31.03.2024 is Rs 960.85 lakhs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
4 Other Intangible Assets

Rupees in lakhs

Carrying amounts of : As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Computer Software                  -                           -   
Technical knowhow Fee         -                           -   
Total                  -                           -   

Rupees in lakhs
 As at 31.03.2024 Computer 

Software 
 Technical 
knowhow 

Fee 

 Total
Intangible 

Assets 

 Capital 
work in 

progress 

 Total Intangible 
Assets 

including 
capital work in 

progress 
Balance as at 01.04.2023            4.13       180.01        184.14            -                   184.14 
Additions                  -               -    -      -    -                -              -                           -   
Disposals/Adjustments                  -               -        -        -     -                -              -                           -   

Balance as at 31.03.2024            4.13       180.01            
-   

              
-   

           
-          184.14            -                   184.14 

Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 01.04.2023            4.13       180.01        184.14            -                    
184.14 

Charge for the period              -              -                           -   
Disposals/Adjustments                  -               -           -          -           -                -              -                           -   
Balance as at 31.03.2024            4.13       180.01         -          -           -          184.14            -                   184.14 
Carrying amounts as at 
31.03.2024                  -               -           -          -           -                -              -                           -   

 Rupees in lakhs 
As at 31.03.2023 Computer 

Software 
Technical 

knowhow Fee
Total

Intangible 
Assets

Capital 
work in 

progress

Total Intangible 
Assets including 
capital work in 

progress
Balance as at 01.04.2022            4.13       180.01        184.14            -                   184.14 
Additions                  -               -           -          -           -                -              -                           -   
Disposals/Adjustments                  -               -           -          -          -                -              -                           -   
Balance as at 31.03.2023            4.13       180.01         -          -           -          184.14            -                   184.14 
Accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at 01.04.2022            4.13       180.01        184.14            -                   184.14 
Charge for the year              -              -                           -   
Disposals/Adjustments                  -               -           -         -          -                -              -                           -   
Balance as at 31.03.2023            4.13       180.01        -          -     -          184.14            -                   184.14 
Carrying amounts as at 31.03.2023       -               -        -      -      -                -              -                           -   

i)

Pursuant to transitional provisions prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company had fully amortised the 
carrying value of tangible assets, net of residual value, where the remaining useful life of the asset was determined to be Nil as on 
April 1, 2014. Accordingly, the company carried the net amortised value as opening gross value instead of value before amortisation. 
The Gross value of intangible Assets as at 31.03.2024 before such adjustments in past and subsequent years is Rs 960.85 lakhs and 
the accumulated amortisation as at 31.03.2024 is Rs 960.85 lakhs
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5 Investments

Non-current

Other investments

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I Unquoted Investments

(a) Investments inequity instruments at FVTOCI

As at31.03.2024

Qty. Amount

(i) Adityapur Toll Bridge Company Limited (Equity Shares of 5,000

Rs. 10 each) [net of impairment of Rs. 0.50 lakhs (as at

31.03.2021: Rs. 0.50 lakhs)]

(ii) Nicco Jubilee Park Limited (Equity shares of Rs. 10 each) 30,000

[net of impairment of Rs. 3.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2021: Rs.

3.00 lakhs)]

(iii) Tata Construction & Projects Limited (Equity Shares of 32,326

Rs. 10 each) [net of impairment of Rs. 3.88 lakhs (as at

31.3.2021: Rs. 3.88 lakhs)]

(b) Investments indebentures or bonds atamortised cost

(i) Tata Construction& Projects Limited (10% Secured Non- 3,000

Convertible Debentures ofRs. 100 each) [net of impairment

of Rs. 3.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2021: Rs. 3.00 lakhs)]

(ii) Government securities-Lodged as security deposit with

parties

Total aggregate unquoted investments

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount ofimpairment in the value of investments (in

earlier period - Rs. 10.38 lakhs)

Category-wise other investments-as per IndAS 109 classification

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Government securities-Lodged as security deposit with parties

Aggregate value of other investments

83

Rupees in

lakhs

OL\-

As at31.03.2023

Qty. Amount

- 5,000

- 30,000

- 32,326

- 3,000

0.09

0.09

0.09

As at

31.03.2024

0.09

0.09

Rupees in

lakhs

0.09

0.09

0.09

As at

31.03.2023

0.09

0.09
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5 Investments

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Non-current  Qty.   Amount  Qty.   Amount 

 Rupees in 
lakhs 

 Rupees in 
lakhs 

Other investments

I Unquoted Investments 
(a) Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI

(i) Adityapur Toll Bridge Company Limited (Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10 each)  [net of impairment of Rs. 0.50 lakhs (as at 
31.03.2021 : Rs. 0.50 lakhs)]

       5,000              -        5,000              -   

(ii) Nicco Jubilee Park Limited (Equity shares of Rs. 10 each)  
[net of impairment of Rs. 3.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2021 : Rs. 
3.00 lakhs)]

      30,000              -      30,000              -   

(iii) Tata Construction & Projects Limited (Equity Shares of 
Rs. 10 each) [net of impairment of Rs. 3.88 lakhs (as at 
31.3.2021 : Rs. 3.88 lakhs)]

      32,326              -      32,326              -   

(b) Investments in debentures or bonds at amortised cost
(i) Tata Construction & Projects Limited (10% Secured Non-

Convertible Debentures of Rs. 100 each)  [net of impairment 
of Rs. 3.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2021 : Rs. 3.00 lakhs)]

       3,000              -        3,000              -   

(ii) Government securities-Lodged as security deposit with 
parties

          0.09           0.09 

Total aggregate unquoted investments           0.09           0.09 

Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments           0.09           0.09 

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investments (in 
earlier period - Rs. 10.38 lakhs)

             -                -   

 As at 
31.03.2024 

 As at 
31.03.2023 

Category-wise other investments-as per Ind AS 109 classification
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
Government securities-Lodged as security deposit with parties           0.09           0.09 

Aggregate value of other investments           0.09           0.09 
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Other financial assets

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Non-current

Security deposits

Deposits with Bank

Earmarked deposits with bank (Refer note (i))

Total

Current

Interest accrued on deposits and advances

Total

Note:

(i) Earmarked deposits with bank represents margin money against issue of

bank guarantees

7 Other assets

Non-current

Advance with public bodies

Prepaid lease payment (net)

Current

Advance with public bodies

Other advances

Total

Rupees in lakhs

OU-’

Asat31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

5.80

5.00

10.80

63.25

63.25

Rupees in lakhs

5.80

5.00

10.80

62.46

62.46

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

185.97

4.32

190.29

196.18

580.49

776.67

185.97

4.38

190.35

180.16

597.75

777.90

Prepaid lease payment ofRs.1.75 lakhs (as at31.03.2023: Rs. 1.75 lakhs) incurred forsettling right on leased assets for

which documents areyettobe executed. The Company hasapplied to the Bihar Government forexemption ofthis land

from the Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation) Act, 1976. The decision of the Government is still awaited. On account ofthis

the company hasnotamortised the lease payment.
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 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

   6 Other financial assets

Non-current
Security deposits                 5.80             5.80 
Deposits with Bank                    -                   -   
Earmarked deposits with bank (Refer note (i))                 5.00             5.00 

Total               10.80            10.80 

Current
Interest accrued on deposits and advances               63.25            62.46 

Total               63.25            62.46 

Note:

(i) Earmarked deposits with bank represents margin money against issue of 
bank guarantees

 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

7 Other assets

Non-current
Advance with public bodies             185.97          185.97 
Prepaid lease payment (net)                 4.32             4.38 

            190.29          190.35 

Current
Advance with public bodies             196.18          180.16 
Other advances             580.49          597.75 
Total             776.67          777.90 

Prepaid lease payment of Rs. 1.75 lakhs (as at 31.03.2023: Rs. 1.75 lakhs) incurred for settling right on leased assets for 
which documents are yet to be executed. The Company has applied to the Bihar Government for exemption of this land 
from the Urban Land (Ceiling and Regulation) Act, 1976. The decision of the Government is still awaited. On account of this 
the company has not amortised the lease payment.
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Taxassets and liabilities

Non-current tax assets

Advance payment against taxes (including tax deducted atsource)

Current tax liabilities

Provision for current tax

[Net of provision of Rs. 1313.77 lakhs

(as at 31.03.2021.: Rs. 1313.77 lakhs)]

9 Inventories

(Refer Note- 2.15)

Raw materials

Semi-finished goods

Finished goods

Stores and spares

85

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

322.05

322.05

321.54

321.54

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

123.08

123.08

123.08

123.08

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

763.55

0.02

763.57

763.55

0.02

763.57
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8 Tax assets and liabilities

 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Non-current tax assets
Advance payment against taxes (including tax deducted at source)             322.05          321.54 

            322.05          321.54 

Current tax liabilities
 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Provision for current tax             123.08          123.08 
[Net of provision of Rs. 1313.77 lakhs 
(as at 31.03.2021. : Rs. 1313.77 lakhs)]

            123.08          123.08 

9 Inventories
(Refer Note- 2.15)  Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Raw materials             763.55          763.55 

Semi-finished goods                    -                   -   

Finished goods                    -                   -   

Stores and spares                 0.02             0.02 

            763.57          763.57 
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10 Trade receivables

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade receivables

(a) Considered good - secured

(b) Considered good - unsecured

(c) Which have significant increase in credit risk

(d) Credit impaired

(e) Less: allowance forcredit impaired

10.1 Trade receivables

Age of receivables

Within the credit period

1-30 days past due

31-60 days past due

61-90 days past due

More than 90 days past due

OLL’

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

70.77

(70.77)

70.77

(70.77)

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

70.77

70.77

70.77

70.77

Of the trade receivable balances as atthe reporting period, balances representing significant outstanding balances of

the Company which represents more than 5% ofthe total balance ofthe trade receivable are as follows:

Top five customers

CustomerB

CustomerC

CustomerD

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

25.61

24.17

20.09

69.87

25.61

24.17

20.09

69.87

Customers ofCategoryA andE had no outstanding in the books as at31.03.2024 (As at31.03.2023: NIL)

Movement intheexpected credit loss allowance

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Balance atbeginning ofthe year

Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables

calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

Balance atend oftheyear

70.77

70.77

70.77

70.77

Since the inception of CIRP, the Company hasnotdone any assessment on theimpairment of its financial assets.

The estimated liability for the allowance forcredit impaired ofthe previous year ofRs. 70.77 lakhs remained same in the

absence ofany impairment as at31.03.2024 (asat31.03.2023: Rs. 70.77 lakhs) forperformance oftheproducts (mainly

rolls) based on past experience and amounts notlikely to be received due to suspension ofoperations.

There were no outstanding debts due from directors or other officers of the Company.
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10 Trade receivables Rupees in lakhs

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Trade receivables
(a)  Considered good - secured                   -                   -   
(b)  Considered good - unsecured                   -                   -   
(c)  Which have significant increase in credit risk                   -                   -   
(d)  Credit impaired              70.77            70.77 
(e)  Less: allowance for credit impaired            (70.77)           (70.77)

                  -                   -   

10.1 Trade receivables

Age of receivables Rupees in lakhs
 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Within the credit period                   -                   -   
1-30 days past due                   -                   -   
31-60 days past due                   -                   -   
61-90 days past due                   -                   -   
More than 90 days past due              70.77            70.77 

             70.77            70.77 

Of the trade receivable balances as at the reporting period, balances representing significant outstanding balances of 
the Company which represents more than 5% of the total balance of the trade receivable are as follows: 

Rupees in lakhs
Top five customers  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Customer B              25.61            25.61 
Customer C              24.17            24.17 
Customer D              20.09            20.09 

             69.87            69.87 

Customers of Category A and E had no outstanding in the books as at 31.03.2024 (As at 31.03.2023: NIL)
Movement in the expected credit loss allowance

Rupees in lakhs
 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Balance at beginning of the year              70.77            70.77 
Movement in expected credit loss allowance on trade receivables 
calculated at lifetime expected credit losses

                  -   

Balance at end of the year              70.77            70.77 

Since the inception of CIRP, the Company has not done any assessment on the impairment of its financial assets.
The estimated liability for the allowance for credit impaired of the previous year of Rs. 70.77 lakhs remained same in the 
absence of any impairment as at 31.03.2024 (as at 31.03.2023 : Rs. 70.77 lakhs) for performance of the products (mainly 
rolls) based on past experience and amounts not likely to be received due to suspension of operations.

There were no outstanding debts due from directors or other officers of the Company.			 
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11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand

Cheques, draft on hand

Balances with banks

a) In current accounts

b) In deposit accounts

Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement ofcash flows

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(Refer Note 2.24)

(i) In current account

(ii) In deposit account
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Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

0.98

0.98

1.06

1.06

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

0.46

0.46

0.46

0.46
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11 Cash and cash equivalents  Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Cash on hand                   -                   -   

Cheques, draft on hand                   -                   -   

Balances with banks

a) In current accounts                0.98              1.06 

b) In deposit accounts                   -                   -   

Cash and cash equivalents as per Statement of cash flows                0.98              1.06 

12 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

(Refer Note 2.24)  Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

(i) In current account                0.46              0.46 

(ii) In deposit account                   -                   -   

               0.46              0.46 
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13 Equity share capital

Equity share capital

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Authorised share capital

15,000,000 fully paid equity shares ofRs. 10 each

Issued and subscribed capital’

10,260,935 fully paid equity shares ofRs. 10 each (asat

31 March, 2021: 10,260,935)

* Includes forfeited shares amount originally paid up Rs

4,217.00

Fully paid equity shares

Balance as at1 April, 2022

Issued during the year

Balance as at31 March, 2023

Issued during the period

Balance as at31st March, 2024

Equity shares:

Rights, preferences and restrictions

attached to shares:

Rupees in lakhs

OU-’

Asat31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

1,026.13

1,026.13

1,500.00

1,026.13

1,026.13

1,02,60,935

1,02,60,935

1,026.13

1,026.13

1,500.00

1,026.13

1,026.13

Numbers Rupees inlakhs

1,02,60,935 1,026.13

1,026.13

1,026.13

The Company hasoneclass of equity shares havinga par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one

vote per share held. As refered in Note 2.2, the company is under insolvency process anda Resolution Plan has been

filed with the Ho'ble NCLT forapproval which is reserved fororder. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders

are eligible to receive the remaining assets ofthe Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to

their shareholding as per Section 53 of the IBC.
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 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

13 Equity share capital

Equity share capital 1,026.13 1,026.13

1,026.13 1,026.13

Authorised share capital
15,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each         1,500.00          1,500.00 

Issued and subscribed capital *

10,260,935 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each (as at 
31 March, 2021: 10,260,935)         1,026.13          1,026.13 

* Includes forfeited shares amount originally paid up Rs 
4,217.00

        1,026.13          1,026.13 

Fully paid equity shares
Numbers Rupees in lakhs

 Balance as at 1 April, 2022    1,02,60,935          1,026.13 
 Issued during the year                  -                     -   
 Balance as at 31 March, 2023    1,02,60,935          1,026.13 
 Issued during the period                  -                     -   
 Balance as at 31st March, 2024    1,02,60,935          1,026.13 

Equity shares :
Rights, preferences and restrictions 
attached to shares :

The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one 
vote per share held. As refered in Note 2.2, the company is under insolvency process and a Resolution Plan has been 
filed with the Ho'ble NCLT for approval which is reserved for order. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders 
are eligible to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to 
their shareholding as per Section 53 of the IBC.
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Details of share held by the holding company

As at31.03.2023

Tata Steel Limited, the holding company

As at31.03.2024

Tata Steel Limited, the holding company

Details of shares held by each shareholder

holding more than 5°/+

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5•/e

Fully paid equity shares

Tata Steel Limited

Yodogawa Steel Works Limited

14 Other equity

Retained earnings

Securities premium

14.1 Retained earnings

Balance atthe beginning ofthe year

Loss fortheperiod

Prior period adjustment (Refer note below)

Balance atthe end ofthe period

14.2 Securities premium

Balance atthe beginning ofthe year

Share issued during the period

Balance atthe end ofthe period

No. of fully paid

ordinary shares

As at31.03.2024

Numbers °/« holding

55,87,372 54.45°/+

15,36,704 14.98°/•

89

55,87,372

55,87,372

OL\-

As at31.03.2023

Numbers % holding

55,87,372

15,36,704

54.45%

14.98%

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

(55,311.67)

5,541.96

(49,769.71)

(54,981.20)

5,541.96

(49,439.24)

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

(54,981.20)

(330.47)

(55,311.67)

(54,636.84)

(344.36)

(54,981.20)

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

5,541.96

5,541.96

5,541.96

5,541.96
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Details of share held by the holding company
No. of fully paid 
ordinary shares

As at 31.03.2023
Tata Steel Limited, the holding company       55,87,372 

As at 31.03.2024
Tata Steel Limited, the holding company       55,87,372 

Details of shares held by each shareholder 
holding more than 5%

Details of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5%

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Numbers % holding Numbers % holding

Fully paid equity shares
Tata Steel Limited    55,87,372 54.45%  55,87,372 54.45%

Yodogawa Steel Works Limited    15,36,704 14.98%  15,36,704 14.98%

14 Other equity
 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Retained earnings      (55,311.67)       (54,981.20)

Securities premium 5,541.96 5,541.96

     (49,769.71)       (49,439.24)

14.1 Retained earnings  Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year      (54,981.20)       (54,636.84)

Loss for the period          (330.47)           (344.36)

Prior period adjustment (Refer note below)                  -   
Balance at the end of the period      (55,311.67)       (54,981.20)

14.2 Securities premium
 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year         5,541.96          5,541.96 

Share issued during the period                  -                     -   

Balance at the end of the period         5,541.96          5,541.96 
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15 Non-current borrowings

Unsecured - at amortised cost

(i) Other loans

Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

(Refer note (i) below)

Summary ofborrowings arrangements

(i)
Non-cumulative redeemable preference

shares

As at31.03.2024

33,296.67

33,296.67

OU-’

Rupees in lakhs

As at

31.03.2023

33,296.67

33,296.67

25,100,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each areentitled toa fixed rate of dividend at

the rate of 8.50% p.a., 64,00,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares ofRs. 100 each areentitled toa fixed

rate of dividend atthe rate of 7.17% p.a., 43,30,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares ofRs. 100 each are

entitled toa fixed rate of dividend atthe rate of 7.00% p.a. and 300,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

ofRs. 100 each areentitled toa fixed rate of dividend at the rate of 8.00% p.a.,The issuer shall redeem thepreference

shares atface value in three equal instalments in the following month after the month ofcompletion ofeighth, ninth and

tenth year from the date ofallotment. As the CIRP process has been initiated as refered in Note 2.2and this amount

is of related party, its priority for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016 and is unlikely to be

paid in view ofnon-availability of assets ofthe company. Also Jharkhand Bijili Vitran Nigam Limited the sole Resolution

Applicant has proposed toresolve this company andthesamewas approved by comittee of creditors by more than 92

% votes. The said Resolution plan has been filed with Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata forapproval which is reserved fororder.

(ii) The terms ofrepayment ofother loans are stated below

As at31.03.2024

Preference shares issued are redeemable on thefollowing dates

Year ofredemption

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

2026-27

2027-28

2028-29

2029-30

2030-31

2031-32

2032-33

Less: Impact of recognition of borrowing at amortised cost using effective interest

method under IndAS
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Amount

Rupees in lakhs

2,833.33

2,833.33

5,733.33

5,000.00

5,533.33

3,601.67

4,110.00

3,676.67

2,708.33

100.00

36,130.00

36,130.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 
31.03.2023 

15 Non-current borrowings

 Unsecured - at amortised cost 
(i) Other loans

Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 
(Refer note (i) below)         33,296.67      33,296.67 

        33,296.67      33,296.67 

Summary of borrowings arrangements

(i) Non-cumulative redeemable preference 
shares

25,100,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each are entitled to a fixed rate of dividend at 
the rate of 8.50% p.a., 64,00,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each are entitled to a fixed 
rate of dividend at the rate of 7.17% p.a., 43,30,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares of Rs. 100 each are 
entitled to a fixed rate of dividend at the rate of 7.00% p.a.  and 300,000 Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares 
of Rs. 100 each are entitled to a fixed rate of dividend at the rate of 8.00% p.a.,The issuer shall redeem the preference 
shares at face value in three equal instalments in the following month after the month of completion of eighth, ninth and 
tenth year from the date of allotment.  As the CIRP process has been initiated as refered in Note 2.2 and this amount 
is of  related party, its  priority  for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016  and is unlikely to be 
paid in view of non-availability of assets of the company. Also Jharkhand Bijili Vitran Nigam Limited the sole Resolution 
Applicant  has proposed to resolve this company and the same was approved by comittee of creditors by more than 92 
% votes. The said Resolution plan has been filed with Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata for approval which is reserved for order.

(ii) The terms of repayment of other loans are stated below

 As at 31.03.2024 
Preference shares issued are redeemable on the following dates

Year of redemption  Amount 
 Rupees in lakhs 

2023-24        2,833.33 
2024-25        2,833.33 
2025-26        5,733.33 
2026-27        5,000.00 
2027-28        5,533.33 
2028-29        3,601.67 
2029-30        4,110.00 
2030-31        3,676.67 
2031-32        2,708.33 
2032-33           100.00 

     36,130.00 
Less: Impact of recognition of borrowing at amortised cost using effective interest 
method under Ind AS           

     36,130.00 
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Asat31.03.2023

(a) Preference shares issued are redeemable on thefollowing dates

Year ofredemption

2022-23

2023-24

2024-25

2025-26

2026-27

2027-28

2028-29

2029-30

2030-31

2031-32

Less: Impact of recognition of borrowing at amortised cost using effective interest method

under IndAS

16 Current borrowings

Unsecured - at amortised cost

a) Loans from related parties (Refer note (i) below)

Total

Notes:

(h

As at 31.03.2024

6,700.00

6,700.00

OL\-

Amount

Rupees in lakhs

2,833.33

2,833.33

5,733.33

5,000.00

5,533.33

3,601.67

4,110.00

3,676.67

2,708.33

100.00

36,130.00

36,130.00

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2023

6,700.00

6,700.00

The unsecured borrowings represents amounts received and repayable/ due to related parties of the Company.

Interest chargeable in normal course ofbusiness is 7.00% p.a. on the outstanding loan balances (as at 31.03.2023:

7.00°/» p.a.). However, as the CIRP process has been initiated as refered in Note 2.2 and this amount due is of

related party, its priority for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016 and is unlikely to be paid

in view of non-availability of assets of the company. Also Jharkhand State Electricity Board (the then)/ Jharkhand

Bijili Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL)( now) theResolution Applicant has proposed toresolve this company andthe

same was approved by comittee of creditors by more than 92% votes. Since, the amount claimed comes under the

category of related parties debt, no interest has been provided forin the financial year ended on 31.03.2024 (As on

31.03.2023: Rs 0 lakh) The said Resolution plan has been filed with Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata for approval which is

reserved fororder.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
 As at 31.03.2023 
(a) Preference shares issued are redeemable on the following dates

Year of redemption  Amount 
 Rupees in lakhs 

2022-23        2,833.33 
2023-24        2,833.33 
2024-25        5,733.33 
2025-26        5,000.00 
2026-27        5,533.33 
2027-28        3,601.67 
2028-29        4,110.00 
2029-30        3,676.67 
2030-31        2,708.33 
2031-32           100.00 

     36,130.00 

Less: Impact of recognition of borrowing at amortised cost using effective interest method 
under Ind AS

                -   

     36,130.00 

16 Current borrowings
 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Unsecured - at amortised cost
a) Loans from related parties (Refer note (i) below)           6,700.00        6,700.00 

 Total           6,700.00        6,700.00 

Notes :

(i)

The unsecured borrowings represents amounts received and repayable / due  to related parties of the Company. 
Interest chargeable in normal course of business is 7.00% p.a. on the outstanding loan balances (as at 31.03.2023: 
7.00% p.a.). However, as the CIRP process has been initiated as refered in Note 2.2 and this amount due is of  
related party, its  priority  for payment ranks last as per Waterfall Mechanism in IBC 2016  and is unlikely to be paid 
in view of non-availability of assets of the company. Also Jharkhand State Electricity Board (the  then) /   Jharkhand 
Bijili Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL) ( now)  the Resolution Applicant  has proposed to resolve this company and the 
same was approved by comittee of creditors by more than 92 % votes. Since, the amount claimed comes under the 
category of related parties debt, no interest has been provided for in the financial year ended on 31.03.2024 (As on 
31.03.2023: Rs 0 lakh) The said Resolution plan has been filed with Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata for approval which is 
reserved for order.
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17 Current provisions

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(I) Provision foremployees benefits

(a) Post employment defined benefits

(i) Retiring gratuity

(ii) Post retirement medical benefits to employees

(b) Other benefits

(i) Leave benefit scheme

Provision foremployee separation compensation (VSS)

(Also refer note 36)

(II) Other provision - warranties (Refer note 17.1)

17.1 Other provisions forwarranty

Balance atthe beginning ofthe year

Additional provisions recognised

Reductions arising from payments

Balance atthe end ofthe period

Notes:

(i)

OU-’

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

80.48

122.48

167.24

370.20

780.97

582.35

1,733.52

80.48

122.48

167.24

370.20

780.97

582.35

1,733.52

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

582.35

582.35

582.35

582.35

Provision foremployee benefits include leave, early retirement and termination benefits provided by the Company as

pertheVSS scheme announced by theCompany during the year and revised from time to time.

The provision for warranty claims incudes warranty given on sale of rolls. Provision forwarranty is made based on

(ii) technical estimates and past experience ofsuch costs. Actual claims may differ from estimates and the difference is

recognised in the year ofoccurrence.

18 Trade payables

Creditors forsupplies and services

(a) Total outstanding dues ofmicro enterprises and small enterprises

(b) Other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises

i) Creditors

ii) Creditors foraccrued wages andsalaries

92

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

1,394.86

1,877.15

3,272.01

1,394.86

1,877.15

3,272.01
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17 Current provisions 

Rupees in lakhs
 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

(I) Provision for employees benefits
(a) Post employment defined benefits

(i) Retiring gratuity              80.48             80.48 
(ii)  Post retirement medical benefits to employees             122.48           122.48 

(b) Other benefits
(i) Leave benefit scheme             167.24           167.24 

            370.20           370.20 

(c) Provision for employee separation compensation (VSS) 
(Also refer note 36)             780.97           780.97 

(II) Other provision - warranties (Refer note 17.1)             582.35           582.35 

         1,733.52        1,733.52 

Rupees in lakhs
17.1 Other provisions for warranty  As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Balance at the beginning of the year             582.35           582.35 
Additional provisions recognised                   -                    -   
Reductions arising from payments                   -                    -   
Balance at the end of the period             582.35           582.35 

Notes:

(i) Provision for employee benefits include leave, early retirement and termination benefits provided by the Company as 
per the VSS scheme announced by the Company during the year and revised from time to time.

(ii)
The provision for warranty claims incudes warranty given on sale of rolls. Provision for warranty is made based on 
technical estimates and past experience of such costs. Actual claims may differ from estimates and the difference is 
recognised in the year of occurrence.

18 Trade payables
 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
Creditors for supplies and services
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises                   -                    -   
(b) Other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises

i)  Creditors
ii) Creditors for accrued wages and salaries          1,394.86        1,394.86 

         1,877.15        1,877.15 
         3,272.01        3,272.01 
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OL\-

Theaverage credit period forpurchase ofgoods is one month. No interest is charged on trade payables on the outstanding

balance except formicro, small and medium enterprises as reported below.

The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown

a) separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each

accounting year.

b)

c)

d)

The amount ofinterest paid by in terms of section 16 of the Micro,

Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27of2006),

along with the amount ofthepayment made tothesupplier beyond

theappointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable forthe period of delay in

making payment (which has been paid but beyond theappointed day

during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the " "

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

the amount ofinterest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of

each accounting year; and

the amount offurther interest remaining due and payable even in the

succeeding years, until such date when theinterest dues above are

e) actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose ofdisallowance

ofa deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and

Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

19 Other financial liabilities

Current

a) Current maturities of long term debt

Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares

(Refer note 15 (i))

b) Interest accrued but not due (Refer note (i) below)

c) Unpaid dividends

d) Unclaimed dividends

e) Unpaid matured fixed deposits

f} Creditors for capital supplies/services

Notes:

(i)

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

2,833.33

2,058.18

0.17

0.30

0.11

75.31

4,967.40

2,833.33

2,058.18

0.17

0.30

0.11

75.31

4,967.40

The interest accrued on outstanding loan from related parties has not been provided i.e. NIL interest was provided

forthe year ended 31.03.2024 on Rs. 6,700.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2023: Interest is NIL)

20 Other current liabilities

a) Advances received from customers

b) Statutory dues (Sales tax, GST and TDS)

c) Others

93

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

2,279.06 2,279.06

74.15 74.15

606.23 606.23

2,959.44 2,959.44
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The average credit period for purchase of goods is one month. No interest is charged on trade payables on the outstanding 
balance except for micro, small and medium enterprises as reported below.

 Rupees in lakhs 
 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

a)
The principal amount and the interest due thereon (to be shown 
separately) remaining unpaid to any supplier at the end of each 
accounting year.

                  -                    -   

b) 

The amount of interest paid by in terms of section 16 of the Micro, 
Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (27 of 2006), 
along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond 
the appointed day during each accounting year.

                  -                    -   

c) 

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in 
making payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day 
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006;

                  -                    -   

d) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 
each accounting year; and                   -                    -   

e)

the amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the 
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are 
actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance 
of a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

                  -                    -   

19 Other financial liabilities Rupees in lakhs
 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 

Current
a) Current maturities of long term debt

Non-cumulative redeemable preference shares
(Refer note 15 (i))          2,833.33        2,833.33 

b) Interest accrued but not due (Refer note (i) below)          2,058.18        2,058.18 
c) Unpaid dividends                0.17               0.17 
d) Unclaimed dividends                0.30               0.30 
e) Unpaid matured fixed deposits                0.11               0.11 
f) Creditors for capital supplies/services              75.31             75.31 

4,967.40 4,967.40
Notes:

(i) The interest accrued on outstanding loan from related parties has not been provided i.e. NIL interest was provided 
for the year ended 31.03.2024 on Rs. 6,700.00 lakhs (as at 31.03.2023 : Interest is NIL)

20 Other current liabilities
 Rupees in lakhs 

 As at 31.03.2024  As at 31.03.2023 
a) Advances received from customers          2,279.06        2,279.06 
b) Statutory dues (Sales tax, GST and TDS)              74.15             74.15 
c) Others             606.23           606.23 

         2,959.44        2,959.44 
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21 Revenue from operations

(a) Sale ofproducts - -

(b) Other operating revenues

(i) Sale ofmiscellaneous goods - -

(ii) Sundry income -

22 Other

23 Cost

Total

income

a) Interest income

Interest on deposits (at amortised cost) -

Interest on income tax -

b) Other gains and losses

Net foreign exchange gains - -

c) Other non-operating income

Liabilities no longer required written back - -

Total - -

of materials consumed

(a) Opening stock

(b) Add: Purchase

Sub-total

(c) Less: Transferred to other operating expenses

(d) Less: Closing stock

94

For Year ended

31.03.2024

For Year ended

31.03.2024

For Year ended

31.03.2024

763.55

763.55

763.55

OU-’

Rupees in lakhs

For Year ended

31.03.2023

Rupees in lakhs

For Year ended

31.03.2023

Rupees in lakhs

For Year ended

31.03.2023

763.55

763.55

763.55
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21 Revenue from operations

Rupees in lakhs
 For Year ended 

31.03.2024 
 For Year ended 

31.03.2023 

 (a) Sale of products                      -                       -   
 (b) Other operating revenues

(i) Sale of miscellaneous goods                      -                       -   
(ii) Sundry income                      -                       -   

                     -                       -   

22 Other income 
Rupees in lakhs

 For Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2023 

a) Interest income 
Interest on deposits (at amortised cost)                      -                       -   
Interest on income tax                      -                       -   

b) Other gains and losses
Net foreign exchange gains                      -                       -   

c) Other non-operating income
Liabilities no longer required written back                      -                       -   

Total                      -                       -   

23 Cost of materials consumed
 Rupees in lakhs 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2023 

(a) Opening stock                763.55              763.55 
(b) Add: Purchase                      -                       -   

Sub-total                763.55              763.55 
(c) Less:  Transferred to other operating expenses                      -                       -   
(d) Less:  Closing stock                763.55              763.55 

Total                      -                       -   
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24 Changes ininventories of finished goods, stock intrade and

work inprogress

Finished and semi-finished goods atbeginning of the period -

Finished and semi-finished goods atend oftheperiod - -

Changes ininventories -

25 Employee benefits expense

(a) Salaries and wages - -

(b) Employee separation compensation - -

(c) Contribution to provident and other funds

i) Provident fund -

ii) Superannuation fund - -

iii) Gratuity - -

iv) Tayo Pension fund - -

(d) Staff welfare expenses -

Total -

26 Finance costs

Interest costs

Interest on term loan -

Interest on bank loans (working capital) - -

Interest on loans from related parties - -

Other borrowing costs -

Total interest expenses forfinancial liabilities not classified -

as FVTPL

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense

(i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)

(ii) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4)

95

For Year ended

31.03.2024

For Year ended

31.03.2024

For Year ended

31.03.2024

330.41

330.41

OL\-

Rupees in lakhs

For Year ended

31.03.2023

Rupees in lakhs

For Year ended

31.03.2023

Rupees in lakhs

For Year ended

31.03.2023

344.30

344.30
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24 Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock in trade and 

work in progress
 Rupees in lakhs 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2023 

Finished and semi-finished goods at beginning of the period                      -                       -   
Finished and semi-finished goods at end of the period                      -                       -   

Changes in inventories                      -                       -   

25 Employee benefits expense 
 Rupees in lakhs 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2023 

(a) Salaries and wages                      -                       -   
(b) Employee separation compensation                      -                       -   
(c) Contribution to provident and other funds

i) Provident fund                      -                       -   
ii) Superannuation fund                      -                       -   
iii) Gratuity                      -                       -   
iv) Tayo Pension fund                      -                       -   

(d) Staff welfare expenses                      -                       -   

Total                      -                       -   

26 Finance costs
 Rupees in lakhs 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2023 

Interest costs
Interest on term loan                      -                       -   
Interest on bank loans (working capital)                      -                       -   
Interest on loans from related parties                      -                       -   

Other borrowing costs                      -                       -   

Total interest expenses for financial liabilities not classified 
as FVTPL

                     -                       -   

27 Depreciation and amortisation expense
(i) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)                330.41              344.30 
(ii) Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 4)                      -                       -   

               330.41              344.30 
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28 Other expenses

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Repairs to machinery

(2) Freight and handling charges

(3) Rent

(4) Rates and taxes

(5) Insurance charges

(6) Allowance fordoubtful debts and receivables

(7) (Decrease)/ increase in excise duty on inventory

(8) Other expenses

(a) Product warranty charges

(b) Loss on sale/write off of tangible assets

(c) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses

(i) For audit

(d) Legal and other professional costs

(e) Travelling expenses

(f) Consultation fees

(g) Penalties and damages

(h) Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) expenses

(i) Other general expenses

Total

96

For Year ended

31.03.2024

0.06

0.06

Rupees in lakhs

For Year ended

31.03.2023

0.06

0.06
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28 Other expenses

Rupees in lakhs

 For Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 For Year ended 
31.03.2023 

(1) Repairs to machinery                      -                       -   

(2) Freight and handling charges                      -                       -   

(3) Rent                      -                       -   

(4) Rates and taxes                      -                       -   

(5) Insurance charges                      -                       -   

(6) Allowance for doubtful debts and receivables                      -                       -   

(7) (Decrease) / increase in excise duty on inventory                      -                       -   

(8) Other expenses

(a) Product warranty charges                      -                       -   

(b) Loss on sale/write off of tangible assets                      -                       -   

(c) Auditors remuneration and out-of-pocket expenses

  (i) For audit                      -                       -   

(d) Legal and other professional costs                      -                       -   

(e) Travelling expenses                      -                       -   

(f) Consultation fees                      -                       -   

(g) Penalties and damages                      -                       -   

(h) Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) expenses                      -                       -   

(i) Other general expenses                   0.06                  0.06 

Total                   0.06                  0.06 
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29 Segment information

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29.1 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues

OL\-

Operating segments aredefined as components ofan enterprises forwhich discrete financial information is available.

This was evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and

assessing performance untill the operations were suspended on account of initiation of CIRP. The Company's chief

operating decision maker was theBoard ofDirectors of the Company. Pursuant tothe order of initiation of CIRP, the

powers oftheBoard ofDirectors stood suspended and is being exercised by RP. (Refer Note 2.2)

As the company's operations have been suspended since 2016 and subsequently CIRP was initiated,the Company

hadnooperations and therefore, there are no segment reporting applicable.

30 Earnings per share

Basic/diluted earnings per share (A/B)

Basic/diluted earnings per share

Year ended

31.03.2024

(3.22)

Rs. per share

Year ended

31.03.2023

(3.36)

The earnings and weighted average number ofequity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as

follows:

Earnings used in the calculation of basic/diluted earnings per share (Rupees

in lakhs)

Weighted average number ofequity shares forthe purposes ofbasic/diluted

earnings per share

Note: The Company didnothave any potentially dilutive securities in any of

the periods presented.
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Year ended

31.03.2024

(330.47)

1,02,60,935

(3.22)

Year ended

31.03.2023

(344.36)

1,02,60,935

(3.36)
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29 Segment information

29.1 Products and services from which reportable segments derive their revenues
Operating segments are defined as components of an enterprises for which discrete financial information is available. 
This was evaluated regularly by the chief operating decision maker, in deciding how to allocate resources and 
assessing performance untill the operations were suspended on account of initiation of CIRP. The Company’s chief 
operating decision maker was the Board of Directors of the Company. Pursuant to the order of initiation of CIRP, the 
powers of the Board of Directors stood suspended and is being exercised by RP.  (Refer Note 2.2)

As the company's operations have been suspended since 2016 and subsequently CIRP was initiated,the Company 
had no operations and therefore, there are no segment reporting applicable.

30 Earnings per share
 Rs. per share 

 Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 Year ended 
31.03.2023 

 Basic/diluted earnings per share (A/B)               (3.22)                  (3.36)

Basic/diluted earnings per share
The earnings and weighted average number of equity shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share are as 
follows:

 Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 Year ended 
31.03.2023 

A Earnings used in the calculation of basic/diluted earnings per share (Rupees 
in lakhs)           (330.47)              (344.36)

B Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic/diluted 
earnings per share     1,02,60,935        1,02,60,935 

              (3.22)                  (3.36)
Note: The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of 
the periods presented.
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31 Employee benefit plan

31.1 Defined contribution plan

OU-’

TheCompany participates ina number ofdefined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense

recognised in relation to these schemes represents the value ofcontributions payable during the period by them atrates

specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior

month's contributions that were notdue tobe paid until after the end of the reporting period.

Benefit (Contribution to)

Provident fund -

Superannuation fund -

Employees pension scheme - -

31.2 Defined benefit plan:

The Company operates post retirement benefit plans as follows:

Funded

i) Post retirement gratuity (Suspended after initiation of CIRP)

Unfunded

i) Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB) (Suspended due toclose

of operation)

i) Funded defined benefit plans- Post retirement gratuity

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's

obligation in respect of its post retirement gratuity plan is as follows:

Provision forfunded defined benefit obligation (Actual basis) Refer

note3 below

Present value offunded defined benefit obligation

Fair value of plan assets (Refer Note3 below)

Funded status surplus/ (deficit)

Principal actuarial assumptions:

98

Yearended

31.03.2024

As at 31.03.2024

544.82

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended

31.03.2023

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2023

544.82

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below
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31 Employee benefit plan

31.1 Defined contribution plan

The Company participates in a number of defined contribution plans on behalf of relevant personnel. Any expense 
recognised in relation to these schemes represents the value of contributions payable during the period by them at rates 
specified by the rules of those plans. The only amounts included in the balance sheet are those relating to the prior 
month’s contributions that were not due to be paid until after the end of the reporting period.

Rupees in lakhs
Benefit (Contribution to)  Year ended 

31.03.2024 
 Year ended 
31.03.2023 

Provident fund                    -   
Superannuation fund                  -                      -   
Employees pension scheme                  -                      -   

                 -                      -   

31.2 Defined benefit plan :

The Company operates post retirement benefit plans as follows:

Funded
i) Post retirement gratuity (Suspended after initiation of CIRP)

Unfunded
i) Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB) (Suspended due to close 
of operation)

i) Funded defined benefit plans- Post retirement gratuity

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's 
obligation in respect of its post retirement gratuity plan is as follows:

Rupees in lakhs
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Provision for funded defined benefit obligation (Actual basis) Refer 
note 3 below

          544.82             544.82 

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation  Refer note 3 below  Refer note 3 below 
Fair value of plan assets (Refer Note 3 below)
Funded status surplus/ (deficit)

Principal actuarial assumptions: 
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Particulars

Discount rate (p.a.)

Expected rate of return on assets (p.a.)

Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

Demographic assumptions:

Normal retirement age (years)

Mortality rate

Withdrawal rate

Ages from 20-25

Ages from 25-30

Ages from 30-35

Ages from 35-50

Ages from 50-55

Ages from 55-58

Movement in the fair value ofthe plan assets are as follows:

Particulars

Opening fair value of plan assets

Interest income

Employer contributions

Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate

Benefits paid

Closing fair value of plan assets

The plan assets ofthe Company managed througha trust are

managed byTrustees ofTata Yodogawa LtdGratuity Fund. The

details of investments relating to these assets are as under

Investment details (% invested)

Government ofIndia Securities (Central and State)

High quality corporate bonds (including public sector bonds)

Cash (including special deposits)

Total

ii) Unfunded defined benefit plans

OL\-

As at31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

As at31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

Year ended

31.03.2024

Rupees in lakhs

Year ended

31.03.2023

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

As at31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its unfunded defined benefit

plans is as follows:
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Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Discount rate (p.a.) Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
Expected rate of return on assets (p.a.)
Salary escalation rate (p.a.)

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Demographic assumptions:
Normal retirement age (years) Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
Mortality rate
Withdrawal rate 

Ages from 20-25 Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
Ages from 25-30
Ages from 30-35
Ages from 35-50
Ages from 50-55
Ages from 55-58

Movement in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Rupees in lakhs

Particulars  Year ended 
31.03.2024 

 Year ended 
31.03.2023 

Opening fair value of plan assets  Refer note 3 below  Refer note 3 below 
Interest income 
Employer contributions
Return on plan assets greater/ (lesser) than discount rate
Benefits paid
Closing fair value of plan assets                  -                      -   

The plan assets of the Company managed through a trust are 
managed by Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Ltd Gratuity Fund. The 
details of investments relating to these assets are as under

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Investment details (% invested)
Government of India Securities (Central and State) Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
High quality corporate bonds (including public sector bonds)
Cash (including special deposits)
Total

ii) Unfunded defined benefit plans
The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its unfunded defined benefit 
plans is as follows:
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Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB) (Suspended due to

close of operation)

Particulars

Provision for unfunded defined benefit obligation (Actual basis) Refer

note3 below

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation

Principal actuarial assumptions:

Particulars

Discount rate (p.a.)

Medical costs inflation rate (p.a.)

Average medical cost (Rs/person)

Demographic assumptions:

Normal retirement age (years)

Mortality rate (in service)

Mortality rate (Post retirement)

Withdrawal rate

Ages from 20-25

Ages from 25-30

Ages from 30-35

Ages from 35-50

Ages from 50-55

Ages from 55-80

Particulars

Movement in the fair value ofthe unfunded defined benefit obligation:

Obligation as at the beginning ofthe year

Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain)/ loss

Provision recorded

Benefits paid

Obligation as at the end of the year

100

As at 31.03.2024

122.48

122.48

OU-’

Rupees in lakhs

As at 31.03.2023

122.48

122.48

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

As at31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

(Rupees in lakhs)

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Post Retirement Post Retirement

Medical benefits Medical benefits

122.48

122.48

122.48

122.48
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Post Retirement Medical Benefit (PRMB) (Suspended due to 
close of operation)

Rupees in lakhs
Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Provision for unfunded defined benefit obligation (Actual basis) Refer 
note 3 below

          122.48             122.48 

Present value of unfunded defined benefit obligation                  -   
          122.48             122.48 

Principal actuarial assumptions: 
Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Discount rate (p.a.) Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
Medical costs inflation rate (p.a.)
Average medical cost (Rs/person) 

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Demographic assumptions:

Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
Normal retirement age (years)
Mortality rate (in service)
Mortality rate (Post retirement)
Withdrawal rate 

Ages from 20-25 Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
Ages from 25-30
Ages from 30-35
Ages from 35-50
Ages from 50-55
Ages from 55-80

(Rupees in lakhs)
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Particulars Post Retirement 
Medical benefits

Post Retirement 
Medical benefits

Movement in the fair value of the unfunded defined benefit obligation:
Obligation as at the beginning of the year 122.48             122.48 
Current service cost                    -   
Interest cost                    -   
Actuarial (gain)/ loss                    -   
Provision recorded                    -   
Benefits paid                    -   
Obligation as at the end of the year 122.48             122.48 
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Sensitivity Analysis

OL\-

Significant actuarial assumptions forthe determination of the unfunded defined benefit obligation are discount rate,

expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably

possible changes oftheassumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions

constant.

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the

weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars

Effect ofa 1% change in medical escalation rate

- 1% Increase

- 1% Decrease

Effect ofa 1% change in discount rate

- 1% Increase

- 1% Decrease

Actuarial assumptions forleave benefit scheme

Theprincipal assumptions used forthepurposes ofthe actuarial

valuations were as follows:

Normal retirement age (years)

Discount rate(s)

Expected rate(s) of salary increase

As at 31.03.2024

Post Retirement

Medical benefits

As at 31.03.2023

Post Retirement

Medical benefits

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

Valuation as at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Refer note3 below Refer note3 below

Notes:

1) No Acturial valuation has been done fortheperiod.

2) The gratuity plan is funded till the date of initiation of CIRP

3)As theCompany hasprepared the financial statements forthe year ended 31 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023 on not

a going concern basis, liability for post retirement gratuity is provided foron an estimate basis till the initiation of CIRP

andforpost CIRP period it was suspended and hence disclosures as required under IndAS 19 "Employee Benefits"

related to defined benefit plans have notbeen made.

4)Further, the company received communication dated 19th Dec' 2022 from Employees' Provident Fund Organization,

Regional Office, Jamshedpur enquiring whether the accumulated losses till date have been made good or not. It has

been informed to the Regional Office that the Tata Yodogawa Provident Fund Trust has incurred accumulated losses

of Rs 9232723 fortheyear ended 31st March 2019 to31st March 2023 due toshortfall in the earnings of the Trust.

As per the byelaws oftheTrust, such loss/shortfall has to be paid by the company toTrust. However, as the CIRP has

commenced since Sth April 2019 and thecorresponding expense and liability of the said amount hasnotbeen provided

forin the books ofthecompany, thesaid shortfall amount will be paid by the Resolution Applicant on approval ofwhich

is reserved fororder.

5) Refer Note 2.24
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Sensitivity Analysis

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the unfunded defined benefit obligation are discount rate, 
expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably 
possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions 
constant. 

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the 
weighted principal assumptions is:

Particulars As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023
Post Retirement 
Medical benefits

Post Retirement 
Medical benefits

Effect of a 1% change in medical escalation rate
- 1% Increase Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
- 1% Decrease

Effect of a 1% change in discount rate Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
- 1% Increase
- 1% Decrease

Actuarial assumptions for leave benefit scheme
The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial 
valuations were as follows:

Valuation as at
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Normal retirement age (years) Refer note 3 below Refer note 3 below
Discount rate(s)
Expected rate(s) of salary increase

Notes:
1)  No Acturial valuation has been done for the period.
2) The gratuity plan is funded till the date of initiation of CIRP
3) As the Company has prepared the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024 and 31 March, 2023 on not 
a going concern basis, liability for post retirement gratuity is provided for on an estimate basis till the initiation of CIRP 
and for post CIRP period it was suspended and hence disclosures as required under Ind AS 19 "Employee Benefits" 
related to defined benefit plans have not been made.
4) Further, the company received communication  dated 19th Dec' 2022 from Employees' Provident Fund Organization, 
Regional Office, Jamshedpur enquiring whether the accumulated losses till date have been made good or not. It has 
been informed to the Regional Office that the Tata Yodogawa Provident Fund Trust has incurred accumulated losses 
of Rs 9232723 for the year ended 31st March 2019 to 31st March 2023 due to shortfall in the earnings of the Trust.  
As per the byelaws of the Trust, such loss/shortfall has to be paid by the company to Trust. However, as the CIRP has 
commenced since 5th April 2019 and the corresponding expense and liability of the said amount has not been provided 
for in the books of the company, the said shortfall amount will be paid by the Resolution Applicant on approval of which 
is reserved for order.    
5) Refer Note 2.24
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32 Related Party Transactions

A. List of related parties:

i Holding company

Tata Steel Limited

ii. Fellow Subsidiaries

a) Tata Steel Europe Limited

b)

c)

The Indian Steel& Wire Products

Limited

The Tinplate Company ofIndia

Limited

Jamshedpur Continuous Annealing

d) and Processing Company Private

Limited

e)
Tata Steel Utilities And Infrastructure

Services Limited

f} Tata Metaliks Limited

g) Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Limited

i) Tata Sponge Iron Limited

j) TKM Global Logistics Limited

k) TRF Limited

iii. Others - Post employment benefit plan

a)

b)

c)

d)

Trustees ofTata Yodogawa Limited

Gratuity Fund

Trustees ofTata Yodogawa Limited

Provident Fund

Tata Yodogawa Limited Employees

Pension Fund

Tata Yodogawa Limited

Superannuation Fund

Nature ofTransactions

B. Transactions with related parties

(i) Receiving of services

1 Tata Steel Limited

2
Tata Steel Utilities And Infrastructure

Services Limited

Holding Fellow

company Subsidiaries

102

(-)

Others

OU-’

Rupees in lakhs

Key

Management

Personnel

(KMP)

Total
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32 Related Party Transactions

A. List of related parties :

i Holding company
Tata Steel Limited

ii. Fellow Subsidiaries 
a) Tata Steel Europe Limited

b) The Indian Steel & Wire Products 
Limited

c) The Tinplate Company of India 
Limited

d) 
Jamshedpur Continuous Annealing 
and Processing Company Private 
Limited

e) Tata Steel  Utilities And Infrastructure 
Services Limited 

f) Tata Metaliks Limited
g) Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Limited
i) Tata Sponge Iron Limited
j) TKM Global Logistics Limited
k) TRF Limited

iii. Others - Post employment benefit plan 

a) Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited 
Gratuity Fund

b) Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited 
Provident Fund

c) Tata Yodogawa Limited Employees 
Pension Fund

d) Tata Yodogawa Limited 
Superannuation Fund

 Rupees in lakhs 

Nature of Transactions  Holding 
company 

 Fellow 
Subsidiaries   Others 

 Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP) 

 Total 

B. Transactions with related parties

(i) Receiving of services

1 Tata Steel Limited                
-                    -                -                     -                -   

               
-                    -                -                     -                -   

2 Tata Steel  Utilities And Infrastructure 
Services Limited 

               
-                    -                -                     -                -   

 (-)                  -    (-)  (-)              -   
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(ii) Receiving of borrowings

1 Tata Steel Limited

(iii) Interest income

1
Tata Steel Utilities And Infrastructure

Services Limited

(iv) Interest costs

1 Tata Steel Limited

(v) Reimbursement ofexpenses (paid)

1 Tata Steel Limited

(vi) Issue of preference shares

(vii)

1 Tata Steel Limited - - - - -

Contribution to post employment benefit

plans

1

2

3

4

Trustees ofTata Yodogawa Limited Gratuity

Fund "

Trustees ofTata Yodogawa Limited

Provident Fund " " " "

Tata Yodogawa Limited Employees Pension

Fund " ” ” "

Tata Yodogawa Limited Superannuation

Fund

103

0.38 - -

(0.29)

0.38

(") (0.29)
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Total               -                    -                -                     -                -   

              -                    -    (-)  (-)              -   

(ii) Receiving of  borrowings

1 Tata Steel Limited               -                    -                -                     -                -   
              -    (-)  (-)  (-)              -   

(iii) Interest income

1 Tata Steel  Utilities And Infrastructure 
Services Limited               -                0.38              -                     -             

0.38 

 (-)             (0.29)  (-)  (-)         
(0.29)

(iv) Interest costs

1 Tata Steel Limited               -                    -                -                     -                -   
              -    (-)  (-)  (-)              -   

(v) Reimbursement of expenses (paid)

1 Tata Steel Limited                
-                    -                -                     -                -   

               
-    (-)  (-)  (-)              -   

(vi) Issue of preference shares

1 Tata Steel Limited               -                    -                -                     -                -   
              -    (-)  (-)  (-)              -   

(vii) Contribution to post employment benefit 
plans

1 Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited Gratuity 
Fund               -                    -                -                     -                -   

 (-)  (-)              -    (-)              -   

2 Trustees of Tata Yodogawa Limited 
Provident Fund               -                    -                     -                -   

 (-)  (-)              -    (-)              -   

3 Tata Yodogawa Limited Employees Pension 
Fund               -                    -                     -                -   

 (-)  (-)              -    (-)              -   

4 Tata Yodogawa Limited Superannuation 
Fund               -                    -                     -                -   
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Total
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-› -›

(-)

Note: i) Figures in brackets stated pertain to year ended 31 March, 2023

ii) Refer Notes4 ofNote 31

0.38 - -

(-)

OU-’

0.38

iii) Transactions relating to Tata Steel Utilities And Infrastructure Services Limited have notbeen considered in the

Company Financial Statements as the same pertain to expenses pertaining to CIRP. Refer Note 2.24

Particulars

The following balances were outstanding atthe end of

the reporting period

(i) Outstanding receivables

a) Tata Steel Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

b) Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

c) TRF Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

(ii) Deposits (including interest accrued)

a)
Tata Steel Utilities And Infrastructure Services

Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

(iii) Outstanding payables

a) Tata Steel Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

104

Key

Holding Fellow Management

company Subsidiaries Personnel

(KMP)

833.93 -

833.93 -

- 1.94

- 1.94

- 4.70

- 4.34

Rupees in

lakhs

Total

- 1.94

- 1.94

- 4.70

- 4.34

- 833.93

- 833.93
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 (-)  (-)              -    (-)              -   

Total                
-                0.38              -                     -             

0.38 
 (-)  (-)              -    (-)              -   

Note: i) Figures in brackets stated pertain to year ended 31 March, 2023
ii) Refer Notes 4 of Note 31
iii) Transactions relating to Tata Steel  Utilities And Infrastructure Services Limited have not been considered in the 
Company Financial Statements as the same pertain to expenses pertaining to CIRP. Refer Note 2.24

Rupees in 
lakhs

Particulars Holding 
company

Fellow 
Subsidiaries 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
(KMP)

Total

C. The following balances were outstanding at the end of 
the reporting period

(i) Outstanding receivables

a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2024             -                   -                    -                 -   
As at 31-03-2023             -                   -                    -                 -   

b) Tata Metaliks DI Pipes Limited
As at 31-03-2024             -   1.94                  -   1.94
As at 31-03-2023             -   1.94                  -   1.94

c) TRF Limited
As at 31-03-2024             -                   -                    -                 -   
As at 31-03-2023             -                   -                    -                 -   

(ii) Deposits (including interest accrued)

a) Tata Steel  Utilities And Infrastructure Services 
Limited 
As at 31-03-2024             -   4.70                  -   4.70
As at 31-03-2023             -   4.34                  -   4.34

(iii) Outstanding payables

a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2024 833.93                 -                    -   833.93
As at 31-03-2023 833.93                 -                    -   833.93



TAYO ROLLS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

b) TheIndian Steel& Wire Products Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

Tata Steel Utilities And Infrastructure Services

Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

d) The Tinplate Company ofIndia Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

(iv) Issue of preference shares

a) Tata Steel Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

(v) Current borrowings

a) Tata Steel Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

(vi) Interest accrued

a) Tata Steel Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

(vii) Advance received

a) Tata Steel Limited

As at 31-03-2024

As at31-03-2023

34,130.00 -

34,130.00

6,700.00

6,700.00 -

2,058.18 -

2,058.18 -

2,042.57 -

2,042.57 -

- 14.20

14.20

- 0.60

- 0.60

OL\-

- 14.20

14.20

- 0.60

- 0.60

- 34,130.00

34,130.00

6,700.00

- 6,700.00

- 2,058.18

- 2,058.18

- 2,042.57

- 2,042.57

i) Transactions relating to Tata Steel Utilities And Infrastructure Services Limited have not been considered in the Company

Financial Statements as the same pertain to expenses pertaining to CIRP. Refer Note 2.24

ii) Refer Notes4 ofNote 31
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b) The Indian Steel & Wire Products Limited
As at 31-03-2024             -   14.20                  -   14.20
As at 31-03-2023             -              14.20                  -   14.20

c) Tata Steel  Utilities And Infrastructure Services 
Limited 
As at 31-03-2024             -                   -                    -                 -   
As at 31-03-2023             -                   -                    -                 -   

d) The Tinplate Company of India Limited
As at 31-03-2024             -               0.60                  -              0.60 
As at 31-03-2023             -               0.60                  -              0.60 

(iv) Issue of preference shares

a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2024  34,130.00                 -                    -     34,130.00 
As at 31-03-2023  34,130.00                 -                    -     34,130.00 

(v) Current borrowings

a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2024    6,700.00                 -                    -       6,700.00 
As at 31-03-2023    6,700.00                 -                    -       6,700.00 

(vi) Interest accrued

a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2024    2,058.18                 -                    -       2,058.18 
As at 31-03-2023    2,058.18                 -                    -       2,058.18 

(vii) Advance received

a) Tata Steel Limited
As at 31-03-2024    2,042.57                 -                    -       2,042.57 
As at 31-03-2023    2,042.57                 -                    -   2,042.57

i) Transactions relating to Tata Steel  Utilities And Infrastructure Services Limited have not been considered in the Company 
Financial Statements as the same pertain to expenses pertaining to CIRP. Refer Note 2.24
ii) Refer Notes 4 of Note 31
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33 Contingent liabilities and commitments

33.1 Contingent liabilities

a) Claims against the Company notacknowledged as debts

Excise and service tax”

Sales tax

Income tax

Other money forwhich theCompany is contingently liable -

(i) JSEB/BSEB -electricity charges (excluding interest) (Refer note (i) - -

“Amount paid under protest in respect thereof

OU-’

Rupees inlakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

Note:

(i) In respect to Jharkhand State Electricty Board (JSEB)/Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL)

Consequent to the judgment dated 2nd May, 2013 of Honorable Jharkhand High Court with regard to the

applicability of power tariff structure on the Company's Induction Furnace Unit from January, 2000, the Jharkhand

State Electricity Board (JSEB) (the then)/ Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam limited (JBVNL)( Now ) had raised

rectified energy bill dated 10th June, 2013 forRs.27,203.00 lakhs (later claim revised to Rs. 26,361.00 lakhs).

The rectified energy bill was challenged separately before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court. The Company

hadalso contested the judgment dated 2nd May, 2013 on theapplicability of power tariff structure by way of filing

an appeal (Letters Patent Appeal) before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court which was admitted on merit on

3rd July 2013.

a) JSEB/JBVNL had also initiated certificate proceedings forrecovery of Rs. 26,361.00 lakhs against the Company

and Board of Directors, which was challenged before the Certificate Officer. The Certificate Officer in his Order

dated 12th December, 2015 had absolved the directors from any liability to the extent the Certificate amount was

considered. He also directed JSEB/JBVNL toraise revised bills and the Company topaythesame within 15 days

ofthe Order. Consequently, JSEB/JBVNL raised the revised bill dated 24th December 2015 forRs.21,804.00

lakhs. The Company hadalso challenged the Order dated 12th December, 2015 oftheCertificate officer before

the Division Bench oftheHonorable Jharkhand High Court.

On 18th December, 2015, the Division Bench of Honorable Jharkhand High Court passed its Order that "No

Coercive Action" shall be initiated against the Company during pendency and final hearing ofthese Appeals. The

matter is sub-judice.

During the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, JSEB/JBVNL hadsubmitteda claim forRs 44053.35 Lakhs

including Delayed Payment Surcharge pursuant to Public Announcement dated 10th April, 2019 issued in terms

ofSection 15 ofthe IBC 2016. The claim raised by JSEB/JBVNL was recalculated by the Resolution Professional

and appropriately admitted. The effect of such recalculation and admission ofliability, however, has not been given

effect to in the financial statements.

b) During the financial year 2000-01, Bihar State Electricity Board (BSEB) had issued circulars revising the fuel

surcharge rates for the period from 1996-97 to 1999-2000. Based on management estimate the Company had

paid and provided the principal amount aggregating to Rs. 43.61 lakhs in the books of account and fileda

Letters PatentAppeal (LPA) before the Division Bench oftheJharkhand High Court disputing payment ofdelayed

payment surcharge (DPS) amounting toRs. 1,232.39 lakhs.

Further, the Company hadalso fileda Special Leave Petition (SLP) before the Hon'ble Supreme Courtforseeking

relief from payment ofDPS. The Supreme Court granted stay on the payment ofDPS till final decision by the

Jharkhand High Court. The matter is still sub-judice. Pending finalisation of the matter no adjustments have been

made in the financial statements forthe year ended 31 March, 2024.
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33 Contingent liabilities and commitments
 Rupees in lakhs 

As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

33.1 Contingent liabilities 
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Excise and service tax *                 -                                                                    
-   

Sales tax                 -                               -   

Income tax                 -                -   

Other money for which the Company is contingently liable        -   

(i) JSEB/BSEB -electricity charges (excluding interest ) (Refer note (i)                 -       -   

* Amount paid under protest in respect thereof       -   

Note:

(i) In respect to Jharkhand State Electricty Board (JSEB)/Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam Limited (JBVNL)
Consequent to the judgment dated 2nd May, 2013 of Honorable Jharkhand High Court with regard to the 
applicability of power tariff structure on the Company’s Induction Furnace Unit from January, 2000, the Jharkhand 
State Electricity Board (JSEB) (the then) / Jharkhand Bijli Vitran Nigam limited (JBVNL)( Now ) had raised 
rectified energy bill dated 10th June, 2013 for Rs. 27,203.00 lakhs (later claim revised to Rs. 26,361.00 lakhs). 
The rectified energy bill was challenged separately before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court. The Company 
had also contested the judgment dated 2nd May, 2013 on the applicability of power tariff structure by way of filing 
an appeal (Letters Patent Appeal) before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court which was admitted on merit on 
3rd July 2013.

JSEB/JBVNL had also initiated certificate proceedings for recovery of Rs. 26,361.00 lakhs against the Company 
and Board of Directors, which was challenged before the Certificate Officer. The Certificate Officer in his Order 
dated 12th December, 2015 had absolved the directors from any liability to the extent the Certificate amount was 
considered. He also directed JSEB/JBVNL to raise revised bills and the Company to pay the same within 15 days 
of the Order. Consequently, JSEB/JBVNL raised the revised bill dated 24th December 2015 for Rs. 21,804.00 
lakhs. The Company had also challenged the Order dated 12th December, 2015 of the Certificate officer before 
the Division Bench of the Honorable Jharkhand High Court.

On 18th December, 2015, the Division Bench of Honorable Jharkhand High Court passed its Order that "No 
Coercive Action" shall be initiated against the Company during pendency and final hearing of these Appeals.  The 
matter is sub-judice.  

During the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process, JSEB/JBVNL had submitted a claim for Rs 44053.35 Lakhs 
including Delayed Payment Surcharge pursuant to Public Announcement dated 10th April, 2019 issued in terms 
of Section 15 of the IBC 2016. The claim raised by JSEB/JBVNL was recalculated by the Resolution Professional 
and appropriately admitted. The effect of such recalculation and admission of liability, however, has not been given 
effect to in the financial statements.                                                                                                                                

b) During the financial year 2000-01, Bihar State Electricity Board (BSEB) had issued circulars revising the fuel 
surcharge rates for the period from 1996-97 to 1999-2000. Based on management estimate the Company had 
paid and provided the principal amount aggregating to Rs. 43.61 lakhs in the books of account  and filed a 
Letters Patent Appeal (LPA) before the Division Bench of the Jharkhand High Court disputing payment of delayed 
payment surcharge (DPS) amounting to Rs. 1,232.39 lakhs.

Further, the Company had also filed a Special Leave Petition (SLP) before the Hon’ble Supreme Court for seeking 
relief from payment of DPS. The Supreme Court granted stay on the payment of DPS till final decision by the 
Jharkhand High Court. The matter is still sub-judice. Pending finalisation of the matter no adjustments have been 
made in the financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2024.

a)
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On admission of the claim and because they became members ofCoC, liabilties towards JSEB/JBVNL cease tobe

contingent in nature.

(ii) In respect to others

As on Sth April 2019 (i.e. date of initiation of CIRP), the company had contingent liabilities towards Excise&

Service Tax, Sales Tax and Income Tax departments. After the date of commencement ofCorporate Insolvency

Resolution Process (CIRP), Excise& Service tax and Sales Tax department had filed their claims of Rs 281.38

lakhs and Rs 760.31 lakhs respectively which were admitted by the RP and upon admission ofthe claim amount

they became themembers ofCoC. Hence, they ceased to be contingent in nature. However, no effects of the

same hasbeen made in the financial statements.

End use of funds raised from theissue of Non-Cumulative

Redeemable Preference Shares

Opening balance as atbeginning ofthe year

Funds raised during the year

Total

Utilisation of fund

Working capital

Unutilised monies atend oftheyear

Rupees inlakhs

As at 31.03.2024 As at31.03.2023

34.2 The Company didnothave any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material

foreseeable losses.

34.3 Few ofthe shareholders of the Company have disputed title over the shares forwhich they are fighting cases with their

relatives/ others to establish the title over the shares. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and thecourt

order, the Company is require to deposit these amount ofdividend pertaining to those shares ina separate bank account

.However, the company hasclosed the separate bank account The accumulated deposits over the years tothis account

is Rs. 0.47 lakh (As at 31.03.2023: Rs 0.47 lakh). The amount belongs tomore than one shareholders. Accordingly, such

amounts were transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF) by the Company. (Also refer Note 12)

34.4 The year end foreign currency exposures that have notbeen hedged bya derivative instrument or otherwise are given

below:

Amount payable for:

Royalty

Note: Figures in brackets are forthe previous year.
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USD in lakhs

3.00

(3.00)

Rupees inlakhs

(207.12)

(207.12)
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On admission of the claim and because they became members of CoC, liabilties towards JSEB/JBVNL cease to be 
contingent in nature.

(ii) In respect to others
As on 5th April 2019 (i.e. date of initiation of CIRP), the company had contingent liabilities towards Excise & 
Service Tax, Sales Tax and Income Tax departments. After the date of commencement of Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (CIRP), Excise & Service tax and Sales Tax department had filed their claims of Rs 281.38 
lakhs and Rs 760.31 lakhs respectively which were admitted by the RP and upon admission of the claim amount 
they became the members of CoC. Hence, they ceased to be contingent in nature. However, no effects of the 
same has been made in the financial statements.

34.1 End use of funds raised from the issue of Non-Cumulative 
Redeemable Preference Shares

Rupees in lakhs
As at 31.03.2024 As at 31.03.2023

Opening balance as at beginning of the year                -                       -   
Funds raised during the year                -                       -   
Total                -                       -   
Utilisation of fund
Working capital                -                       -   
Unutilised monies at end of the year                -                       -   

34.2 The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

34.3 Few of the shareholders of the Company have disputed title over the shares for which they are fighting cases with their 
relatives/ others to establish the title over the shares. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the court 
order, the Company is require to deposit these amount of dividend pertaining to those shares in a separate bank account 
.However, the company has closed the separate bank account The accumulated deposits over the years to this account 
is Rs. 0.47 lakh (As at 31.03.2023: Rs 0.47 lakh). The amount belongs to more than one shareholders. Accordingly, such 
amounts were transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund  (IEPF) by the Company. (Also refer Note 12)

34.4 The year end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are given 
below:

USD in lakhs Rupees in lakhs
Amount payable for:
Royalty            3.00             (207.12)

          (3.00)             (207.12)
Note: Figures in brackets are for the previous year.	
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34.5 TURNOVER, CLOSINGAND OPENING STOCKS OF GOODS PRODUCED

Class ofproducts

a) Rolls

(i) Steel, steel base - - ” -

and Cast iron rolls - - - -

(ii) Forged rolls - - - - - -

b) Pig iron

(i) Others - pig iron skull etc. - - - -

c) Ingots - - - - - -

d) Engineering forgings - - - - - -

e) Conversion income

TOTAL - - ”* -

Turnover@

Tonnes
Rupees

lakhs

Closing

Stock

'FI Tonnes
Rupees in

lakhs

Opening

Stock

Tonnes

OU-’

Rupees

in lakhs

The operations of the Company remained suspended since Sth September, 2016, hence there were no stock of

finished goods atthebeginning and end ofthe financial year ending on 31.03.2024.

34.6 Details of closing stock of raw materials and stores (including packing materials)

(Refer to Note 2.15)

Closing Stock

Particulars

(a) Scrap

(b) Other ferro alloys

(c) Others

(d) Stores and spares

Total

108

Rupees in lakhs

As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

280.19

20.34

463.02

0.02

763.57

280.19

20.34

463.02

0.02

763.57
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34.5 TURNOVER, CLOSING AND OPENING STOCKS OF GOODS PRODUCED

Class of products Turnover @ Closing 
Stock

Opening 
Stock

Tonnes Rupees in 
lakhs Tonnes Rupees in 

lakhs Tonnes Rupees 
in lakhs

a) Rolls
(i) Steel, steel base          -              -   * *                  -           -   

and Cast iron rolls          -              -                    -           -   

(ii) Forged  rolls          -              -                    -                 -                    -           -   
         -              -                    -                 -                    -           -   

b) Pig iron
(i) Others - pig iron skull etc.          -              -                   -             -   

 -              -                   -             -   

c) Ingots          -              -                    -                 -                    -           -   
                 -           -   

d) Engineering forgings          -              -                    -                 -                    -           -   
         -              -                    -                 -                    -           -   

e) Conversion income -              -   -  -  -  - 
 -              -    -  -  -  - 

   
                                  TOTAL               -                    -    **           -   

                -                   -             -   

The operations of the Company remained suspended since 5th September, 2016, hence there were no stock of 
finished goods at the beginning and end of the financial year ending on 31.03.2024.

34.6 Details of closing stock of raw materials and stores (including packing materials)
(Refer to Note 2.15) Rupees in lakhs

Closing Stock

Particulars As at 
31.03.2024

As at 
31.03.2023

(a) Scrap          280.19         280.19 
(b) Other ferro alloys            20.34           20.34 
(c) Others          463.02         463.02 
(d) Stores and spares              0.02             0.02 

Total          763.57         763.57 
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35 Financial instruments

Capital management

OL\-

The Company has incurreda loss of Rs. 330.47 lakhs during the year ended 31 March, 2024 (incurreda loss of Rs.

344.36 lakhs during the year ended 31 March, 2023) and theaccumulated losses as at 31 March, 2024 amounting toRs.

55,311.67 lakhs (as at 31 March, 2023 amounting toRs. 54,981.20 lakhs) have eroded thenetworth ofthe Company. The

Company's operating results continue to be materially affected by various factors and unavailability of future financing.

The Board ofDirectors at their meeting held on Sth September, 2016 haddecided toclose the operations ofthe Company.

Accordingly, on 6th September, 2016 theCompany filed closure application U/s 25-O oftheIndustrial Disputes Act, 1947

with the State Government Authorities, which was rejected on 27th October, 2016. The Company fileda Writ Petition

before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court against the rejection order. Currently the Company haswithdrawn the petition

in view oftheamendment madetotheIndustrial Disputes Act, 1947 and also that the rejection order is valid for one year

and has lost its force by efflux of time framed by Statute itself.

The CIRP in terms ofthe IBC has commenced pursuant tothe Order dated 05.04.2019 passed by NCLT Kolkata and has

appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) of the Company. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal has now

been confirmed as the Resolution Professional (RP) fortheCompany bytheCommittee ofCreditors (CoC) constituted in

terms ofthe IBC.

Consequenttoa petition filed by CoC the Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata, has passed an orderon 30.10.2019 and has appointed

Mr.Anish Agarwal (IPRegistration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place

of Mrs. Vinita Agrawal.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Rupees in lakhs

Debt (i)

Cash and bank balance

Net debt

Total equity

Net debt to equity ratio (%)

As at As at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

42,830.00 42,830.00

1.44 1.52

42,828.56 42,828.48

(48,068.75) (48,068.75)

(i) Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings as disclosed in note 15, 16 and 19

(ii) Cash and Bank balances have been adjusted with earmarked balances (Refer Note 12)

A. Financial assets and liabilities

As at 31.03.2024

Financial assets

Other investments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents " ” "

Amortised

cost

0.09 -

1.44 •
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Fair value

through

OCI

-89.10•/« -89.10%

Rupees in

lakhs

Fair value

through Total carrying Total fair

profit and value value

loss

- 0.09

- 1.44

0.09

1.44
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35 Financial instruments

Capital management
The Company has incurred a loss of Rs. 330.47 lakhs during the year ended 31 March, 2024 (incurred a loss of Rs. 
344.36 lakhs during the year ended 31 March, 2023) and the accumulated losses as at 31 March, 2024 amounting to Rs. 
55,311.67 lakhs (as at 31 March, 2023 amounting to Rs. 54,981.20 lakhs) have eroded the net worth of the Company. The 
Company's operating results continue to be materially affected by various factors and unavailability of future financing.

The Board of Directors at their meeting held on 5th September, 2016 had decided to close the operations of the Company. 
Accordingly, on 6th September, 2016 the Company filed closure application U/s 25-O of the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 
with the State Government Authorities, which was rejected on 27th October, 2016. The Company filed a Writ Petition 
before the Honorable Jharkhand High Court against the rejection order. Currently the Company has withdrawn the petition 
in view of the amendment made to the Industrial Disputes Act, 1947 and also that  the rejection order is valid for one year  
and has lost its force by efflux of time framed by Statute itself. 
The CIRP in terms of the IBC has commenced pursuant to the Order dated 05.04.2019 passed by NCLT Kolkata and has 
appointed Mrs. Vinita Agrawal as the Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) of the Company. Mrs. Vinita Agrawal has now 
been confirmed as the Resolution Professional (RP) for the Company by the Committee of Creditors (CoC) constituted in 
terms of the IBC.                                                                                                                                                                                   
Consequent to a petition filed  by CoC  the Hon’ble  NCLT, Kolkata , has passed an order on 30.10.2019 and has  appointed 
Mr. Anish Agarwal (IP Registration No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P-01497/2018-2019/12256) as Resolution Professional in place 
of  Mrs. Vinita Agrawal .
Gearing ratio
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as follows:

Rupees in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2024
As at 

31.03.2023

Debt (i)       42,830.00        42,830.00 
Cash and bank balance               1.44                 1.52 
Net debt       42,828.56        42,828.48 

Total equity      (48,068.75)     (48,068.75)

Net debt to equity ratio (%) -89.10% -89.10%

(i) Debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings as disclosed in note 15, 16 and 19
(ii) Cash and Bank balances have been adjusted with earmarked balances (Refer Note 12)

A. Financial assets and liabilities

As at 31.03.2024
Rupees in 

lakhs

Financial assets Amortised 
cost

Fair value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

profit and 
loss

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

Other investments            0.09              -                    -                   0.09                 0.09 
Trade receivables               -                -                    -                       -                       -   
Cash and cash equivalents            1.44              -                    -                   1.44                 1.44 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents               -                -                    -                       -                       -   
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Other financial assets (current and non-

current)

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

As at 31.03.2023

Financial assets

Other investments

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Bank balances other than cash and cash

equivalents

Other financial assets (current and non-

current)

Total financial assets

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

Total financial liabilities

74.05 -

75.58 -

42,830.00 -

3,272.01 -

2,134.07 -

48,236.08 -

Amortised

cost

0.09 -

1.52 -

73.26 -

74.87 -

42,830.00 -

3,272.01 -

2,134.07

48,236.08 -

Fair value

through

OCI

- 74.05

- 75.58

- 42,830.00

- 3,272.01

- 2,134.07

- 48,236.08

Fair value

through Total carrying

profit and value

loss

- 0.09

- 1.52

- 73.26

- 74.87

- 42,830.00

- 3,272.01

2,134.07

- 48,236.08

OU-’

74.05

75.58

42,830.00

3,272.01

2,134.07

48,236.08

Rupees in lakhs

Total fair

value

0.09

1.52

73.26

74.87

42,830.00

3,272.01

2,134.07

48,236.08

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent toinitial recognition at fair

value, grouped into Level1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level

1):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets foridentical assets or liabilities. This category consists quoted equity shares, quoted corporate debt instruments

and mutual fund investments.
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Other financial assets (current and non-
current)          74.05              -                    -                 74.05               74.05 

Total financial assets          75.58              -                    -                 75.58               75.58 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings    42,830.00              -                    -          42,830.00        42,830.00 
Trade payables      3,272.01              -                    -            3,272.01          3,272.01 
Other financial liabilities      2,134.07              -                    -            2,134.07          2,134.07 
Total financial liabilities    48,236.08              -                    -          48,236.08        48,236.08 

As at 31.03.2023
Rupees in lakhs

Financial assets Amortised 
cost

Fair value 
through 

OCI

Fair value 
through 

profit and 
loss

Total carrying 
value

Total fair 
value

Other investments            0.09              -                    -                   0.09                 0.09 
Trade receivables               -                -                    -                       -                       -   
Cash and cash equivalents            1.52              -                    -                   1.52                 1.52 
Bank balances other than cash and cash 
equivalents               -                -                    -                       -                       -   

Other financial assets (current and non-
current)          73.26              -                    -                 73.26               73.26 

Total financial assets          74.87              -                    -                 74.87               74.87 

Financial liabilities

Borrowings    42,830.00              -                    -          42,830.00        42,830.00 
Trade payables      3,272.01              -                    -            3,272.01          3,272.01 
Other financial liabilities      2,134.07              -                    -            2,134.07          2,134.07 
Total financial liabilities    48,236.08              -                    -          48,236.08        48,236.08 

B. The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair 
value, grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, as described below:

Quoted prices in an active market (Level 
1):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets that are measured by reference to quoted prices (unadjusted) in active 
markets for identical assets or liabilities. This category consists quoted equity shares, quoted corporate debt instruments 
and mutual fund investments.
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Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2):

OL\-

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level1 that are observable forthe asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from

prices). This level of hierarchy includes Company's over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable

market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, usinga valuation model based on

assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor

are they based on available market data.

Investments ofthe Company aremeasured atfair value atthe end ofeach reporting period. However, since the inception

of CIRP, company hasnotdoneanyfair valuation of its investments. The following table gives information on determination

of its fair value, the valuation technique and inputs used.

Financial assets

Investment in equity instruments (Quoted)

Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)

Investments in debentures or bonds

Notes:

(i) Includes certain investments whose fair values are Nil.

Fair value

as at

31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Fair value

hierarchy

Rupees in lakhs

Valuation

techniques

and key input

Valued using

the cost

approach to

0.09 0.09 Level3 arrive at their

fair value.

Refer note (ii)

below.

(ii) Cost ofthese investments approximate the fair value because there isa range of possible fair value measurements

and thecost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured atfair value ona

recurring basis:

The directors/resolution professional consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities

recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

C. Financial risk management

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks which includes market risk (including foreign currency

exchange rate risk and interest rate risk ), credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company's focus is to ensure liquidity which is sufficient to meettheCompany's ongoing requirements. The Company

monitors and manages keyfinancial risks so as to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The

Company hasa risk management policy which covers the risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The

details for managing each ofthese risks are summarised ahead.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the expected cash flows or fair value ofa financial instrument could change owing tochanges in

market prices. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in Foreign currency exchange

rate and interest.

Foreign currency exchange rate risk:

Foreign exchange risk comprises of risk that may arise to the Company because of fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have an impact on the Statements of Profit and

Loss. At the year end, the Company was exposed toforeign exchange risk arising from the foreign currency payables of

the Company. However, the foreign currency liability has not been revalued as on 31.03.2024 due tothe ongoing CIRP

asthevendor has notsubmitted any claims to RP.
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Valuation techniques with observable inputs (Level 2):
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities, measured using inputs other than quoted prices included 
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from 
prices). This level of hierarchy includes Company’s over-the-counter (OTC) derivative contracts.

Valuation techniques with significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): 
This level of hierarchy includes financial assets and liabilities measured using inputs that are not based on observable 
market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part, using a valuation model based on 
assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument nor 
are they based on available market data.
Investments of the Company are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period. However, since the inception 
of CIRP, company has not done any fair valuation of its investments. The following table gives information on determination 
of its fair value, the valuation technique and inputs used.

Rupees in lakhs

Financial assets Fair value 
as at

Fair value 
hierarchy

Valuation 
techniques 

and key input
31.03.2024 31.03.2023

Investment in equity instruments (Quoted)              -                    -                       -   
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)              -                    -                       -   

Investments in debentures or bonds           0.09              0.09  Level 3 

Valued using 
the cost 

approach to 
arrive at their 

fair value. 
Refer note (ii) 

below.
Notes:
(i) Includes certain investments whose fair values are Nil.
(ii) Cost of these investments approximate the fair value because there is a range of possible fair value measurements 
and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

Fair value of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis :
The directors/resolution professional consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities 
recognised in the financial statements approximate their fair values.

C. Financial risk management
The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks which includes market risk (including foreign currency 
exchange rate risk and interest rate risk ), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The Company's focus is to ensure liquidity which is sufficient to meet the Company's ongoing requirements. The Company 
monitors and manages key financial risks so as to minimise potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The 
Company has a risk management policy which covers the risks associated with the financial assets and liabilities. The 
details for managing each of these risks are summarised ahead.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the expected cash flows or fair value of a financial instrument could change owing to changes in 
market prices. The Company's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in Foreign currency exchange 
rate and interest.
Foreign currency exchange rate risk:
Foreign exchange risk comprises of risk that may arise to the Company because of fluctuations in foreign currency 
exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may have an impact on the  Statements of Profit and 
Loss. At the year end, the Company was exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from the foreign currency payables of 
the Company. However, the foreign currency liability has not been revalued as on 31.03.2024 due to the ongoing CIRP 
as the vendor has not submitted any claims to RP.
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Thecarrying amounts oftheCompany foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end

of the reporting period are as follows:

USD

Total

USD

Total

Liabilities

as at

31.03.2024

(207.12)

(207.12)

Liabilities

as at

31.03.2023

207.12 -

207.12 -

Rupees in

lakhs

Assets as at

31.03.2024

Rupees in

lakhs

Assets as at

31.03.2023

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to 10% increase or decrease in the rupee against the relevant

foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management

personnel and represents management's assessment ofthe reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rate.

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their

translation at the period end fora 10% change in foreign currency rates.

Impact on loss/equity

USD

Interest rate risk management

Fortheyear

ended

Rupees in

lakhs

31.03.2024 31.03.2022

The Company hasa working capital borrowings from related party on which interest is payable at specified rates.

However, due tothe ongoing CIRP thecompany didnotmake anyprovisions for the interest on such borrowings. (Also

refer Note 16)

Credit risk management

The operations of the Company remained suspended since Sth September, 2016, accordingly there was no counterparty

risk other than the existing trade receivables against which sufficient credit risk allowance has already been created. (Also

refer Note 10)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities

that are settled by delivering cash orother financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The carrying amounts of the Company foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end 
of the reporting period are as follows:

Rupees in 
lakhs

Liabilities 
as at 

31.03.2024

Assets as at 
31.03.2024

USD           (207.12)                     -   
Total           (207.12)                     -   

Rupees in 
lakhs

Liabilities 
as at 

31.03.2023

Assets as at 
31.03.2023

USD             207.12                     -   
Total             207.12                     -   

The following table details the Company's sensitivity to 10% increase or decrease in the rupee against the relevant 
foreign currencies. 10% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management 
personnel and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rate. 
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their 
translation at the period end for a 10% change in foreign currency rates.

Rupees in 
lakhs

For the year 
ended

Impact on loss/equity 31.03.2024 31.03.2022

USD                     -   
                    -                       -   

Interest rate risk management

The Company has a working capital borrowings from related party on which interest is payable at specified rates. 
However, due to the ongoing CIRP the company did not make any provisions for the interest on such borrowings. (Also 
refer Note 16)

Credit risk management

The operations of the Company remained suspended since 5th September, 2016, accordingly there was no counterparty 
risk other than the existing trade receivables against which sufficient credit risk allowance has already been created. (Also 
refer Note 10)

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities 
that are settled by delivering cash or other financial assets.  
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TheCompany invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits which does notcarry any major risk.

Expected maturity forfinancial liabilities

As at 31.03.2024

Financial liabilities

Borrowing including undiscounted interest

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

As at 31.03.2023

Financial liabilities

Borrowing including undiscounted interest

Trade payables

Other financial liabilities

36 Deferred tax assets/ liabilities (net)

Deferred tax assets/ liability (net) consists of

a) Book/ taxdepreciation difference

b) Employee benefits

c) Carry forward of business loss

d) Others

Deferred tax assets/ liability

Deferred tax assets/ liability recognised inbooks

Note:

Less than Between1 More than

1 year to5 years years

OL\-

Rupees in

lakhs

Total

11,591.51 22,701.68 10,594.99 44,888.18

3,272.01 - - 3,272.01

75.89 - - 75.89

14,939.41 22,701.68 10,594.99 48,236.08

11,591.51 22,701.68 10,594.99 44,888.18

3,272.01 -
" 3,272.01

75.89 - - 75.89

14,939.41 22,701.68 10,594.99 48,236.08

As at

31.03.2024

113.48

(7.68)

13,482.67

118.08

13,706.55

Rupees in lakhs

As at

31.03.2023

184.30

(7.68)

13,482.67

118.08

13,777.37

(i) The Company hascarried out it's tax computation in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes'. In view oflow probability

that future taxable profit will be available against which temporary difference can be utilised and on account ofpreparation

of Ind AS financial statements on nota going concern basis, no deferred tax assets have been recognised on unused

taxlosses.

(ii) Detail of temporary differences, unused taxlosses and unused taxcredits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised

in the balance sheet:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The Company invests its surplus funds in bank fixed deposits which does not carry any major risk.
Expected maturity for financial liabilities

Rupees in 
lakhs

As at 31.03.2024 Less than 
1 year

Between 1 
to 5 years

More than 5 
years Total

Financial liabilities
Borrowing including undiscounted interest   11,591.51     22,701.68        10,594.99        44,888.18 
Trade payables     3,272.01                  -                       -            3,272.01 
Other financial liabilities         75.89                  -                       -                 75.89 

  14,939.41     22,701.68        10,594.99        48,236.08 
As at 31.03.2023                     -   

Financial liabilities
Borrowing including undiscounted interest   11,591.51     22,701.68        10,594.99        44,888.18 

Trade payables     3,272.01                  -                       -             
3,272.01 

Other financial liabilities         75.89                 -                       -                 75.89 
  14,939.41     22,701.68        10,594.99        48,236.08 

                    -   
36 Deferred tax assets / liabilities (net)

Rupees in lakhs
As at 

31.03.2024
As at 

31.03.2023

Deferred tax assets / liability (net) consists of
a) Book/ tax depreciation difference              113.48             184.30 

b)  Employee benefits                 (7.68)                (7.68 )
c) Carry forward of business loss          13,482.67         13,482.67 
d) Others              118.08             118.08 

Deferred tax assets / liability          13,706.55         13,777.37 

Deferred tax assets / liability recognised in books                     -                      -   

Note:
(i) The Company has carried out it's tax computation in accordance with Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes'. In view of low probability 

that future taxable profit will be available against which temporary difference can be utilised and on account of preparation 
of Ind AS financial statements on not a going concern basis, no deferred tax assets have been recognised on unused 
tax losses.

(ii) Detail of temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax credits for which no deferred tax asset is recognised 
in the balance sheet:

Rupees in lakhs
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Particulars

Deferred tax assets with no expiry date

Deferred tax assets with expiry date”

* These would expire between F.Y. 2023-2024 to2029-2030

37 Figures of the previous periods have been regrouped, wherever necessary.

38 Approval offinancial statements

As at

31.03.2024

5,185.97

8,520.58

13,706.55

OU-’

Asat

31.03.2023

5,256.79

8,520.58

13,777.37

(i) The resolution to receive, consider and adopt theAudited Financial Statements of the Company forthefinancial year

ended 31st March 2020, 31st March 2021, 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2023 and thereports of the Board of

Directors/ Resolution Professional and the reports of the Auditor thereon were notapproved and passed with the

requisite majority of the shareholders in the 52nd, 53rd, 54th and 55th Annual General Meeting of the Company

held on 25th September 2020, 30th September 2021, 30th September 2022 and 14th September 2023 through Video

Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual means (“OAVM), respectively.

(ii) The resolution to appoint Statutory Auditors forthe financial year ending 31st March 2021, 31st March 2022, 31st March

2023 and 31st March 2024 tofix their remuneration was not passed with the requisite majority of the shareholders in

the 52nd, 53rd, 54th and 55th Annual General Meeting ofthe Company held on 25th September 2020, 30th September

2021, 30th September 2022 and14th September 2023 through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual means

(“OAVM), respectively. The re-appointments ofStatutoryAuditors forthe financial year31st March 2021, 31st March 2022,

31st March 2023 and 31st March 2024; and to fix their remuneration have been done by theResolution Professional,

is in continuation of the resolution passed fortheappointment ofthe Statutory Auditors by CoC in its 6th CoC Meeting

held on 28th August 2019.

The IndAS Standalone financial statements forthe year ended on 31st March, 2024, were noted/approved forissue by

Board ofDirectors/Resolution Professional on 23rd May, 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board ofDirectors/Resolution Professional

Place: Ranchi

Date: 23rd May, 2024
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Place : Ranchi
Date : 23rd May,  2024

Particulars As at 
31.03.2024

As at 
31.03.2023

Deferred tax assets with no expiry date            5,185.97           5,256.79 
Deferred tax assets with expiry date*            8,520.58           8,520.58 

         13,706.55         13,777.37 

* These would expire between F.Y. 2023-2024 to 2029-2030

37 Figures of the previous periods have been regrouped, wherever necessary.

38 Approval of financial statements

(i) The resolution to receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended 31st March 2020, 31st March 2021, 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2023 and the reports of the Board of 
Directors / Resolution Professional and the reports of the Auditor thereon were not approved and passed with the 
requisite majority of the shareholders  in the 52nd , 53rd, 54th and 55th Annual General Meeting of the Company 
held on 25th September 2020, 30th September 2021, 30th September 2022 and 14th September 2023 through Video 
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual means (“OAVM), respectively.

(ii) The resolution to appoint Statutory Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March 2021, 31st March 2022, 31st March 
2023 and 31st March 2024 to fix their remuneration was not passed with the requisite majority of the shareholders in 
the 52nd, 53rd, 54th and 55th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 25th September 2020, 30th September 
2021, 30th September 2022 and14th September 2023 through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio-Visual means 
(“OAVM), respectively. The re-appointments of Statutory Auditors for the financial year 31st March 2021, 31st March 2022, 
31st March 2023 and 31st March 2024; and to fix their remuneration have been done by the Resolution Professional, 
is in continuation of the resolution passed for the appointment of the Statutory Auditors by CoC in its 6th CoC Meeting 
held on 28th August 2019.

The Ind AS Standalone financial statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2024, were noted/approved for issue by 
Board of Directors/Resolution Professional on 23rd May, 2024.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors/Resolution Professional
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REVENUE ACCOUNTS

SI. Year Sale of Depre- Profit

No. products ciation before

& Other Tax

Income

Dividend Share

Tax percent Capital

(RUpees inLakhs)

1 1969-70 58.33 16.08 (-)14.16 — — 249.32

2 197&-71 314.66 47.50 17,71 — — 249.66

3 1971-72 336.55 S2.19 39.09 — 6S6 249.78

4 1972-73 330.93 S2.40 9.42 — 6% 249.BB

S L973-74 338.52 S3.13 2.83 — — 249.92

6 t974-7S 502.03 S3.S3 36.19 — 10% 249.93

tax Free

7 1978-76 481.43 SS.28 23.61 5%

taxFree

8 L976-77 555.96 54.44 S3.04 — 596

tax Free

9 1977-78 601.89 S4.62 62.99 6S6

249.94

249.95

249.98

taxFree

10 t978-79 733.3S 57.94 115.61 SI.00 12% 249.98

11 1979-80 830.35 54.40 103.36 63.00 129ú 249.98

12 198&81 865.36 32.07 97.43 55.00 1296 249.98

13 1981-82 1117.36 42.07 126.19 28.00 1S96 249.98

14 t982-83 1586.76 47.0S 84 52 25.00 1596 249.98

15 1983-84 1579.14 68.36 65.69 38.00 10% 249.98

16 1984-85 1894.43 60.19 89.40 48.80 15% 249.98

17 1985-86 2308.38 41.S1 306.25 147.00 20% 249.98

18 1986-87 2661.89 48.88 95.57 22.00 20% 249.98

19 1987-8B 2978.52 64.66 104.28 31.00 1596 249.98

20 1988-89 3396.64 83.89 16.60 2.65 15S6 249,98

21 1989-90 4100.40 106.17 81.66 13.25 1896 249.98

22 199&91 4351,72 113.65 235.70 36.00 25% 249,98

23 1991-92 4891.95 137.93 247.72 106.00 75% 249.98

24 1992-93 S213.27 232.41 407.93 150.00 25% 547.32

2S 1993-94 6776.30 370.70 344.55 93.IXI 25% 547.32

26 1994-95 6224.20 423.10 403.28 130.00 259é 547.32

27 1995-96 6781.96 428.S9 405.51 120.IXI 27.S96 547.32

28 1996-97 733159 418.30 S37.22 231.00 27.596 547,32

29 1997-98 735062 438.06 708.80 280.00 3096 547.32

30 t998-99 7603.76 466.81 692.91 358.00 32.5'K 547.32

31 1999-20€I0 8907.66 SS3.28 736.56 269.III 32.596 S47.32

32 200&-01 9433.94 543.51 567.82 205.00 32.S% 547.32

33 2001-02 9577.14 518.26 211.40 78.05 22% S47.32

34 2002-03 10010.83 466.60 627.38 220.00 2796 547.32

3S 2003-04 10430.65 424.14 S95.78 173.16 2796 547.32

36 2004-05 14045.73 418.73 842.40 233.7S 40% 547.32

37 2005-06 88447.56 S16.61 756.46 141.90 4096 547.32

38 2006-07 221S4.81 492.88 1532.50 469.95 42.596 547.32

39 2007&8 24678.77 421.56 983.44 348.37 4036 547.32

40 2008-09 '\8929.72 354.13 f-)1839.52 (-)165.9 (-) 1026.13

41 2009-10 14236.63 39S.S6 (-)1153.30 (-) (-) 1026.13

42 201&-11 14727.86 562.17 f-)3044.IXI (-) (-) 1026.13

43 2011-12 15232.80 1810.94 (-)5312.39 (-) (-) 9S26.13

44 2012-13 19644.96 1915.64 f-)3373.84 (-) (-) 9526.13

4S 2013-14 16754.52 2255.70 (-)7504.44 (-) (-) 18226.13

46 201615 15756.04 3304.70 (-)6762.07 (-) (-) 24526.13

47 2015-36 14180.75 1541.20 1-)15687.73 (-) { ) 26126.13

48 2016-17 S265.83 694.46 f-)8294.88 (-) (-) 1026.13

49 2017-28 93.36 478.04 f-)256S.64 (-) (-) 1026.13

SO 2018-19 42.17 588.70 (-)1996.18 (-) (-) 1026.13

51 2019-20 46.61 560.90 {-)793.26 (-) (-) 1026.13

52 202&21 - 349.38 (-)354.37 (-) (-) 1026.13

53 2021-22 - 347,34 (-)347.40 (-) {) 1026.13

S4 2022-23 - 344.30 (-)344.36 (-) (-) 1026.13

5S 2023-24 - 330.41 (-)330.47 (-) (-) 1026.13
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CAPITAL ACCOUNTS

Res- Borrow- Gross

erves ings Block

(Rupees in Lakhs)

— 370.62 647.62

— 413.00 667.74

44.70 422.11 681.09

39.12 373.12 687 67

26.95 341.57 700.75

38.15 291.IS 724.19

49.25 264.41 733.53

89.79 210.66 743.38

137.80 148.51 781.42

172.41 139.37 786.05

182.78 116.52 802.81

195.22 85.05 814.08

255.92 89.73 976.28

277.95 92.64 1088 4S

280.65 73.86 1142.24

283.76 57.47 1184.04

425.02 183.42 1266.03

448.61 228.37 1380.37

484.40 775.56 1428.89

477.54 901.35 192142

500.97 1003.86 202S.62

638.18 968.96 2167.76

717.42 2220.74 3339.54

1254.45 2086.59 4429.44

1269.18 2230.08 5040.38

1371.97 2010.63 5256.62

1438.40 1970.25 S403.74

1579.26 1767.07 5702.49

1827.47 1671.63 604152

2't64.94 2328.91 7801.12

2435.07 1S34.30 7724,29

2601.88 1609.33 7740.88

2185.88 965.58 7855.73

2426.73 706.58 7994.84

2682.6S 783.4S 8062.74

2832.94 3036.31 10D84.14

3197.88 3267.07 10160.93

3617.68 283985 10362.06

4't82.15 3608.76 33077.48

7959.98 8655.41 22075.61

6806.68 11988.94 27256.II

5540.OS 16670.19 30243.82

(-)1597 S6 13874.24 27939.71

(4971.40) 15027.18 29048.46

(12526.42) 13066.55 29903.26

(19332.44) 11489.63 32426.31

f35020.17) 12636.66 26329.36

f43291.85) 41556.34 8381.PO

145857.49) 44119.18 8331.90

(47852.81) 44888.18 7222.98

(48646.07) 44888.18 7222.98

(48747.46) 44888.18 7222.98

(49094.88) 44888.18 7222.98
(49439.24) 44888.28 7222.98

{49769.71) 44888.18 7222.98

Share

(Rupees)

Share

(PAT)

Net Shares of Rs.100/-

Block each

(Rupees)

606.50 — —

S99.95 99.87 7.08

563.34 117.79 15.64

S16.96 115.60 3.77

475.83 310.75 1.13

448.84 12S.23 14.48

409.30 i19.68 9.B4

958.47 13590 2L22

321.59 1S5.IS 25.20

289.39 169.00 25.85

253.81 173.15 36,I5

231.62 178.13 t6.98

353.12 202.41 39.29

419.43 211.23 23.82

404.89 212.31 21.09

390.61 213.55 16.2S

463.42 270.07 63.72

539.84 279.51 29.44

523.31 293.83 29.32

949.06 291.08 S.58

Shares of Rs.10/- each

947.32 30.05 2.74

994.07 35.54 7.99

2035.72 38.71 5.67

2899.37 31.10 4.71

3142.06 33.19 4.59

2937.35 35.07 4.99

2656.00 36.28 5.22

2543.24 38.86 S.60

2525.61 43.39 7.84

3951.50 49.56 9.77

3S015S 5449 8.S4

3060.30 57.54 6.63

2712.34 49.94 2.44

2398.28 54.34 7.45

2068.64 S9.02 7.72

3768.12 61.76 11.12

3381 99 68.43 11.23

3115.94 76.10 19.41

5479.78 86.43 1t.60

14'I92.18 87.57 (23-68)

9029.5S 76.30 (›1.24)

21458.27 96.40 (29.67)

17343.51 64.00 (5177)

16548.01 44.80 f3288)

13472.80 49.50 (73.14)

13877.03 69.00 (65.9o)

6259.27 38.30 (152.89)

623639 SI.00 (80.85)

46'26.49 54.50 (z5.00)

4067.78 36.10 (19.45)

3506.88 17.70 (7 73)

3202,42 37.80 ( 3.4S)

2855.08 132.00 (3.39)

2SI0.78 68.IXi (3.36]

2180.3 103.00 (3.22)
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